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Istanbul Area by Area

The map below shows the four central areas of Istanbul
that contain many of the sights in this guide. Other

sights are covered in chapters on Greater Istanbul, the
Bosphorus, and Excursions from Istanbul. Each of the main
sightseeing areas has been colour-coded for easy reference.
Use the thumb tabs on the top of the pages to guide you
directly to the-area you wish to explore.
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HOW TO USE THIS

GUIDE

HOW TO USE THIS GUIDE

his guide helps you to get the

most from your stay in Istanbul.

It provides both expert recom-
mendations and detailed practical
advice. Introducing Istanbul locates
the city geographically, sets Istanbul
in its historical and cultural context
and gives an overview of the main
attractions. Istanbul Area by Area is
the main sightseeing section, giving
detailed information on all the major
sights plus three recommended walks,

FINDING YOUR WAY AROUND ISTANBUL

with photographs, maps and illustra-
tions throughout. Greater Istanbul
looks at sights outside the city centre.
The Bosphorus guides you through a
trip up the straits, and Excursions from
Istanbul explores other places with-
in easy reach of the city. Tips for res-
taurants, hotels, entertainment and
shopping are found in Travellers’
Needs, while the Survival Guide con-
tains useful advice on everything from
personal security to public transport.

The centre of Istanbul has
been divided into four

sightseeing areas, each
with its own chapter,
colour-coded for easy
reference. All sights are
numbered and plotted

on an area map for each
chapter. The major sights
are covered in more detail.

The area shaded pink
is shown in greater
detail on the Street-by-
Street map on the
following pages.

Street-by-Street Map
This gives a bird’s-eye

Area Introduction

This describes the
history and character of
the area and has a map
on which the sights have
been plotted. Other key
information is also given.

Each area has colour-
coded thumb tabs.

Locator Map

view of the beart of each

sightseeing area. Interesting
Sfeatures are labelled. There
is also a list of “star sights”

that no visitor should miss. /

e

A suggested route takes
in the most interesting and
attractive streets in the area.

P 3 Detailed information
All the important sights are
described individually. They
are listed in order, following the
numbering on the area map, with
practical information about each.
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ISTANBUL AREA MAP IchnbaTArea by Arca
The coloured areas shown &
on this map (see inside front
cover) are the four main
sightseeing areas used in this
guide. Each is covered in a
full chapter in Istanbul Area
by Area (pp48-107). They

are highlighted on other maps
throughout the book. In
Istanbul at a Glance (see
pp34-43), they help you

to locate the top sights. The
introduction to the Street
Finder (see pp246-263) shows
on which detailed street map
you will find each area.

Introduction to Greater Istanbul
Introductory ~ GREATER ISTANBUL ] Greater Istanbul bas its own intro-
text gives an duction, outlining what the city suburbs
overview of have to offer the sightseer. It is divided

the main sights into five districts, shown on a map.
in the Greater :

Istanbul area. Practical information is provided in
an information block. The key to the
symbols used is on the back flap.

J

A map of the ——
city shows

Greater Istanbul
and the areas
covered in the
chapter’s sub-
divisions.

Buyond Taksim

Guragan Palace J

Introduction to Greater

Istanbul areas I =
An introduction places the area in — g
its historical context and provides a
map showing the numbered sights.

Edirne: Selimiye Mosque isroNs cHEEKUST

[~~~ The Visitors’ Checklist provides
detailed practical information.

«— ¢~ The major sights

6 These are given two or
more full pages. Historic
buildings are dissected to
reveal their interiors. Where
necessary, sights are colour-
coded to belp you locate the
most interesting areas.
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INTRODUCING

ISTANBUL

A range of exotic spices for sale in
the Spice Bazaar

SHOPPING AND
SEAFOOD

* Refresh your senses in the
Spice Bazaar

e Shop for antiques in
Cukurcuma

¢ Haggle in the Grand Bazaar

* Enjoy the buzz on
Nevizade Sokak

TWO ADULTS allow US$105

Morning

The Spice Bazaar (see pS8)

is a riot of colour, stalls and
smells, where you can buy
any number of exotic
foodstuffs, including hand-
made Turkish delight and
creamy goats’ cheese. From
here, head up to the bustling
Grand Bazaar (see pp98-9),

a labyrinthine Ottoman
shopping complex housing
thousands of leather, rug,
ceramics and jewellery
shops. Prices are inflated and
price tags often absent
altogether so remember to
bargain. All this shopping is
bound to whet your appetite,
so head for the waterfront

the Grand Bazaar

district of Kumpkapi, where
you will find more than 50
fish restaurants vying for
your attention. Again, many
outlets do not display prices,
so ask before you order.

Afternoon

Revived and restored, take a
taxi to the Galata Bridge and
stroll over to trendy Tiinel
and Beyoglu (see pp101-7),
soaking up the view as you
go. Take time to browse
around the cosy cafés and
bars in Ttnel, before making
your way up Istiklal Cadessi
(see pp102-103) to shop for
clothes, shoes, books and
music. Further up, the district
of Qukurcuma (see p107) is

a hunting ground for antique
furniture and ornaments.
Nevizade Sokak, just off
Istiklal Cadessi, is a narrow
street lined with dozens of
meybanes (see p193). The
area really comes alive at
night, when hundreds of
locals flock here and
passers-by are serenaded by
traditional musicians.

FOUR GREAT DAYS IN ISTANBUL

stanbul is a frenetic city
with a wealth of culture,
history and nightlife. Split
in two by the Bosphorous
Strait, it is the only city in
the world to straddle two
continents, Europe and Asia,

are designed to give you a
flavour of the city as a whole.
All the sights are cross-
referenced to the rest of the
guide, so you can look up
more information and tailor
the day to suit your needs.
and thus has two contrasting ceramic plate from Price guides include meals,

atmospheres. These itineraries transport and admission fees.

A FAMILY DAY OUT

* See Istanbul in miniature

¢ A boat trip to Biiyiikada

¢ A horse-drawn carriage
ride around Biiyiikada

FAMILY OF FOUR allow US$120

Morning

Catch a bus from Taksim
Square to Miniatiirk (see
pp222-3) located in Sutllce
on the northern shore of the
Golden Horn (see p89). The
park displays miniatures of
the city’s most famous sights,
such as Haghia Sophia (see
pp72-5), as well as other
treasures from around the
country that reflect Turkey’s
rich heritage. There is also a
children’s park and a
museum showcasing photo-
graphs of Atatiirk, the great
Turkish leader of the early
20th century, and the wars in
Gallipoli. When you get
hungry, head to Miniattirk’s
attractive café-restaurant that
overlooks the Golden Horn.

Bustling dock activity at Eminonii
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Afternoon

Head back to Istanbul after
lunch and hop on a boat
bound for the island of
Buytikada, one of the nine
that make up the Princes’
Islands (see p159). Tt is a
one-and-a-half hour trip from
the docks at Eminoni, so
there is plenty of time to
admire the view as Istanbul
recedes on the horizon.
Once you have landed, stroll
around the main square of
Saat Meydani or take a
horse-drawn carriage ride
around the island. Climb the
hill to St George’s Monastery
for panoramic views and a
meal at the hilltop restaurant.

MOSQUES, MUSEUMS
AND HAMAMS

¢ Byzantine iconography at
Haghia Sophia

« Glimpse the past at the
Museum of Turkish and
Islamic Arts

* An awe-inspiring visit to
Topkapi Palace

TWO ADULTS allow US$140

Morning

Start at the Blue Mosque (see
pp78-9), perhaps Istanbul’s
most elegant Islamic sight,
famous for its slender
minarets and blue Iznik tiles.
Stroll through the well-
tended garden at the front
before making your way to
imposing Haghia Sophia
(see pp72-5), another of
Istanbul’s most renowned
mosques. Inside is a marvel-
lous array of Byzantine
mosaics, friezes and Iznik
blue tile decorations, as well
as a huge domed ceiling.
Then head to the nearby
Museum of Turkish and
Islamic Arts (see p77), which
has a wonderful collection
of glass and metalwork,
carpets and manuscripts
from down the centuries,

as well as modern art from
Turkey and overseas. Head
to Yesil Ev (see p186) for
lunch, a lovely Ottoman-
style restaurant between the
museum and Topkapi Palace,
serving traditional fare.

The Fortress of Europe overlooking the Bosphorus

Afternoon

You will need at least three
hours to appreciate Topkapi
Palace (see pp52-9), a
sprawling complex of court-
yards, gardens, fountains, a
harem and a collection of
priceless antiques. Then, at
the end of a long day, indulge
in that most Turkish of
pleasures, a visit to a Turkish
bath (see p67). Cemberlitas
Baths (see p81) in Sultanahmet
is one of the finest.

Decorative blue tiles in the Haghia
Sophia mosque

UP THE BOSPHORUS

¢ A boat up the Bosphorus

¢ Enjoy views at Fortress of
Europe

e Stroll through the pretty
village of Bebek

TWO ADULTS allow US$95

Morning

Catch a bus from Taksim
Square or Eminonii bus
terminus heading for Sartyer

or Emirgan and get off at
Arnavutkoy (see p145) on the
Bosphorous. There are some
lovingly restored Ottoman
houses and mansions to
admire here, most of them
painted in pastel shades and
trimmed with intricate
wooden fretwork. Cafés line
the back streets, so sit and
linger over a coffee and a
pastry. From Arnavutkoy,
continue walking north-
wards, past the fishing boats
and pleasure cruisers
bobbing on the water, until
you reach Bebek (see p138 &
p146), one of Istanbul’s most
affluent villages. There are
more than enough chic
clothes and antiques shops
here to tempt visitors to part
with their cash and work up
an appetite for lunch. Dine
in style at the Poseidon (see
p206). Here you can sip an
aperitif and enjoy the splendid
view before savouring the
menu of fresh fish.

Afternoon

Delve into history at the
imposing Fortress of Europe
(see pp140-1), built in the
15th century as part of the
Muslim conquest of
Constantinople. There is also
a fantastic view of the
Bosphorus from here. After-
wards, walk around the
delightful 19th-century
pavilions of nearby Emirgan
Park (see p141) with its
hundreds of pine, fir and
cypress trees and an
ornamental lake.
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Putting Istanbul on the Map

Istanbul stands astride the straits of the Bosphorus,
straddling the European and Asian parts of Turkey
and bordered to the south by the Sea of Marmara.
The city is divided not only by the Bosphorus but
also by the Golden Horn, an inlet forming a natural
harbour. Although no longer the capital of Turkey
(see p31), Istanbul is still the country’s largest and
most monumental city.
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Istanbul and its Environs
The sights in central Istanbul
are covered in detail on
pages 48-107 and a Street
Finder is provided on pages
246-63. Sights outside the
centre are covered on pages
108-49. Places of interest on
the Bosphorus and further
afield, still within the city
boundaries, are explored on
pages 134-71.
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Greater Istanbul

The expanding metropolis of Istanbul
spreads along the Bosphorus to

the north, beyond the airport to the
west and inland from the Asian shore
in the east. Its official population is
put at a little over 11 million but the
actual population is probably much
higher. Transport improvements are
being made to make getting around
this vast urban area easier. Most
visitors, however, stay in the
historical central parts where

the major sights are located.
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Central Istanbul

This guide divides
central Istanbul into
*# four distinct areas, each
with its own chapter.
Three areas lie on the

— e southern side of the
shoe shinemanout-  Golden Horn. Seraglio
side the New Mosque  Point is a raised promon-

tory on which stands the

sumptuous Topkapi Palace. Two architectural
masterpieces, Haghia Sophia and the Blue
Mosque, dominate the area of Sultanahmet.
The pace of life is quite different in the
Bazaar Quarter, a maze of narrow streets
filled with frenetic commerce. North of the 3 N
Golden Horn is Beyoglu, which for centuries Istiklal Caddesi, Beyoglu

REFIK SPLPAn
%(/rn

was the preferred place of residence of Old-fashioned trams shuitle up /
Istanbul’s foreign communities, and is still and down the pedestrian- Lo
markedly cosmopolitan in atmosphere. ized street that forms the e
backbone of this area / & H
(see pp100-107). &7 s
The Grand Bazaar, in % t
the Bazaar Quarter .
This quaint former "
coffee house stands {,fggi 5
at a junction in the 4
labyrinthine old
shopping complex at
the beart of the city’s °,,
Bazaar Quarter
ali¢ Hatti

(see pp84-99).
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THE HISTORY OF

ISTANBUL

THE HISTORY OF ISTANBUL

stanbul was founded in the 7th century BC on a naturally

defensive site from which trade along the Bosphorus could be

controlled. For 16 centuries it was a great imperial capital, first

of the Byzantine Empire and then of the Ottoman sultans. Some know-

ledge of the histories of these two civilizations belps the visitor to

appreciate the magnificent monuments found throughout the city.

The topography of Istanbul
was formed at the end of the

last Tce Age, when meltwaters ( 5

created the Bosphorus. The g G

&

Stone Age cultures in the N

area were replaced by Copper
Age villages and walled
Bronze Age towns (no-
tably Troy, see p171).
The Bosphorus was an
important trade route in
the ancient world along
which ships carried wine
and olive oil north from
the Mediterranean, and
grain, skins, wool, timber, wax, honey,
salted meat and salted fish south from
regions around the Black Sea.

The area around the Bosphorus was
subjugated by a series of peoples,
starting with the Mycenaeans (1400
1200 BC). Between 800 and 680 BC
the region was controlled by the
kingdom of Phrygia. Later, in 676 BC,
Greek expeditionaries founded the
city of Chalcedon (on the site where
modern Kadikdy now stands).

THE FOUNDATION OF BYZANTION
The foundation of Istanbul is usually
dated to 667 BC when, according to
legend, a Greek colonist, Byzas, led an
expedition from the overcrowded cities

Septimius Severus, who devastated
the city in the 2nd century AD

of Athens and Megara to estab-
lish a colony on the European
side of the Bosphorus. This

grew to be a successful inde-
pendent city-state, or polis, one
of the 40 most important
»_ such states through-
| out the Ancient Greek
world. During the next
few centuries, Byzan-
tion worked in partner-
ship with Chalcedon,
using the same coinage
and sharing the tolls ex-
acted from passing sea trade.

But Byzantion had to struggle to
maintain its independence in the
mercurial politics of the ancient
world. Tt endured Lydian (560-546
BQ), Persian (546-478 BC), Athenian
(478-411 BC) and Macedonian (334—
281 BC) rule before briefly regaining
its autonomy. In 64 BC it was sub-
sumed into the Roman Empire as
Byzantium. The city was almost
destroyed in AD 195 by Septimius
Severus because of its support for
his rival for the imperial throne,
Pescennius Niger. It survived the
Goths’ devastation of Chalcedon in AD
258 but trade in the region dramati-
cally declined in the following years.

TIMELINE

340 BC Philip I
of Macedonia
unsuccessfully
besieges city

€.676 BC
Chalcedon, a Greek
settlement, founded
on Asian shore

€Y
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) AD 195 Roman emperor
Septimius Severus destroys
Byzantium but later rebuilds it,
laying out the Hippodrome

! Alexander
i the Great

600 BC 400 BC ’—[ 200 BC AD 1 AD 200
€.667 BC Byzantion 64 BC Pompey
reputedly founded by 334 BC Alexander brings Byzantion AD 258
Greek colonists from the Great crosses the into the Roman Goths
Athens and Megara, Hellespont (Dardanelles) Empire, renaming destroy

led by Byzas

and conquers Anatolia

it Byzantium Chalcedon

<] The Byzantine emperor Justinian the Great shown with one of his prefects in a mosaic
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CONSTANTINE THE GREAT

In AD 324, after defeating his co-
emperor Licinius, Constantine the
Great (324-37) became sole ruler of the
Roman Empire. One of his
greatest achievements
was to move the capi-

tal of the empire from
| Rome to Byzantium.
¢ Initially, Constantine

preferred the site of
Troy (see p171) for his
capital, but was per-
suaded by advisers that
Byzantium held a superi-
or position for both defence and trade.
Constantine’s city was officially styled
the “New Rome” but became widely
known as Constantinople. The em-
peror quickly started on an ambitious
programme of construction work,
which included the Great Palace (see
pp82-3) and various public buildings.

Constantine was also instrumental
in the spread of Christianity. According
to legend, he saw a vision of the cross
before a battle in 312. Although not
actually baptized until just before his
death, he worked hard to create a
coherent system of Christian belief out
of the variant practices of the day. All
the early church councils took place
in the city or near-
by, the first being
held in Nicaea,
(modern-day iznik,
see p160), and the
second in Constan-
tinople itself.

A successor of
Constantine, Theo-
dosius 1 (379-95),
divided the Empire
between his two
sons, Honorius and
Arcadius. When the

Gold aureus of
Constantine

e

Relief from the Egyptian Obelisk (see p80).
showing Theodosius | and his courtiers

Latin-speaking Western Empire fell
to barbarian armies during the 5th
century, the Greek-speaking Eastern
Empire, thereafter known as the
Byzantine Empire, survived.

THE AGE OF JUSTINIAN

The 6th century was dominated by
the extraordinary genius of Justinian
(527-65), who developed Constan-
tinople into a thriving city
and almost succeeded in
reconquering the lost
provinces of the West-
ern Empire from the
barbarians. At the time
of his death the
empire had ex-
panded to its
greatest size,
and covered
Syria, Palestine,
Asia Minor, Greece,
the Balkans, Italy,
southern Spain and many territories
in northern Africa, including Egypt.
Justinian’s formidable wife, the ex-
courtesan Theodora, had a great deal
of influence over him. In 532 she per-
suaded the emperor to use mercenaries
to put down an angry mob in the most
notorious event of his reign, the Nika
Revolt. In the car-
nage that followed
30,000 were killed
inside the Hippo-
drome (see p80).

Justinian was al-
so responsible for
much of the city’s
great architecture,
including Haghia
Sophia (see pp72-
5), Haghia Eirene
(see p60) and parts
of the Great Palace.

Empress Theodora,
wife of Justinian

TIMELINE
324 476 The Western Roman 674 Five-year-
Constantine 395 On the death Empire falls to barbarians long siege of
becomes ruler 330 of Theodosius I, Constantinople
of the Roman | | Inauguration of | the empire is 532 Nika Revolt is put down by initiated by the
Empire Constantinople | divided into two mercenaries; 30,000 are killed Saracens
[ 300 400 [ 500 [ 600 700
325 First church 412 Construction ;‘m 537 Emperor Justinian
council meets 337 Constantine work begins on  fo dedicates the new 726 Leo 111 issues a
at Nicaea is baptized a the Walls of Ssltecl Haghia Sophia decree denouncing
Christian on his Theodosius I = idolatry, and many
deathbed (see p22) s icons are destroyed

—
. s TR
o .
e

Walls of Theodosius IT
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THE BYZANTINES AT WAR
The Byzantine Empire never
again attained the splendour
of the reign of Justinian, but
throughout the first millen-
nium it remained rich and
powerful. During the early
Middle Ages, Constantinople
was an oasis of learning, law,
art and culture at a time when
Europe was plunged into a
dark age of ignorance and illiteracy.
Considering themselves to be the lead-
ers of Christianity, the Byzantine rulers
dispatched missionaries to spread their
religion and culture among the Slavic
nations, especially Russia.

During this period, Constantinople
produced some capable emperors, in
particular Heraclius (610-41), Basil
the Macedonian (867-86), Leo the
Wise (886-912) and Basil the Bulgar-
Slayer (976-1025). Be-
tween them these rulers
contributed a number of
buildings to the city and
recaptured lost provinces.

Never without enemies
greedy for a share of the
prodigious riches that
had been amassed in the
city, Constantinople was
besieged by Slavs, Arabs,
Avars, Bulgars, Persians
and Russians, all without
success because of the
protection of the land
walls. The surrounding
seas, meanwhile, were
under the control of
Constantinople’s power-
ful navy. Its main ship
was the dromon, an oared vessel
which could ram another ship but
above all deliver the dreaded “Greek
fire”, an early form of napalm.

WO T e
b - Ty SE KaemekdagriT g T

A 6th-century ivory carving of a
Byzantine emperor, possibly
Anastasius | (491-518)

T 3

“Greek fire”, used by the Byzantines against the Arabs

In 1059 Constantine X, the first of the
Dukas dynasty of emperors, ascended
to the throne. The state over which
the dynasty presided was a weakened
one, divided between the over-privi-
leged bureaucracy in the capital and
the feudal landlords of the provinces.
At the same time increasing depend-
ency on foreign mercenaries placed
the empire’s defence in the hands of its
most aggressive neighbours. These
included the Normans
= from southern Italy, the
1 Venetians and Turkic
| no-mads from the east.
| The Byzantine imperial
army was totally de-
stroyed at the Battle of
Manzikert (1071) and
again, a century later,
at the Battle of Myrio-
cephalon (1176) by the
Seljuk Turks from the
east. These losses effec-
tively ended Byzantine
rule of Anatolia, which
had for so long been the
backbone of the empire.
The remarkable Com-
nenus dynasty (1081—
1185) ruled for a century
after the Dukas emperors, between
these two defeats. Their main achieve-
ment was to succeed in holding
the rest of the empire together.

21

843 Icons are

1071 The Byzantine army is 1138 John II 1176 The Seljuk

permitted again destroyed by the Seljuk Turks Comnenus Turks defeat the
by seventh at the Battle of Manzikert. recovers Byzantine forces
church council Emperor Romanus Diogenes is Serbia at the Battle of
at Haghia Sophia disgraced and deposed Myriocephalon
900 1000 1100 1200

1096 The armies of the

First Crusade pass through
Constantinople and assist
Alexius I Comnenus to retake
the Anatolian seaboard from
the Seljuk Turks

1054 The Orthodox and
Catholic churches break away
from each other because of
differences over dogma

Haghia Sophia
mosaic
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The City of Constantinople

For almost a thousand years
Constantinople was the richest
city in Christendom. It radiated out
from three great buildings: the
Yy church of Haghia Sophia (see pp72-
5), the Hippodrome (see p80) and
Mosaicof the  the Great Palace (see pp82-3).
Virgin, St saviour The city also had a great many
in Chora other fine churches and palaces,
filled with exquisite works of art.
Daily life for the populace centred on the four
market squares, or fora. Meanwhile, their need
for fresh water was met by an advanced network s, | L i
of aqueducts and underground water cisterns. Walls of Theodosius

Theodosius II's great chain of land
THE CITY IN 1200 walls (see p114) withstood countless
At its height the magnificent city of Mocius sieges until the Ottoman conquiest
Constantinople probably had about 400,000 Cistern of the city in 1453 (see p20).

inhabitants. The population density was
relatively low, though, and there was space
within the city walls for fields and orchards.

The Golden Gate
was a ceremonial
gate through the
city’s ramparts.

Walls of

Church of St Constantine Forum of
John of Studius {now totally Arcadius Harbour of
{see p116) destroyed) Theadosius

BYZANTINE CHURCH ARCHITECTURE TYPICAL LATE

Early Byzantine churches were either basilical (like BYZANTINE CHURCH
St John of Studius) or built to a centralized plan 4
(as in SS Sergius and Bacchus). From

the 9th century, churches, like the
typical example shown here, were
built around four corner piers, or
columns. Exteriors were mostly

A central

apse is flanked

by two smaller
"y, side apses.

unadorned brickwork, but inter- Four
iors were lavishly decorated with columns
golden mosaics. Although the support
Ottomans converted Con- the dome.
stantinople’s churches into Brickwork
mosques after their conquest of may alter-
the city, many original features nate with
are clearly discernible today. layers of

stone.

The narthex, a covered porch, i - kg X" Golden mosaics cover the
forms the entrance to the church. = i ceilings and upper walls.
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Church of the Holy Apostles

Aetius Cistern
Blachernae Palace

(see p117)

]

= =X

St Saviour -
Valens Aqueduct

in Chora
(see pp118-19)

{see p113)

Forum of
Theodosius
{sce p83)

Forum of
Constantine
{see p81)

Church of

55 Sergius
and Bacchus Hippodrome Haghia
{see p82) {see p80) Great Palace Eirene

{see pp82-3) fsee p60)

Haghia Sophia
The great church of
Constantinople (see
pp72-5) was filled
with mosaics,
including this one
showing the Virgin
and Child with the
emperors Constantine
and Justinian.

The domes of what was one of the city’s most
important churches (see p113) are shown in
this 12th-century image of the Ascension.

Monastery of Water from the Belgrade Forest (see p158) and
the Pantocrator  the mountains west of the city was brought into
Constantinople on this great structure (see p89).

AR

_Basilica Cistern
his cavernous cistern

(see p76) represented
a great feat of engineer-
ing when it was built
in the Oth century.

_

Milion, Hippodrome
This stone pillar (see p71)
is all that remains of a
Byzantine triumphal arch
from which road distances
to all corners of the empire
were once measured.
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THE FOURTH CRUSADE

In 1202, an army of 34,000 responded
to an appeal from Pope Innocent III
for a new crusade to the Holy Land.
This unruly force of Christians lacked
the funds to get beyond Venice, where
it needed to hire ships. It consequently
fell under the influence
of Enrico Dandolo, the
manipulative Doge of
Venice. With his back-
ing, the crusaders were
soon diverted to Con-
stantinople where they
helped the young Alexius
IV take the throne.

However, six months
later, when they realized
they were unlikely to
receive their promised
financial reward from

The capture of Constantinople during the Fourth Crusade of 1202-4

of one their own, Baldwin I, Count of
Flanders. Through the dark years that
followed, known as the Latin Empire,
the once great city was reduced by
pillage, misrule and emigration to a
scattering of disconnected villages
grouped behind the city walls. Outside
Constantinople, the ex-
iled Byzantine emperors
survived the turmoil,
biding their time as the
rulers of the Empire of
Nicaea, just to the south,
which included modern-
day Iznik (see p160).

CONSTANTINOPLE
IN DECLINE
In 1261, Constantinople
was recaptured for By-
zantium by Michael VIIT

: Skt S
Icon of St Michael, now in Venice,
an ple of the fine By
art plundered by the Venetians
during the Fourth Crusade

the emperor, the cru-
saders lost patience and
launched a new attack,
ousting Alexius in favour

Palaeologus (1258-82),
who met almost no re-
sistance in the process.
He did this with the aid

TIMELINE

1261 Michael VIIT
Palaeologus recaptures
Constantinople from
the Venetians

1202 An army assembles in Venice
to launch the Fourth Crusade

1331 Ottomans capture
Nicaea (modern Iznik)

1204 Alexius TV is deposed and Baldwin T
is crowned emperor of a new Latin Empire

1326 Prusa (Bursa) is taken
and becomes Ottoman capital

[ 1200 1225 1275 [1300 [1325

1301 Osman I founds
the Ottoman Empire

1321 Outbreak
of disastrous
33-year-long

Byzantine
civil war

1203 Dandolo, Doge of
Venice, diverts the Fourth
Crusade to Constantinople.
He cuts the chain across the
Golden Horn (see p23)

and storms the city

Bronze horses taken by
Dandolo from the Hippo-
drome (see p80) to Venice
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of the Ttalian city of Genoa, which was
naturally disposed to fight against her
rival Venice. Yet she still exacted a
crippling price for her assistance. The
Genoese established the colony of
Pera across the Golden Horn from
Constantinople, and effectively
took control of the city’s trade.

Constantinople’s recap-
ture and reconstruction
caused a flowering of
scholarship and artistic
activity, known as the ?
Palaeologue Renais- 3
sance after the family of \ @
emperors. An example of M
the many beautiful build- %
ings dating from this period
is the Church of St Saviour in
Chora (see pp118-19).

During this period the double-
headed eagle was adopted as the
imperial crest, with the two heads sym-
bolizing the western and eastern
halves of the empire. Yet, within a few
decades there was further discord in
Constantinople, when a quarrel arose

R L O i 3 R
Mosaic of the Virgin and Child in St Saviour in Chora

Two-heade
Byzantine eagle

between Andronicus 1T (1282-1328)
and his grandson Andronicus IIT (1328
41) over the succession. This led to the
disastrous civil war of 1321-54.

THE RISE OF THE OTTOMANS
The Ottoman state was born in
g 1301 when Osman I, a leader
: . of warriors who were fight-
ing for the Muslim faith

on the eastern frontier of

the Byzantine Empire,
declared his indepen-
dence. The new state
;] quickly expanded and
.2/ in 1326 captured Prusa
(modern-day Bursa, see
pp162-8), which became its
capital. The judicious piety of
the Ottomans soon won them
the support of the general
population of their territories, and
even of some Christian brotherhoods.
Meanwhile, a professional core of
Janissaries (see p127) was created to
add stability to an army which was oth-
erwise too dependent on Turkic and
renegade volunteer cavalry.

By 1362, with the Ottoman capture
of Adrianople (Edirne, see pp154-7),
Byzantium had been reduced to the
city-state of Constantinople and a
few minor outposts, isolated within
Ottoman domains. Only a Mongol
incursion in 1402 delayed the Ottoman
invasion of Constantinople itself. In
1422 the Ottoman army made its first
attack on the city’s colossal land walls.
As the threat increased, the Byzantine
emperor made a last ditch effort to win
the support of the Latin West in 1439.
The Hungarians alone answered his
call for help, forming a 25,000-strong
crusade. However, in 1444 they were
defeated en route by the Ottomans at
the Battle of Varna on the Black Sea.

i
)

1362 Murat T conquers Adrianople
(Edirne), which then becomes the
Ottoman capital. Byzantium is
reduced to the city of
Constantinople

1451 Mehmet 1T succeeds to
the Ottoman throne and
orders construction of the
Fortress of Europe (see p140)
to seal the Bosphorus

1350 [1375 [ 1400 1425 [ 1450
1348 The Galata Tower 1444 A Hungarian army
is built by the Genoese 1422 First on its way to help Constan-
inhabitants of the city Ottoman siege tinople is destroyed by the
as a watchtower over of Constantinople | Ottomans at Varna on the
the Pera quarter Galata by Murat I1T Black Sea. Constantinople’s
Tower last hope of survival is lost
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THE CONQUEST OF CONSTANTINOPLE
On 29 May 1453 Sultan Mehmet II
(1451-81), known as “the Conqueror”,
entered Constantinople after a 54-
day siege during which his cannon had
torn a huge hole in the Walls of
Theodosius 11 (see p114). Mehmet's first
task was to rebuild the wrecked city,
which would later
become known as
Istanbul. The Grand
Bazaar (see pp98-9)
and Topkapt Palace
(see pp54-7) were
erected in the years
following the Muslim
conquest. Religious
foundations were
endowed to fund the
building of mosques
such as the Fatih (see
p113) and their asso-
ciated schools and
baths (see pp38-9). The city had to be
repopulated by a mixture of force and
encouragement. People from all over
the empire moved to Istanbul, and
Jews, Christians and Muslims lived
together in a cosmopolitan society.
Mehmet and his successors pushed
the frontiers of the empire across the
Middle East and into Europe. In the
early 16th century, Selim I (1512-20)
conquered Egypt and assumed the title
of caliph (see p29), as well as establish-
ing the Ottomans as a sea power. He
is also notorious for killing all his male
relatives bar one son, to ensure that
there were no rivals for the succession.

Sultan Mehmet II,
“the Conqueror”

SULEYMAN THE MAGNIFICENT
Selim’s one surviving son was Siley-
man I, “the Magnificent” (1520-66),
under whose rule the Ottoman Empire
reached its maximum extent. At the
time of his death the empire stretched

from Algiers to the
Caspian Sea and
from Hungary to
the Persian Gulf. 3» }
Much of western
Europe only just |
escaped conquest
when an Ottoman
army was driven
back from the
gates of Vienna in
1529. Stleyman’s
reign was a time of great artistic and
architectural achievements. The archi-
tect Sinan (see p91) designed many
mosques and other great buildings in
the city, while the Ottoman arts of
ceramics (see p161) and calligraphy
(see p95) also flourished.

OTTOMAN EMPIRE
[ Maximum extent (1566)

Depiction of the unsuccessful siege of Vienna

TIMELINE

1456 The Ottomans occupy Athens
1453 Mehmet the

Ibrahim Pasa is killed

1536 Grand Vizier 1561 Siileyman

executes his son 1571 Defeat of the

Conqueror enters 1461 Trebizond on the Black on the orders of Beyazit on Ottoman navy at
Constantinople Sea, the last part of the Byzantine Stileyman’s wife, suspicion of the Battle of Lepanto
on 29 May Empire, is conquered Roxelana (see p76) treason
[ 1450 [ 1475 1500 [1525 [ 1550
1455 Yedikule 1478 Topkapt 1556 Inaugura-

Castle (see p115)
is built and work
begins on the
Grand Bazaar

Palace completed

1470 Fatih Mosque is
built over the Church
of the Holy Apostles

Pasa, better known
as Barbarossa, is
appointed grand

tion of Sinan’s

Stileymaniye

Mosque (see

pp90-91) :
Stileyman I N

1533 Hayrettin

admiral
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THE SULTANATE
OF WOMEN

Stleyman’s son Selim II
(1566-74), “the Sot”, was
not such a capable ruler, al-
though he added Cyprus to
the empire. The defeat of
his navy by the Venetians
at the Battle of Lepanto was
a heavy blow to Ottoman
ambitions to be a seafaring
power. This era was also
the start of the so-called “Sultanate
of Women”, when Selim’s mother
(the valide sultan, see p28) and Nur
Banu, his principal wife (the first
kadin), effectively took over power
and exercised it for their own ends.
Corruption and intrigue became en-
demic, and after Selim’s death Nur
Banu kept her son, Murat IIT (1574—
95), distracted by the women of the
harem so that she could maintain
her control over imperial affairs.

Osman II (1618-22) was the first
sultan to try to reverse the decline
of the empire. But
when the Janissaries
(see p127) learnt of
his plans to abolish
their corps, they
started a revolt
which eventually
led to his assassi-
nation. Murat IV
(1623-40) enjoyed
more success in his
attempts at reform
and significantly
reduced corruption
during his stable period of rule.

The late 17th century saw many
years of capable government by a
succession of grand viziers from the
Albanian Koprila family. Yet their
efforts were not sufficient to stem

The Battle of Lepanto, a defeat for the Ottoman navy

Osman Il, who failed to halt Ottoman decline

the decline in imperial fortunes,
symbolized by a failed attempt to
capture Vienna in 1683. The Treaty of
Karlowitz in 1699 marked the start of
the Ottoman withdrawal from Europe.

THE TULIP PERIOD

Ahmet III (1703-30), on his succession
to the throne, left power in the hands
of his capable grand vizier, [bra-

==, him Pasa. The sultan preferred

( f‘ pleasure to politics. During his
i1 reign, beautiful Baroque pal-

aces, such as Aynali Kavak
Palace (see p127), fountains,
mosques and yalis (see p139)
were built. Formal gardens
were laid out and filled
with tulips, Ahmet’s fav-
ourite flower, which
lent their name to the
period of his rule. The
sultan even ordered
tulips to be scattered
| over the floor at the
lavish festivals and
entertainments that
he staged for the
Ottoman elite. He also sent an ambas-
sador, Mehmet Celebi, to France to
investigate Western civilization and
culture. On his return, Western clothes
and costumes became not only accept-
able for the first time, but fashionable.

1616 The Blue Mosque (see ‘
pp78-9) is finished after eight

years of construction work s
by the architect Mehmet Aga

1600

[1625 [1650 | [

1622 Revolt of the
Janissaries. They murder
Osman II in Yedikule
Castle, the Prison of

the Seven Towers

Domes of the Blue Mosquie

1699 The loss of Hungary under
the Treaty of Karlowitz marks
the Ottomans’ retreat from Europe

[ 1700 1725

1729 The first
Ottoman printing
press is set up in

Istanbul and begins to
print texts in Turkish
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Ottoman Society

Beneath the sultan, Ottoman society was divided into a : -
privileged ruling class (the askeri, which included the vpvr;:lfh?;ilﬁzilg
religious hierarchy, or ulema) and a tax-paying subject right-hand man.
population (reaya). Rank and honour, however, were
not hereditary but could be gained through education
or service in the army or administration. This social
structure was modified during the
reforms of the 19th century (see p30), = :
but Ottoman titles were only finally = E v Lo
abolished in 1924 : 1IN
after the Turkish
Republic was cre-
ated (see p31).

The grand
vizier, the

The sultan was at the apex of the
social order and everyone owed al-
legiance to him. He lived a life of ease
and luxury, as seen in this portrait of
Mabmut I (1730-54). The Ottoman
(Osmanlt in Turkish) sultans were
always succeeded by one of their sons,
but not automatically by the eldest.

Minister of BAYRAM RECEPTION (c.7800)
Agaofthe the Interior seyhiilislam In this painting by Konstantin Kapidagi, Selim III
Janissaries (Grand Mufti)  (1789-1807, see p30) presides over a parade of
high-ranking officials during the celebration of
a religious festival (see p47) at Topkapt Palace.

Chief
@§ executioner

THE WOMEN OF THE HAREM

Like all other Ottoman institutions the harem was
hierarchical. Tt was presided over by the sultan’s
mother, the valide sultana. Next in order of impor-
tance came the sultan’s daughters. Immediately
below them were the four kadins, the official
wives or favourites. Then came the
gozdes (girls who had recently caught
the sultan’s eye), and the ikbals
(women with whom he had
already slept). Apart from the
sultan’s family members, all these

’ i‘-.i

AT S

women had entered the harem as
slaves. They were kept under a
watchful eye by a powerful
stewardess, the kabya kadin.

Men of high rank could be
recognized by their different
uniforms, above all their large and
distinctive beadgear, as seen in this
portrait of four Ottoman officials.
The turban was abolished by
Mabmut II (see p30) in 1829 in
Javour of the more egalitarian fez.

One of the sultan’s favourites as
depicted in a 19th-century engraving
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Black
eunuchs

The Gate of Felicity

(see p54), in the second
courtyard of Topkapt
Palace, was used for such

Sword bearer ...\ 5njal occasions.

to the sultan

The sultan is sur-
rounded by his

courtiers. He is the
only seated figure.

Chief lackey

Seyhiilislam (footman)

(Grand Mufti)
Chief of the sultan’s
bodyguard

Dancing
women

Black
eunuchs

Valide

sultana Dwarf

centre of attention in this festive scene. The picture was commissioned
¢.1689 by Madame Giradin, wife of the French ambassador.

OTTOMAN TITLES

Aga: leader of an organiz-
ation. The most influential
agas were the com-
mander of the
Janissary corps, the
sultan’s elite troops
(see p127), and the
Aga of the Abode
of Felicity, or
chief black
eunuch, who
was in charge
of the harem
(see pp58-9).

Chief black
eunuch

Bey: governor of a district
or province. The word is now
used simply to mean “Mr”.

Caliph: spiritual ruler of the
Islamic world. The title was
assumed by the Ottoman
sultans, beginning with Selim
the Grim in 1517.

Gazi: honorary title given to
a victorious Islamic warrior.

Kadi: judge charged with
interpreting Islamic law and
Ottoman administrative codes.

Khedive: viceroy of Egypt
under Ottoman rule (1867—
1914). The autonomous
khedives acknowledged the
religious leadership of the
Ottoman Empire.

Pasa: title bestowed on a
senior civil servant or high-
ranking army officer. According
to his rank, a pasa was entitled
to display one, two or three
horsetails on his standard (see p56).

Sultan: political and religious
ruler of the empire.

Seyhilislam (Grand Mufti): head
of the ulema, a religious institu-
tion which was made up of
“learned men” responsible for
interpreting and enforcing Islamic
law (sharia).

Valide sultana: mother of
the ruling sultan.

Vizier: minister of state.
The four most senior
ministers were called
“viziers of the dome”
because they attended
cabinet meetings in f
the domed hall of the |
divan in Topkapt
Palace (see pp54-9).
From the 16th century, |
the divan was pre- |
sided over by the
immensely powerful
grand vizier (the

prime minister).

Grand
vizier
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A Janissary leaps to his death in a German
painting of the Auspicious Event of 1826

THE REFORMING SULTANS
Abdil Hamit I (1774—89) resumed the
work of reform and was succeeded by
Selim III, who instituted a wide range
of changes to the military and Ottoman
society. He was deposed by a Janissary
mutiny in 1807. Mahmut I (1808-39)
realized that the Janissary corps (see
p127) could not be reformed, so

replaced the old system of rule by mili-
tary and religious powers. By doing
this he paved the way for his sons
Abdiil Mecit (1839-61) and Abduil Aziz
(1861-76) to oversee the Tanzimat
(Reordering), a series of legislative
reforms. Functionaries were given
salaries to deter them from taking
bribes and the grand vizier's post was
replaced by that of prime minister.

A constitution was declared in 1876,
creating parliamentary government.
However, the Russian-Turkish War of
1877-88 led to Abdil Hamit II sus-
pending it and ruling alone for the next
30 years. In 1908 a bloodless revo-
lution by a collection of educated men
— the so-called Young Turks — finally
forced the sultan to recall parliament.

ATATURK AND WESTERNIZATION
Throughout the 19th- and early 20th-
centuries, the Ottoman Empire steadily
lost territory through wars with Russia
and Austria, and to emerging Balkan
nation-states such as Serbia, Greece
and Bulgaria. Then, in World War I,
despite famously winning the battle
for Gallipoli in a valiant defence of the
Dardanelles (see p170), the Ottoman
Empire found itself on the losing side.
Istanbul was occupied by victorious
French and British troops and much of
Anatolia by Greek forces. The peace

he replaced them with a modern
army, but the Janissaries rebel-
led and were massacred on 15
June 1826 in the “Auspicious
Event”. Soon after, in 1829, the
sultan introduced further mod-
ernizing measures including
changes in the dress code.

Later in his reign Mahmut re-
organized central government so

that a regulated bureaucracy

Atrtillery in action at Gallipoli

TIMELINE

1807 Much of the city
is destroyed during

a Janissary revolt
against Mahmut IT

Dolmababge clocktower

1845 First
(wooden) Galata
Bridge is built over
the Golden Horn

1870 Schliemann begins

excavation of Troy (see p171)
1888 Rail link with Paris leads
to first run of the Orient
Express (see p66)

1800 1825 | 1850 1875
1856 Abdiil Mecit I abandons Orient f
1826 Mahmut 11 Topkapi Palace for the new Express
finally destroys the | Dolmabahgce Palace (see pp128-9) poster

Janissaries in their
own barracks in the
“Auspicious Event”

1875 The Tunel underground railway system, the
third built in the world, opens in Galata
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treaties that followed rewarded the vic-
tors with Ottoman territory and as a
result stimulated Turkish nationalists
to take over power from the sultan.
The history of modern Tur-
key is dominated by the
figure of Mustafa Kemal
Pasa (1881-1938), a mili-
tary hero turned politician,
universally known as
Atiturk, or “Father of
the Turks”. It was at
his instigation that the
Turkish War of Inde-
pendence was fought
to regain territory lost
to the Allies and, in par-
ticular, Greece. At the
conclusion of this war,
the present territorial
limits of Turkey were es-
tablished. Atatiirk then
set in motion an ambitious programme
of political and social change. The
sultanate was abolished in 1922, and
religion and state were formally sepa-
rated when the country was declared a
secular republic in the following
year. His reforms included re-
placing the Arabic alphabet with
a Roman one, allowing women
greater social and political rights,
encouraging Western dress (the
fez was banned) and obliging all
Turks to choose a surname.

A portrait of
Atatiirk

MODERN ISTANBUL
Another part of this process was
to move the institutions of state
from the old Ottoman city of
Istanbul to the more centrally
located Ankara, which became
the capital of Turkey in 1923.
Since then, Istanbul has gone
through a dramatic transforma-
tion into a modern city. As mi-

The 1970s

grants from Anatolia
have poured in, the popu-

lation has increased, and
although small commu-
nities of Jews, Arabs,
Armenians and Christians
remain within the city,
they are now vastly out-
numbered by Turks.

A booming economy has led to the
building of new motorways and
bridges, and the public transport net-
work has been revolutionized by the
introduction of modern trams, light
railways and fast catamaran sea buses
(see p243). Meanwhile Istanbul has
geared itself up for tourism: its ancient
monuments have been restored and
many new hotels and restaurants have
opened in recent years to accommo-
date increasing numbers of visitors.

But, like Turkey as a whole, Istanbul
is forever wrestling with a divided half-
Asian, half-European identity. The
influences of these contrasting cul-
tures remain widely evident today and
create the city’s unique atmosphere.

Modern tram
(see p232)

BT

pension bridge

1919-22 British
and French
occupy Istanbul

1922 Sultanate

1938 Atatiirk dies /
in Dolmabahce

Palace at 9:05am Y
on 10 November y/

1993 The Tslamicist
Welfare Party takes
control of the
Greater Tstanbul

Turkish flag Municipality

2006 The new
Turkish Lira
(YTL) becomes
the official

finally ends (see p129) Y. currency
[ 1925 [ 1950 [ 1975 | 2000
1915 Allied 1936 Haghia Sophia 1973 A
forces land at becomes a museum.  suspension bridge 1996 The United
Gallipoli but Restoration starts is built across the Nations Conference
are repulsed Bosphorus (see on Human Settlement 2002 Recep Tayyip
by Turkish 1928 Istanbul becomes p138), linking east (Habitat 1D is held Erdogan is elected

troops the city’s official name

and west Turkey

in Tstanbul Prime Minister
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The Ottoman Sultans

The first Ottomans were the leaders of warlike tribes living
on the borders of the Byzantine Empire. From the 13th

a large empire. In their heyday, having captured Istanbul in
1453 (see p26), the Ottoman sultans
were admired and feared for their
military strength and ruthlessness
towards opponents and rival
pretenders to the throne. Later
sultans often led a decadent life-
style while power was
exercised by their
viziers (see p29).

Osman Gazi
(1280-1324), a
tribal chieftain, estab-

century, however, the dynasty established itself at the head of

Murat lll

(1574-95), whose
tugra (see p95) is
shown above, fathers
over 100 children

Selim II, “the Sot”
(1566-74), prefers
drinking and harem
life to the affairs

of state

Selim I, “the Grim”
(1512-20), seen

here at his coronation,
assumes the title of
caliph after his con-

first Ottoman to
bear the title
of sultan

Beyazit | (1389-1402)
is nicknamed “the
Thunderbolt” because
of the speed at which
he takes strategic
decisions and moves
his troops from one
place to another

Period of Interregnum
(1402-13) while Beyazit's sons
fight each other over the

succession

Murat Il
(1421-51), the
greatest of the
warrior sultans,
gains notable
victories against
the Crusaders

Mehmet Il, “the
Conqueror” (1451-81),
captures Constantinople in
1453. He then rebuilds the
city, transforming it into the
new capital of the empire

lishes the Ottoman dynasty quest of Egypt
Mehmet |
Murat | (1413-21) Beyazit Il
(1360-89) (1481-1512)
1250 [ 1300 [ 1350 [ 1400 [ 1450 [ 1500 [ 1550
1250 [ 1300 [ 1350 [ 1400 [ 1450 [ 1500 [ 1550
Orhan Gazi
(1324-59) is the Siileyman |, “the

Magnificent”

(1520-60),

expands the

empire and

fosters a golden
age of artistic
achievement

Mehmet Il (1595-1603) succeeds to
the throne after his mother has all
but one of his 19 brothers strangled
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Abdiil Mecit I (1839-61)
Mustafa | (1617-18 presides over the reforms of
and 1622-3), a weak and the Tanzimat (see p30)
incompetent ruler, reigns
for two short periods and
is deposed twice

Mehmet VI (1918-22),
the last Ottoman sultan,
is forced into exile by the
declaration of the Turkish
Republic (see p31)

Mahmut II, “the Reformer”

PRS- M (1808-39), finally defeats Meh v
Ibrahim, “the Mad 270 ehmet
(152012;;), Erflchadespisedy the Janissaries (see p127) (1909-18)
goes insane at the end of his
short but disastrous reign
Mahmut | Murat V
Mustafa Il | (173059 (1876)
(1695-
Siileyman Il 1703) Mustafa Ill
(1687-91) (1757-74)
[ 1650 [ 1700 [1750 [ 1800 [ 1850 [ 1900
[ 1650 [ 1700 [1750 [ 1800 [ 1850 [ 1900
Abdiil Mecit Il
Osman lll (1922-3) is
(A7547) Abdiil Aziz caliph only,
(1861-76) the sultanate
Mehmet IV Abdiil Hamit | having been
(1648-87) (1774-89) 1922 (see p31)
Murat IV -
(1623-40)
Ahmet Ill ll\g(l;;fgga v
(1703-30) presides

over a cultural
flowering known

as the Tulip :[

Period I

(see p27)

Osman Il
(1618-22)

Abdil Hamit Il (1876-1909)
suspends parliament for

30 years and rules an auto-
cratic police state until
toppled from power by

the Young Turk movement

Ahmet | (1603-17)
has the Blue Mosque
(see pp78-9) con-
structed in the
centre of Istanbul

Selim 1l (1789-1807)
attempts Western-style
reforms but is over-
thrown by a revolt

of the Janissaries
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ore than 100 places worth

visiting in Istanbul are de-

scribed in the Area by Area
section of this book, which covers the
sights of central Istanbul as well as
those a short way out of the city centre.
They range from mosques, churches,
palaces and museums to bazaars,
Turkish baths and parks. For a breath-
taking view across Istanbul, you can

ISTANBUL'S TOP TEN SIGHTS

ISTANBUL AT A GLANCE

climb the Galata Tower (see p105), or
take a ride on a ferry (see pp242-3) to
the city’s Asian shore. A selection of
the sights you should not miss is given
below. If you are short of time you will
probably want to concentrate on the
most famous monuments, namely
Topkapt Palace, Haghia Sophia and
the Blue Mosque which are all located
conveniently close to each other.

Topkap1 Palace
See pp54-7

See pp62-5

Dolmabahge Palace
See pp128-9

See pp90-91

Archaeological Museum

Siilleymaniye Mosque

The Bosphorus Trip
See pp144-9

Blue Mosque
See pp78-9

Haghia Sophia
See pp72-5

Church of St

Grand Bazaar Saviour in Chora
See pp98-9 See pp118-19

<] View of Haghia Sophia in central Sultanahmet, a great Byzantine church later converted into a mosque
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Most visitors to Istanbul will immediately be
struck by the quantity of mosques, from the
imposing domed buildings dominating the skyline
to the small neighbourhood mosques which would
pass unnoticed were it not for their minarets. Sev- |
eral mosques were built as churches, but converted -
for Islamic worship after the Ottoman conquest—"
(see p26). Some of the most outstanding of them
have since become national 7
monuments, but no longer b/ S
serve a religious function.

{ St Saviour in Chora
o (s \ The Dormilion of the Virgin
/ : NN s one of many beautiful
. “mosaics thal fill ibis Byzanline
\“'dwrch (see ppll8-19).
.

Eyiip Mosque -
The boliest mosque in

Istanbul stands beside
the tomb of Eyiip Ensari,
a companion

of the Prophct g \ E
Mohanimed "I‘ =3
(see p120). s e e
oy 25N
& i
Church of the <_ &3 =
Pammakaristos — <%
An image of Christ . o
Pantocrator gazes ) % )
down from the N
main dome of what \

was one of the mosi
important churches
in the city (see pl13).

Siilleymaniye Mosque
Sinan, the greatest Ottoman
imperial architect, built this
mosque in honour of his patron——
'_Sd-lejvmcﬁi/tbe Magnificent (sce
" p26). He placed ablution taps

in the side arches of the mosque

to serve a large number of
worshippers (see pp90-91).

Fatih Mosque
Rebuilt after an earth-
quake, this mosque was
Jfounded by Mebmet the
Conqueror after bis con-
quest of the city (see p20).
The inner courtyard is
especially fine (see p113).
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Atik Valide Mosque
The last major work
of Sinan (see pID),
this mosque was built
in 1583 for the wife

of Selim II. Its mibrab
(niche indicaling the
direction of Mecca)

is surrounded by
Tznik tiles (see pl131).

Ristem Pasa Mosque

The fine tiles decorating this
mosquie date from the mid-
16th century, the greatest
period of iznik tile (see p161)
production (see p83).

Haghia Sophia

One of the world's greatest
[feats of architecture, Haghia
Sophia dates from AD 537.
The calligraphic roundels
were added in the 19th
century (see pp72-3).

BEYOGLU

N\ ASIAN SIDE

N

Blue Mésque
Istanbul'smost famores
landmark was buill by
some of the same stone-
masons who later belped
constriest the Taj Mabal
in Indial(see pp78-9).
1

T

THE BAZAAR || 4,
QUARTER | !

Church of 88 Sergius
and Bacchus

An intricale frieze with
a Greek inscription
honouring the lwo
dedicatees of this former
church bas survived for |
1.400 years (see p82).

il i -
§ WY S M
> I

SLEPAL |

0 metres 500
—T—

0 yards 500
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Exploring Mosques

Five times a day throughout Istanbul a chant is
broadcast over loudspeakers set high in the city’s
minarets to call the faithful to prayer. Over 99 per cent
of the population is Muslim, though the Turkish state
is officially secular. Most belong to the Sunni branch
of Islam, but there are also a few Shiites. Both follow
the teachings of the Koran, the sacred book of Islam,
and the Prophet Mohammed (c.570-632), but Shiites
accept, in addition, the authority of a line of 12 imams  [H#
directly descended from Mohammed. Islamic mystics Overview of the Siileymaniye
are known as Sufis (see p104). Mosque complex

Turkish baths
CULITIE ..\ (hamam)
The ablutions fountain L—- [ {"
T

(sadwvan) was used by wor- -
= < \g’ Courtyard

shippers for ritual washing.

A (o)
The caravanserai T
or han (see . ol
196) provided 4 rayer ha
accommodation 53 Q'LT F (cami)
for travellers. ___[~+
—

|
L.
I~ A mausoleum (1iirbe)

was built for the founder

The kitchen — = -
(imaret) Catmd\\'{ ] EE J} of the mosque.

for mosque offi-

cials, students, hr tr
the sick and .
the poor. T ggn 11 PLAN OF A TYPICAL MOSQUE
H Bl B F"k COMPLEX (KULLIYE)
" I H /}“: Er:'i_'ji:g A large complex such as the
ospital = E Siileymaniye Mosque /see pp90-91),
(darissifa) T shown here, was %uil( as f lzhari—

table foundation as well as a place of worship.
It would typically include a hospital, school,

Colleges (medreses) for general Islamic study halls, caravanserai (lodgings for

and theological education were travellers), public kitchen for the poor, and

built adjacent to the mosque. bath house. Today most such buildings no |
Most now serve other uses. longer fulfil their original functions. J

INSIDE A MOSQUE

Visitors will experience a soaring sense of space
on entering the prayer hall of one of Istanbul’s
great mosques. Islam forbids images of living
things (human or animal) inside a mosque, so
there are never any statues or figurative paint-
ings; but the geometric and abstract architec-
tural details of the interior can be exquisite. Men
and women pray separately. Women often use

a screened off area or a balcony.

The mihrab, an or- The minbar is a lofty
~ nate niche in the wall, — pulpit to the right of the
The miiezzin mahfili is a raised platform found marks the direction of  mibrab. This is used by
in large mosques. The muezzin (mosque official) Mecca. The prayer ball — the imam when be
stands on this when chanting responses to the is laid out so that most  delivers the Friday

prayers of the imam (bead of the mosque). people can see it. sermon (khutba).



ISTANBUL AT A GLANCE 39

MUSLIM BELIEFS AND PRACTICES
Muslims believe in God (Allah), and the Koran
shares many prophets and stories with the Bible.
However, whereas for Christians Jesus is the son
of God, Muslims hold that he was just one in a
line of prophets — the last being Mohammed,
who brought the final revelation of God’s truth
to mankind. Muslims believe that Allah com-
municated the sacred texts of the Koran to
Mohammed, via the archangel Gabricl.

There are five basic duties for Muslims. The

PRAYER TIMES

The five daily prayer times are
calculated according to the times
of sunrise and sunset, and so
change throughout the year.
Exact times will be posted up on
boards outside large mosques.
Those given here are a guide.

first of these is the profession of faith: “There Prayer ~ Summer  Winter
is no God but God, and Mohammed is his Sabah 5am 7am
Prophet”. Muslims are also enjoined to pray ‘_55?/6 ! Tpm Tpm
five times a day, give alms to the poor, and Ikindii 6pm 4pm
fast during the month of Ramazan (see p47). Aksam 8pm 6pm
Once in their lifetime, if they can afford it, vatsi 9:30pm 8pm

they should make the pilgrimage (hajj) to

Mecca (in Saudi Arabia), the site of the Kaaba,
a sacred shrine built by Abraham, and
also the birthplace of the Prophet.

The call to prayer used to be
given by the muezzin from the
balcony of the minaret. Now-
adays loudspeakers broadcast
the call across the city. Only
imperial mosques have more
than one minaret.

Ritual ablutions
must be under-
taken before prayer.
Worshippers wash
their bead, hands
and feet either at
the fountain in the
courtyard or, more
usually, at taps set
in a discreet wall
of the mosquie.

A L Ta
When praying, Muslims always
face the Kaaba in the holy city of
Mecca, even if they are not in a
mosque, where the mibrab indi-
cates the right direction. Kneeling
and lowering the bead to the
ground are gestures of bumility
and respect for Allab.

VISITING A MOSQUE

Visitors are welcome at any mosque in
Istanbul, but non-Muslims should try to

avoid prayer times, especially the main
weekly congregation and sermon on Fridays
at 1pm. Take off your shoes before enter-
ing the prayer hall. Shoulders and knees
should be covered.

Some mosques
require women

to cover their

hair, and scarves
can usually be
borrowed. Do not
eat, take photo-
graphs with a flash
or stand close to

The loge (hiinkar
mahfili) provided the
sultan with a screened-

off balcony where he
could pray, safe from
would-be assassins.

The kiirsii, seen in
some mosques, 1s a
chair or throne used
by the imam while
he reads extracts

from the Koran.

worshippers. A
contribution to a
donation box or
mosque official
is courteous.

Board outside a mosque
giving times of prayer
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Istanbul’s Best: Palaces and Museums

As the former capital of an empire that spanned
from Algeria to Iraq and from Arabia to Hungary,
Istanbul is home to a huge and diverse collection of
treasures. Some, from musical instruments to priceless
jewels, are housed in the beautiful formér imperial :
palaces of the Ottoman sultans, w lmh are worth visiting i
in any casc for their architecture,and, opulent
+ interiors. Topkapt and Dolmabafice are the most
i ; famous palaces in Istanbul. The AthACOlOglLJ]
. Museum should also be on any ifinerary of the
city. This map peints out these and other
. palaces and museums - which are worth g
-\ visiting for their splendid buildings or the Aynali Kavak Palace
{25 exceptional (Ollt(tl()nb they contain.

a‘--

: This reclusive palace.
S T iy with its airy feel and

3 ntimate proportions,

shows subtler aspects of

Ottoman taste. It houses

a collection of Turkish

musical instruments.

g ,
\, Archacological Museuni ™
| Purpose-built in 1896, this 4
superb musem has exhibits .
| ranging from prebistory to | '
b the Byzantine eva. They \
@ include this classical sculp— !
ture of the 2nd-centisry N \ N

~» Ruman Emperor Hadrian.

BEYOGLU

‘Museum of Calligraphy
Some of the texts in Istanbul’s /
collection of Ottoman calligraphy /

3 § IR Nl e thic THE BAZAAR
(see p95) are by sultans, such as this QUARTER
panel by Abmet III (1703-30). C — oy

. sERAGLm%

Museum of Turklsh
and Islamic Arts
This Scljisk example is
one of the many carpets
(see pp218-19) included
in this museum’s display
of Turkish beritage. Other
collections include glass-
ware and ceramics.

Mosaic Museum
Gladialors fighling
a lion are shown in
one of the floors from
the Great Palace (see
pp82-3) displaved in

4 this small museum.
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Military Museum
A bighlight of this
misenm is the
[amous Mehler
Band, which gives
regular ouldoor
concerts of Ottoman
mililary music.

Sale Pavilion

One of a group of
pavilions built in leafy
Yildiz Park by 19b-
century sultans, the
Sale Pavilion has
around 50 splendid
rooms, including the
Mother-of-Pearl Iall.

> THE ASIAN
SIDE

Dolmabahge Palace
This opulent 19th-century palace is
bome to such marvels as 2-m (7-ft)
bigh vases, a crystal staircase and
an alabaster bathroom.

]
!.
\,
b
\\
S .
q—‘".:' Beylerbeyi Palace
Top'kapl Palace Adorning one of lbe principal
77m huge pulm e was atritms of this 19th-century

2 used as'the official  imperial summer palace is this
Wi roval residence for  elegant marble fountain. The

L 400 years. The\. palace was buill lo enleriain
GRS treasury contains a visiting foreign dignitaries.

myriad of precious,

objects such as

Jewel-encrusied — o0

¥ thrones and this ornate e m—
ceremonial canteen. 0 yards 750
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Exploring Istanbul’s Collections

Each museum in Istanbul contributes a piece to
the vast cultural jigsaw of this cosmopolitan
city. From Ancient Greek remains and early
Chinese ceramics, which arrived in the city
along the Silk Route, to 16th-century tiles
commissioned for the great mosques and

The saz, a
type of lute

modern industrial machinery, each has its
place in the history of Istanbul. Many of

the larger museums have a wide range of
exhibits and therefore feature under several

of the headings below.

The Sarcophagus of the Mourning
Women, Archaeological Museum

ARCHAEOLOGY

The archaeological fruits
of the expansive Ottoman
Empire are displayed in the
Archaeological Museum,
where the exhibits range from
monumental 6th-century BC
Babylonian friezes to exquis-
ite classical sarcophagi and
statues. Classical sculpture
fills the ground floor. Up-
stairs there is a gallery for
the archaeology of Syria and
Cyprus. Ancient oriental finds
are housed in an annexe.
The Museum of Turkish
and Islamic Arts features
specifically Muslim artifacts,
including early Iraqi and
Iranian ceramics as well as
beautiful displays of glassware,
metalwork and
woodwork.

BYZANTINE ANTIQUITIES

Although Constantinople
was the capital of the By-
zantine Empire (see pp20-25)
for over 1,000 years, it can be
hard to get a full picture of the
city in that period. The best
place to start is the Archaeo-
logical Museum, which has
displays illustrating the city’s
Byzantine history. Its courtyard
contains the purple sarcophagi
of the Byzantine emperors.
For Byzantine
church mosaics,
visit the Church of
St Saviour in Chora
near the city walls
which has some partic-
ularly fine examples
vividly depicting the
lives of Christ and
the Virgin Mary.
The impressive
Haghia Sophia has
a few brilliant gold
mosaics remaining,

CALLIGRAPHY

In the days before the print-
ed word, Ottoman calli-
graphy (see p95) developed
into a highly skilled artform,
widely used both to ornament
religious texts and legal
documents and decrees. The
Museum of Calligraphy
mounts a continuous series
of temporary exhibitions.
Early Koranic calligraphy can
be viewed in Topkapi Palace,
the Museum of Turkish and
Islamic Arts and the Sakip
Sabanci Museum (see p141).

CERAMICS

Experts and amateurs come
from all over the world to
view the collection of Chinese
ceramics and porcelain on
display in the kitchens of
Topkapi Palace. The earliest
examples provided the in-
spiration for Turkey’s
indigenous ceramic
production at Tznik
(see p161). Examples
of znik tiles can be
seen on the walls of
Topkapt Palace and
in the city’s mosques.
Iznik tiles and also
pottery are on dis-
play in the ¢inili
Pavilion, an annexe
of the Archaeo-
logical Museum,

some dating back  Mosque Iamp fromthe and at the Sadberk

to the reign of
Justinian (see p20).
The galleries and upper
walls of the Church of the
Pammakaristos are covered
with mosaics, although public
access is restricted.

The Mosaic Museum
houses mosaic floors and
murals from the now-
vanished Byzantine Great
Palace (see pp82-3),
which were discovered
by archaeologists in
1938. The Sadberk
Hanim Museum
also houses
several Byzan-
tine antiquities,
including icons,
ceramics and

Byzantine mosaic floor in the Mosaic Museum

jewellery.

Archaeological Museum Hanim Museum.

A wider selection
of ceramics from all over the
Islamic world can be found
in the Museum of Turkish
and Islamic Arts.

OTTOMAN INTERIORS

The interiors that can be
visited in Istanbul run

the gamut from the classical
Ottoman styling of the older
parts of Topkapi Palace

to extravagant European-
inspired 19th-century decor.
In the latter category, the
huge Dolmabahge Palace

set the style. It was decorated
with Bohemian glass and
Hereke carpets and has an
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The opulent Siifera Salon in Dolmabahce Palace

ornate central stairway fash-
ioned of crystal and brass.
The Pavilion of the Linden
Tree and the Rococo Kiigiiksu
Palace, although more inti-
mate in scale, are equally
lavish in their interior style.

TEXTILES

The Ottomans were justifi-
ably proud of their textile
tradition, which can be ad-
mired in the huge imperial
costume collection at Topkapi
Palace, begun in 1850. The
palace collection houses older
materials, including kaftans
dating back to the 15th cen-
tury. The Sadberk Hanim
Museum houses magnificent,
mostly 19th-century pieces on
the top floor and some fine
examples of embroidery.
On a larger scale, there
are huge imperial
campaign tents in the
Military Museum,
which also has a
collection of minia-
ture Janissary (see
p127) costumes.
Uniforms, nomadic
tents and fine car-
pets are on display ‘L“
in the Museum J7=.
of Turkish and
Islamic Arts.
Antique carpets
can also be seen
in the Vakiflar
Carpet Museum,
housed in an
annexe of the Blue Mosque.
It contains some valuable old
carpets that come originally
from mosques all over Turkey.

Costume from
Topkapi Palace

MUSICAL INSTRUMENTS

Examples of typical Turkish
instruments, such as the
saz (lute), can be found in a
museum devoted to them at
Aynali Kavak Palace. Those
played by the Whirling Der-
vishes are on display at the
Mevlevi Monastery. Instru-
ments can also be seen, and
bought, in two shops situated
near the entrance to Giilhane
Park (see p61). Traditional
Turkish military instruments
can be heard being played
at the Military Museum.

MILITARIA

The beautiful barges in
which the Ottoman sul-
tans were rowed around
the Golden Horn and
the Bosphorus are
part of the Naval
Museum collection.
Currently closed
for renovations, the
museum is due to
re-open in 2008.
Weapons and
armour from the
12th—20th centuries
| can be found in

Museum, along
with a cannon,
captured by the

Turks during

their European

campaigns. There
is a smaller selection of
weaponry in the armoury of

Topkapi Palace. The Florence

Nightingale Museum (in the

Selimiye Barracks on the
Asian Side) commemorates
the work of the nurse during
the Crimean War. It also has
some interesting military
exhibits.

PAINTING

Close to Dolmabahce
Palace is Istanbul’s
Museum of Fine Arts, which
offers a collection of largely
late 19th- and early 20th-
century Turkish paintings.
Those interested in more
contemporary works of art
may also like to visit the
changing exhibitions at the
Taksim Art Gallery.

SCIENCE AND
TECHNOLOGY

Located in a converted
warehouse in the heart of
Istanbul’s docks is the Rahmi
Kog¢ Museum. It is home to a
selection of mechanical and
scientific instruments dating
from the early years of the
Industrial Revolution, as well
as an entire reconstructed
bridge taken from an early
20th-century ship.

FINDING THE PALACES
AND MUSEUMS

Archaeological Museum pp62-5

Aynali Kavak Palace p127

Beylerbeyi Palace p738

Church of the Pammakaristos
ppl10-11

Church of St Saviour in Chora
pp118-19

Dolmabahce Palace pp128-9

Florence Nightingale Museum
p132

Haghia Sophia pp72-5

Kuguksu Palace p740

Mevlevi Monastery p104

Military Museum p126

Mosaic Museum p77

Museum of Calligraphy p94

Museum of Fine Arts p7126

Museum of Turkish and Islamic
Arts p77

Naval Museum p7126

Pavilion of the Linden Tree p7123

Rahmi Kog¢ Museum p127

Sadberk Hanim Museum p143

Taksim Art Gallery p107

Topkapi Palace pp54-9

Vakiflar Carpet Museum p77
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stanbul is at its best in late
May and early September,
when temperatures are
mild and sunshine is plenti-

ful. High season, from June
to August, is the most expen-
sive, crowded and hottest
time to visit, but the sum-
mer arts and music festivals
are highlights in the city’s cultural
calendar. Late November until March or
April can be damp and dreary.
However, Istanbul is still mild in autumn

Tulips growing in Emirgan Park,
scene of the spring Tulip Festival

SPRING

As the winter smog fades
and sunshine increases,

cafés and restaurants prepare
for the first wave of alfresco
dining. After a winter’s diet of
apples and oranges, a welcome
crop of spring fruits, including
fresh figs, strawberries and
tart green plums, arrives in
the shops. Toasted sweetcorn
is sold from carts (see p208),
and a spring catch of sea
bream, sea bass and turbot is
on the menu. Tulips, hyacinths,
daffodils and pansies fill parks
and gardens, and the distinc-
tive pink buds of the Judas tree
are seen along the Bosphorus.
Monuments and museums
are generally uncrowded in
spring, and discounts are
available at many hotels. In
May the popular son et lu-
miere shows outside the Blue
Mosque (see pp78-9) begin
and continue until September.

National Sovereignty Day
in Istanbul

EVENTS

Easter (March or April).
Pilgrimage to the Monastery
of St George on Biiyiikada in
the Princes’ Islands (see p159).
International Istanbul Film
Festival (late March-mid-
April), selected cinemas.
Screening of Turkish and fo-
reign films and related events.
Tulip Festival (April), Emirgan
Park (see p141). Displays of
springtime blooms.

National Sovereignty Day

(23 April). Public holiday
marking the inauguration of
the Turkish Republic in 1923
(see pp30-31). Children take
to the streets in folk costume.
Commemoration of the
Anzac Landings (25 April),
Gallipoli. Britons, Australians
and New Zealanders gather at
the location of the Anzac land-
ings at Gallipoli during World
War I (see pp170-71).

THE YEAR

and winter and, with fewer tour
parties around, you can enjoy
the sights in peace. As well

as arts and sporting events,
several public holidays and

religious festivals punctuate
the year. It is wise to be
aware of these when
planning an itinerary as
some sights may be closed or else
crammed with locals enjoying a day
out. Some of these celebrations are also
fascinating spectacles in their own right.

Spring Day and Workers’

Day (7 May). Unofficial public
holiday when workers usually
attend union-organized rallies.
Kakava Festival (early May),
Edirne. A celebration of gypsy
music and dance.

Youth and Sports Day (79
May). Public holiday in com-
memoration of the start of the
War of Independence (see
p31) in 1919, with sporting
events and other activities
held throughout the city in
stadiums and on the streets.
International Istanbul
Theatre Festival (May—june),
various venues. European and
Turkish productions.
Conquest of Istanbul (29
May), between Tophane and
Karakoy and on the shores of
the upper Bosphorus. Mehmet
the Conqueror’s taking of the
city in 1453 (see p26) is re-
enacted in street parades and
mock battles.

Colourful evening son et lumiére show at the Blue Mosque
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Hours
10

AVERAGE DAILY HOURS OF SUNSHINE

Sunshine Chart

One of Istanbul’s
attractions is its
summer sunshine —
there are about 2,500
hours each year. From
May to October the
city is bathed in light
well into the evening,
however, bursts of
beavy rain are
common in bigh

Jan

Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

Dec

summer. Winter, by
contrast, is notoriously
deprived of sun.

SUMMER

In contrast to an all-too-brief
spring, the warm weather
and clear skies of summer
can linger on in Istanbul until
November. In July and August
temperatures soar and although
luxury hotels have air condi-
tioning, cheaper ones do not.
Popular sights are packed
with tourists throughout the
high season. Picturesque
locations outside Istanbul may,
on the other hand, be overrun
by locals. At weekends city
dwellers trek out to the
Belgrade Forest and Black Sea
beaches (see p158) or to
health clubs along the Bospho-
rus. Those who can afford it
flee to their coastal summer
homes until autumn.

For those who stay behind
there is a strong summer cul-
ture. This includes a wild
nightlife in hundreds of bars
and night spots (see p213), and
enthusiastic support for many
arts festivals, which attract
world-famous performers.
Look out, too, for events tak-
ing place in historical buildings.
You may be able to listen to
classical music in Haghia
Eirene (see p60) or enjoy a
pop concert in the
Fortress of Europe
on the Bosphorus
(see pp140-41).
This is also the best
time of year for out-
door sports such as
hiking, horse-riding,
water sports, golf
and parachuting.

In summer, the
menu focuses more

Silk Market in Bursa, which operates all year round

as honeydew melons, cherries,
mulberries, peaches and apri-
cots — are widely available. In
July and August many shops

have summer sales (see p203).

EVENTS

Silk Market (June-july),
Bursa. Special market for the
sale of silk cocoons (see p164).
International Istanbul

Music and Dance Festival
(mid-June-July). Classical
music, opera and dance
performed in historic locations.
Mozart’s Abduction from the

on meat than fish,
but vegetables and
fresh fruit — such

Performance of Mozart’s Abduction from the
Seraglio in the Harem of Topkapi Palace

Seraglio isstaged annually in
Topkapt Palace (see pp54-9).
Bursa Festival (June-july),
Bursa Park. Music, folk
dancing, plays, opera and
shadow puppetry.

Navy Day (7 July). Parades
of old and new boats along
the Bosphorus.
International Istanbul Jazz
Festival (July), various
venues. International event
with a devoted following.
International Sailing Races
(July). Regatta held at the
Marmara Islands (see p169).
Grease Wrestling (July),
Kirkpinar, Edirne. Wrestlers
smeared in olive oil grapple
with each other (see p154).
Hunting Festival (3 days,
late July), Edirne. Music, art
and fishing displays.
Folklore and Music Festival
(late July), Bursa. Ethnic
dances and crafts displays.
Festival of Troy (Auguust),
canakkale. Re-enactment of
the tale of Troy (see p171).
Victory Day (30 August).
Public holiday commemorating
victory over Greece in 1922.

45
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Rainfall Chart
AVERAGE MONTHLY RAINFALL Winter is the wettest
mm Inches season in Istanbul.
150 C 6 Heavy showers of
rain can sometimes
120 s continue into April
L 4 and May, making
£C spring seem shorter.
& M3 Sudden snowstorms
L2 are not uncommon
30 | 4 in winter, but these
are short-lived and
0 Lo snowfalls will usually
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec melt away as qui(;/ely
as they come.
Turkish and Western aesthetics. | Republic Day (29 October).
AUTUMN Several public holidays reaf- Public holiday commemorat-

Residents of Istanbul often
consider their city to be
at its best in autumn. As the
summer heat loses its grip,
chestnut sellers appear on the
streets (see p208), pumpkins
are sold in the markets, and
fresh figs are eaten in abun-
dance. In the surrounding
countryside, cotton, wheat
and sunflowers are harvested.
Migratory grouper and bonito
are among the tastiest types
of fish which are caught at
this time of year.

A popular beauty spot for
its array of autumn colours is
Lake Abant, 200 km (125 miles)
east of Istanbul. Meanwhile,
bird-watchers converge on
the hills overlooking the
Bosphorus to view great
flocks of migratory birds head-
ing for their warm wintering
grounds in Africa (see p141).

On the cultural agenda is a
world-class arts biennial and
an antiques fair which blends

firm Turkey’s commitment to
secularism, including Republic
Day in late October, during
which flags are hung from
balconies. The bridges

over the Bosphorus
(see p138) are
hung with par-
ticularly huge
flags.

EVENTS

Tuyap Arts Fair (September),
opposite the Pera Palas Hotel
(see p104). A showcase of
Istanbul’s artistic talent.

Yapi Kredi Festival (Septem-
ber), various venues. A cele-
bration of music and dance
promoting young performers.

Crowds gathering to celebrate Republic Day on 29 October

ing Atatiirk’s proclamation
of the Republic in 1923 (see
p31). The Turkish flag adorns
buildings in the city.
Akbank Jazz Festival
(October), various venues.
Jazz music (see p221).
International Istanbul
Fine Arts Biennial 2007
(October—November
every 1o years).
International and
local avant-garde
artists exhibit work
in historic locations
such as Haghia Eirene
and the Imperial Mint
(see p60), and the
Basilica Cistern (see p76).
Anniversary of Death (10
November). A minute’s silence
is observed at 9:05am, the
precise time of Atatiirk’s death
in Dolmabahce Palace (see
pp128-9) in 1938.
Tilyap Book Fair (October),
Belikduzu Fair and Congress
Centre. Istanbul’s premier
publishing event showcases
prominent writers.
Efes Pilsen Blues Festival
(early November), selected
venues. Foreign and local
blues bands play in popular
music venues throughout
the city.
Interior Design Fair (first
week of November), ciragan
Palace Hotel Kempinski (see
p123). Interior designers and
antique dealers display up-
market wares in this popular
annual show.
Elit’s Kiisav Antiques Fair
(mid-November), Military
Museum (see p126). Sale of
local and foreign paintings,
furniture, carpets, maps, books,
porcelain, textiles, silver,
clocks and bronze statuary.
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AVERAGE MONTHLY TEMPERATURE

Temperature Chart
The temperature of the
city rarely drops below

c A
%0 [freezing in winter, and
30 even very cold snaps
5 0 seldom last longer than
70 three days. The beat of
0 the long, humid sum-
15 60 mer is intensified by
10 50 the lodos wind, which
m blows in from the Sea
: of Marmara. However,
0 = 30 the northerly poyraz
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec OCCﬂSiO?lﬂllj) prom'des
a cooling breeze.
WINTER

There are distinct bonuses
to visiting Istanbul in the
winter, when even major
sights are uncrowded, although
the rain, fog and pollution
may be off-putting. Shops in
the Akmerkez, Galleria, Capitol
and Carousel malls (see p211)
hold sales, making the city a
shopper’s paradise for leather,
woollens and fashion.

Outside Istanbul, when
enough snow has fallen on
the mountains, the ski season
begins in Uludag (see p169),
one of Turkey’s most important
winter sports resorts. Mean-
while, tea with baklava and
cream cakes is consumed in
the cosy cafés along the Bos-
phorus and in the old quarter
of Beyoglu (see pp100-7).

Multitude of lights to welcome in
the New Year in Beyoglu

EVENTS

Mevlana Festival (7 7-24
December), Mevlevi Monas-
tery (see p104). Enthusiastic
Istanbul devotees perform
special dances in honour of

View of Bebek on the Bosphorus (see pp736-49) in winter

the founder of the famous
Whirling Dervishes.
Christmas (late December).
Though Christmas Day is not
a public holiday, major hotels
organize seasonal festivities.
New Year's Day (1 January).
Public holiday incorporating
European Christmas traditions

including eating turkey, decor-
ating trees and partying. Strings
of lights adorn the main roads.
Karadam Ski Festival

(second half of February),
Uludag Mountain. Competi-
tions organized by local radio
stations and the Uludag Ski
Instructors’ Association.

MUSLIM HOLIDAYS

(Feast of the Sacrifice)
commemorates the Koran-
ic version of Abraham’s
sacrifice. This is the main
annual public holiday

in Turkey, and hotels,
trains and roads are
packed. Strict Muslims
also observe the festivals
of Regaip Kandili, Mirag
Kandili, Berat Kandili

and Mevlid-i-Nebi.

The dates of Muslim holidays vary according to the phases
of the moon and therefore change from year to year. In the
holy month of Ramazan, Muslims refrain from eating and
drinking between dawn and dusk. Some restaurants are
closed during the day, and tourists should be discreet
when eating in public. Straight after this is the three-day
Seker Bayrami (Sugar Festival), when sweetmeats are pre-
pared. Two months later the four-day Kurban Bayrami

Festivities during Seker Bayrami
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SERAGLIO POINT 50-67
SULTANAHMET 68-83
THE BAZAAR QUARTER 84-99
BEYOGLU 100-107
GREATER ISTANBUL 108-133
THREE GUIDED WALKS 172-177
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SERAGLIO POINT

he hilly, wooded promontory The palace is now open to the public
that marks the meeting point as a rambling museum, with lavish
of the Golden Horn, the Sea of apartments and glittering collections

Marmara and the Bos-
phorus occupies a nat-
ural strategic position.
In Byzantine times,
monasteries and pub-
lic buildings stood on
this site. Today it is
dominated by the
grandiose complex of

SIGHTS AT A GLANCE

buildings forming Topkapt Palace, the Adjacent to it is the Archaeological
residence of the Ottoman sultans and Museum, a renowned collection of
the women of the harem for 400 years.

of jewels and other
treasures. Originally,
the palace covered
almost the whole of
the area with its gar-
dens and pavilions.
Part of the grounds
have now been turned
into a public park.

Lion relief from the Ishtar Gate

finds from Turkey and the Near East.

Museums and Palaces

Archaeological Museum
pp62-5@

Topkapi Palace pp54-9 @

Churches
Haghia Eirene @

Historic Buildings and
Monuments

Fountain of Ahmet III @
Imperial Mint @

Sirkeci Station @
Sublime Porte @

Streets and Courtyards
Cafer Aga Courtyard @
Sogukcesme Sokag @

Parks
Giilhane Park @

Turkish Baths
Cagaloglu Baths @

0 metres

0 yards 400
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GETTING AROUND

With little traffic, this area is easily
explored on foot. Trams between the
Grand Bazaar and the ferry piers at
Eminoni stop outside Gulhane Park.
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[[] Street-by-Street map
See pp52-3

B2 Ferry boarding point

E Railway station
IF] Tram stop

I Tourist information
Mosque -
Walls

<] The Circumcision Pavilion in the third courtyard of Topkapi Palace
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Street-by-Street: The First Courtyard of Topkapl

The juxtaposition of Ottoman palace walls,
intimately proportioned wooden houses and a
soaring Byzantine church lends plenty of drama to
the First Courtyard, the outer part of Topkap: Palace.
This was once a service area, housing the mint, a
hospital, college and a bakery. It was also the mus-
tering point of the Janissaries (see p127). Nowadays,
the Cafer Aga Courtyard and the Fatih Biife, just
outside the courtyard wall, offer unusual settings

for refreshments. Gilhane Park, meanwhile, is Giilhane Park
one of the few shady
open spaces in a city
of monuments.

Once a rose garden in lhe
outer grounds of Topkapn
Palace, ihe wooded Giilhane
Park provides welcome shade
in which lo escape from /be
heat of the city @

Museum of
the Ancient
Orient

Sogukcesme Sokag: |
Traditional, painted
wooden bouses line this
narrow street Q

Sublime Porte
A Rococo gate stands f
in place of the old Entrance to

Sublime Porte, once Giilhane  Gulhane Park
the entrance to (and tram stop
symbol of) the Otto]
man government @

Alay
Pavilion

0 metres 75
—T—
0 yards 75

KEY

== == == Suggested route

Fatih Biife, 4 tiny
; - : 4 ornate kiosk, sells
Zeynep Sultan Mosque drinks and snacks.
Resembling a Byzantine
church, this mosque was
built in 1769 by the daughter
of Abmet III, Princess Zeynep.

Otag Music Shop R
sells traditional ™
Turkish instruments.

Cafer Aga Courtyard STAR SIGHTS

The cells of this former college,
ranged round a tranguil court-
yard cafeé, are now occupied by

Jewellers, calligraphers and other
artisans selling their wares @

% Archaeological
Museum

% Topkap! Palace
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% Archaeological
Museum

Classical statues, dazzling
carved sarcophagi,
Turkish ceramics and
other treasures from all
over the former Ottoman
Empire make this one

of the world’s great col-
lections of antiquities @

SERAGLIO POINT

SULTANAHMET

LOCATOR MAP
Cinili The Executioner’s Fountain See Street Finder maps 3 and 5
Pavilion is so named because the
{see p65) executioner washed his
hands and sword here
after 2 public beheading.

% Topkapi Palace
For 400 years the Ottoman sul-
tans ruled their empire from this
vast palace. Its fine art collec-
tions, opulent rooms and leafy
Entrance to courtyards are among the high-
Topkapi Palace  Jiohts of a visit to Istanbul @

Topkapi Palace
ticket office

Imperial Mint

This museum houses
exhibitions on the
bistorical background
0 Istanbul ©

Haghia Eirene

The Byzantine church of Haghia
Eirene dates from the Gth century.
Unusually, it bas never been
converted into a mosque @

TR

BN AT

Fountain of Ahmet III

Built in the early 18th century, the
[finest of Istanbul’s Rococo fountains
is inscribed with poetry likening it to
! the fountains of paradise @




54 ISTANBUL AREA BY AREA

Topkap1 Palace o

Topkapi Sarayt

£ Between 1459 and 1465, shortly

after his conquest of Constantinople
(see p26), Mehmet II built Topkap1
Palace as his principal residence.
Rather than a single building, it was
conceived as a series of pavilions
contained by four enormous court-
yards, a stone version of the tented
encampments from which the nomadic Ottomans
had emerged. Initially, the palace served as the
seat of government and contained a school in
which civil servants and soldiers were trained.

In the 16th century, however, the government
was moved to the Sublime Porte (see p61). Sultan
Abdul Mecit I abandoned Topkapt in 1853 in
favour of Dolmabahce Palace (see pp128-9). In
1924 it was opened to the public as a museum.

Siileyman I's
tugra over
the main gate

* Harem

The labyrinth of exquisite rooms
where the sultan’s wives and
concubines lived can be visited
on a guided tour (see pp58-9).

Exhibition of arms
and armour (see p56)

Entrance to

Harem ticket Harem

office

Gate of
Salutations:
entrance to
the palace

The kitchens

. contain an
D1vap . . . ) The Gate exhibition of
The viziers of the imperial council of Felicity is also ceramics, glass
met in this chamber, sometimes Second called the Gate of the and silverware

watched covertly by the sultan. courtyard White Eunuchs. (see p56).
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Iftariye VISITORS’ CHECKLIST
Pavilion

Standing between  Babihtimayun Cad. Map 3 F3.
the Baghdad and ~ Tel (0212)512 04 80.
Circumcision 5] Sultanahmet. [ 9:30am-
pavilions, this 4pm Wed-Mon. 17 [l Harem

) [ 9:30am-4pm Wed-Mon.
canopied balcony

book earl
provides views (3 (book ear) 1
down to the
Golden Horn.
Baghdad Pavilion

In 1639 Murat IV
built this pavilion to
celebrate bis capture
of Baghdad. It has
exquisite blue-
and-white
tilework.

Circumcision Exhibition of clocks
(see p57)

Pavilion

Pavilion of the
Holy Mantle
(see p57)

Exhibition of
miniatures and
manuscripts
{see p57)

Konyali
Restaurant
{see p198)

The fourth

"% courtyard
is a series
of gardens
dotted with
pavilions.

Third
courtyard

Library of
Ahmet III
Erected in 1719, the
library is an elegant
marble building. This
ornamental fountain is

Exhibition

of imperial set into the wall below
costumes its main entrance.
(see p56)
" % Treasury
This 17th-century STAR FEATURES
Jewel-encrusted jug is 2 MEmEm
Room one of the precious objects
" exhibited in the former % Treasury

treasury (see p57).
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Exploring the Palace’s Collections

During their 470-year reign, the Ottoman sultans
amassed a glittering collection of treasures. After the
foundation of the Turkish Republic in 1923 (see
p31), this was nationalized and the bulk of it put on
display in Topkap1 Palace. As well as diplomatic gifts
and articles commissioned from the craftsmen of the

palace workshops, a large number of items in the
collection were brought back as booty from successful

military campaigns.
Many such trophies
date from the massive
expansion of the Otto-
man Empire during

the reign of Selim the
Grim (1512-20), when
Syria, Arabia and Egypt
were conquered.

CERAMICS, GLASS
AND SILVERWARE

The kitchens contain the
palace’s collection of ce-
ramics, glass and silverware.
Turkish and European pieces
are massively overshadowed
here by the vast
display of Chinese
and, to a lesser
extent, Japanese
porcelain. This
was brought to
Turkey along
the Silk Route,
the overland
trading link
between the Far
East and Europe.
Topkapt's collection
of Chinese porcelain
is the world’s second

best after China itself.

The Chinese porcelain on
display spans four dynasties:
the Sung (10-13th centuries),
followed by the Yiian (13-
14th centuries), the Ming
(14-17th centuries) and the
Ching (17-20th centuries).
Celadon, the earliest form of
Chinese porcelain collected
by the sultans, was made to
look like jade, a stone believed
by the Chinese to be lucky.
The Ottomans prized it be-
cause it was said to neutralize
poison in food. More delicate
than these are a number of
exquisite blue-and-white
pieces, mostly of the Ming era.

Chinese aesthetics were an
important influence on Otto-
man craftsmen, particularly in

Japanese
porcelain plate

Royal crib displayed
in the Treasury

the creation of designs for their
fledgling ceramics industry at
Tznik (see p161). Although
there are no Iznik pieces in the
Topkapt collection, many of
the tiles on the palace walls
originated there. These clearly
show the influence of designs
used for Chinese blue-and-
white porcelain, such
as stylized flowers
and cloud scrolls.
Much of the later
porcelain, par-
ticularly the
Japanese Imari
ware, was made
specifically for
the export mar-
ket. The most ob-
vious examples of
this are some plates
decorated with quo-
tations from the Koran.
A part of the kitchens, the old
confectioners’ pantry, has been
preserved as it would have
been when in use. On display
are huge cauldrons and other
utensils wielded by the palace’s
chefs as they prepared to feed
its 12,000 residents and guests.

ARMS AND ARMOUR

Taxes and tributes from all
over the empire were

once stored in this chamber,
which was known as the
Inner Treasury. Straight ahead
as you enter are a series of
horse-tail standards. Carried in
processions or displayed out-
side tents, these proclaimed the
rank of their owners. Viziers

(see p29), for example, merit-
ed three, and the grand vizier
five, while the sultan’s banner
would flaunt nine.

The weaponry includes or-
nately embellished swords and
several bows made by sultans
themselves (Beyazit II was a
particularly fine craftsman).
Seen next to these exquisite
items, the huge iron swords
used by European crusaders
look crude by comparison.
Also on view are pieces of
15th-century Ottoman chain-
mail and colourful shields.
The shields have metal centres
surrounded by closely woven
straw painted with flowers.

IMPERIAL COSTUMES

A collection of imperial
costumes is displayed in

the Hall of the Campaign
Pages, whose task was to
look after the royal wardrobe.
It was a palace tradition that
on the death of a sultan his
clothes were carefully folded
and placed in sealed bags.

As a result, it is possible to
see a perfectly preserved
kaftan once worn by Mehmet
the Conqueror (see p26). The
reforms of Sultan Mahmut 1T
included a revolution in the
dress code (see p30). The
end of an era came as plain
grey serge replaced the earlier
luxurious silken textiles.

Sumptuous silk kaftan once worn
by Mehmet the Conqueror
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TREASURY

Of all the exhibitions in
the palace, the Treasury’s
collection is the easiest to
appreciate, glitter-
ing as it does
with thousands
of precious and
semi-precious
stones. The only
surprise is that there
are so few women’s
W jewels here. Whereas
g the treasures of the
sultans and viziers
were owned by the
state and reverted
to the palace on their
deaths, those belonging
to the women of the
court did not.
In the first hall stands a
full, diamond-encrusted
suit of chainmail, designed
for Mustafa III (1757-74)
for ceremonial use.
Diplomatic gifts include
a fine pearl statuette
of a prince seated
beneath a canopy,

which was
The sent to Sultan
Topkapi Abdul Aziz
dagger (1861-76)
from India.

The greatest pieces are in the
second hall. Foremost among
these is the Topkap1 dagger
(1741). This splendid object
was commissioned by the
sultan from his own jewellers.
It was intended as a present
for the Shah of Persia, but he
died before it reached him.
Among other exhibits here are
a selection of the bejewelled
aigrettes (plumes) which added
splendour to imperial turbans.

In the third hall, the 86-carat
Spoonmaker’s diamond is
said to have been discovered
in a rubbish heap in Istanbul
in the 17th century, and bought
from a scrap merchant for
three spoons. The gold-plated
Bayram throne was given to
Murat III (see p32) by the
Governor of Egypt in 1574
and used for state ceremonies
until early this century.

It was the throne in the
fourth hall, given by the Shah
of Persia, which was to have
been acknowledged by the
equally magnificent gift of the
Topkapt dagger. In a cabinet

near the throne is an unusual
relic: a case containing bones
said to be from the hand of
St John the Baptist.

MINIATURES AND
MANUSCRIPTS

Tt is possible to display only
a tiny fraction of Topkaprt’s
total collection of over 13,000
miniatures and manuscripts at
any one time. Highlights of it
include a series of depictions
of warriors and fearsome
creatures known as Demons
and Monsters in the Life of
Nomads, which was painted
by Mohammed Siyah Qalem,
possibly as early as the 12th
century. It is from this Eastern
tradition of miniature painting,
which was also prevalent in
Mogul India and Persia, that
the ebullient Ottoman style of
miniatures developed.

Also on show are some fine
examples of calligraphy (see
p95), including texts of the
Koran, manuscripts of poetry
and several firmans, the im-
perial decrees by which the
sultan ruled his empire.

B
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AN S
Cover of a Koran, decorated in
gold filigree work

CLOCKS

European clocks given to, or
bought by, various sultans
form the majority of this col-
lection, despite the fact that
there were makers of clocks
and watches in Istanbul from

the 17th century. The clocks

A 17th-century watch made of gold,
enamel and precious stones

range from simple, weight-
driven 16th-century examples
to an exquisite 18th-century
English mechanism encased in
mother-of-pear] and featuring
a German organ which played
tunes on the hour to the
delight of the harem.
Interestingly, the only male
European eyewitness accounts
of life in the harem were writ-
ten by the mechanics sent to
service these instruments.

PAVILION OF THE
HOLY MANTLE

Some of the holiest relics

of Islam are displayed in
these five domed rooms, which
are a place of pilgrimage for
Muslims. Most of the relics
found their way to Istanbul

as a result of the conquest by
Selim the Grim (see p26) of
Egypt and Arabia, and his as-
sumption of the caliphate (the
leadership of Islam) in 1517.

The most sacred treasure is
the mantle once worn by the
Prophet Mohammed. Visitors
cannot actually enter the room
in which it is stored; instead
they look into it from an ante-
chamber through an open
doorway. Night and day, holy
men continuously chant pas-
sages from the Koran over
the gold chest in which the
mantle is stored. A stand in
front of the chest holds two
of Mohammed’s swords.

A glass cabinet in the ante-
room contains hairs from the
beard of the Prophet, a letter
written by him and an impres-
sion of his footprint.

In the other rooms you can
see some of the ornate locks
and keys for the Kaaba (see
p39) which were sent to
Mecca by successive sultans.
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Topkap1 Palace: The Harem

The word Harem comes from
the Arabic for “forbidden”. It
was the residence of the sultan’s
wives, concubines and children,
who were guarded by black
slave eunuchs. The sultan and
his sons were the only other
men allowed access to the
Stained-glass  Harem, which also included
window in the
Paired Pavilions E}Eflkele(rjzgtlc;yeaszi;g’fsrg?;lﬁers LOCATOR MAP
were confined to avoid suc-
cession contests. Topkapr’s Harem was
laid out by Murat III in the late 16th
century and is a labyrinth of brilliantly
tiled corridors and chambers. Visitors
must take a guided tour. These last a
little over half an hour and often get
booked up early in the day.

The Harem

See main illustration of the palace on pp54-5

Apartments and courtyard
of the favourites

Sultan’s
bathroom

The Library
of Ahmet |
is pleasantly
light and
airy, with
ivory-faced
shutters.

% Paired |
Pavilions

These twin apart-
ments, built in
the 17th century
forthe crown
prince, boast
superb [znik tiles
(see p16D) and a
dome lined with
gilded canvas.

The Salon of
Murat lll, built
by Sinan (see
p91), has fine
tiled walls, a
handsome
fountain and
a large hearth.

% Dining Room
of Ahmet Il

A sumptuous
array of fruit and
Slowers is painted
A on 1o the walls of
this 18th-century
chamber, which
is also known as
& the Fruit Room.

Imperial Hall

The largest room in the Harem, this ball
was used for entertainments. Against one
wall stands a large throne, from which
the sultan would view the proceedings.




TOPKAPI PALACE

LIFE IN THE HAREM

The women of the Harem were
slaves, gathered from the furthest
corners of the Ottoman Empire
and beyond. Their dream was
to become a favourite of the
sultan (see p28) and bear him a
son, which on some occasions
led to marriage. Competition was
stiff, however, for at its height
the Harem contained over 1,000
concubines, many of whom
never rose beyond the service
of their fellow captives. The last A western view of Harem life in
women eventually left in 1909.  a 19th-century engraving

Salon of the Valide Sultana
The sultan’s mother, the valide sultana (see
p29), was the most powerfill woman in the The Tower of

Harem and had some of the best rooms. Justice offers a
superb view of
Topkapr’s roof-
tops and beyond.

Courtyard of the The Golden Way is so called be-
valide sultan cause new sultans reputedly threw
gold coins to their concubines here.

Entrance

Courtyard of
the concubines

Valide sultan’s The Harem baths were ™~
bedchamber where the concubines Barracks of the

bathed and relaxed. black eunuchs

Valide sultan’s
prayer room

STAR FEATURES

KEY -
* Paired Pavilions Courtyard of the
= == == Route of guided tour Black Funuchs
[] Rooms on guided tour % Dining Room of Marble columns line this court-
Ahmet Il yard, which still has some old-

[[] Areas closed to the public

Jfashioned, wrought-iron lamps.
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Archaeological
Museum ©

See pp62-5.

Imperial Mint ©

Darphane-i Amire

First courtyard of Topkapi Palace.
Map 3 E4 (5 F3). 2] Gulhane or
Sultanahmet.

The Ottoman Mint opened
here in 1727, but most of
what can be seen today dates
from the reign of Mahmut II
(1808-39), when the complex
was extended. In 1967, the
mint moved to a new location.
The buildings now house
laboratories for the state restor-
ation and conservation depart-
ment, but visitors can look
around the exterior of the
building during office hours.

Haghia Eirene @

Aya Irini Kilisesi

First courtyard of Topkapi Palace.
Map 3 E4 (5 F3). Tel (0212) 522 17
50. 2] Guilhane or Sultanahmet.
[ for concerts.

Though the present church
dates only from the 6th
century, it is at least the third
building to be erected on
what is thought to be the
oldest site of Christian worship
in Istanbul. Within a decade
of the Muslim conquest of the
city in 1453 (see p26) it had

The apse of Haghia Eirene, with its imposing black-on-gold cross

One of the four elaborately decorated sides of the Fountain of Ahmet Ill

been included within the
Topkapt Palace complex and
pressed into use as an arsenal.
Today the building, which has
good acoustics, is the setting
for concerts during the Istanbul
Music Festival (see p45).
Inside are three fascinating
features that have not survived
in any other Byzantine church
in the city. The syntbhronon,
the five rows of built-in seats
hugging the apse, were
occupied by clergymen offi-
ciating during services. Above
this looms a simple black
mosaic cross on a gold back-
ground, which dates from the
iconoclastic period (see p20),
when figurative images were
forbidden. At the back of the
church is a cloister-like
courtyard where deceased
Byzantine emperors once lay
in their porphyry sarcophagi.
Most have been moved to the
Archaeological Museum.

Fountain of

Ahmet III
Ahmet IIT Cesmesi

Junction of ishak Pasa Cad &
Babihimayun Cad. Map 3 E4 (5 F4).
5] Gulhane or Sultanahmet.

Built in 1728, the most
beautiful of Istanbul’s
countless fountains survived
the violent deposition of
Sultan Ahmet III two years
later. Many of the other
monuments constructed by
the sultan during his reign,
which has become known as
the Tulip Period (see p27),
were destroyed. The fountain
is in the delicate Turkish
Rococo style, with five small
domes, mihrab-shaped niches
and dizzying floral reliefs.

Ottoman “fountains” do not
spout jets of water, but are
more like ornate public
taps. They sometimes incor-
porated a counter, or sebil,
from which refreshments
would be served.

In this case, each of the
fountain’s four walls is equip-
ped with a tap, or ¢esme,
above a carved marble basin.
Over each tap is an elaborate
calligraphic inscription by the
18th-century poet Seyit Vehbi
Efendi. The inscription, in
gold on a blue-green back-
ground, is in honour of the
fountain and its founder. At
each of the four corners there
is a sebil backed by three
windows covered by ornate
marble grilles. Instead of the
customary iced water, passers-
by at this fountain would have
been offered sherbets and fla-
voured waters in silver goblets.
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Sogukcesme
Sokagi1 @

Map 3 E4 (5 F3). 5] Guilhane.

Charming old wooden
houses line this narrow,
sloping cobbled lane (“the
street of the cold fountain”),
which squeezes between the
outer walls of Topkap1 Palace
and the towering minarets of
Haghia Sophia. Traditional
houses like these were built
in the city from the late 18th
century onwards.

The buildings in the lane
were renovated by the Turkish
Touring and Automobile Club
(TTOK, see p181) in the 1980s.
Some of them now form the
Ayasofya Pansiyonlari (see
p184), a series of attractive
pastel-painted guesthouses
popular with tourists. Another
building has been converted
by the TTOK into a library of
historical writings on Tstanbul,
and archive of engravings
and photographs of the city.
A Roman cistern towards the
bottom of the lane has been
converted into the Sarni¢
restaurant (see p198).

13 aé‘ﬂ. 1%

Traditional calligraphy on sale in
Cafer Aga Courtyard

Cafer Aga
Courtyard @

Cafer Aga Medresesi

Caferiye Sok. Map 5 E3. Tel (0212)
51318 43. Elﬂ Gulhane.
[ 8:30am-8pm daily.

This peaceful courtyard at

the end of an alley was

built in 1559 by Sinan (see
p91) for the chief black
eunuch (see p29) as a medrese
(theological college, see p38).
Sinan’s bust presides over the
café tables in the courtyard.
The former students’ lodgings

Restored Ottoman house on
Sogukgcesme Sokagi

that the women of the house were able to watch life on
the street below without being seen themselves. Few
wooden houses have survived. Those that remain usually
owe their existence to tourism and many have been
restored as hotels. While the law forbids their demolition, it
is extremely hard to obtain insurance for them in a city that
has experienced many devastating fires.

OTTOMAN HOUSES

The typical, smart town
house of 19th-century Istanbul
had a stone ground floor
above which were one or
two wooden storeys. The
building invariably sported a
cikma, a section projecting
out over the street. This
developed from the
traditional Turkish balcony,
which was enclosed in the
northern part of the country
because of the colder climate.
Wooden lattice covers, or
kafesler, over the windows
on the upper storeys ensured

are now used to display a
variety of craft goods typically
including jewellery, silk prints,
ceramics and calligraphy.

Giilhane Park ©
Gulhane Park:

Alemdar Cad. Map 3 E3 (5 F2).
] Gulhane. [] daily.

Glilhane Park occupies
what was the lower
grounds of Topkapt Palace.
Today it has a neglected air
but it is still a shady place to
stroll and it includes a couple
of interesting landmarks.
Ignore the ill-kept zoo on
the left of the road through
the park, but seek out the
aquarium by the disused cas-
cade on the right. It is in the
cavernous vaults of a Roman
water cistern. At the far end of
the park is the Goths’ Column,
a well-preserved 3rd-century
victory monument, surrounded
by a cluster of clapboard
teahouses. Its name comes
from the Latin inscription on
it which reads: “Fortune is
restored to us because of
victory over the Goths”.
Across Kennedy Caddesi,
the main road running along
the northeast side of the park,
there is a viewpoint over the
busy waters where the Golden
Horn meets the Bosphorus.

Sublime Porte ©
Bab-1 Ali

Alemdar Cad. Map 3 E3 (5 E2).
] Gulhane.

Foreign ambassadors to
Ottoman Turkey were
known as Ambassadors to
the Sublime Porte, after this
monumental gateway which
once led into the offices and
palace of the grand vizier.
The institution of the Sublime
Porte filled an important role
in Ottoman society because
it could often provide an
effective counterbalance to
the whims of sultans.

The Rococo gateway you see
today was built in the 1840s.
Its guarded entrance now
shields the offices of Istanbul’s
provincial government.

“‘)- il 3 '\1':)
Rococo decoration on the roof of
the Sublime Porte

ST
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Archaeological Museum e

Arkeoloji Miizesi

of Apollo

KEY

Although this collection of
antiquities was begun only in
the mid-19th century, provincial
governors were soon sending in
objects from the length and
breadth of the Ottoman Empire.
Today the museum has one of the
world’s richest collections of
classical artifacts, and also includes
treasures from the pre-classical
Roman statue  WOrld. The main building was
erected under the directorship of
Osman Hamdi Bey (1881-1910),
to house his finds. This archaeologist, painter
and polymath discovered the exquisite
sarcophagi in the royal necropolis at Sidon
in present-day Lebanon. A new four-storey
wing of the museum was opened in 1991.

[[] Classical Archaeology

] Children’s Museum

[[] Thracian, Bithynian and
Byzantine Collections

[T Istanbul Through the Ages

] Anatolia and Troy

[T] Anatolia’s Neighbouring Cultures

[7] Turkish Tiles and Ceramics

] Museum of the Ancient Orient

] Non-exhibition space

GALLERY GUIDE

The 20 galleries of the main
building bouse the museum’s
important collection of classi-
cal antiquities. The new wing
has displays on the archaeol-
ogy of Istanbul and nearby
regions, and includes the
Children’s Museum. There are
two other buildings within the
grounds: the ¢inili Pavilion,
which contains Turkish tiles
and ceramics, and the Museum
of the Ancient Orient.

STAR EXHIBITS

% Alexander
Sarcophagus

% Karaman Mihrab
* Treaty of Kadesh

* Alexander Sarcophagus

This fabulously carved marble tomb from
the late 4th century BC is thought to have
been built for King Abdalonymos of Sidon.
It is called the Alexander Sarcophagus
because Alexander the Great is depicted
on it winning a victory over the Persians.

Sarcophagus of
the Mourning
Women

The porticoes of
the museum take
their design from
the 4th-century BC
Sarcophagus of the

Cinili Pavilion

Outdoor
café

* Karaman Mihrab
This blue, richly tiled
mibrab (see p38) comes
from the city of Karaman in
southeast Turkey, which was
the capital of the Karamanid
state from 1256-1483. It is
the most important artistic
relic of that culture.
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Geometric Period Cypriot Jug
Stylized fish decorate this jug, in a
design typical of the Geometric

Period (1050 -750 BC), when
a vibrant ceramics
culture flourished
on Cyprus.

| VISITORS" CHECKLIST

Osman Hamdi Bey Yokusu.

Map 3 E3 (5 F2). Tel (0212) 520
77 40. ] Giilhane. [] 9:00am-
4:30pm Tue-Sun (some sections
may close in winter). 7 [F1

Stairs to

Mosaic Icon of the
Presentation

Dating from the 6th-7th cen-
turies AD, this battered panel
[from Kalenderbane Mosque
(see p92) is the only reli-
gious figurative mosaic to
bave survived Byzantium’s
iconoclastic period (see p20).

Ground
floor of the
new wing

Porphyry
Sarcophagi
These monumental
Statue of purple sarcophagi
Marsyas (4th-5th centuries
Statue and bust AD) are thought to
of Alexander have beld the bodies
the Great of some of the early
Byzantine emperors.
% Treaty of Kadesh

This tablet constitutes the
world’s earliest surviving
peace treaty, agreed
between the Egyptians
and Hittites in 1269 BC.
Among its many clauses
are provisions for the
return of political refigees.
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Exploring the Archaeological Museum

This enormous collection spans over 5,000 years,
from figurines of the Mother Goddess modelled

in the 3rd millennium BC to Turkish pottery thrown
in the 19th century. To cover everything in one visit is
impossible. Visitors with little time should not miss the
breathtaking sarcophagi from the royal necropolis at
Sidon. To learn more about the history of Istanbul itself
you should head for the gallery exploring this theme,
on the first floor of the new wing. Youngsters may
enjoy the displays in the Children’s Museum.

CLASSICAL ARCHAEOLOGY

Monumental Bes, the
ancient Egyptian god,
greets visitors at the door to the
main building. Hugely popular
in the 1st-3rd centuries, Bes’
P, comically grotesque
A4/ appearance was
7 {i ((—')‘ < Errl) effective de-
I terrent for evil
spirits. Rooms 9
and 8 contain the
highlights of the
museum’s entire
collection: a group
Y of sarcophagi un-
ﬁ % : z&é\k earthed in

1887 at Sidon
\a’

(in present-day
Lebanon). These
are thought to

Marble bust  have been
of Emperor  made for a line
Augustus of Phoenician

kings who ruled

in the 6th—4th centuries BC.
Their decoration vividly shows
the transition from Egyptian
to Greek influence in the art
of the Near East at that time.

The latest and finest of them
is the so-called Alexander
Sarcophagus (late 4th century
BO). Alexander the Great
features in two decorative,
high-relief friezes on the
longest sides. These show a
battle scene and a hunting

e e

scene. The friezes survive in
almost perfect condition,
showing traces of their origi-
nal colouring, though the
metal weapons of the soldiers
and hunters have been lost.
The Sarcophagus of the
Mourning Women is
thought to have been
made for King Straton
(374-358 BC), who was
known for his fondness
for women. The grief-
stricken females may have
been members of his harem.
Rooms 14-20 contain some
remarkable statues. Among
them is a Roman copy of a
3rd century BC statue of
Marsyas, depicting the satyr
about to be flayed after daring
to challenge Apollo’s musical
ability. A statue and bust of
Alexander the Great (3rd—2nd
centuries BC) show the con-
queror as the perfect hero, with
a meditative expression on his
face. Room 18 contains realistic
busts of Roman emperors.

CHILDREN'S MUSEUM

Special low cabinets are
used in this part of the
museum, which is designed
for visiting schoolchildren.
Paper and coloured crayons
are to hand in a bid to stimu-
late future archaeologists.

DI G I AT GG G
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THRACIAN, BITHYNIAN
AND BYZANTINE
COLLECTIONS

This gallery on the ground
floor of the new wing
displays religious and other
artifacts from the ancient
civilizations of Thrace and
Bithynia, and from Byzantium
(see pp20-25) — including a
statue of Byzantine Emperor
Valens. This section of the
musuem also covers the archi-
tecture of the ancient world.

Bronze head of a snake
from the Serpentine Column

ISTANBUL THROUGH
THE AGES

With a few well-chosen
pieces and explanatory
texts in Turkish and English,
this gallery brilliantly chronicles
TIstanbul’s archaeological past.
The rare Mosaic Icon of the
Presentation (c.AD 600) origi-
nally adorned the Kalender-
hane Mosque (see p92). One
of the three snakes’ heads
from the Serpentine Column,
which has stood headless in
the Hippodrome (see p80)
since the 18th century, is also
displayed here. Look out too
for a section of the iron chains
that the Byzantines hung
across both the Bosphorus
and the Golden Horn to stop
hostile ships (see p23).

nEuCRERCAL D)
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Frieze showing the battle of Issus (333 BC), on the side panel of the Alexander Sarcophagus
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Reconstruction of a mausoleum discovered at Palmyra in Syria

ANATOLIA AND TROY

One side of this narrow,
long hall chronicles the
history of Anatolia (the Asiatic
part of modern Turkey) from
the Palaeolithic era to the Iron
Age. Tt culminates with a room
devoted to the Phrygian cul-
ture, which centred on the
city of Gordion. The highlight
is a recreation of an 8th-
century BC royal tomb, which
was housed beneath a tumulus
in a juniper-wood chamber.
As well as cooking utensils,
the king was buried with
furniture made of oak,
box, yew and juniper.
The other side of the
gallery traces the exca-
vations of nine different
civilizations at Troy (see
p171), from 3000 BC to
the time of Christ. On
display are a few pieces
of the gold hoard known as
the Schliemann treasure, after
the archaeologist who first dis-
covered it in the late 19th cen-
tury. Most of the pieces were
smuggled out of Turkey,
however, and are now in
museums around the world.

ANATOLIA'S
NEIGHBOURING CULTURES

This long gallery is also
divided in two, with one

side devoted to Cyprus and the
other to Syria-Palestine. The
Cypriot collection was assemb-
led by the joint American and
Russian consul to Cyprus,
Luigi Palma di Cesnola, who
systematically looted its tombs
from 1865-73. Apatt from some
beautiful pots, the most inter-
esting objects are the figures

of plump, naked temple boys
(3rd century BC). They are
thought to represent boy pros-
titutes at temples to Aphrodite,
the Greek goddess of love.
Among the Syrian exhibits
are funerary reliefs, the Gezer
Calendar (925 BC) — a lime-
stone tablet bearing the oldest
known Hebrew inscription —
and a reconstruction of a 1st—
3rd-century mausoleum from
the trading oasis of Palmyra.

16th-century iznik tiled lunette in the Cinili Pavilion

TURKISH TILES AND
CERAMICS

Apart from carpets, the most
distinctive Turkish art

form is ceramics. This is par-
ticularly seen in the sheets of
tiles used to decorate the walls
of mosques and pavilions such
as the Cinili Pavilion, where
the entrance arch-
way is plastered
with geometric and
calligraphic tiles.

In the main room
there is an exquisite
early 15th-century
tiled mihrab from
central Anatolia.
Rooms 3 and 4
contain tiles and
mosque lamps from
the famed znik
potteries, the hub

iy

of Turkish ceramics production
(see p161). With the decline
in quality of Iznik ceramics
in the late 16th century, other
centres took over. One of
these, Kutahya, also produced
pieces of beauty and high
quality (rooms 5 and 6).

MUSEUM OF THE
ANCIENT ORIENT

Although this collection
contains antiquities of

great rarity and beauty from
the Egyptian and Hittite cul-
tures, pride of place goes to
the artifacts from the early
civilizations of Mesopotamia
(present-day Iraq).

The monumental glazed
brick friezes from Babylon’s
main entrance, the Ishtar Gate,
(rooms 3 and 9) date from the
reign of Nebuchadnezzar II
(605-562 BC), when the capital
of Babylon experienced its
final flowering. The elegant,
30-kg (65-1b) duck-shaped
weight in Room 4 comes from
a much earlier Babylonian
temple (¢.2000 BO).

Room 5 contains some of
the earliest known examples

of writing, in the form of
cuneiform inscriptions on
clay tablets, dating from

2700 BC. The famous

Treaty of Kadesh (room

7), concluded around

1269 BC between the

Egyptian and Hittite
empires, was originally written
on a sheet of silver. The one
in this collection is a Hittite
copy. The treaty includes
many sophisticated clauses,
including one providing for
the return of a political
refugee, who was “not to be
charged with his crime, nor
his house and wives and his
children be harmed”.

Glazed frieze of a bull from Ishtar Gate, Babylon
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Cagaloglu Baths ®

Cagaloglu Hamami

Prof Kazim ismail Gurkan Cad 34,
Cagaloglu. Map 3 E4 (5 D3).

Tel (0212) 522 24 24.

i Sultanahmet. [ daily 8am-8pm.
www.cagalogluhamami.com.tr

Among the city’s more sump-
tuous Turkish baths, the
ones in Cagaloglu were built
by Sultan Mahmut T in 1741.
The income from them was
designated for the maintenance
of Mahmut’s library in Haghia
Sophia (see pp72-5).

The city’s smaller baths have
different times at which men
and women can use the same
facilities. But in larger baths,

Corridor leading into the Cagaloglu
Baths, built by Mahmut |

such as this one, there are
entirely separate sections. In
the Cagaloglu Baths the men’s
and women’s sections are at
right angles to one another and
entered from different streets.
Each consists of three parts: a
camekan, a sogukluk and the
main bath chamber or hararet,
which centres on a massive
octagonal massage slab.

The Cagaloglu Baths are
popular with foreign visitors
because the staff are happy to
explain the procedure. Even
if you do not want to sweat it
out, you can still take a look
inside the entrance corridor and
camekan of the men’s section.
Here you will find a small
display of Ottoman bathing
regalia, including precarious
wooden clogs once worn by
women on what would fre-
quently be their only outing
from the confines of the home.
You can also sit and have a
drink by the fountain in the
peaceful camekan.

Sirkeci Station @
Sirkeci Gart

Sirkeci Istasyon Cad, Sirkeci. Map 3E3
(5 E1). Tel (0212) 527 00 50 or 520
65 75. [ Sirkeci. [] daily.

This magnificent railway
station was built to receive
the long-anticipated Orient
Express from Europe. It was
officially opened in 1890, even

- - ey

Sirkeci Station, final destination
of the historic Orient Express

though the luxurious train had
been running into Istanbul for
a year by then. The design, by
the German architect Jasmund,
successfully incorporates fea-
tures from the many different
architectural traditions of
Istanbul. Byzantine alternating
stone and brick courses are
combined with a Seljuk-style
monumental recessed portal
and Muslim horseshoe arches
around the windows.

The station café is a good
place in which to escape the
bustle of the city for a while.
Sirkeci serves Greece and
other destinations in Europe
as well as the European part
of Turkey. Istanbul’s other
mainline railway station is
Haydarpasa (see p133), on
the Asian side of the city.

THE WORLD-FAMOUS ORIENT EXPRESS

The Orient Express made its first run from Paris to
Istanbul in 1889, covering the 2,900-km (1,800-mile)
journey in three days. Both Sirkeci Station and the
Pera Palas Hotel (see p104) in Istanbul were built
especially to receive its passengers. The wealthy and
often distinguished passengers of “The Train of
Kings, the King of Trains” did indeed include kings
among the many presidents, politicians, aristocrats
and actresses. King Boris III of Bulgaria even made a
habit of taking over from the driver of the train when
he travelled on it through his own country.

A byword for exoticism and romance, the train was
associated with the orientalist view of Istanbul as a
treacherous melting pot of diplomats and arms dealers.
It inspired no fewer than 19 books — Murder on the
Orient Express by Agatha Christie and Stamboul Train
by Graham Greene foremost among them — six films
and one piece of music. During the Cold War
standards of luxury crashed, though a service of
sorts, without even a restaurant car, continued twice
weekly to Istanbul until 1977.

A 1920s poster for the Orient Express,
ing a e ic view of bul

1
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Turkish Baths

No trip to Istanbul is complete . ésn ) vigorous soaping and massaging.

without an hour or two spent 7 There is no time limit, but allow
in a Turkish bath (hamam), which at least an hour and a half for a

will leave your whole body feel- ~  leisurely bath. Towels and soap
ing rejuvenated. Turkish baths = <—<- - will be provided, but you can
differ little from the baths of AR N take special toiletries with you.
ancient Rome, from which they Two historic baths located in
derive, except there is no pool of m the old city, Cemberlitas (see p81)
cold water to plunge into at the end. ... and Cagaloglu (illustrated below),
A full service will entail a period it are used to catering for foreign
of relaxation in the steam-filled Ornate wash  tourists. Most luxury hotels have

hot room, punctuated by bouts of basin their own baths (see pp180-91).

Choosing a Service

Services, detailed in a price list at
the entrance, range from a self-
service option to a luxury body
scrub, shampoo and massage.

The c kan (entrance hall) is a
peaceful internal courtyard near the
entrance of the building. Bathers
change clothes in cubicles surrounding _1

it. The camekan is also the place to N
relax with a cup of tea after bathing. Changing Clothes

Before changing you will be given a
-?"‘* cloth (pestemal), to wrap around

Corridor
from street

you, and a pair of slippers for walking
on the hot, wet floor.

Small, star-like windows
Basin and tap piercing the domes

for washing

CAGALOG LU BATHS The sogukluk (intermediate

The opulent, 18th-century room) is a temperate passage In the hararet (hot

Turkish baths at Cagaloglu have between the changing room room), the main room

separate, identical sections for and the hararet. You will be of the Turkish bath, you

men and women. The men’s given dry towels here on your are permitted to sit and
way back to the camekan. sweat in the steam for

as long as you like.

section is shown here.

The Exfoliating Body Scrub

| In between steaming, you (or the staff
at the batbs) scrub your body briskly
with a coarse, soapy mitt (kese).

The Body Massage

A marble plinth (gobek tasy)
occupies the centre of the
hot room. This is where you
will bave your pummelling
Jull-body massage.
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SULTANAHMET

next to the Blue Mosque marks
the site of the Hippodrome, a
chariot-racing stadium built by
the Romans in around AD 200.
On the other side of the Blue
Mosque, Sultanahmet slopes
down to the Sea of Marmara in
ajumble of alleyways. Here, tra-
== ditional-style Ottoman wooden
architecture, and still one of osaic of houses have been built over
the world’s most remarkable  gmpress irenein  the remains of the Great Palace
churches. A neat oblong square  Haghia sophia  Of the Byzantine emperors.

stanbul’s two principal mon-
uments face each other across
an area of gardens known
informally as Sultanahmet Square.
This part of the city gets its name
from Sultan Ahmet I, who built
the Blue Mosque. Opposite is
Haghia Sophia, an outstand-
ing example of early Byzantine

SIGHTS AT A GLANCE

Mosques and Churches Historic Buildings and GETTING AROUND
Blue Mosque pp78-9 @ Monuments Trams between Eminonii and
Church of SS Sergius and Basilica Cistern @ Beyazit stop in Sultanahmet
Bacchus @ Baths of Roxelana @ bY the Firuz Aga Mosque on
Haghia Sophia pp72-5 @ Bucoleon Palace @ D1vany01uﬂ Caddes&FroTn
X there, most of the sights are
Sokollu Mehmet Pasa Cistern of 1,001 Columns @ easily reached on foor. A
Mosque ® Constantine’s Column @ city bus runs between

Tomb of Sultan Mahmut 11 @ Taksim and Sultanahmet.

Museums
Mosaic Museum @ KEY
Museum of Turkish and 1] Street-by-Street map
Islamic Arts @ See pp70-71
Vakiflar Carpet Museum @ ] Tram stop
Squares and Courtyards I Tourist information
Hippodrome @ Mosque
Istanbul Crafts wal
Centre @ o ks
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Two of Istanbul’s most venerable monuments,

the Blue Mosque and Haghia Sophia, face

each other across a leafy square, informally known
as Sultanahmet Square (Sultanahmet Meydant), next
to the Hippodrome of Byzantium. Also in this fasci-
nating historic quarter are a handful of museums,
including the Mosaic Museum, built over part of
the old Byzantine Great Palace (see pp82-3), and
the Museum of Turkish and Islamic Arts. No less
diverting than the cultural sights are the cries of
the simit (bagel) hawkers and carpet sellers, and
the chatter of children selling postcards.

Museum of Turkish
and Islamic Arts

Yurts, used by Turkey’s nomadic
peoples, and rugs are included in

this impressive collection @

KEY

= == == Suggested route

Serpentine
Column
Brazen
Column

Hippodrome

This stadium was the city’s
Jfocus for more than 1,000
years before it fell into ruin.
Only a few sections, such
as the central line of
monuments, remain @

Carpet Museum
Part of the Blue s
Mosque complex, this
museum displays fine
antique carpets @

* Blue Mosque
Towering above
Sultanabmet Square
|| are the six beautiful
minarets of this world-
famous mosque. It was
built in the early 17th
4 century for Abmet 1 @

Obelisk

Mosaic Museum
Hunting scenes are one of the
common subjects that can be
seen in some of the mosaics
from the Great Palace @

Tomb of Sultan Ahmet I
Stunning 17th-century Iznik tiles
(see pl161) adorn the inside of
this tomb, which is part of the
outer complex of the Blue Mosque.

Sultanahmet
tram stop

Firuz Aga
Mosque

Fountain
of Kaiser
Wilhelm It

0 metres 75

0 yards 75
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% Basilica Cistern

This marble Medusa head is one
of two classical column bases
Jfound in the Basilica Cistern.
The cavernous cistern dates
from the reign of Justinian (see
p20) in the 6th century @

THE BAZAAR SERAGLIO
QUARTER POINT

A stone pilaster next to the
remains of an Ottoman water
tower is all that survives of
the Milion (see p83), a
triumphal gateway.

LOCATOR MAP
See Street Finder, maps 3 and 5

% Haghia Sophia
The supreme church

of Byzantium is over
1,400 years old but has
survived in a remark-
ably good state. Inside
it are several glorious
Sfigurative mosaics @

4 Baths of Roxelana

{ Sinan (see p91) designed
these beautiful baths in the
mid-16th century. They no
longer serve their original
Sfunction, however, having
been converted into a
state-run carpet shop @

Yesil Ev Hotel
(see p186)

Istanbul Crafts Centre
Visitors have a rare opportunity
here to observe Turkish craftsmen
practising a range of skills @

Cavalry Bazaar
STAR SIGHTS Eager salesmen will call you
over to peruse their wares —
mainly carpets and bandicrafts &
" : — in this bazaar. With two long &8

* Basilica Cistern rows of shops on either side of a |
* Haghia Sophia lane, the bazaar was once
a stable yard.

* Blue Mosque
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Haghia Sophia @

Aya Sofya

The “church of holy wisdom,” Haghia
Sophia is among the world’s greatest
architectural achievements. More than
1,400 years old, it stands as a testament
to the sophistication of the 6th-century
Byzantine capital and was of paramount
influence on architecture in the
following centuries. The vast |
edifice was built over two earlier §
churches and inaugurated by i
Emperor Justinian in 537. In |
the 15th century the Ottomans T
converted it into a mosque: the ||}
minarets, tombs, and fountains ¢/ |
date from this period. To help
support the structure’s great
weight, the exterior has been
buttressed on numerous
occasions, which has partly
obscured its original shape.

Seraphims adorn the penden-
tives at the base of the dome.

Calligraphic
roundel

Kiirsii

|
\ (see p39)

l
|

{

4
P
]

Byzantine Frieze
Among the ruins of the
monumental entrance to
the earlier Haghia Sophia
(dedicated in AD 415)
is this frieze of sheep. S

Buttresses

Y G -.
‘E‘ih w 5

Imperial
Gate

HISTORICAL PLAN OF HAGHIA SOPHIA

Nothing remains of the first 4th-
century church on this spot, but Outer
o there are traces of the Narthex
. | second one from the 5th
e = century, which burnt a o

L down in AD 532. Earth- The galleries were otjlgmally
ﬁ @ quakes have taken their used by women during services.

Narthex

AT,

toll on the third struc- Entrance
z} 8 ture, strengthened and
- : added to many times.
L ) STAR FEATURES
KEY
- * Nave
iR IR L ] sth-century church
ﬁ 5 [ 6th-century church * The Mosaics
& s hsanas [] Ottoman additions * Ablutions Fountain




HAGHIA SOPHIA 73

* Nave VISITORS’ CHECKLIST
Visitors cannot fail to be

staggered by this vast space Ayasofya Meydani, Sultanahmet.
which is covered by a huge Map 3 E4 (5 F3). Tel (0212) 522

. . 17 50. & Sultanahmet.
dome reaching to a height [ 9:152m-4:300m Tue—Sun.

of 56 m (184f1). I3 1 A ground fioor only.

Brick minaret

* The Mosaics
The church’s
splendid Byzantine
mosaics include

Sultan’s this one at the end

of the south gallery.
Miiezzin It depicts Christ
mahfili

flanked by Emperor
(see p38) Constantine IX and

his wife, the
Empress Zoe.

The Coronation Square served
for the crowning of emperors.

Mausoleum of
Mehmet Ill

Library of
Sultan
Mahmut |

Mausoleum of
The mausoleum Selim I1
of Murat Ill was The oldest Ofthe

used for his burial three mausoleums

in 1599. Murat had ~ was completed in

by that time sired 1577 to the plans of

102 children. Sinan (see p9D). Its
interior is entirely
decorated with Iznik

The Baptistry, part of tiles (see plG1).

the 6th-century church,
now serves as the tomb
of two sultans.

* Ablutions Fountain

Built around 1740, this fountain is an exquisite
example of Turkish Rococo style. Its projecting
roof is painted with floral reliefs.
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Explormg Haghia Sophia

Designed as an earthly mirror of

L the heavens, the interior of Haghia

I Sophia succeeds in imparting a truly

| celestial feel. The artistic highlights

' are a number of glistening figurative
mosaics — remains of the decoration that
once covered the upper walls but which
has otherwise mostly disappeared. These
remarkable works of Byzantine art date
from the 9th century or later, after the iconoclastic
era (see p20). Some of the patterned mosaic ceilings,
however, particularly those adorning the narthex and
the neighbouring Vestibule of the Warriors, are part
of the cathedral’s original 6th-century decoration.

Calligraphic
roundel

GROUND FLOOR

The first of the surviving
Byzantine mosaics can be
seen over the Imperial Gate.
This is now the public entrance
into the church, although pre-
viously only the emperor and
his entourage were allowed to
pass through it. The mosaic
shows Christ on a throne
with an emperor kneeling
beside him ® and has been
dated to between 886 and 912.
The emperor is thought to be
Leo VI, the Wise (see p21).
The most conspicuous fea-
tures at ground level in the
nave are those added by the

Ottoman sultans after the
conquest of Istanbul in
1453, when the church
was converted into a mosque.

The mihrab @, the niche
indicating the direction of
Mecca, was installed in the
apse of the church directly
opposite the entrance. The
sultan’s loge ®, on the left of
the mihrab as you face it, was
built by the Fossati brothers.
These Italian-Swiss architects
undertook a major restoration
of Haghia Sophia for Sultan
Abdiil Mecit in 1847-9.

To the right of the mihrab
is the minbar ®, or pulpit,
which was installed by Murat
11T (1574-95). He also erected

] Upper walls and domes
[ Galleries
[] Ground floor

North
gallery

()

West

Ramp to

Entrance

Outer narthex Narthex

gallery\%\f’:‘\) ° e %

FLOORPLAN OF HAGHIA SOPHIA

Apse

Upper walls
and domes

-
%o

Vestibule of
the Warriors

Interior as it looked after restoration
in the 19th century

the four miiezzin mahfilis

®, marble platforms for read-
ers of the Koran (see p39). The
largest of these is adjacent to
the minbar. The patterned
marble coronation square ®
next to it marks the supposed
site of the Byzantine emperor’s
throne, or omphalos (centre
of the world). Nearby, in the
south aisle, is the library of
Mahmut | @, which was built
in 1739 and is entered by a
decorative bronze door.

Across the nave, between
two columns, is the 17th-
century marble preacher’s
throne (®, the contribution
of Murat IV (1623-40). Behind
it is one of several maqsuras
®. These low, fenced plat-
forms were placed beside
walls and pillars to provide
places for elders to sit, listen
and read the Koran.

In the northwestern and
western corners of the church
are two marble urns (),
thought to date from the
Hellenistic or early Byzantine
period. A rectangular pillar
behind one of the urns, the
pillar of St Gregory the
Miracle-Worker @, is be-
lieved to have healing powers.
As you leave the church you
pass through the Vestibule
of the Warriors, so called
because the emperor’s body-
guards would wait here for
him when he came to worship.
Look behind you as you enter
it at the wonderful mosaic of
the Virgin with Constantine
and Justinian @ above the
door. It shows Mary seated
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on a throne holding the infant
Jesus and flanked by two of
the greatest emperors of the
city. Constantine, on her right,
presents her with the city of
Constantinople, while Justinian
offers her Haghia Sophia. This
was made long after either of
these two emperors lived,
probably in the 10th century,
during the reign of Basil II
(see p21). Visitors exit the
church by the door that was
once reserved for the emper-
or due to its proximity to the
Great Palace (see pp82-3).

Figure of Christ, detail from the
Deesis Mosaic in the south gallery

GALLERIES

A ramp leads from the ground
floor to the north gallery.
Here, on the eastern side of the
great northwest pier, you will
find the 10th-century mosaic
of Emperor Alexander
holding a skull @. On the
west face of the same pier is
a medieval drawing of a
galleon in full sail. The only
point of interest in the western

gallery is a green marble
disk marking the loca-
tion of the Byzantine
Empress’s throne @.

There is much more
to see in the south
gallery. You begin by
passing through the so-
called Gates of Heaven
and Hell @, a marble
doorway of which little
is known except that it
predates the Ottoman
conquest (see p26).

Around the corner to
the right after passing
through this dooorway
is the Deesis Mosaic
showing the Virgin
Mary and John the
Baptist with Christ
Pantocrator (the All-
Powerful). Set into the
floor opposite it is the
tomb of Enrico Dandalo, the
Doge of Venice responsible
for the sacking of Constan-
tinople in 1204 (see p24).
In the last bay of the south-
ern gallery there are two

more mosaics. The right-
hand one of these is of the
Virgin holding Christ, flanked
by Emperor John Il Comnenus
and Empress Irene @). The
other shows Christ with
Emperor Constantine IX
Monomachus and Empress
Zoe ®. The faces of the
emperor and empress have
been altered.

Eight great wooden plaques
bearing calligraphic inscrip-
tions hang over the nave at
the level of the gallery. An
addition of the Fossati brothers,
they bear the names of Allah,
the Prophet Mohammed, the
first four caliphs and Hasan
and Hussein, two of the
Prophet’s grandsons who
are revered as martyrs.

Mosaic depicting the archangel Gabriel,
adorning the lower wall of the apse

UPPER WALLS AND
DOMES

The apse is dominated by a
large and striking mosaic
showing the Virgin with the
infant Jesus on her lap @.
Two other mosaics in the apse
show the archangels Gabriel
@ and, opposite him, Michael,
but only fragments of the latter
now remain. The unveiling of
these mosaics on Easter
Sunday 867 was a triumphal
event celebrating victory over
the iconoclasts (see p21).

Three mosaic portraits of
saints @ adorn niches in the
north tympanum and are vis-
ible from the south gallery
and the nave. From left to right
they depict: St Ignatius the
Younger, St John Chrysostom
and St Ignatius Theophorus.

In the four pendentives (the
triangular, concave areas at the
base of the dome) are mosaics
of six-winged seraphim @.
The ones in the eastern pen-
dentives date from 1346-55,
but may be copies of much
older ones. Those on the
western side are 19th-century
imitations that were added by
the Fossati brothers.

The great dome @ itself is
decorated with Koranic inscrip-
tions. It was once covered in
golden mosaic and the tinkling
sound of pieces dropping
to the ground was familiar to
visitors until the building’s
19th-century restoration.
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The cavernous interior of the Byzantine Basilica Cistern

Basilica Cistern @
Yerebatan Saray1

13 Yerebatan Cad, Sultanahmet.
Map 3 E4 (5 E4). Tel (0212) 522
12 59. ] Sultanahmet. [ ] 9am-
5pm daily (Oct-Apr 8:30am—4pm).

This vast underground water
cistern, a beautiful piece of
Byzantine engineering, is the
most unusual tourist attraction
in the city. Although there may
have been an earlier, smaller
cistern here, this cavernous
vault was laid out under Just-
inian in 532, mainly to satisfy
the growing demands of the
Great Palace (see pp82-3) on
the other side of the Hippo-
drome (see p80). For a century
after the conquest (see p24),
the Ottomans did not know
of the cistern’s existence. It
was rediscovered after people
were found to be collecting
water, and even fish, by
lowering buckets through
holes in their basements.
Visitors tread walkways, to
the mixed sounds of classical
music and dripping water. The
cistern’s roof is held up by 336
columns, each over 8 m (26ft)
high. Only about two thirds of

the original structure is visible
today, the rest having been
bricked up in the 19th century.

In the far left-hand corner
two columns rest on Medusa
head bases. These bases are
evidence of plundering by the
Byzantines from earlier mon-
uments. They are thought to
mark a nymphaeum, a shrine
to the water nymphs.

Istanbul Crafts

Centre ©
Mehmet Efendi Medresesi

Kabasakal Cad 5, Sultanahmet.
Map 3 E4 (5 E4).

Tel (0212) 517 67 82. Elﬂ Adliye.
[ 9:30am-5:30pm daily.

If you are interested in
Turkish craftwork, this for-
mer Koranic college is worth
a visit. You can watch skilled
artisans at work: they may be
binding a book, executing an
elegant piece of calligraphy
or painting glaze onto ceram-
ics. Ttems produced here are
all for sale. Others include
exquisite dolls, meerschaum
pipes and jewellery based

on Ottoman designs.

Next door is the Yesil Ev
Hotel (see p182), a restored
Ottoman building with a
pleasant café in its courtyard.

Baths of Roxelana @

Haseki Hiirrem Hamami

Ayasofya Meydani, Sultanahmet.
Map 3 E4 (5 E4). Tel (0212) 638 00
35. & Sultanahmet. [] 8:30am~
5pm Wed-Mon.

These baths were built for
Siileyman the Magnificent
(see p26) by Sinan (see p91),
and are named after Roxelana,
the sultan’s scheming wife.
They were designated for the

ROXELANA

Stileyman the Magnificent’s
power-hungry wife Roxelana
(1500-58, Haseki Hiirrem
in Turkish), rose from being
a concubine in the imperial
harem to become his chief
wife, or first kadin (see p28).
Thought to be of Russian
origin, she was also the first
consort permitted to reside
within the walls of Topkapi
Palace (see pp54-9).
Roxelana would stop at
nothing to get her own way.

When Stleyman’s grand vizier and frlend from youth,
Ibrahim Pasa, became a threat to her position, she
persuaded the sultan to have him strangled. Much later,
Roxelana performed her coup de grdce. In 1553 she
persuaded Stileyman to have his handsome and popular
heir, Mustafa, murdered by deaf mutes to clear the way
for her own son Selim (see p26) to inherit the throne.
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housing an exclusive carpet shop

use of the congregation of
Haghia Sophia (see pp72-5)
when it was used as a mosque.
With the women’s entrance at
one end of the building and
the men’s at the other, their
absolute symmetry makes
them perhaps the most hand-
some baths in the city.

The building is now a
government-run carpet shop,
but the baths’ original features
are still clearly visible. A look
around it is a must for those
who have no intention of
baring themselves in a public
bath, but are curious about
what the interior of a Turkish
baths (see p67) is like.

Each end starts with a
camekan, a massive domed
hall which would originally
have been centred on a foun-
tain. Next is a small sogukluk,
or intermediate room, which
opens into a hararet, or steam
room. The hexagonal massage
slab in each hararet, the gébek
tasi, is inlaid with coloured
marbles, indicating that the
baths are of imperial origin.

Vakiflar Carpet
Museum @
Vakiflar Hali Miizesi

The 16th-century Baths of Roxelana, now

Imperial Pavilion, Blue Mosque,
Sultanahmet. Map 3 E5 (5 E4).
Tel (0212) 518 13 30. Elﬂ Sultan-
ahmet. [ ] 9am-noon, 1-4pm
Tue-Sat. (@) public & religious hols.

A ramp to the left of the
main doorway into the

Blue Mosque (see pp78-9)
leads up to the Vakiflar Carpet

Museum. It has been
installed in what was
formerly the mosque’s
imperial pavilion. This
pavilion was built by
Ahmet I and used on
Fridays by him and his
successors when they
attended prayers.

The carpets (see
pp218-19) are hidden
from potentially de-
structive sunlight by
stained-glass windows.
They date from the
16th to the 19th
centuries and are
mostly from the
western Anatolian
regions of Usak,
Bergama and Konya.
For many years mosques
have played a vital role in
the preservation of early
rugs: all the carpets in this
museum lay inside mosques
until recently.

Detail of a 5th-century mosaic in
the Mosaic Museum

Mosaic Museum @
Mozaik Miizesi

Arasta carsisi, Sultanahmet.

Map 3 E5 (5E5). Tel (0212) 518 12
05. & Sultanahmet. [ 9am-5pm
Tue-Sun.

This museum was created
simply by roofing over a

part of the Great Palace of the
Byzantine Emperors (see ppS2-
3) which was discovered in
the 1930s. In its heyday the
palace boasted hundreds of
rooms, many of them glit-
tering with gold mosaics.

The surviving mosaic floor
shows a lively variety of wild
and domestic beasts and
includes some hunting and
fighting scenes. It is thought
to have adorned the colon-
nade leading from the royal
apartments to the imperial
enclosure beside the Hippo-
drome, and dates from the
late Sth century AD.

Blue Mosque @

See pp78-9.

Museum of Turkish
and Islamic Arts @

Tirk ve Islam
Eserleri Muizesi

Atmeydani Sok, Sultanahmet.
Map 3 D4 (5 D4). Tel (0212) 518
18 05. I Sultanahmet. [ 9am~
4:30pm Tue-Sun. www.tiem.org

Over 40,000 items are on
display in the former pal-
ace of Ibrahim Pasa (c.1493—
1536), the most gifted of
Stileyman’s many grand viziers.
The collection was begun in
the 19th century and ranges
from the earliest period of
Islam, under the Omayyad
caliphate (661-750), through
to modern times.

Each room concentrates
on a different chronological
period or geographical area
of the Islamic world, with
detailed explanations in both
Turkish and English. The
museum is particularly re-
nowned for its collection of
rugs. These range from 13th-
century Seljuk fragments to the
palatial Persian silks that cover
the walls from floor to ceiling
in the palace’s great hall.

On the ground floor, an
ethnographic section focuses
on the lifestyles of different
Turkish peoples, particularly
the nomads of central and
eastern Anatolia. The exhibits
include recreations of a round
felt yurt (Turkic nomadic tent)
and a traditional brown tent.

Recreated yurt interior, Museum
of Turkish and Islamic Arts




78 ISTANBUL AREA BY AREA

Blue Mosque @

Sultan Ahmet Camii

The blue mosque, which takes its
name from the mainly blue Iznik
tilework (see p161) decorating its

interior, is one of the most
famous religious buildings in
the world. Serene at any time,
it is at its most magical when
floodlit at night, its minarets
circled by keening seagulls.
Sultan Ahmet 1 (see p33)
commissioned the mosque
during a period of declining
Ottoman fortunes, and it was
built between 1609-16 by
Mehmet Aga, the imperial
architect. The splendour of
the plans provoked great
hostility at the time, especially
because a mosque with six
minarets was considered a sac-
rilegious attempt to rival the
architecture of Mecca itself.

The Imperial Pavilion now
houses the Vakiflar Carpet
Museum (see p77).

* Iznik Tiles

No cost was spared in the
decoration of the mosque.
The tiles were made at
the peak of tile produc-
tion in Iznik (see p161).

\| The 17th-centiry minbar is
| intricately carved in white  Prayer
marble. It is used by the

imam during prayers on
Friday (see pp38-9). Exit for

A 19th-century engraving showing the Blue Mosque
viewed from the Hippodrome (see p80)

Thick piers support
the weight of the dome.

Mihrab

The loge (see p39)
accommodated the sultan

, and his entourage during
mosque services.

hall

Miiezzin
mahfili

(see p38) Entrance to
courtyard

> .-—.ﬂw

STAR FEATURES
* iznik Tiles

% Inside of the Dome

% View of the Domes
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* Inside of the Dome VISITORS’ CHECKLIST
Mesmeric designs, employing flow-

ing arabesques, are painted onto Meydani 21, Sultanahmet. Map 3
the interior of the mosque’s domes E5©E). W) 567 73

~ -30am-
and semidome§. The windows r;vgori Ufj’;ig;;m%;gayg
which pierce the domes no times. Son et Lumiére May-Sep:
longer bave their original daily after dusk (see the board on
17th-century stained glass. Mimar Mehmet Aga Caddesi).

* View of the Domes

The graceful cascade of domes
and semidomes makes a

striking sight when viewed "

Jfrom the courtyard below.

Over 250 windows
allow light to flood
into the mosque.

' Ablutions Fountain

The bexagonal sadirvan

is now purely ornamental
since ritual ablutions
are no longer carried

out at this fountain.

Each minaret has
two or three balconies.

Exit to
Hippodrome

Washing the Feet
The Muslim’s ritual
ablutions conclude with the
washing of the feet (see p39).
Taps outside the mosque are used
by the faithful for this purpose.

The courtyard covers

the same area as the

prayer hall, balancing
the whole building.
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Hippodrome ©
At Meydant

T

Egyptian Obelisk and the Serpentine Column in the Hippodrome

Sultanahmet. Map 3 E4 (5 D4).
iF] Sultanahmet.

Little is left of the gigantic
stadium which once stood

at the heart of the Byzantine
city of Constantinople (see
pp22-3). 1t was originally laid
out by Emperor Septimus
Severus during his rebuilding
of the city in the 3rd century
AD (see p19).
Emperor Con-
stantine (see p20)
enlarged the
Hippodrome and
connected its
kathisma, or royal
box, to the near- |
by Great Palace #
(see pp82-3). Tt

is thought that

the stadium held
up to 100,000 people. The site
is now an elongated public
garden, At Meydani, Cavalry
Square. There are, however,
enough remains of the
Hippodrome to get a sense of
its scale and importance.

The road running around the
square almost directly follows
the line of the chariot racing
track. You can also make out

Relief carved on the base
of the Egyptian Obelisk

TRITRLYS

MG e

some of the arches of the
sphendone (the curved end of
the Hippodrome) by walking
a few steps down Ibret Sokag.
Constantine adorned the
spina, the central line of the
stadium, with obelisks and
columns from Ancient Egypt
and Greece, importing a sense
of history to his new capital.
Conspicuous by its absence

is the column which once
stood on the spot where the
tourist information office is
now located. This
was topped by
four bronze horses
which were pill-
aged during the
Fourth Crusade
(see p24) and
taken to St Mark’s
in Venice. Three
ancient monu-
ments remain,
however. The
Egyptian Obelisk, which

was built in 1500 BC, stood
outside Luxor until Constantine
had it brought to his city. This
beautifully carved monument
is broken and is probably only
one third of its original height.
It stands on a base, made in
the 4th century AD, showing
Theodosius T (see p20) and

his family in the kathisma

watching various events. The
four sides depict a chariot race;
Theodosius preparing to crown
the winner with a wreath of
laurel; prisoners paying hom-
age to the emperor; and the
erection of the obelisk itself.

Next to it is the Serpentine
Column, believed to date
from 479 BC, which was
shipped here from Delphi.
The heads of the serpents
were knocked off in the 18th
century by a drunken Polish
nobleman. One of them can
be seen in the Archaeological
Museum (see pp62-5).

Another obelisk still stand-
ing, but of unknown date, is
usually referred to as the
Column of Constantine
Porphyrogenitus, after the
emperor who restored it in
the 10th century AD. 1t is also
sometimes called the Brazen
Column, because it is thought
to have once been sheathed
in a case of bronze. Its dilapi-
dated state owes much to the
fact that young Janissaries (see
p127) would routinely scale
it as a test of their bravery.

The only other structure in
the Hippodrome is a domed
fountain which commemorates
the visit of Kaiser Wilhelm II
to Istanbul in 1898.

The Hippodrome was the
scene of one of the bloodiest
events in Istanbul’s history.
In 532 a brawl between rival
chariot-racing teams devel-
oped into the Nika Revolt,
during which much of the
city was destroyed. The end
of the revolt came when an
army of mercenaries, under
the command of Justinian’s
general Belisarius, massacred
an estimated 30,000 people
trapped in the Hippodrome.

Cistern of 1001

Columns ®
Binbirdirek Sarnici

Klodfarer Cad, Sultanahmet. Map 3
D4 (5 D4). Tel (0212) 638 22 38. &)
cemberlitas. [] due to open summer
1999 after restoration phone for details

This cistern, dating back to
the 4th century AD, is the
second largest underground
Byzantine cistern in Istanbul
after the Basilica Cistern (see
p76). Spanning an area of
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Beginning with the inaugu-
ration of Constantinople on
11th May 330 (see p20), the
Hippodrome formed the
stage for the city’s greatest
public events for the next
1,300 years. The Byzantines’
most popular pastime was
watching chariot racing in
the stadium. Even after the
Hippodrome fell into ruins
following the Ottoman con-
quest of Istanbul (see p26),
it continued to be used for
great public occasions. This
16th-century illustration de-
picts Murat IIT watching the
52-day-long festivities staged
for the circumcision of his son
Mehmet. All the guilds of

CEREMONIES IN THE HIPPODROME

Sultan Murat lll

Column of Constantine

Palace of ibrahim Pasa (Museum of
Turkish and Islamic Arts, see p77)

Egyptian

Istanbul paraded before the Serpentine

Sultan displaying their crafts. Porphyrogenitus Column Obelisk
64 m (210 ft) by 56 m (185 fo), Constantine’s known as cemberlitas (the
the herring-bone brick roof Hooped Column) in Turkish.
vaults are held up by 264 Column @ In English it is sometimes re-
marble columns — the 1,001 Cemberlitas ferred to as the Burnt Column

columns of its name is poetic
exaggeration. Until not long
ago, the cistern was filled with
rubble and only explored by
adventurous visitors. It has
recently been transformed
into an atmospheric shopping
complex specializing in jewel-
lery, carpets and tiles and
other merchandise inspired
by Ottoman culture.

Tomb of Sultan

Mahmut II @
Mahmut II Tiirbesi

Divanyolu Cad, ¢cemberlitas.
Map 3 D4 (4 C3). I cemberiitas.
[ 9:30am~4:30pm daily.

This large octagonal maus-
oleum is in the Empire

style (modelled on Roman
architecture), made popular
by Napoleon. It was built in
1838, the year before Sultan
Mahmut I’s death and is
shared by sultans Mahmut II,
Abdiil Aziz and Abdiil Hamit
1T (see pp32-3). Within,
Corinthian pilasters divide up
walls which groan with sym-
bols of prosperity and victory.
The huge tomb dominates a
cemetery that has beautiful
headstones, a fountain and,

at the far end, a good café.

Yeniceriler Cad, Cemberlitas.

Map 3 D4 (4 C3). ] Cemberlitas.
Cemberlitas Baths Vezirhani Cad
8. Tel (0212) 511 25 35. D 6am—
midnight daily.

A survivor of both storm
and fire, this 35-m
(115-fv) high column was
constructed in AD 330 as
part of the celebrations
to inaugurate the new
Byzantine capital (see
p20). 1t once dominated
the magnificent Forum of
Constantine (see p23).
Made of porphyry
brought from Heliopolis
in Egypt, it was originally
surmounted by a
Corinthian capital bear-
ing a statue of Emperor
Constantine dressed as
Apollo. This was brought
down in a storm in 1106.
Although what is left is
relatively unimpres-
sive, it has been
carefully preserved.
In the year 416
the 10 stone
drums making up
the column were
reinforced with metal rings.

B
%

Consta

These were renewed in 1701

by Sultan Mustafa III, and
consequently the column is

because it was damaged by
several fires, especially one
in 1779 which decimated the
Grand Bazaar (see pp98-9).
A variety of fantastical

holy relics were supposedly
entombed in the base of the
column, which has since
been encased in stone to
strengthen it. These inclu-
ded the axe which Noah
used to build the ark,
Mary Magdalen’s flask

of anointing oil, and re-
mains of the loaves of
bread with which Christ
fed the multitude.

Next to Constantine’s

Column, on the corner of
ii® Divanyolu Caddesi, stand
the Cemberlitas Baths.
This splendid hamam
complex (see p67) was
commissioned by Nur
Banu, wife of Sultan
Selim II, and built in
1584 to a plan by the
great Sinan (see p91).
Although the
original women'’s
section no longer
survives, the baths
still have separate
facilities for men
and women. The staff are used
to foreign visitors, so this is a
good place for your first
experience of a Turkish bath.

ntine’s Column
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Sokollu Mehmet

Pasa Mosque @
Sokollu Mehmet
Pasa Camii

Sehit Cesmesi Sok, Sultanahmet.
Map 3 D5 (4 C5). 5] Cemberlitas or
Sultanahmet. [] daily.

Built by the architect Sinan
(see p91) in 1571-2, this
mosque was commissioned by
Sokollu Mehmet Pasa, grand
vizier to Selim II (see p32). The
simplicity of Sinan’s design so-
lution for the mosque’s sloping
site has been widely admired.
A steep entrance stairway
leads up to the mosque court-
yard from the street, passing
beneath the teaching hall of
its medrese (see p38), which
still functions as a college.
Only the tiled lunettes above
the windows in the portico
give a hint of the jewelled
mosque interior to come.
Inside, the far wall around
the carved mihrab is entirely
covered in Iznik tiles (see
p161) of a sumptuous green-
blue hue. This tile panel,
designed specifically for the
space, is complemented by
six stained-glass windows.
The “hat” of the minbar is
covered with the same tiles.
Most of the mosque’s other
walls are of plain stone, but
they are enlivened by a few
more tile panels. Set into the
wall over the entrance there
is a small piece of greenish
stone which is supposedly
from the Kaaba, the holy
stone at the centre of Mecca.

Interior of the 16th-century
Sokollu Met Pasa

The Byzantine Church of SS Sergius and Bacchus, now a mosque

SS Sergius and
Bacchus’ Church @
K¢tk Ayasofya Camii

Kugtk Ayasofya Cad. Map 3 D5 (4 C5).

5] Cemberlitas or Sultanahmet.

] daily.

Commonly referred to as
“Little Haghia Sophia”, this
church was built in 527, a few
years before its namesake (see
pp72-5). Tt too was founded

by Emperor Justinian (see p20),
together with his empress,
Theodora, at the beginning of
his long reign. Ingenious and
highly decorative, the church
gives a somewhat higgledy-
piggledy impression both in-
side and out and is one of the
most charming of all the city’s
architectural treasures.

Inside, an irregular octagon
of columns on two floors sup-
ports a broad central dome
composed of 16 vaults. The

RECONSTRUCTION OF THE GREAT PALACE
In Byzantine times, present-day
Sultanahmet was the site of the Great
Palace, which, in its heyday, had no

The Mese was a colon-
naded street lined with

equal in Furope and dazzled medieval  shops and statuary. =
visitors with its opulence. This great i =y
complex of buildings — including royal =
apartments, state rooms, churches, Hippodrome e
courtyards and gardens — extended over (see p80)

a sloping, terraced site from the
Hippodrome to the imperial harbour
on the shore of the Sea of Marmara.
The palace was built in stages, be-
ginning under Constantine in the 4th
century. It was enlarged by Justinian
following the fire caused by the Nika
Revolt in 532 (see p80). Later emperors,
especially the 9th-century Basil I (see
p21), extended it further. After
several hundred years of oc-
cupation, it was finally aban-
doned in the second half
of the 13th century in
favour of Blachernae
Palace (see p117).

Hormisdas
Palace

Church of SS
Peter and Paul ; :
Church of 55 Sergius
and Bacchus
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mosaic decoration which once
adorned some of the walls
has long since crumbled
away. However, the green
and red marble columns, the
delicate tracery of the capitals
and the carved frieze running
above the columns are original
features of the church.

The inscription on this frieze,
in boldly carved Greek script,
mentions the founders of the
church and St Sergius, but not
St Bacchus. The two saints
were Roman centurions who
converted to Christianity and
were martyred. Justinian cred-
ited them with saving his life
when, as a young man, he
was implicated in a plot to
kill his uncle, Justin I. The
saints supposedly appeared
to Justin in a dream and told
him to release his nephew.

The Church of SS Sergius
and Bacchus was built be-
tween two important edifices
to which it was connected,
the Palace of Hormisdas and
the Church of SS Peter and
Paul, but has outlived them
both. After the conquest of
Istanbul in 1453 (see p26) it
was converted into a mosque.

Bucoleon Palace ®
Bukoleon Sarayi

Kennedy Cad, Sultanahmet.
Map 3 E5. IF] Sultanahmet.

Finding the site of what
remains of the Great Palace
of the Byzantine emperors
requires precision. It is not
advisable to visit the ruins
alone as they are usually in-
habited by tramps.

Take the path under the
railway from the
Church of SS Sergius
and Bacchus, turn left
and walk beside
Kennedy Caddesi, the
main road along the
shore of the Sea of
Marmara for about
400 m (450 yards).
This will bring you
to a stretch of the
ancient sea walls,
constructed to pro-
tect the city from a
naval assault. Within
these walls you will
find a creeper-clad
section of stonework

marble. This is all that now
survives of the Bucoleon
Palace, a maritime residence
that formed part of the sprawl-
ing Great Palace. The waters of
a small private harbour lapped
right up to the palace and a
private flight of steps led down
in to the water, allowing the
emperor to board imperial
caiques. The ruined tower just
east of the palace was a
lighthouse, called the Pharos,
in Byzantine times.

il

pierced by three vast
windows framed in

Wall of Bucoleon Palace, the onl
Byzantine Great Palace still standing

ly part of the

The Kathisma was
the imperial box of
the Hippodrome.

point from which

The Milion was the

road distances were
measured (see p71).

Haghia Sophia g
(see pp72-5) s

The Augusteum was a
porticoed public square.

Chalke Gate was
the main entrance
to the palace.

Daphne Palace

The Bucoleon Palace
had a magnificent fagade
looking out over the sea.

Hall of Gold (site of

Mosaic Museum, see p77)

The Nea Ekklesia, erected
by Basil I, set the style for all
subsequent Byzantine churches

Lighthouse Magnaura

Palace
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rade has always been im-

portant in a city straddling

the continents of Asia and
Europe. Nowhere is this more
evident than in the warren of
streets lying between the Grand
Bazaar and Galata Bridge. Every-
where, goods tumble out of
shops onto the pavement. Look
through any of the archways in
between shops and you will dis-
cover hidden courtyards or hans
(see p96) containing feverishly

Window from
Nuruosmaniye
Mosque

SIGHTS AT A GLANCE

THE BAZAAR QUARTER

industrious workshops. With its

seemingly limitless range of
goods, the labyrinthine Grand
Bazaar is at the centre of all this
commercial activity. The Spice
Bazaar is equally colourful but
smaller and more manageable.

Up on the hill, next to the uni-
versity, is Stileymaniye Mosque,
a glorious expression of 16th-
century Ottoman culture. It is
just one of numerous beautiful
mosques in this area.

Mosques and Churches
Atik Ali Pasa Mosque @
Bodrum Mosque @
Church of St Theodore @
Kalenderhane Mosque @
Mahmut Pasa Mosque @
New Mosque @
Nuruosmaniye Mosque @
Prince’s Mosque @
Riistem Pasa Mosque @
Stilemaniye Mosque
pp90-91 @
Tulip Mosque @

Bazaars, Hans and Sho
Book Bazaar @

Spice Bazaar @
Valide Hani @
Vefa Bozacist @
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Grand Bazaar pp98-9 @

Museums and Monuments
Forum of Theodosius @
Museum of Calligraphy @
Valens Aqueduct @

Squares and Courtyards
Beyazit Square @
Corlulu Ali Paga Courtyard @

[ H]

Waterways
Golden Horn @

KEY

[] Street-by-Street map
See pp86—-7

B} Ferry boarding point

¢ Tram stop

B2 Main bus stop

Mosque

<] The inside of the Grand Bazaar, always thronging with bargain-hunters
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Street-by-Street: Around the Spice Bazaar

The narrow streets around the Spice Bazaar
encapsulate the spirit of old Istanbul. From
here buses, taxis and trams head off across the
Galata Bridge and into the interior of the city.
. The blast of ships’ horns signals the departure
of ferries from Eminonii to Asian Istanbul.

It is the quarter’s shops and markets, though,
that are the focus of attention for the eager
shoppers who crowd the Spice Bazaar and the
1| streets around it, sometimes breaking for a
leisurely tea beneath the trees in its courtyard.
Across the way, and entirely aloof from the
bustle, rise the domes of the New Mosque.
On one of the commercial alleyways which
Nargileon  Tadiate out from the mosque, an inconspicu-
salenearthe OUS doorway leads up stairs to the terrace of
spice Bazaar the serene, tile-covered Rustem Pasa Mosque.

Tahtakale
Hamami
Carsisi, now
a bazaar, was
formerly a
Turkish bath.

Kurukahveci
i Mehmet Efendi

is one of Istanbul’s
oldest and most popular
coffee shops. You can
drink coffee on the

premises or buy a

packet to take away

with you (see p213).

0 metres 75

———————

0 yards 75
STAR SIGHTS

* Riustem Pasa
Mosque

* New Mosque

% Spice Bazaar

Stall holders
and street

{ traders, such as
this man selling garlic cloves,
ply their wares in Sabuncuhant
Sokagi and the other narrow
streets around the Spice Bazaar.

* Riistem Pasa Mosque
The interior of this seclud-
ed mosque is a brilliant
pattern-book made of
Iznik tiles (see p161)

of the finest quality @

The pastirma shop
at 11 Hasireilar Cad-
desi sells thin slices
of dried beef, spiced
with fenugreek — a
Turkish delicacy.
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Golden
Horn

THE BAZAAR
QUARTER

SERAGLIO
POINT

Eminénii is the port from which ferries depart to many destina- LOCATOR MAP
tions (see p244) and for trips along the Bosphorus (see pp144-9).

. L . See Street Finder map 2
It bustles with activity as traders compete to sell drinks and snacks.

Galata The royal pavilion, a suite of
Bridge beautifully tiled private rooms, is

linked by a passage to the sultan’s
loge inside the New Mosque.

Pandeli’s
Restaurant
(see p200)
Eminonii sea bus
boarding point

Eminénii
tram stop

* New Mosque
This mosque, which dominates
Tea the Eminonii waterfront, was
Gardens completed in the 17th century
| by the mother of Sultan
Mehmet IV (see p33) @

Mausoleum of Turhan
Hatice Valide Sultan,
mother of Mehmet IV

* Spice Bazaar
£ This market was built in
ik 1660 as part of the New

F and garden .
f centre Mosque complex, qnd it bqs
KEY always been associated with

the sale of spices, though today

= == == Suggested route .
9 there is much more on offer @
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New Mosque @

Yeni Cami

Yeni Cami Meydani, Eminona.
Map 3 D2. 5] Eminénii. [ ] daily.

Situated at the southern end
of Galata Bridge, the New
Mosque is one of the most
prominent mosques in the city.
It dates from the time when a
few women from the harem
became powerful enough to
dictate the policies of the
Ottoman sultans (see p27).
The mosque was started in
1597 by Safiye, mother of
Mehmet III, but building was
suspended on the sultan’s
death as his mother then lost
her position. It was not com-
pleted until 1663, after Turhan
Hadice, mother of Mehmet
IV, had taken up the project.

Though the mosque was
built after the classical period
of Ottoman architecture, it
shares many traits with earlier
imperial foundations, includ-
ing a monumental courtyard.
The mosque once had a hospi-
tal, school and public baths.

The turquoise, blue and
white floral tiles decorating
the interior are from Iznik
(see p161) and date from the
mid-17th century, though by
this time the quality of the
tiles produced there was al-
ready in decline. More striking
are the tiled lunettes and bold
Koranic frieze decorating the
porch between the courtyard
and the prayer hall.

At the far left-hand corner
of the upper gallery is the
sultan’s loge (see p39), which
is linked to his personal suite
of rooms (see p87).

The New Mosque, a prominent feature on the Eminénii waterfront

A selection of nuts and seeds for sale in the Spice Bazaar

Spice Bazaar @
Misir Carsist

Cami Meydani Sok. Map 3 D2 (4 C1).
5] Eminénd. [) 8am-7pm Mon-Sat.

This cavernous, L-shaped
market was built in the

early 17th century as an
extension of the New Mosque
complex. Its revenues once
helped maintain the mosque’s
philanthropic institutions.

In Turkish the market is
named the Misir Carsist — the
Egyptian Bazaar — because it
was built with money paid as
duty on Egyptian imports. In
English it is usually known
as the Spice Bazaar. From
medieval times spices were
a vital and expensive part of
cooking and they became the
market’s main produce. The
bazaar came to specialize in
spices from the orient, taking
advantage of Istanbul’s site
on the trade route between
the East (where most spices
were grown) and Europe.

Stalls in the bazaar stock
spices, herbs and other foods
such as honey, nuts, sweet-
meats and pastirma (cured
beef). Today’s expensive
Eastern commodity,
caviar, is also available,
the best variety
being Iranian.

ik

Nowadays an eclectic range
of other items can be found
in the Spice Bazaar, including
everything from household
goods, toys and clothes to
exotic aphrodisiacs. The square
between the two arms of the
bazaar is full of commercial
activity, with cafés, and stalls
selling plants and pets.

Floral iznik tiles adorning the
interior of Riistem Pasa Mosque

Riistem Pasa
Mosque ©

Riistem Pasa Camii

Hasiicllar Cad, Eminéna.
Map 3 D2. IF] Eminéndi. [ daily.

Raised above the busy
shops and warehouses
around the Spice Bazaar, this
mosque was built in 1561 by
the great architect Sinan (see
p91) for Riistem Pasa, son-in-
law of and grand vizier to
Siileyman I (see p26). Rents
from the businesses in the
bazaar were intended to pay
for the upkeep of the mosque.
The staggering wealth of
its decoration says something
about the amount of money
that the corrupt Riistem man-
aged to salt away during his
career. Most of the interior
is covered in Iznik tiles of
the very highest quality.
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The four piers are adorned
with tiles of one design but
the rest of the prayer hall is a
riot of different patterns, from
abstract to floral. Some of the
finest tiles can be found on
the galleries. All in all, there
is no other mosque in the city
adorned with such a magni-
ficent blanket of tiles.

The mosque is also notable
for its numerous windows: it
was built with as many as the
structure would allow.

Golden Horn ©
Hali¢

Map 3 D2. &) Eminénd.
B 557 99A.

Often described as the
world’s greatest natural
harbour, the Golden Horn is
a flooded river valley which
flows southwest into the
Bosphorus. The estuary attrac-
ted settlers to its shores in
the 7th century BC and later
enabled Constantinople to
become a rich and powerful
port. According to legend, the
Byzantines threw so many
valuables into it during the
Ottoman conquest (see p26),
that the waters glistened with
gold. Today, however, belying
its name, the Golden Horn
has become polluted by the
numerous nearby factories.
For hundreds of years the
city’s trade was conducted by
ships that off-loaded their
goods into warehouses lining
the Golden Horn. Nowadays,
though, the great container

ships coming to Tstanbul use
ports on the Sea of Marmara.
Spanning the mouth of the
Horn is the Galata Bridge,
which joins Eminonii to Galata.
The bridge, built in 1992,
opens in the middle to allow
access for tall ships. It is a
good place from which to
appreciate the complex geog-
raphy of the city and admire
the minaret-filled skyline.
The functional Galata
Bridge replaced the raffish
charm of a pontoon bridge
with a busy lower level of
restaurants. The old bridge
has been reconstructed just
south of the Rahmi Ko¢
Museum (see p127). There
is another bridge, Atatiirk,
between these, and a fourth,
Fatih, further up the Horn
near the end of the city walls.
Between Siitltice and Eytip,
the da Vinci pedestrian bridge
will soon be finished.

Stileymaniye
Mosque ©

See pp90-91.

Church of St
Theodore @

Kilise Camii

Vefa Cad, Cami Sok, Vefa.
Map 2 B2. [ 28, 618, 87.

Apart from its delightfully
dishevelled ancient ex-

terior, very little else remains of
the former Byzantine Church
of St Theodore. The elabo-

rate church was built in the
12th—14th centuries, the last
great era of Byzantine con-
struction. Tt was converted
into a mosque following the
Ottoman conquest of the city
in 1453 (see p26).

One feature that is still
evident in the south dome
in its outer porch is a 14th-
century mosaic of the Virgin
Mary surrounded by the
Prophets. The fluted minaret
makes a sympathetic addition.

: | |t
The 4th-century Valens Aqueduct
crossing Atatiirk Bulvari

Valens Aqueduct @

Bozdogan Kemeri

Ataturk Bulvari, Saragchane.
Map 2 A3. I Laleli. ¥ 28, 618, 87.

Emperor Valens built this
mighty aqueduct, support-

ed by two imposing rows of
arches, in the late 4th century
AD. Part of the elaborate
water system feeding the
palaces and fountains of the
Byzantine capital, it brought
water from the Belgrade Forest
(see p158) and mountains
over 200 km (125 miles) away
to a vast cistern which stood
in the vicinity of what is now
Beyazit Square (see p94).

The aqueduct supplied the
city’s water until the late 19th
century, when it was made
obsolete by a modern water
distribution network. The
original open channels, how-
ever, had by this stage already
been replaced first by clay
pipes and then by iron ones.

The structure was repaired
many times during its history,
latterly by sultans Mustafa T
(1695-1703) and Ahmet III
(see p25). It was originally
1,000 m (3,300 fv) long, of
which 625 m (2,050 ft) remain.
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Suleymaniye Mosque @

Suleymaniye Camii

Istanbul’s most important mosque is both a
tribute to its architect, the great Sinan, and

a fitting memorial to its founder, Siileyman the
Magnificent (see p26). It was built above the
Golden Horn in the grounds of the old palace,
Eski Saray (see p94), between 1550-57. Like the
city’s other imperial mosques, the Stleymaniye Courtyard

Mosque was not only a place of worship, but The ancient columns that
also a charitable foundation, or kiilliye (see p38). pround the courtyard
The mosque is surrounded by its former hospital, 0 s4id to bave come
soup kitchen, schools, caravanserai and bath originally from the
house. This complex provided a welfare system pmioma the Byzantine
which fed over 1,000 of the city’s poor — Muslims, 5,4/ box in the Hippo-
Christians and Jews alike — every day. drome (see p80).

Muvakkithane Gateway
The main courtyard
entrance (now closed)
contained the rooms of the
mosque astronomer, who
determined prayer times.

3 Minaret

Tomb of Sinan

The caravanserai provided -
lodging and food for travellers imaret
and their animals. Gate

Caféina
sunken
garden

imaret
The kitchen — now a restaurant LT
(see p200) — fed the city’s poor as well

as the mosque staff and their families.

The size of the millstone in its courtyard
gives some idea of the amount of grain
needed to feed everyone.
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* Mosque Interior VISITORS' CHECKLIST
A sense of soaring space
and calm strikes you as
| you enter the mosque. Tel (0212) 522 02 98. 7] Beyazit
The eﬁrea is enbanced or Einfnérf[i, then 10 mﬁ’ W};/k,

by the fact that the beight [ daily. [@) at prayer times.

of the dome from the

Sfloor is exactly double

its diameter.

Prof Siddik Sami Onar Caddesi,
Vefa. Map 2 C3 (4 A1).

The Tomb of
Roxelana contains
Stileyman’s beloved
wife (see p76).

% Tomb of Siilleyman
Ceramic stars said to be
set with emeralds sparkle
above the coffins of

; "‘3\ Siileyman, bis daughter
Mibrimah and two of
bis successors, Stiley-
man II and Abmet I1.

These marble
benches were used
to support coffins

before burial.

o3

“Addicts Alley”
is so called because
the cafés here once sold
opium and hashish as
well as coffee and tea.

The medreses (see p38) to the
i south of the mosque house a library
containing 110,000 manuscripts.

SINAN, THE IMPERIAL ARCHITECT

Like many of his eminent contemporaries, Koca Mimar Sinan
(¢.1491-1588) was brought from Anatolia to Istanbul in the
devsirme, the annual roundup of talented
Christian youths, and educated at one of the
elite palace schools. He became a military
engineer but won the eye of Stleyman I, who
made him chief imperial architect in 1538.
With the far-sighted patronage of the
sultan, Sinan — the closest Turkey gets
to a Renaissance architect — created
masterpieces which demonstrated his
: master’s status as the most magnificent of
Bust of the great monarchs. Sinan died aged 97, having built
% Tomb of Suleyman architect Sinan 131 mosques and 200 other buildings.

Former
hospital and
asylum

STAR FEATURES

* Mosque Interior
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Vefa Bozacis1 ©

Katip Celebi Cad 102, Vefa. Map 2
B2. Tel (0212) 519 49 22. % 618,
90. [] 8am-5:30pm daily.

With its wood-and-tile
interior and glittering
glass-mosaic columns, this
unusual shop and bar has
changed little since the 1930s.
It was founded in 1876 to sell
boza, a popular winter drink
made from bulgur (cracked
wheat, see p197). In summer
a slightly fermented grape
juice known as gwra is sold.
The shop’s main trade through-
out the whole year, however,
is in wine vinegar.

Inside the shop you will
see a glass from which Kemal
Atattirk (see p31) drank boza
in 1937, enshrined in a display
beneath a glass dome.

Bottles of boza, a wheat-based drink, lining

the interior of Vefa Bozacisi

Prince’s Mosque ©
Sehzade Camii

Sehzade Bagi Cad 70, Sarachane.
Map 2 B3. I Laleli. [ daily.
Tombs [ ] 9am-5pm Tue-Sun.

This mosque complex was
erected by Stileyman the
Magnificent (see p26) in
memory of his eldest son by
Roxelana (see p76), Sehzade
(Prince) Mehmet, who died of
smallpox at the age of 21. The
building was Sinan’s (see p91)
first major imperial commission
and was completed in 1548.
The architect used a delightful
decorative style in designing
this mosque before abandon-
ing it in favour of the classical
austerity of his later work.
The mosque is approached

Dome of the Prince’s Mosque,
Sinan’s first imperial mosque

through an elegant porticoed
inner courtyard, while the
other institutions making up
the mosque complex, includ-
ing a medrese (see p38), are
enclosed within an
outer courtyard.

The interior of the
mosque is unusual and
was something of an
experiment in that it
is symmetrical, having
a semidome on each
of its four sides.

The three tombs
located to the rear of
the mosque, belonging
to Sehzade Mehmet
himself and grand vi-
ziers Ibrahim Pasa and
I Ristem Pasa (see p88),

are the finest in the

city. Each has beauti-

ful iznik tiles (see
p161) and lustrous original
stained glass. That of Sehzade
Mehmet also boasts the finest
painted dome in Istanbul.

On Fridays you will notice
a crowd of women flocking
to another tomb within the

complex, that of Helvact
Baba, as they have done for
over 400 years. Helvact Baba
is said to miraculously cure
crippled children, solve fertil-
ity problems and find husbands
or accommodation for those
who beseech him.

Kalenderhane
Mosque @

Kalenderhane Camii

16 Mart Sehitleri Cad, Sarachane.
Map 2 B3. ZF] Universite.
[ prayer times only.

Sitting in the lee of the
Valens Aqueduct (see p89),
on the site where a Roman
bath once stood, is this Byzan-
tine church with a chequered
history. It was built and re-
built several times between
the 6th and 12th centuries,
before finally being converted
into a mosque shortly after
the conquest in 1453 (see
p26). The mosque is named
after the Kalender brotherhood
of dervishes which used the
church as its headquarters for
some years after the conquest.
The building has the cruci-
form layout characteristic of
Byzantine churches of the
period. Some of the decora-
tion remaining from its last
incarnation, as the Church
of Theotokos Kyriotissa (her
Ladyship Mary, Mother of
God), also survives in the
prayer hall with its marble
panelling and in the frag-
ments of fresco in the narthex
(entrance hall). A series of
frescoes depicting the life of
St Francis of Assisi were re-
moved in the 1970s and are
no longer on public view.

A shaft of light illuminating the interior of Kalenderhane Mosque
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The Baroque Tulip Mosque, housing a marketplace in its basement

Tulip Mosque @

Laleli Camii

Ordu Cad, Laleli. Map 2 B4.
5] Laleli. [ prayer times only.

Built in 1759-63, this

mosque complex is the

best example in the city of
the Baroque style, of which
its architect, Mehmet Tahir Aga,
was the greatest exponent.
Inside the mosque, a variety
of gaudy, coloured marble
covers all of its surfaces.

More fascinating is the area
underneath the main body of
the mosque. This is a great
hall supported on eight piers,
with a fountain in the middle.
The hall is now used as a
subterranean marketplace,
packed with Eastern Europeans
and Central Asians haggling
over items of clothing.

The nearby Biiytik Tas Hani
(see p96), or Big Stone Han,
is likely to have been part
of the mosque’s original
complex but now houses a
number of leather shops and
a restaurant. To get to it turn
left outside the mosque into
Fethi Bey Caddesi and then
take the second left into

Cukur Cesme Sokagt. The
main courtyard of the han is
at the end of a long passage
situated off this lane.

Bodrum Mosque @

Bodrum Camii

Sait Efendi Sok, Laleli. Map 2 A4.
i) Laleli. [ prayer times only.

Narrow courses of brick
forming the outside walls,
and a window-pierced dome,
betray the early origins of this
mosque as a Byzantine church.
It was built in the early 10th
century by co-Emperor Roma-
nus I Lacapenus (919-44)
as part of the Monastery of
Myrelaion and adjoined a
small palace. The palace was
later converted into a nunnery
where the emperor’s widow,
Theophano, lived out her
final years. She was even-
tually buried in a sanctuary
chapel beneath the church,
which is closed to the public.
In the late 15th century the
church was converted into a
mosque by Mesih Pasa, a
descendant of the Palaeologus
family, the last dynasty to rule

Byzantium. The building was
gutted by fire several times
and nothing remains of its
internal decoration. Today

it is still a working mosque
and is accessed via a stairway
which leads up to a raised
piazza filled with coat stalls.

Forum of
Theodosius ®

Ordu Cad, Beyazit. Map 2 C4 (4 A3).
] Universite or Beyazit.

Constantinople (see p20)

was built around several

large public squares or forums.
The largest of them stood on
the site of present-day Beyazit
Square. Tt was originally known
as the Forum Tauri (the Forum
of the Bull) because of the
huge bronze bull in the mid-
dle of it in which sacrificial
animals, and sometimes even
criminals, were roasted.

After Theodosius the Great
enlarged it in the late 4th
century, the forum took his
name. Relics of the triumphal
arch and other structures can
be found lying and stacked
on either side of the tram
tracks along Ordu Caddesi.
The huge columns, decorated
with a motif reminiscent of a
peacock’s tail, are particularly
striking. Once the forum had
become derelict, these col-
umns were reused all over
the city. Some can be seen in
the Basilica Cistern (see p76).
Other fragments from the
forum were built into Beyazit
Hamamu, a Turkish bath (see
p67) further west down Ordu
Caddesi, now a bazaar.

Peacock feather design on a column
from the Forum of Theodosius
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Museum of
Calligraphy @
Tiirk Vakif Hat Sanatlart
Miizesi

Beyazit Meydani, Beyazit. Map 2 C4
(4 A3). Tel (0212) 527 58 51.

] Universite. [} 9am-4pm
Tue-Sat. 17 [ with assistance.

The delightful courtyard in
which this museum has been
installed was once a medrese
(see p38) of Beyazit Mosque,
situated on the other side

of the square.

Its changing displays are
taken from the massive archive
belonging to the Turkish Calli-
graphy Foundation. As well
as some beautiful manuscripts
there are also examples of
calligraphy on stone and
glass. There is also an ex-
hibition of tools used in calli-
graphy. One of the cells in
the medrese now contains a
waxwork tableau of a master
calligrapher with his pupils.

=15
Beyazit Tower, within the wooded
grounds of Istanbul University

Beyazit Square ®
Beyazit Meydani

Ordu Cad, Beyazit. Map 2 C4 (4
A3). I Beyazit.

Always filled with crowds

of people and huge flocks

of pigeons, Beyazit Square is
the most vibrant space in the
old part of the city. Through-
out the week the square is
the venue for a flea market,
where everything from carpets
(see pp218-19) and Central
Asian silks to general bric-a-
brac can be purchased. When

)

The fortress-like entrance to Istanbul University, Beyazit Square

you have tired of rummaging,
there are several cafés.

On the northern side of the
square is the Moorish-style
gateway leading into Istanbul
University. The university’s
main building dates from the
19th century and once served
as the Ministry of War. Within
the wooded grounds rises
Beyazit Tower. This marble
fire-watching station was built
in 1828 on the site of Eski
Saray, the palace first inhabit-
ed by Mehmet the Conqueror
(see p26) after Byzantium fell
to the Ottomans. Two original
timber towers were destroyed
by fire. At one time, you
could climb to the top of the
tower but it is now closed
to the public.

On the square’s eastern side
is Beyazit Mosque, which was
commissioned by Beyazit II
and completed in 15006. It is
the oldest surviving imperial
mosque in the city. Behind
the impressive outer portal
is a harmonious courtyard
with an elegant domed foun-
tain at its centre. Around
the courtyard are
columns made of
granite and green
and red Egyptian
porphyry, and a
pavement of multi-
coloured marble.
The layout of the
mosque’s interior,
with its central
dome and sur-
rounding semi-
domes, is heavily
inspired by the
design of Haghia

Book Bazaar @
Sahaflar Carsist

Sahaflar Carsisi Sok, Beyazit.
Map 2 C4 (4 A3). I] Universite.
[ 8am-8pm daily.

This charming booksellers’
courtyard, on the site of
the Byzantine book and paper
market, can be entered either
from Beyazit Square or from
inside the Grand Bazaar (see
Pp98-9). Racks are laden with
all sorts of books, from tourist
guides to academic tomes.
During the early Ottoman
period (see pp25-7), printed
books were seen as a corrupt-
ing European influence and
were banned in Turkey. As
a result the bazaar only sold
manuscripts. Then on 31 Jan-
uary 1729 Ibrahim Miiteferrika
(1674-1745) produced the first
printed book in the Turkish
language, an Arabic dictionary.
His bust stands in the centre
of the market today. Note
that book prices are fixed
and cannot be haggled over.

Sophia (see pp72-5).

Customers browsing in the Book Bazaar
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The Art of Ottoman Calligraphy

Calligraphy is one of the noblest of
Islamic arts. Its skills were handed
down from master to apprentice, with
the aim of the pupil being to replicate
perfectly the hand of his master. In
Ottoman Turkey, calligraphy was used
to ornament firmans (imperial decrees)
as well as poetry and copies of the
Koran. However, many examples are
also to be found on buildings, carved

The great calligraphers of the
Ottoman period were Seyh
Hamdullah (1436-1520),
whose work is seen in this
Koran, Hafiz Osman
(1642-98) and Abmet
Karabisari (d.1556).
Their pupils also achieved
great renown.

Calligraphy developed
Surther in the 19th and
early 20th centuries when
artists explored more
creative forms and
worked with new media.
There was greater
Sfreedom to depict
bhuman faces and
animal forms.
Calligraphers
also began to
=~ . practise the
| technique of
découpage (cut-
ting out the letters)
and, as seen here,
wrote inscriptions on
delicate leaf skeletons.

4

Breathing techniques were probably prac-
tised by some calligraphbers in order to achieve
the steadiness of hand required for their craft.

Floral

in wood and applied to architectural
ceramics. The art of the calligrapher in
all cases was to go as far as possible in
beautifying the writing without altering
the sense of the text. It was particularly
important that the text of the Koran
should be accurately transcribed. With
the text of a firman, made to impress
as much as to be read, the calligrapher
could afford to add more flourishes.

The sultan’s tugra was bis
personal monogram, used
in place of bis signature.

It would either be drawn by

a calligrapber or engraved

on a wooden block and then
stamped on documents.

The tugra incorporated the
sultan’s name and title, his
patronymic and wishes for
his success or victory — all

bighly stylized. This is the

tugra of Selim II (1566-74).

The later sultans were taught calligraphy as
part of their education and became skilled
artists. This panel, from the 19th century, is
by Mabmut 1l (1808-39).

Knife for cutting pen nib

The calligrapher’s tools and materials
included a burnisher, usually made of agate,
which was used to prepare the paper. A knife was
used to slit the reed nib of the pen before writing.
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Valide Han @
Valide Hani

Junction of cakmakgilar Yokusu &
Tarakgilar Cad, Beyazit. Map 2 C3
(4 B2). IF] Beyazit, then 10 mins

walk. [ ] 9:30am-5pm Mon-Sat.

If the Grand Bazaar (see
pp98-9) seems large, it is
sobering to realize that it is
only the covered part of an
huge area of seething com-
mercial activity which reaches
all the way to the Golden
Horn (see p89). As in the
Grand Bazaar, most manu-
facturing and trade takes
place in hans, courtyards
hidden away from the street
behind shaded gateways.

The largest han in Istanbul
is Valide Han. It was built in
1651 by Kosem, the mother
of Sultan Mehmet IV. You
enter it from Cakmakgilar
Yokusu through a massive
portal. After passing through
an irregularly shaped forecourt,
you come out into a large
courtyard centring on a Shiite
mosque. This was built when
the han became the centre of
Persian trade in the city. Today,
the han throbs to the rhythm
of hundreds of weaving looms.

A short walk further down
Cakmakgilar Yokusu is Buylk
Yeni Han, hidden behind
another impressive doorway.
This Baroque han, built in

1764, has three arcaded levels.
The entrance is on the top
level, where distinctive bird
cages are among the wares.
In the labyrinth of narrow
streets around these hans, arti-
sans are grouped according
to their wares: on Bakircilar
Caddesi, for instance, you
will find metal workers, while
the craftsmen of Uzuncarst
Caddesi make wooden items.

Grand Bazaar ®

See pp98-9.

Café in Biiyiik Tag Han, near the
Tulip Mosque (see p93)

factories and workshops. These working hans are fre-

HANS OF ISTANBUL

The innumerable hans that
dot the centre of Istanbul
originally provided tempo-
rary accommodation for
travellers, their pack ani-
mals and their wares. The
typical han was built as part
of a mosque complex (see
PP38-9). 1t consists of two-
or three-storey buildings
around a courtyard. This is
entered via a large gateway
which can be secured by

a heavy wooden door at
night. When vans and
lorries replaced horses and
mules, the city’s hans lost
their original function and
most of them were conver-
ted into warrens of small

Carpet shops in Corlulu Ali Pasa Courtyard

quently in bad repair, but in them you can still sense the
entrepreneurial, oriental atmosphere of bygone Istanbul.

- EX T

Corlulu Ali Pasa
Courtyard ®
Corlulu Ali Pasa Klliyesi

Yeniceriler Cad, Beyazit. Map 4 B3.
) Beyazit. [ ] daily.

Like many others in the city,
the medrese (see p38) of

this mosque complex outside
the Grand Bazaar has become
the setting for a tranquil out-
door café. It was built for
Corlulu Ali Pasa, son-in-law
of Mustafa IT, who served as
grand vizier under Ahmet I11
(see p27). Ahmet later exiled
him to the island of Lésvos
and had him executed there
in 1711. Some years later his
family smuggled his head back
to Istanbul and interred it in
the tomb built for him.

The complex is entered from
Yeniceriler Caddesi by two
alleyways. Several carpet shops
now inhabit the medrese and
rugs are hung and spread all
around, waiting for prospect-
ive buyers. The carpet shops
share the medrese with a
kahve, a traditional café (see
p208), which is popular with
locals and students from the
nearby university. It adver-
tises itself irresistibly as the
“Traditional Mystic Water Pipe
and Erenler Tea Garden”.
Here you can sit and drink
tea, and perhaps smoke a
nargile (bubble pipe), while
deciding which carpet to buy
(see pp218-19).
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Situated across Bileyciler
Sokak, an alleyway off Corlulu
Ali Pasa Courtyard, is the Koca
Sinan Pasa tomb complex, the
courtyard of which is another
tea garden. The charming
medrese, mausoleum and sebil
(a fountain where water was
handed out to passers-by)
were built in 1593 by Davut
Aga, who succeeded Sinan
(see p91) as chief architect of
the empire. The tomb of Koca
Sinan Pasa, grand vizier under
Murat 11T and Mehmet 111, is a
striking 16-sided structure.
Just off the other side of
Yeniceriler Caddesi is Gedik
Pasa Hamamu, thought to be
the oldest working Turkish
baths (see p67) in the city.
It was built around 1475 for
Gedik Ahmet Pasa, grand
vizier under Mehmet the
Conqueror (see p206).

The dome and minaret of the mosque
of Atik Ali Pasa, dating from 1496

Atik Ali Pasa
Mosque @
Atik Ali Pasa Camii

Yeniceriler Cad, Beyazit. Map 3 D4
(4 C3). ] Cemberlitas. [ 618.
[ daily. g

Secreted behind walls in the
area south of the Grand
Bazaar, this is one of the old-
est mosques in the city. It was
built in 1496 during the reign
of Beyazit 11, the successor of
Mehmet the Conqueror, by
his eunuch grand vizier, Atik
Ali Pasa. The mosque stands
in a small garden. It is a simple
rectangular structure entered
through a deep stone porch.
In an unusual touch, its mihrab

is contained in a kind of apse.
The other buildings which
formed part of the mosque
complex — its kitchen (imaret),
medrese and Sufi monastery
(tekke) — have all but disap-
peared during the widening of
the busy Yeniceriler Caddesi.

Nuruosmaniye
Mosque &

Nuruosmaniye Camii

Vezirhani Cad, Beyazit. Map 3 D4
(4 C3). ] Cemberlitas. [ 618.

[ daily. gf

Nuruosmaniye Caddesi, a street
lined with carpet and antique
shops, leads to the gateway
of the mosque from which it
gets its name. Mahmut I began
the mosque in 1748, and it
was finished by his brother,
Osman III. It was the
first in the city to exhibit
the exaggerated traits

of the Baroque, as seen
in its massive cornices.
Its most striking features,
however, are the enor-
mous unconcealed
arches supporting the
dome, each pierced by

a mass of windows.

Light floods into the
plain square prayer hall,
allowing you to see the
finely carved wooden
calligraphic frieze which
runs around the walls
above the gallery.

On the other side of
the mosque complex is
the Nuruosmaniye Gate. This
leads into Kalpakeilar Caddesi,
the Grand Bazaar’s street of
jewellery shops (see p212).

a0 B
Rows of

EF
The tomb of Mahmut
the mosque named after him

Mahmut Pasa
Mosque @

Mahmut Pasa Camii

Vezirhani Cad, Beyazit. Map 3 D3
(4 C3). ZF] Cemberlitas. [ 618.

[ daily. g

Built in 1462, just nine years
after Istanbul’s conquest

by the Ottomans, this was
the first large mosque to be
erected within the city walls.
Unfortunately, it has been
over-restored and much of
its original charm lost.

The mosque was funded
by Mahmut Pasa, a Byzantine
aristocrat who converted to
Tslam and became grand vizier
under Mehmet the Conqueror.
In 1474 his disastrous military
leadership incurred the sultan’s
fury, and he was executed.
His tomb, behind the mosque,
is unique in Istanbul for its
Moorish style of decoration,
with small tiles in blue, black,
turquoise and green set in
swirling geometric patterns.
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t| spice Bazaar (p8s),
Grand Bazaar © Oriiciiler | " Vaiide tan
Gate o (p96)
Kapali Carst 0 b |

Nothing can prepare you for the Grand Bazaar. This
labyrinth of streets covered by painted vaults is lined
with thousands of booth-like shops, whose wares spill
out to tempt you and whose shopkeepers are
relentless in their quest for a sale. The bazaar
was established by Mehmet 1T shortly after his
conquest of the city in 1453 (see p26).
It can be entered by several gate- F

=] m

ways, two of the most useful being
carsikapt Gate (from Beyazit tram
<
i¢ cesECi HAN

-

ASTARCI

Al

Tili-

stop) and Nuruosmaniye Gate
(from Nuruosmaniye Mosque).

It is easy to get lost in the bazaar
in spite of the signposting. Most
of the bazaar’s goods were once
behind the scenes in secluded
hans (see p90).

PERDAHGILAR SOK —

Muhlis Glinbatti is a
well known textile and
carpet shop (see p212).

LAR SOK — —

= _YAGLIKEI

The Rooftops of
the Grand Bazaar
Cafés, restaurants,
toilets, banks, a post
office, a police station
and a mosque serve
those who work and
shop inside the bazaar.

LER 5p

FERACEC]

Beyazit Gate

Cadiralar Caddesi, ~_ &
Book Bazaar (see p94)

Havuzlu Lokanta
is the best restaurant
in the bazaar

(see p200). Beyazit
Carsikapi tram
Gate stop
Sark Kahvesi
This traditional ~ Marble Fountain |
| Turkish café Two copper and
is a popular marble fountains
choice with once provided
local bazaar the bazaar with

traders. Sfresh water.
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Zincirli Han
This is one of the
prettiest hans in Cargikapi Cad, Beyazit. Map 2
the bazaar. Here ~ C4 (4 B3). [E] Beyazit (for

a piece Of jewel— Carsikapi Gate), Cemberlitas (for
lery can be made Nuruosmaniye Gate). [ 618.
to your own [ 9am-8pm Mon-Sat.

choice of design.

VISITORS" CHECKLIST

The i¢ Bedesten is the
oldest part of the bazaar.
Once a locked warehouse,
it also served as a place
where jewellers could
make and sell their wares.

The Oriental Kiosk was
built as a coffee house in
the 17th century and is
now a jewellery shop.

Rugs on Display

Carpets and kilims (see pp218-19)
Sfrom all over Turkey and Central
Asia are on sale in the bazaar.

Mahmut
Pasa Gate

Money
trading is
HALICILA conducted

pegs on mobile

? phones.

— =i Gateway to the
I¢ Bedesten

Though the eagle
was a symbol of the
Byzantine emperors
(see p25), this eagle,
like the bazaar
itself, postdates the
Byzantine era.

LER CAD

wEsEC

The Sandal Bedesteni dates
from the 16th century and is
covered by 20 brick domes
supported on piers.

Nuruosmaniye Mosque (see p97),
Cemberlitas tram stop

Nuruosmaniye
Gate

KEY

= Suggested route

[[] Antiques and carpets

Kalpakgilar Bagi .
Caddesi, the widest of [ Leather and denim
Souvenirs the streets in the bazaar, 1 Gold and silver
Traditiona lly is lined with the glitter- -

cra ﬁe d items ing windows of countless ~ [_] Fabrics
4 jewellery shops.

such as this "1 Souvenirs
brass coffee pot, metres a0 [ Household goods and workshops
are for sale in

™ B f the b,
the bazaar. 0yards 40 oundary of the bazaar
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BEYOGLU

Spain, Arabs, Greeks and Arme-
nians settled in communities here.

or centuries Beyoglu, a steep

hill north of the Golden Horn,
was home to the city’s for-
eign residents. First to arrive here
were the Genoese. As a reward §i
for their help in the reconquest |f:
of the city from the Latins in
1261 (see p24), they were
given the Galata area, which
is now dominated by the o
Galata Tower. During the  monument of Indepen
Ottoman period, Jews from Taksim Square

SIGHTS AT A GLANCE

= has not changed much in

From the 16th century the great
European powers established
embassies in the area to further
their own interests within the
lucrative territories of the Otto-
man Empire. The district

character over the centuries
dence, and is still a thriving com-
mercial quarter today.

Museums
Istanbul Museum
of Modern Art @

Historic Buildings and
Monuments
Galata Tower @

Church of SS Peter

Mevlevi Lodge @ Ottoman Bank Museum @ Asgﬁﬁu‘iif“;’

Pera Palas Hotel @ Pera Museum @ o)

Tophane Fountain @ Quarters Qf Ve 5osran sox
<

Mosques and Churches Cukurcuma @ : {2
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e GETTING AROUND
,w .
e o 0 metres 500 The Tinel underground
// Karakéy —m—funicular climbs the hill
KEY 0 yards 500 between the bottom station
(Karakoy) on Tersane Caddesi
[ street-by-Street map — and the top station on Tiinel
See pp102-3 I Tourist information N L
Square at the beginning of
B2 Ferry boarding point Mosque Istiklal Caddesi. An old-
Church fashioned tram travels the
length of Istiklal Caddesi but

& Metro station

:-ﬂ Tram stop

Underground funicular station

it is equally pleasant to walk.
Taksim Square is a centre for

Bus stop

&7 Nostalgic Tram stop

buses, taxis and dolmuses.

<] The Galata Tower and backstreets of Beyoglu, seen from the mouth of the Golden Horn
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Street-by-Street: Istiklal Caddesi

The pedestrianized Istiklal Caddesi is
Beyoglu’s main street. Once known as
the Grande Rue de Pera, it is lined by
late 19th-century apartment blocks and
European embassy buildings whose
grandiose gates and facades belie their use
Crestontop aS mere consulates since Ankara became z
of the Russian the Turkish capital in 1923 (see p3D). 7
Consulate gate Hidden from view stand the churches ISTANBUL
which used to serve the foreign communities of Pera
(as this area was formerly called), some still buzzing pER n pn Ln CE
with worshippers, others just quiet echoes of a bygone ” OTEL
era. Today, the once seedy backstreets of Beyoglu, R T s
off Istiklal Caddesi, are taking on a new lease of life, * Pera Palas Hotel
with trendy jazz bars opening and shops selling This hotel is an atmospheric
handcrafted jewellery, furniture and the like. period piece. Many famous
Crowds are also drawn by the area’s cinemas and guests, in it ding Agatha
numerous stylish restaurants. Christie, have stayed bere
since it opened in 1892. Non-

residents can enjoy a
drink in the bar @

St Mary Draperis is a Franciscan
church dating from 1789. This

small statue of the Virgin

stands above the entrance

from the street. The vaulted
interior of the church is
colourfully decorated. An
icon of the Virgin, said to
perform miracles, hangs
over the altar.

Tiinel underground
funicular to Karakoy

% Mevlevi Lodge
A peaceful garden
surrounds this small
museum of the Mevlevi
Sufi sect (see pl04).
On the last Sunday

of every month visitors
can see dervishes
perform their famous
swirling dance @

KEY

= == == Suggested route

0 metres 75 Consulate
— T————— Swedish
0 yards 75 Consulate
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Galatasaray Fish Market
(Balik Pazary) mainly sells
fresh fish, but inside you will
also discover numerous delica-
tessens offering everything BEYOGLU
from meats and cheeses vé
through to delicious
sweetmeats and pickles.

BOSPHORUS

British
Consulate

LOCATOR MAP
See Street Finder map 7

4 - Armenian
: 1|‘;./__church

Galatasaray
High School

Cicek Pasaji was origin-
ally a flower market. Its
stalls have now been
replaced by bars and
restaurants, which are
particularly lively in

the evenings.

Consulate

Pera Museum
Oriental paintings,

VA Anatolian weights and
\, measures and Kiitabya
tiles and ceramics are
part of the collection @

STAR SIGHTS The Church of the Panaghia

serves the now much reduced

% Pera Palas Hotel Greek Orthodox population

of Beyoglu. Dedicated to the

* Mevlevi Lodge Virgin Mary, it contains this
beautiful classical iconostasis.
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The elegant Grand Orient bar
in the Pera Palas Hotel

Pera Palas Hotel @

Pera Palas Oteli

Mesrutiyet Cad 98-100, Tepebasi.
Map 7 D5. Tel (0212) 251 45 60.
Tunel. [24 by arrangement.
I3 by appointment only.

www perapalas.com

There are hotels that have
attained a legendary status;
one such is the Pera Palas
(see p189). Relying on the hazy
mystique of yesteryear, it has
changed little since it opened
in 1892, principally to cater for
travellers on the Orient Express
(see p66). It still evokes images
of uniformed porters and
exotic onward destinations
such as Baghdad. The Grand
Orient bar serves cocktails be-
neath its original chandeliers,
while the patisserie attracts
customers with its irresistible
cakes and genteel ambience.

Former guests who have
contributed to the hotel’s
reputation include Mata Hari,
Greta Garbo, Jackie Onassis,
Sarah Bernhardt, Josephine
Baker and Atatirk (see p31).
A room used by the thriller
writer Agatha Christie can be
visited on request.

SUFISM AND THE WHIRLING DERVISHES

Sufism is the mystical branch of Tslam (see pp38-9). The
name comes from suf, the Arabic for wool, for Sufis were
originally associated with poverty and self-denial, and often
wore rough woollen clothes next to the skin. Sufis aspire to
a personal experience of the divine. This takes the form of
meditative rituals, involving recitation, dance and music, to
bring the practitioner into direct, ecstatic communion with
Allah. There are several sects of Sufis, the most famous of
which are the Mevlevi, better known as the Whirling
Dervishes on account of their ritual spinning dance.

Pera Museum @
Pera Miizesi

Mesrutiyet Cad 141, Tepebas!.

Map 7 D4. Tel (0212) 334 99 00.
Tinel. [ From Taksim Square
down Tarlabasi. [ 10am-7pm Tue-
Sat, noon-6pm Sun. 1 Jan, first
day of Religious Holidays. [ 173
(disabled visitors enter free). [ [
WWW.peramuzesi.org.tr

The Pera Museum was opened
in June 2005 by the Suna and
Inan Kira¢ Foundation, with
the aim of providing a cultural
centre. The historic building,
formerly the Hotel Bristol, has
been transformed into a fully
equipped modern museum.
Notable collections include

The peaceful courtyard of the Mevlevi Lodge

Ottoman weights and
measures, over 400 examples
of 18th-century Kiitahya tiles
and ceramics and the Suna
and Inan Kira¢c Foundation’s
exhibition of Orientalist art.
This collection brings together
works by European artists
inspired by the Ottoman world
from the 17th century to the
early 19th century. It also
covers the last two centuries
of the Ottoman Empire and
provides an insight into upper
class lives, customs and dress.

Mevlevi

Lodge ©
Mevlevi Tekkesi

Galip Dede Cad 15, Beyoglu. Map 7
D5. Tel (0212) 245 41 41. Tinel.
[ 9am-4pm Wed-Mon. 177

Although Sufism was banned
by Atatiirk in 1924, this
monastery has survived as the
Divan Edebiyat: Miizesi, a
museum of divan literature
(classical Ottoman poetry).
The monastery belonged to
the most famous sect of Sufis,
who were known as the
Whirling Dervishes. The
original dervishes were disci-
ples of the mystical poet and
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great Sufi master “Mevlana”
(Our Leader) Jelaleddin Rumi,
who died in Konya, in central
Anatolia in 1273.

Tucked away off a street
named after one of the great
poets of the sect, Galip Dede,
the museum centres on an
18th-century lodge, within
which is a beautiful octagonal
wooden dance floor. Here, for
the benefit of visitors, the sema
(ritual dance) is performed
by a group of latter-day Sufi
devotees on the last Sunday
of every month. At 3pm a
dozen or so dancers unfurl
their great circular skirts to
whirl round the room in an
extraordinary state of ecstatic
meditation, accompanied by
haunting music.

Around the dance floor
are glass cases containing a
small exhibition of artifacts
belonging to the sect,
including hats, clothing,
manuscripts, photographs and
musical instruments. Outside,
in the calm, terraced garden,
stand the ornate tombstones
of ordinary sect members and
prominent sheikhs (leaders).

Galata Tower O
Galata Kulesi

Blyuk Hendek Sok, Beyoglu.
Map 3 D1. Tel (0212) 293 81 80.
Tiinel. [} 9am-7pm daily.
I Restaurant & Nightclub

[] 8om-midnight daily.
www.galatatower.net

The most recognizable
feature on the Golden Horn,
the Galata Tower is 60-m

Doorway into the main courtyard
of the Church of SS Peter and Paul

(196-ft) high and topped by
a conical tower. Its origins
date from the 6th century
when it was used to monitor
shipping. After the conquest
of Istanbul in 1453, the
Ottomans turned it into a
prison and naval depot. In
the 18th century, aviation
pioneer, Hezarifen Ahmet
Celebi, attached wings to his
arms and “flew” from the
tower to Uskiidar. The
building was subsequently
used as a fire watchtower.
The tower has been
renovated and on the
ninth floor there is now a
restaurant and nightclub.
The unmissable view from
the top encompasses the
Istanbul skyline and beyond
as far as Princes’ Islands

(see p159).

The distinctive Galata Tower, as seen from across the Golden Horn

Church of SS Peter
and Paul @

Sen Piyer Kilisesi

Galata Kulesi Sok 44, Karakdy.
Map 3 D1. Tel (0212) 249 23 85.
Tinel. [ 7am~5pm Mon-Sat &
10.30am-noon Sun.

When their original church
was requisitioned as a
mosque (to become the near-
by Arab Mosque) in the early
16th century, the Dominican
brothers of Galata moved to
this site, just below the Galata
Tower. The present building,
dating from 1841, was built by
the Fossati brothers, architects
of Italian-Swiss origin who also
worked on the restoration of
Haghia Sophia (see pp72-5).
The church’s rear wall is built
into a section of Galata’s old
Genoese ramparts.

According to Ottoman regu-
lations, the main facade of the
building could not be directly
on a road, so the church is
reached through a courtyard,
the entrance to which is via a
tiny door on the street. Ring
the bell to gain admittance.

The church is built in the
style of a basilica, with four
side altars. The cupola over
the choir is sky blue, studded
with gold stars. Mass is said
here in Italian every morning.

Arab Mosque O
Arap Camii

Kalyon Sok 1, Galata. Map 3 D1.
Tinel. [] prayer times only.

The Arabs after whom this
mosque was named were
Moorish refugees from Spain.
Many settled in Galata after
their expulsion from Andalusia
following the fall of Granada
in 1492. The church of SS
Paul and Dominic, built in the
first half of the 14th century
by Dominican monks, was
given to the settlers for use as
a mosque. It is an unusual
building for Istanbul: a vast,
strikingly rectangular Gothic
church with a tall square
belfry which now acts as a
minaret. The building has
been restored several times,
but of all the converted
churches in the city it makes
the least convincing mosque.
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Azap Kapi Mosque, built by the
great architect Sinan

Azap Kapi
Mosque @

Azap Kapt Camii

Tersane Cad, Azapkapi. Map 2 C1.
Tiinel. [ 46H, 61B. [ ] prayer
times only.

Delightful though they are,
this little mosque complex
and fountain are somewhat
overshadowed by the stream
of traffic thundering over
the adjacent Atatiirk Bridge.
The trees surrounding the
mosque, however, help to
screen it from the noise.

It was built in 1577-8 by
Sinan (see p91) for Grand
Vizier Sokollu Mehmet Pasa
and is considered to be one
of Sinan’s more attractive
mosques. Unusually, the
entrance is up a flight of
internal steps.

Ottoman Bank

Museum ©
Osmanli Bankasi Mizesi

Voyvoda Cad 35-37, Karakoy.
Map 3 D1. Tel (0212) 334 22 70.
Tinel. 5 25E, 56. [ ] 10am-
6om daily. 7] 3 [11 8

www.obmuseum.com

The Ottoman Bank Museum
has the most interesting
collection of state archives in
Turkey. Exhibits include
Ottoman banknotes,
promissory notes from
officials at the
imperial palace
and photos of
the Empire’s
ornately e
crafted ﬁq

branches.

Outstanding are the 6,000
photographs of the bank’s
employees — a unique
social registry.

Yeralti Mosque ©

Yeralti Camii

Karantina Sok, Karakéy. Map 3 E1.
Tinel. [ daily.

This mosque, literally “the
underground mosque”,
contains the shrines of two
Muslim saints, Abu Sufyan
and Amiri Wahibi, who died
during the first Arab siege of
the city in the 7th century (see
p21). It was the discovery of
their bodies in the cellar of an
ancient Byzantine
fortification in 1640
that led to the creation
of first a shrine on
the site and later, in
1757, a mosque.

The tombs of the
saints are behind
grilles at the end of
a low, dark prayer
hall, the roof of
which is supported
by a forest of pillars.

Kili¢ Ali Pasa
Mosque @
Kilic Ali Pasa Camii

Necatibey Cad, Tophane. Map 7 E5.
25E, 56. ZF] Tophane. [] daily.

This mosque was built in
1580 by Sinan, who was

by then in his 90s. The church
of Haghia Sophia (see pp72-5)
provided the architect with
his inspiration. Iznik tiles
adorn the mihrab and there is
a delightful deep porch before
the main door. Above the
entrance portal is an inscrip-
tion giving the date when the
mosque was established.

Kili¢ Ali Pasa, who commis-
sioned the mosque, had a
colorful life. Born in Italy, he
was captured by
Muslim
pirates

Koranic inscription in iznik tiles at the Kilig Ali Pasa Mosque

Detail of a carved panel
on Tophane Fountain

and later converted to Islam
in the service of Stileyman the
Magnificent (1520-66). He
served as a naval commander
under three sultans and after
retiring asked Murat III (see
p27) where to build his
mosque. The sultan is said to
have replied “in the admiral’s
domain, the sea”. Taking him
at his word, Kili¢ Ali Pasa re-
claimed part of the Bosphorus
for his complex.

Tophane

Fountain ®
Tophane Cesmesi

Tophane iskele Cad, Tophane.
Map 7 ES. 5 25E,
56. & Tophane.

. Beside Kilic Ali
Pasa Mosque
stands a
beautiful but
abandoned
Baroque
fountain, built
in 1732 by
Mahmut I. With
its elegant roof
and dome, it
resembles the
fountain of
Ahmet III (see
p60). Each of
the four walls is entirely
covered in low-relief floral
carving, which would once
have been gaily painted.

The name, meaning “cannon
foundry fountain”, comes from
the brick and stone foundry
building on the hill nearby.
Established in 1453 by Mehmet
the Conqueror (see p26) and
rebuilt several times, the
foundry no longer produces
weapons but is still owned by
the military.

Nusretiye
Mosque @

Nusretiye Camii

Necatibey Cad, Tophane. Map 7 E5.
25E, 56. [ daily.

The baroque “Mosque of
Victory” was built in the
1820s by Kirkor Balyan (see
p128), who went on to found
a dynasty of architects. This
ornate building seems more
like a large palace pavilion
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The window-filled dome and
arches of Nusretiye Mosque

than a mosque, with its deco-
rative out-buildings and
marble terrace.
Commissioned by Mahmut
I to commemorate his abo-
lition of the Janissary corps
in 1826 (see p30), it faces
the Selimiye Barracks (see
p132), across the Bosphorus,
which housed the New
Army that replaced the
Janissaries. The Empire-style
swags and embellishments
celebrate the sultan’s victory.
The marble panel of
calligraphy around the
interior of the mosque is
particularly fine, as is the
pair of sebils (kiosks for
serving drinks) outside.

Istanbul Museum
of Modern Art ®

Istanbul Modern
Sanat Muizesi

Meclis-i Mebusan Cad, Liman
isletmeleri Sahasi, Antrepo 4,
Karakoy. Map 7 F5. Tel (0212) 234
73 00. ] Tophane. [ 56. [ ]
10am-6pm Tue-Sun. 7 [ 3 4

www.istanbulmodern.org

The Istanbul Modern, a new
building perched on the
Golden Horn, opened in 2005
as the most upbeat and
thoroughly contemporary
museum in Turkey. It houses
both permanent collections
and temporary exhibitions,
providing a showcase for
many of the eccentric and
talented personalities who
have shaped modern art in
Turkey from the early 20th

century to the present day.
Many of the works are from
the private collection of the
Ecacibagi family, who founded
the museum. Exhibits include
abstract art, landscapes and
watercolours as well as a
sculpture garden and a
stunning display of black
and white photography.

Cukurcuma @

Map 7 E4.
& Taksim.

This charming
old quarter

of Beyoglu,
radiating from a
neighbourhood
mosque on
Cukurcuma
Caddesi, has
become an
important centre
for Istanbul’s furnishings

and antiques trades. The old
warehouses and houses in
this district have been
converted into shops and
showrooms, where modern
upholstery materials are piled
up in carved marble basins
and antique cabinets. It is
worth browsing here to
discover hidden treasures,
ranging from valuable
paintings and prints and 19th-
century Ottoman embroidery
to 1950s biscuit boxes.

Suzani textiles (see p212)
on sale in Cukurcuma

Taksim ®

Map 7 E3. 3 Taksim. & Taksim.
Taksim Art Gallery Tel (0212) 245
20 68. [] 10am-7pm Mon-Sat.

Centring on the vast, open
Taksim Square (Taksim
Meydany), the Taksim area is
the hub of activity in modern
Beyoglu. Taksim means “water
distribution centre”, and from
the early 18th century it was
from this site that
water from the
Belgrade Forest
(see p158) was
distributed
throughout the
city. The original
stone reservoir,
built in 1732 by
Mahmut I, still
stands at the top
of Tstiklal
Caddesi. In the
southwest of the
square is the 1928 Monument
of Independence, by Italian
artist Canonica. It shows
Atatiirk (see pp30-31) and the
other founding fathers of the
modern Turkish Republic.
Further up, on Cumhuriyet
Caddesi, is the modern build-
ing of the Taksim Art Gallery.
As well as temporary exhibi-
tions, the gallery has a
permanent display of Istanbul
landscapes by some of
Turkey’s most important
20th-century painters.

Flower sellers in Taksim Square
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way from the city centre

there are many sights

which repay the jour-
ney to visit them. Greater
Istanbul has been divided
into five areas shown on
the map below; each also
has its own map to help
you get around. Closest to
the centre are the mosques
and churches of Fatih, Fener
and Balat: most conspicu-
ously the gigantic Fatih
Mosque. Across the Golden
Horn (see p89) from Balat
are two sights worth seeing:
Aynali Kavak Palace and a fascinating
industrial museum. The Theodosian
Walls, stretching from the Golden
Horn to the Sea of Marmara, are one
of the city’s most impressive monu-
ments. Along these walls stand sev-
eral ancient palaces and churches:
particularly interesting is the Church
of St Saviour in Chora, with its stun-
ning Byzantine mosaics. Beyond the

Tiles depicting Mecca, Cezri
Kasim Pasa Mosque, Eyiip

GREATER ISTANBUL

walls, up the Golden Horn, is
Eylp, a focus of pilgrimage
to Muslims, where you can
visit a number of fine mau-
soleums and walk up the
hill to the historic café asso-
ciated with the French
writer Pierre Loti. Following
the Bosphorus north-
wards past Beyoglu (see
pp100-7) brings you to the
Dolmabahce Palace, one of
the top sights of Istanbul.
This opulent fantasy cre-
ated in the 19th century by
Sultan Abdiil Mecit T requires
a lengthy visit. Beyond it is peaceful
Yildiz Park containing yet more beau-
tiful palaces and pavilions. Not all vis-
itors to Istanbul make it to the Asian
side, but if you have half a day to spare
itis only a short ferry trip from Eminonii
(see pp 242-3). Its attractions include
some splendid mosques, a handsome
railway station and a small museum
dedicated to Florence Nightingale.

[—r ' Marmara

ALONG THE

CITY-WALLS

KEY

[] Central Istanbul == Motorway — City Walls

] Greater Istanbul = Main road o kil :

B3 Ferry boarding point = Other road ——,
0 miles 1

<] Fountain in the grounds of the sumptuous Dolmabahce Palace
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Fatih, Fener and Balat

A visit to these neighbourhoods is a reminder that for
centuries after the Muslim conquest (see p26), Jews
and Christians made up around 40 per cent of Istanbul’s
population. Balat was home to Greek-speaking Jews
from the Byzantine era onwards; Sephardic Jews from
Spain joined them in the 15th century. Fener became

a Greek enclave in the early 16th century and many
wealthy residents rose to positions of prominence

in the Ottoman Empire. Hilltop Fatih is linked to the
city’s radical Islamic tradition and you will see far more
devout Muslims here than anywhere else in Istanbul.
All three areas are residential, their maze of streets

the preserve of washing lines and children playing.

%Fene}

=

Church of St Mary of the

0 metres 500
——
0 yards 500

SIGHTS AT A GLANCE

Ahrida Synagogue @

Church of Constantine Lips @
Church of the Pammakaristos @
Church of the Pantocrator @

Mongols @
Church of St.Stephen of the
Bulgars @ .

Column of Marcian @

Fatih Mosque @

Greek Orthodox Patﬁs{chate (5]
Mosque of the Holy Maﬁkﬂ
Mosque of Selim T @

KEY

= Ferry boarding point

== Main road

— Other road

Ahrida

Synagogue @
Ahrida Sinagogu

Gevgili Sok, Balat. Map 1 C1. [
55T, 99A. [] by appointment. &

The name of Istanbul’s

oldest and most beautiful
synagogue is a corruption of
Ohrid, a town in Macedonia
from which its early congre-
gation came. It was founded
before the Muslim conquest of
the city in 1453 and, with a
capacity for up to 500 worship-
pers, has been in constant use
ever since. However, tourists
can only visit by prior arrange-
ment with a guided tour
company (see p228). The

synagogue’s painted walls and
ceilings, dating from the late
17th century, have been re-
stored to their Baroque glory.
Pride of place, however, goes
to the central Holy Ark, cov-
ered in rich tapestries, which
contains rare holy scrolls.
During an explosion of
fervour that swept the city’s
Jewish population in the 17th
century, the religious leader
Shabbetai Zevi (1629-76),
a self-proclaimed messiah,
started preaching at this syna-
gogue. He was banished from
the city and later converted to
Islam. However, a significant
number of Jews held that
Zevi’s conversion was a subter-
fuge and his followers, the
Sabbatians, exist to this day.

Church of
St Stephen of
the Bulgars @

Bulgar Kilisesi

Mrsel Pasa Cad 85, Balat.
Map 1 C1 55T, 99A. [ Balat.
[ 9am-5pm daily.

Astonishingly, this entire
church was cast in iron,

even the internal columns
and galleries. It was created
in Vienna in 1871, shipped all
the way to the Golden Horn
(see p89) and assembled on
its shore. The church was
needed for the Bulgarian
community who had broken
away from the authority of
the Greek Orthodox Patriar-
chate just up the hill. Today,
it is still used by this com-
munity, who keep the marble
tombs of the first Bulgarian
patriarchs permanently
decorated with flowers. The
church stands in a pretty little
park that is dotted with trees
and flowering shrubs and
which runs down to the

edge of the Golden Horn.

The Church of St Stephen of the
Bulgars, wholly made of iron

Church of the
Pammakaristos ©
Fethiye Camii

Fethiye Cad, Draman. Map 1 C2. [
90, 90B. [ prayer times only. I

This Byzantine church is

one of the hidden secrets

of Istanbul. Tt is rarely visited
despite the important role it
has played in the history of
the city and its breathtaking
series of mosaics. For over
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Byzantine fagade of the Church of the Pammakaristos

100 years after the Ottoman
conquest it housed the Greek
Orthodox Patriarchate, but
was converted into a mosque
in the late 16th century by
Murat 11T (see p32). He named
it the Mosque of Victory to
commemorate his conquests
of Georgia and Azerbaijan.

The charming exterior is
obviously Byzantine, with its
alternating stone and brick
courses and finely carved
marble details. The
main body of the
building is the
working mosque,
while the extra-
ordinary mosaics
are in a side chapel.
This now operates
as a museum and
officially you need to get
permission in advance from
Haghia Sophia (see pp72-5)
to see it. However, the
caretaker, if around, may
simply let you in.

Dating from the 14th cen-
tury, the great Byzantine
renaissance (see p25), the
mosaics show holy figures
isolated in a sea of gold, a
reflection of the heavens.
From the centre of the main
dome, Christ Pantocrator (“the
All-Powerful”), surrounded by
the Old Testament prophets,
stares solemnly down. In the
apse another figure of Christ,
seated on a jewel-encrusted
throne, gives his benediction.
On either side are portraits of
the Virgin Mary and John the
Baptist beseeching Christ.
They are overlooked by the
four archangels, while the
side apses are filled with
other saintly figures.

St Mary of the Mongols

Church of St Mary

of the Mongols @
Kanl: Kilise

Tevkii Cafer Mektebi Sok, Fener.
Map 1 C2. Tel (0212) 521 71 39.
[ 55T, 99A. [] by appointment.

Consecrated in the late

13th century, the Church

of St Mary of the Mongols is
the only Greek Orthodox
church in Istanbul
to have remained
continuously in
the hands of the
Greek community
since the Byzantine
era. Its immunity
from conversion
into a mosque was
decreed in an order signed by
Mehmet the Conqueror (see
p26). A copy of this is kept
by the church to this day.

The church gets its name
from the woman who founded
it, Maria Palaeologina, an
illegitimate Byzantine princess
who was married off to a
Mongol khan, Abagu, and
lived piously with him in
Persia for 15 years.
On her husband’s
assassination, she
returned to Con-
stantinople, built
this church and
lived out her days
in it as a nun.

A beautiful Byzan-
tine mosaic which
depicts Theotokos
Pammakaristos
(“the All-Joyous
Mother of God”)
is the church’s
greatest treasure.

Greek Orthodox

Patriarchate @
Ortodoks Patrikhanesi

Sadrazam Ali Pasa Cad 35, Fener.
Tel (0212) 525 54 16. 55T, 99A.
[ 9am-5pm daily. 4

This walled complex has
been the seat of the pat-
riarch of the Greek Orthodox
Church since the early 17th
century. Though nominally
head of the whole church, the
patriarch is now shepherd to
a diminishing flock in and
around Istanbul.

As you walk up the steps to
enter the Patriarchate through
a side door you will see that
the main door has been weld-
ed shut. This was done in
memory of Patriarch Gregory
V, who was hanged here for
treason in 1821 after encour-
aging the Greeks to overthrow
Ottoman rule at the start of the
Greek War of Independence
(1821-32). Antagonism be-
tween the Turkish and Greek
communities worsened with
the Greek occupation of parts
of Turkey in the 1920s (see
p31). There were anti-Greek
riots in 1955, and in the mid-
1960s many Greek residents
were expelled. Today the
clergy here is protected by a
metal detector at the entrance.

The Patriarchate centres on
the basilica-style Church of St
George, which dates back to
1720. Yet the church contains
much older relics and furni-
ture. The patriarch’s throne,
the high structure to the right
of the nave, is thought to be
Byzantine, while the pulpit on
the left is adorned with fine
Middle Eastern wooden inlay
and Orthodox icons.

The ornate, gilded interior of the Church of
St George in the Greek Orthodox Patriarchate
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iznik tile panel capping a window
in the Mosque of Selim |

Mosque of
SelimI @

Selim 1 Camii

Yavuz Selim Cad, Fener. Map 1 C2.
55T,90, 908, 99A. [] daily.

This much-admired mosque
is also known locally as
Yavuz Sultan Mosque: Yavuz,
“the Grim”, being the nick-
name the infamous Selim
acquired (see p26). 1t is idyllic
in a rather off-beat way, which
seems at odds with the bar-
baric reputation of the sultan.

The mosque, built in 1522,
sits alone on a hill beside a
vast sunken parking lot, once
the Byzantine Cistern of Aspar.
Sadly it is rarely visited and
has an air of neglect, yet the
mosque’s intimate courtyard
gives an insight into concept
of paradise in Islam. At the
centre of this lovely garden is
an octagonal, domed foun-
tain, surrounded by trees
filled with chirruping birds.

The windows set into the
porticoes in the courtyard are
capped by early Iznik tiles
(see p161). These were made
by the cuerda seca technique,
in which each colour is sepa-
rated during the firing process,
thus affording the patterns
greater definition.

Similar tiles lend decorative
effect to the simple prayer
hall, with its fine mosque
furniture (see pp38-9) and
original painted woodwork.

Mosque of the
Holy Mantle @

Hirka-i Serif Camii

Kegeciler Cad, Karagtimrik. Map 1 B3.
28, 87,90, 91. [] daily.

Built in the Empire Style in
1851, this mosque was de-
signed to house a cloak (hirka)
in the imperial collection
which once belonged to

and was worn by the
Prophet Moham-
med. This resides
in a sanctuary
directly behind
the mihrab. The
mosque’s mina-
rets are in the
form of Classical
columns, and its
balconies styled like
Corinthian capitals.
The interior of the
octagonal prayer
hall, meanwhile, has

a plethora of decorative
marble. Abdiil Mecit I, the
mosque’s patron, was jointly
responsible for the design of
its calligraphic frieze.

Church of

Constantine Lips @
Fenari Isa Camii

Vatan Cad, Fatih. Map 1 B4.
908. [] daily.

This 10th-century monastic
church, dedicated to the
Immaculate Mother of God,
was founded by Constantine
Lips Dungarios, a commander
of the Byzantine fleet. Follow-
ing the Byzantine reconquest

i - o
Byzantine brickwork exterior of
the Church of Constantine Lips

Knocker, Mosque
of the Holy Mantle in 1490, it adopted

of the city in 1261 (see p24),
Empress Theodora, wife of
Michael VIII Palaeologus (see
pp24-5), added a second
church. She also commissioned
a funerary chapel, where she
and her sons were buried.
This unusual history has
given the structure its present
rambling appearance. In an
idiosyncratic touch, there are
also four tiny chapels perched
on the roof around the
main dome. Another
highlight is the
building’s eastern
exterior wall. This
is decorated with
a tour de force of
brick friezes, of
the kind that are
a hallmark of
Byzantine churches
of this period. When
the church was con-
verted into a mosque

the name Fenari Isa,
or the Lamp of Jesus. This
was in honour of isa (Turkish
for Jesus), the leader of a Sufi
brotherhood (see p104) who
worshipped here at that time.
Inside the mosque, which is
still in use today, there are
some well-restored capitals
and decorated cornices.

Column of

Marcian @
Kiz Tast

Kiztasi Cad, Sarachane. Map 1 C4
(2 A3). [ 28,87, 90, 91.

Standing in a little square,
this Sth-century Byzantine
column was once surmounted
by a statue of the Emperor
Marcian (AD 450-57). On its
base you can still see a pair
of Nikes, Greek winged god-
desses of victory, holding an
inscribed medallion.
Interestingly, the column’s
Turkish name translates as the
Maiden’s Column, suggesting
that it was mistaken for the
famous Column of Venus.
According to legend, this
column was said to sway at
the passing of an impure
maid. It originally stood nearby
and is thought to have been
employed as one of the larg-
est columns in the Stleymaniye
Mosque (see pp90-91).
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Fatih Mosque ®

Fatih Camii

Macar Kardesler Cad, Fatih. Map 1 C3.
28, 87, 90, 91. [] daily.

A spacious outer courtyard
surrounds this vast Ba-
roque mosque, which is the
third major structure on this
site. The first was the Church
of the Holy Apostles (see p23),
the burial place of most of the
Byzantine emperors. When
Mehmet the Conqueror (see
p26) came to construct a
mosque here, the church’s
crumbling remains provided a
symbolic location. But the
first Fatih Mosque collapsed
in an earthquake in 1766, and
most of what you see today
was the work of Mehmet
Tahir Aga, the chief imperial
architect under Mustafa II1.
Many of the buildings he
constructed around the prayer
hall, including eight Koranic
colleges (medreses) and a
hospice, still stand.

The only parts of Mehmet
the Conqueror’s mosque to
have survived are the three
porticoes of the courtyard,
the ablutions fountain, the
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Chandelier hanging in the light and airy interior of Fatih Mosque

main gate into the prayer hall
and, inside, the mihrab. Two
exquisite forms of 15th-century
decoration can be seen over
the windows in the porticoes:
iznik tiles made using the
cuerda seca technique and
lunettes adorned with calli-
graphic marble inlay.

Inside the prayer hall, sten-
cilled patterns decorate the
domes, while the lower level
of the walls is revetted with
yet more tiles — although
these are inferior to those
used in the porticoes.

The tomb of Mehmet the
Conqueror stands behind the
prayer hall, near that of his
consort Gulbahar. His sarco-
phagus and turban are both
appropriately large. Tt is a
place of enormous gravity,
always busy with supplicants.

If you pay a visit to the
mosque on a Wednesday,
you will also see the weekly
market (see p214) which
turns the streets around it into
a circus of commerce. From
tables piled high with fruit
and vegetables to lorries
loaded with unspun wool,
this is a real spectacle, even
if you don’t buy anything.

Church of the

Pantocrator ®
Zeyrek Camii

ibadethane Sok, Kiiciikpazar.
Map 2 B2. 28, 618, 87.
[ prayer times daily.

Empress Irene, the wife of
John 1T Comnenus (see

p19), founded the Church of
the Pantocrator (“Christ the
Almighty”) during the 12th
century. This hulk of Byzan-
tine masonry was once the
centrepiece of one of the
city’s most important religious
foundations, the Monastery of
the Pantocrator. As well as a
monastery and church, the
complex included a hospice
for the elderly, an asylum and
a hospital. In this respect it
prefigured the social welfare
system provided by the great
imperial mosque complexes
that the Ottomans later built
in the city (see p38).

The church, now a mosque,
boasts a magnificent figurative
marble floor. Tt is composed
of three interlinked chapels.
The one with the highest
dome was built by Empress
Irene. Emperor John II added
another as a mortuary chapel
when Trene died in 1124,
and he later filled the area
between with a third apsed
chapel. The rest of the
Comnenus dynasty and many
of the Palaeologus imperial
family were interred within
these chapels.

Shortly after the Muslim
conquest in 1453 (see p26),
the building was converted
into a mosque. A caretaker
may let you in outside prayer
times in the afternoons.

et | . At ¥
Church of the Pantocrator, built by
Empress Irene in the 12th century
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Along the City Walls

Istanbul’s land walls are one of the most impressive
remains of the city’s Byzantine past. Pierced by
monumental gates and strengthened by towers, they
encompass the city centre in a great arc, stretching all
the way from Yedikule, on the Sea of Marmara, to
Ayvansaray, on the Golden Horn (see p89). The suburbs
that lie adjacent to the walls, particularly Edirnekapt
and Topkapi, are mainly working-class, residential dis-
tricts, interspersed with areas of wasteland which are
unsafe to explore alone. Dotted around these suburbs,
however, are important remnants of the city’s past, par-
ticularly the Byzantine period. The outstanding sight
here is the Church of St Saviour in Chora (see pp118-19),
with its beautifully preserved mosaics and frescoes.

Blachernae Palace @

00 Church of St John of Studius @
Church of St Saviour in Chora

0, S ppi1s-19 @

Kara Ahmet Pasa Mosque @

Mihrimah Mosque @

Palace of the Porphyrogenitus @

Shrine of Zoodochus Pege @

Theodosian Walls @

Yedikule Fortress @

0 kilometres 1
S —
0 miles /,«""'71"""\\
= s
7 KEY

@ Metro

[D] Dolmus terminus

= Motorway

== Main road

= Other road

— City walls

of Marmara to the
Golden Horn, the
walls are built in
layers of red tile
alternating with
limestone blocks.
Different sections
can be reached by
metro, tram, train
or bus; but to see
their whole length
you will need to

Theodosian Walls @

Teodos 1T Surlari

From Yedikule to Ayvansaray.
Map 1 A1. 2] Topkapi, Ulubat.

With its 11 fortified gates

and 192 towers, this

great chain of double walls
sealed Constantinople’s land-
ward side against invasion for

Carving of the Byzantine
eagle over Yedikule Gate

more than a thousand years.
Extending for a distance of
6.5 km (4 miles) from the Sea

take a taxi or dolmus (see
p238) along the main road
that runs outside them.

Silivrikapi, one of the gateways
through the Theodosian Walls

The walls were built between
AD 412-22, during the reign
of Theodosius II (408-50). In
447 an earthquake destroyed
54 of the towers but these
were immediately rebuilt,
under threat of the advancing
Attila the Hun. Subsequently
the walls resisted sieges by
Arabs, Bulgarians, Russians
and Turks. Even the deter-
mined armies of the Fourth
Crusade (see p24) only man-
aged to storm the ramparts
along the Golden Horn, while
the land walls stood firm.
Mehmet the Conqueror
finally breached the walls in
May 1453 (see p26). Successive
Ottoman sultans then kept
the walls in good repair until
the end of the 17th century.
Recently, large stretches of
the walls, particularly around
Belgratkap: (Belgrade Gate)
have been rebuilt. Byzantine
scholars have criticized the
restoration for insensitive use
of modern building materials,
but the new sections do give
you an idea of
how the walls
used to look.
Many, although
not all, of the
gateways are still
in good repair.
Mehmet the Con-
queror directed
his heaviest
cannon at the
St Romanus and
Charsius gates. Under the
Ottomans, the former became
known as Topkapt, the Gate
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Outer wall The peribolos, a Main or
road, was used for inner

The moat Engines to hurl
prevented an “Greek Fire”
enemy moving (see p19) were

artillery within
range of the
main wall.

placed on top
of the towers.

with those of the

a continuous line
of defence

of the Cannon (not to be con-
fused with Topkapi Palace,
see pp54-9). Unfortunately, a
section of walls close to this
gate was demolished in the
1950s to make way for a road,
Millet Caddesi. The Charsius
Gate (now called Edirnekap),
Silivrikapi, Yeni Mevlanakapt
and other original gates still
give access to the city. The
Yedikule Gate (which stands
beside the fortress of the same
name) has an imperial Byzan-
tine eagle (see p25) carved
above its main archway.

Yedikule Fortress @
Yedikule Miizesi

Yedikule Meydani Sok, Yedikule.
Tel (0212) 263 53 05. [ 31, 80, 93T.
[ 9am-4:30pm Thu-Tue.

Yedikule, the “Fortress of the
Seven Towers”, is built on
to the southern section of the
Theodosian Walls. Tts seven
towers are connected by thick
walls to make a five-sided
fortification. One of the sides,
with four towers spaced along
it, is formed by a stretch of
the land walls themselves.
The fortress as it is today
incorporates both Byzantine
and Ottoman features. The
two stout, square marble
towers built into the land
walls once flanked the Golden
Gate (now blocked up), the
triumphal entrance into medi-
eval Byzantium (see p22) built

inner wall to create

by Theodosius II. Imperial pro-

troop movements.

The towers of the
outer wall alternate

N

Cross-Section Of the Theodosian Walls

The double walls, towers and moat managed
to thwart attackers for almost 1,000 years.

cessions would enter the city
through this gate to mark the
investiture of a new emperor
or in celebration of a success-
ful military campaign. When
it was first built, the gate was
covered in gold plate and the
facade decorated with sculp-
tures, including a statue of a
winged Victory, four bronze
elephants and an image of
Emperor Theodosius himself.
In the 15th century, Mehmet
the Conqueror added the
three tall, round towers that
are not part of the land walls,
and the connecting curtain
walls, to complete the fortress.
After viewing the castle from
the outside, you can enter
through a doorway in the
northeastern wall. The tower
immediately to your left as
you enter is known as the
yazili kule, “the tower with
inscriptions”. This was used

as a prison for foreign envoys
and others who fell foul of
the sultan. These hapless in-
dividuals carved their names,
dates and other details on the
walls and some of these
inscriptions are still visible.
Executions were carried
out in Yedikule Castle, in the
northern of the two towers
flanking the Golden Gate.
Among those executed here
was the 17-year-old Osman
11 (see p33). In 1622 he was
dragged to Yedikule by his
own Janissaries (see p127),
after four years of misrule,
which included, it is alleged,
using his own pages as
targets for archery practice.
The walkway around the
ramparts is accessible via a
steep flight of stone steps. Tt
offers good views of the land
walls and nearby suburbs,
and also of the cemeteries.
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Church of St John
of Studius ©

Imrahor Camii

imam Asir Sok, Yedikule. % 80, 805,
80T. [Z] Yedikule.

Istanbul’s oldest surviving
church, St John of Studius,

is now a mere shell consisting
only of its outer walls. How-
ever, you can still get an idea
of the original beauty of what
was once part of an important
Byzantine institution.

The church was completed
in AD 463 by Studius, a Roman
patrician who served as consul
during the reign of Emperor
Marcian (450-57). Originally
connected to the most power-
ful monastery in the Byzantine
Empire, in the late 8th century
it was a spiritual and intellec-
tual centre under the rule of
Abbot Theodore, who was
buried in the church’s garden.
The abbot is venerated today
in the Greek Orthodox
Church as St Theodore.

Until its removal by the
soldiers of the Fourth Crusade
(see p24), the most sacred
relic housed in the church
was the head of St John the
Baptist. The emperor would
visit the church each year for
the Beheading of the Baptist
feast on 29 August.

In the 15th century the
church housed a university and
was converted into a mosque.
The building was abandoned
in 1894 when it was severely
damaged by an earthquake.

The church is a perfect
basilica, with a single apse at
the east end, preceded by a
narthex and a courtyard. It has
a magnificent entrance portal,
with carved Corinthian cap-
itals and a sculpted architrave
and cornice. Inside, it is empty,
apart from a colonnade
of six columns
of verdigris.

i

The Shrine of Zoodochus Pege,
founded on a sacred spring

Shrine of

Zoodochus Pege 0
Balikli Kilise

Seyit Nizam Cad 3, Silivrikapr.
Tel (0212) 582 30 81. I Seyitnizam.
93T. [ 8am—-4pm daily.

The Fountain of Zoodochus
Pege (“Life-Giving Spring”)
is built over Istanbul’s most
famous sacred spring, which
is believed to have mira-
culous powers. The fish
swimming in it are
supposed to have
arrived though a
miracle which

from 1833. The inner court-
yard is filled with tombs of
bishops and patriarchs of the
Greek Orthodox Church.

Kara Ahmet Pasa
Mosque ©

Kara Ahmet Pasa Camii

Undegirmeni Sok, Fatma Sultan.
[ Prayer times only. & Ulubat.
i) Topkapr. B 93T

One of the most worth-
while detours along the

city walls is the Kara Ahmet
Pasa Mosque, also known as
Gazi Ahmet Pasa. This lovely
building, with its peaceful
leafy courtyard and graceful
proportions, is one of Sinan’s
(see p91) lesser known
achievements. He built it in
1554 for Kara Ahmet Pasa, a
grand vizier of Stleyman the
Magnificent (see p26).

The courtyard is surrounded
by the cells of a medrese and
a dershane, or main classroom.
Attractive apple-green and

yellow Iznik tiles (see
p161) grace the porch,
while blue-and-
white ones are
% found on the
h cast wall of

occurred short- the prayer

ly before the hall. These
fall of Con- Tilework over medrese doorway at  tiles date
stantinople Kara Ahmet Pasa Mosque from the mid-

(see p26). They
are said to have leapt into the
spring from a monk’s frying
pan on hearing him declare
that a Turkish invasion of
Constantinople was as likely
as fish coming back to life.
The spring was probably
the site of an ancient sanc-
tuary of Artemis. Later, with
the arrival of Christianity, a
church was built around it,
which was dedicated to
the Virgin Mary. The
spring was popular
throughout the By-
zantine era, especially
on Ascension Day,
when the em-
peror would visit
it. The church was
destroyed and
rebuilt many times
over the years by
various Byzantine
emperors, but the
present one dates

16th century.

Of the three galleries, the
wooden ceiling under the west
one is elaborately painted in
red, blue, gold and black.

Outside the city walls, near-
by, is tiny Takkeci ibrahim
Aga Mosque, which dates
from 1592. Wooden-domed,
it has some particularly fine
Iznik tile panels.

Mihrimah
Mosque @

Mihrimah Camii

Sulukule Cad, Edirnekapi. Map 1 A2.
28, 87, 91. [] daily.

An imposing monument
located just inside the

city walls, the Mihrimah
Mosque complex was built
by Sinan between 1562 and
1565. Mihrimah, the daughter
of Siileyman the Magnificent
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(see p26), was then the
recently widowed wife of
Rustem Pasa, a grand vizier
who gave his name to the
tiled mosque near the Spice
Bazaar (see pp8S-9).

This mosque rests on a plat-
form, occupying the highest
point in the city. Its profile is
visible from far away on the
Bosphorus and also when
approaching Istanbul from
Edirne (see pp154-7).

The building is
square in shape,
with four strong
turrets at its
corners, and is
surmounted by
a 37-m (121-f0
high dome. The
single minaret is
tall and slender,
so much so that
it has twice been
destroyed by
earthquakes. On
the second occa-
sion, in 1894, the
minaret crashed
through the roof
of the mosque.
The 20th-
century stencilling on the
inside of the prayer hall was
added following this accident.

The interior is illuminated
by numerous windows, some
of which have stained glass.
The supporting arches of the
sultan’s loge (see p39) have
been skilfully painted to
resemble green-and-white
marble. The carved marble
minbar is also impressive.

Church of St
Saviour in Chora @

See pp118-19.

Palace of the
Porphyrogenitus @
Tekfur Sarayi

Stained-glass window in the
Mihrimah Mosque

Sisehane Cad, Edirnekapi. Map 1 B1.
@ 87, 90, 126.

Only glimpses of the former
grandeur of the Palace

of the Porphyrogenitus (Sover-
eign) during its years as an
imperial residence are dis-
cernible from the sketchy
remains. Its one extant hall,

now open to the elements,
does, however, have an
attractive three-storey facade
in typically Byzantine style.
This is decorated in red brick
and white marble, with arched
doorways at ground level and
two rows of windows looking
down on to a courtyard.

The palace dates from the
late Byzantine era. Its exact
age is debatable since the
technique of alter-
nating stone with
three courses of

brick is typical of
the 10th century,
whereas its geo-
metrical designs
were common in
the 14th century.
Tt was most likely
constructed as an
annexe of near-
by Blachernae
Palace. These two
palaces became
the principle resi-
dences of the
imperial sover-
eigns during the
last two centuries
before the fall of
Byzantium in 1453 (see p26).

During the reign of Ahmet
1T (1703-30, see p27) the last
remaining znik potters (see
p161) moved to the palace
and it became a centre for tile
production. However, by this
time their skills were in
decline and the tiles made
here never acquired the ex-
cellence of those created at
the height of production in
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Iznik. Yet, some strong colours,
including a rich red, were
used. Cezri Kasim Pasa Mosque
(see p121) in Eylp has some
fine examples of these tiles.

Blachernae

Palace ©
Anemas Zindanlari

ivaz Aga Cad, Ayvansaray.
55T, 99A.

As the city walls approach
the Golden Horn you

come to the scant remains
of Blachernae Palace. These
consist of a tower in the city
wall, known as the Prison of
Anemas, a terrace to the east
(the present site of the Ivaz
Efendi Mosque), and another
tower to the south of the
terrace, known as the Tower
of Isaac Angelus.

The origins of the palace
date as far back as AD 500,
when it was an occasional
residence for imperial visitors
to the shrine of Blachernae. It
was the great Comnenus em-
perors (see p21) who rebuilt
the structure in the 12th
century, transforming it into a
magnificent palace.

The remains of the marble
decoration and wall frescoes
in the Anemas tower indicate
that this was probably an
imperial residence. Although
you can walk around the site,
you will be unable to gain
access into the towers unless
the caretaker is there.

=3

Brick and marble facade in the Palace of the Porphyrogenitus
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Church of St Saviour in Chora @

Kariye Camii

Some of the very finest Byzantine
mosaics and frescoes can be found
Y in the Church of St Saviour in Chora.

4 Little is known of the early history
of the church, although its name
“in Chora”, which means “in the
T == country”, suggests that the church
originally stood in a rural setting. The
present church dates from the 11th
century. Between 1315-21 it was
remodelled and the mosaics and frescoes added by
Theodore Metochites, a theologian, philosopher and
one of the elite Byzantine officials of his day.

Scene from the
Life of the Virgin

a mortal on our behalf”. He
takes the Genealogy of Christ
as his starting point: the mo-
saics in the two domes of the
inner narthex portray 66 of
Christ’s forebears.

The crown of the southern
dome is occupied by a figure
of Christ. In the
dome’s flutes
are two rows
of his ancestors:
Adam to Jacob
ranged above
the 12 sons of
Jacob. In the
northern dome,
there is a central
image of the
Virgin and Child
with the kings
of the House
of David in the
upper row and
lesser ancestors
of Christ in the
lower row.

THE GENEALOGY
OF CHRIST

Theodore Metochites, who
restored St Saviour, wrote
that his mission was to relate
how “the Lord himself became

Mosaic showing Christ and his ancestors,
in the southern dome of the inner narthex

View of St Saviour in Chora

THE LIFE OF THE VIRGIN

All but one of the 20 mo-
saics in the inner narthex
depicting the Life of the Virgin
are well preserved. This cycle
is based mainly on the apo-
cryphal Gospel of St James,
written in the 2nd century,
which gives an account of the
Virgin’s life. This was popular
in the Middle Ages and was
a rich source of material for
ecclesiastical artists.

Among the events shown
are the first seven steps of the
Virgin, the Virgin entrusted to
Joseph and the Virgin receiv-
ing bread from an angel.

THE INFANCY OF CHRIST

Scenes from the Infancy of
Christ, based largely on

the New Testament, occupy
the semicircular panels of the
outer narthex. They begin on

GUIDE TO THE MOSAICS AND FRESCOES

Outer
narthex

R

P e

Entrance

i}

Inner
narthex

Parecclesion

Entrance to nave

Outer narthex looking east

KEY
[] The Genealogy of Christ

D))

)

[ Christ’s Ministry

[C] The Life of the Virgin [C] Other Mosaics

1 [

] The Infancy of Christ [ The Frescoes

Outer narthex looking west



ALONG THE

CITY WALLS

the north wall of the
outer narthex with
a scene of Joseph
being visited by an
angel in a dream.
Subsequent panels
include Mary and
Joseph’s Journey

to Bethlebem, their
Enrolment for
Taxation, the
Nativity of Christ
and, finally, Herod ordering
the Massacre of the Innocents.

CHRIST’S MINISTRY

While many of the mosaics
in this series are badly
damaged, some beautiful
panels remain. The
cycle occupies the
vaults of the seven
bays of the outer
narthex and some
of the south bay
of the inner nar-
thex. The most
striking mosaic

is the portrayal

of Christ’s
temptation in

the wilderness, in the second
bay of the outer narthex.

OTHER MOSAICS

There are three panels in
the nave of the church,

one of which, above the main
door from the inner narthex,
illustrates the Dormition of the
Virgin. This mosaic, protected
by a marble frame, is the best

Theodore Metochites presents
St Saviour in Chora to Christ

The Enrolment for Taxation

preserved in the church. The
Virgin is depicted laid out on
a bier, watched over by the
Apostles, with Christ seated
behind. Other devotional
panels in the two narthexes
include one, on the
east wall of the south
bay of the inner nar-
thex, of the Deésis,
depicting Christ
with the Virgin
Mary and un-
usually, without
St John. An-
other, in the
inner narthex
over the door
into the nave,
is of Theodore
Metochites him-
self, shown wearing a large
turban, and humbly present-
ing the restored church as an
offering to Christ.

THE FRESCOES

The frescoes in the parec-
clesion are thought to

have been painted just after
the mosaics were completed,
probably in around 1320. The

VISITORS’ CHECKLIST

Kariye Camii Sok, Edirnekapi.

Map 1B1. Tel (0212) 631 92 41.
28, 86 or 90 then 5 minutes’
walk. [ 9:15am—4pm Thu-Tue.

7

most engaging of the frescoes
— which reflect the purpose
of the parecclesion as a place
of burial - is the Anastasis,

in the semidome above the
apse. In it, the central figure
of Christ, the vanquisher of
death, is shown dragging
Adam and Eve out of their
tombs. Under Christ’s feet are
the gates of hell, while Satan
lies before him. The fresco
in the vault overhead depicts
The Last Judgment, with the
souls of the saved on the right
and those of the damned to
the left.

Figure of Christ from the Anastasis
fresco in the parecclesion

Inner narthex looking west

Parecclesion and outer narthex looking north
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Eyup

As the burial place of Eytip Ensari, the standard

bearer of the Prophet Mohammed, the village of

Eylp is a place of pilgrimage for Muslims from all over
the world. Its sacrosanct status has kept it a peaceful
place of contemplation, far removed from the squalid
effects of industrialization elsewhere on the Golden
Horn (see p89). The wealthy elite established mosques
and street fountains in the village but, above all, they
chose Eytip as a place of burial. Their grand mauso-
leums line the streets surrounding Eytip Sultan Mosque,
while the cypress groves in the hills above the village
are filled with the gravestones of ordinary people.

7 7 —

SIGHTS AT A GLANCE

/ /A /ég\\Complex of Valide Sultan
/ u\// Mihrisah'@

7/ Eyiip Syltan Mosque ©
- Pierre Toti Café @
Tomb “bf Sokollu

Mehmet Pasa @
Zal Mahgnut Paga Mosque @
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woman and wrote an
autobiographical novel,
Aziyade, about their affair.
The café is prettily decked
out with 19th-century furn-
iture and the waiters wear
period clothing.

The path up to the café
passes by a picturesque array
of tombstones, most of which
date from the Ottoman era.
Just before the café on the
right, a few tall, uninscribed
tombstones mark the graves
of executioners.

Pierre Loti Café @
Piyer Loti Kahvesi

GUmissuyu Karyagdi Sok 5, Eyup.
Tel (0212) 581 26 96. E 39, 55T,
99A. [ 8:30am-midnight daily.

This famous café stands

at the top of the hill in
Eytip Cemetery, about 20
minutes’ walk or short
funicular ride up Karyagd:
Sokag: from Eylip Mosque,
from where it commands
sweeping views down
over the Golden

Horn. Tt is named after
the French novelist
and Turkophile Pierre
Loti, who frequented a
café in Eyiip — claimed
to be this one — during
his stay here in 1876.
Loti (see p42), a
French naval officer,
fell in love with

a married Turkish

Period interior of the Pierre Loti Café

Gateway to the Baroque Complex
of Valide Sultan Mihrisah

Complex of Valide
Sultan Mihrisah @

Mihrisah Valide Sultan
Kdlliyesi

Seyit Resat Cad. [ 39, 55T 99A.
[ 9am-6pm Tue-Sun.

Most of the northern side

of the street leading from
Eytip Mosque’s northern gate
is occupied by the largest
Baroque kiilliye (see p38) in
Istanbul, although unusually
it is not centred on a mosque.
Built for Mihrisah, mother of
Selim III (see p33), the kiilliye
was completed in 1791.

The complex includes the
ornate marble tomb of Mihrigsah
and a soup kitchen, which is
still in use today. There is also
a beautiful grilled fountain
(sebil), from which an attend-
ant once served water and
refreshing drinks of sweet
sherbet to passers-by.

Eyup Sultan
Mosque ©
Eytip Sultan Camii

Cami-i Kebir Sok. Tel (0212) 564
73 68. [ 39, 55T, 99A. [] daily.

Mehmet the Conqueror
built the original mosque
on this site in 1458, five years
after his conquest of Istanbul
(see p26), in honour of Eylp
Ensari. That building fell into
ruins, probably as a result of
an earthquake, and the present
mosque was completed in
1800, by Selim TIT (see p33).
The mosque’s delightful
inner courtyard is a garden in
which two huge plane trees
grow on a platform. This plat-
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form was the setting for the
Girding of the Sword of
Osman, part of a sultan’s in-
auguration from the days of
Mehmet the Conqueror.

The mosque itself is pre-
dominantly covered in gleam-
ing white marble.

Opposite the mosque is the
tomb of Eyiip Ensari himself,
believed to have been killed
during the first Arab siege of
Constantinople in the 7th
century (see p21). The tomb
dates from the same period
as the mosque and most of its
decoration is in the Ottoman
Baroque style. Both the outer
wall of the tomb facing the
mosque, and most of its
interior, have an impressive
covering of tiles, some of
them from Iznik (see p160).

Visitors at the tomb of Eyiip Ensari,
Mohammed’s standard bearer

Tomb of Sokollu
Mehmet Pasa ©

Sokollu Mehmet Pasa
Tiirbesi

Cami-i Kebir Sok. [™ 39, 55T, 99A.
[ 9:30am—4:30pm Tue-Sun.

Grand vizier (see p29)

Sokollu Mehmet Pasa
commissioned his tomb around
1574, five years before he was
assassinated by a madman in
Topkapt Palace (see pp54-7).
Of Balkan royal blood, he
started his career as falconer
royal and steadily climbed the
social order until he became
grand vizier to Siileyman the
Magnificent (see p26) in 1565.
He held this position through
the reign of Selim II (see p27)
and into that of Murat III.

The architect Sinan (see p91)

Zal Mahmut Pasa Mosque, as viewed from its tomb garden

built this elegantly propor- first-born heir of Stileyman
tioned octagonal tomb. It is the Magnificent.

notable for its stained glass, Probably erected some time
some of which is original. in the 1560s, the mosque is

A roofed colonnade connects | notable for the lovely floral
the tomb to what was formerly | tiles around its mihrab, and

a Koranic school. for its carved marble minbar
and miiezzin mabhfili (see
p38). Proceeding down some
Zal Mahmut Pa§a stone steps to the north of the

mosque you will come to a
Mosque o garden. In it stands the large
Zal Mahmut Pasa Camii tomb of Zal Mahmut Pasa and
his wife, said to have both
Zal Pasa Cad. [ 39, 55T 99A. died on the same day.
[ daiy. On the same street, Cezri
Kasim Pasa Mosque (1515) is
Heading south from the a small mosque with a pretty
centre of Eytip, it is a short portal and a tiled mihrab. Most
walk to Zal Mahmut Pasa of the tiles were produced at
Mosque. The complex was the Palace of the Porphyro-
built by Sinan for the man genitus (see p117) in the first

who assassinated Mustafa, the | half of the 18th century.

OTTOMAN GRAVESTONES

The Ottoman graveyard was a garden
of the dead, where the living happily
strolled without morbid inhibitions. The
gravestones within it were often lavishly
symbolic: from their decoration you can
tell the sex, occupation, rank and even
the number of children of the deceased.

As the turban was banned in 1829 (see Women's graves
p30), only the fez appears on men’s have a flower for
gravestones erected after that date. each child.

—r———
e e T

A turban’s size This hat indicates A fez was worn by
reflected a gentle- the grave of a mem- a pasa, or public

man’s status. ber of a Sufi order. servant (see p28).
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Beyond Taksim

The area to the north of Taksim Square (see p107)
became fashionable in the 19th century, when

sultans built palaces along the Bosphorus and in the
wooded hills above it. The extravagant Dolmabahce
Palace, built by Abdil Mecit I (see p30), started the
trend. High-ranking court officials soon followed, and

the area achieved a glamour

that it retains to this day.

Two other sights worth seeing are on the northern
shore of the Golden Horn. Aynali Kavak Palace is the
last surviving trace of a grand palace built by Ahmet IIT
(see p27), while the Rahmi Ko¢ Museum, in nearby
Haskoy, is an interesting industrial museum. Haskoy
became a royal park in the 15th century and later
supported fruit orchards, before dockyards brought
industrialization to the area in the 19th century.

Ortakoy’s fashionable waterfront
square and ferry landing

ke

é; Central Istanbul
Ferry boarding point

fﬁ Cable car

|§| Dolmus terminus

Motorway

Main road

= Other road

.
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Aynali Kavak Palacgﬁ
Ciragan Palace Q/
Dolmabahce I\//I.ogqlle o
Dolmabahee Palace

12850

‘Military Museum @

Museum of Fine Arts @

Naval Museum @

Ortakdy @ /
Pavilion of thejr,ki/nden
Tree @
Rahmi Ko¢ Museum @
Yzldz# Park
pp124-5

et . 1
Cobbled Ortakdy side street lined
with cafés and shops

Ortakoy @

Map 9 F3. [ 25E, 40.

Crouched at the foot of
Bosphorus Bridge (see
p138), the suburb of Ortakoy
has retained a village feel. Life
centres on Iskele Meydan, the
quayside square, which was
until recently busy with fisher-
men unloading the day’s catch.
Nowadays, though, Ortakoy

is better known for its lively
Sunday market (see p215),
which crowds out the square
and surrounding streets, and
its shops selling the wares of
local artisans. It is also the

location for a thriving bar and
café scene, which in the sum-
mer especially is the hub of
Istanbul’s nightlife (see p221).
Mecidiye Mosque, Ortakoy’s
most impressive landmark, is
located on the waterfront. It
was built in 1855 by Nikogos
Balyan, who was responsible
for Dolmabahce Palace (see
pp128-9). A simple structure,
it has grace and originality,
with window-filled tympanum
arches and corner turrets.
Ortakoy also has a Greek
Orthodox church, Haghios
Phocas, and a synagogue, Etz
Ahayim. The origins of both
date from the Byzantine era.
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Ciragan Palace @
Ciragan Saray1

Ciragan Cad 32, Besiktas. Map 9 D3
Tel (0212) 258 33 77. 25E, 40.
Wwww.ciragan-palace.com

Sultan Abdiil Mecit I started
work on Ciragan Palace in
1864, but it was not com-
pleted until 1871, during the
reign of Abdul Aziz (see p30).
It replaced an earlier wooden
palace where torch-lit proces-
sions were held during the
Tulip Period (see p27).

The palace was designed
by Nikogos Balyan. At the
sultan’s request he added
Arabic touches from sketches
of Moorish buildings such as
the Alhambra at Granada in
Spain. Externally this is evi-
denced in the honeycomb
capitals over its windows. The
sultan entered Ciragan Palace
directly from the Bosphorus,
through the ornate ceremonial
gates along its shoreline.

Crragan Palace had a sad,
short history as an imperial
residence. Abdiil Aziz died
here in 1876, supposedly
committing suicide — although
his friends believed he had
been murdered. His successor,
Murat V (see p33), was impris-
oned in the palace for a year
after a brief reign of only three
months. He died in the Malta
Pavilion (see p125) 27 years
later, still a prisoner. The pal-
ace was eventually destroyed
by fire in 1910. It remained a

Baroque-style staircase at the Pavilion of the Linden Tree

burnt out shell for many
years, before being restored
in 1990 as the Ciragan Palace
Kempinski (see p7190).

Yildiz Park ©

See pp124-5.

Pavilion of the

LindenTree @
Thlamur Kasr1

Ihlamur Tesvikiye Yolu, Besiktas.
Map 8 B2. Tel (0212) 259 50 86.
26 (from Eminénd). [ 9:30am-
4pm Tue-Wed & Fri-Sun. 173 4

This one-time residence of
sultans, dating from the
early 19th century, stands in
beautiful, leafy gardens
which are planted with
magnolias and camel-
lias, and decorated
with ornamental foun-
tains. Today, the gar-
dens are a somewhat
incongruous reminder
of the city’s Ottoman
past, being situated
in the midst of the
modern suburbs of
Tesvikiye and Ihlamur.
As the pavilion’s
name suggests, the
area was once a grove
of lime (linden) trees,
and the gardens are all
that remain of what
was previously a vast
wooded park. This
park was a favourite

Ciragan Palace, notable for the Moorish-

i

style embellish above its

retreat and hunting

ground of the Ottoman

sultans. In the early 19th
century, Abdiil Mecit I (see
p30) often came here and
stayed in the original pavilion
on this site. That building was
50 unassuming that the French
poet Alphonse de Lamartine
(1790-1869) expressed great
surprise that a sultan should
have entertained him in a
humble cottage, with a gar-
dener working in plain view
through the windows.

In 1857 Abdiil Mecit chose
Nikogos Balyan, who had by
then finished Dolmabahce
Palace with his father, to de-
sign another residence here.
Two separate pavilions were
built, the grander of which is
the Ceremonial Pavilion, or
Mabeyn Koskd, used by the
sultan and his guests. The
Entourage Pavilion, or Maiyet
Koskd, a short distance away,
was reserved for the sultan’s
retinue, including the women
of the harem. Both buildings
are open to visitors — the
Entourage Pavilion is currently
a café and bookshop.

The pavilions are construc-
ted mainly of sandstone and
marble. Their facades are in
the Baroque style, with double
stairways, many decorative
embellishments and hardly a
single straight line to be seen.
The ornate interiors of the
buildings reflect 19th-century
Ottoman taste, incorporating
a mixture of European styles.
With their mirrors, lavish fur-
nishings and gilded details,
they are similar to but less
ostentatious than those of
Dolmabahce Palace.
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Yildiz Park @

Yildiz Parki

4= Yildiz Park was originally laid out as the

v~ garden of the first Ciragan Palace (see

Ay p123). 1t later formed the grounds of
“f‘”‘ ¥ Yildiz Palace, an assortment of buildings

A from different eras now enclosed behind a
= wall and entered separately from Thlamur-
F . Yildiz Caddesi. Further pavilions dot Yildiz
Fountain, vidiz  Park, which, with its many ancient trees
Palace Theatre and exotic shrubs, is a favourite spot for
family picnics. The whole park is situated
on a steep hill and, as it is a fairly long climb, you may
prefer to take a taxi up to the Sale Pavilion and
walk back down past the other sights.

Yildiz Palace

The palace is a collection of
pavilions and villas built in
the 19th and 20th centuries.
Many of them are the work
of the eccentric Sultan Abdiil
Hamit 1T (1876-1909, see p33),
who made it his principal
residence as he feared a sea-
borne attack on Dolmabahg¢e
Palace (see pp128-9).

The main building in the
entrance courtyard is the
State Apartments (Blylk
Mabeyn), dating from the
reign of Sultan Selim III
(1789-1807, see p33), but
not presently open to the
public. Around the corner,
the City Museum (Sehir
Miizesi) has a display of
Yildiz porcelain. The Italianate
building opposite it is the
former armoury, or Silahhane.
Next door to the City Museum
is the Yildiz Palace Museum,
housed in what was once the
Marangozhane, Abdiil Hamit’s
carpentry workshop. This has
a changing collection of art
and objects from the palace.

A monumental arch leads
from the first courtyard to the
harem section of the palace.

Bridge over the lake in the
grounds of Yildiz Palace

Park
entrance

Palace
entrance

J”
}r l{uj@um

(hqu quﬁzw T

Tl

entrance

The Italianate Silahhane, the former armoury of Yildiz Palace
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On the left beside the
arch is a pretty green-
house, the Limonluk
Serast (Lemon House).

Further on, Yildiz
Palace Theatre is now
a museum. It was
completed in 1889 by
Abdiil Hamit, who en-
couraged all forms of
Western art. The decor
of the theatre’s restored
interior is mainly blue
and gold. The stars on
the domed ceiling are
a reference to the name
of the palace: yildiz
means “star” in Turkish.

Abdiil Hamit sat alone
in a box over the en-
trance. Since no one
was allowed to sit with
his back to the sultan,
the stalls were not used.
Backstage, the former dressing
rooms are given over to dis-
plays on the theatre, including
costumes and playbills.

The lake in the palace
grounds is shaped like Abdiil
Hamit's tugra (see p95). A
menagerie was kept on the
islands in the lake where 30
keepers tended tigers, lions,

giraffes and zebras.

Imperial Porcelain
Legcton). A

0 metres 250
——
0 yards 250
KEY
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== Park wall/Palace wall

P Parking

Salon in the lavish Sale Pavilion

Sale Pavilion

The single most impressive
building in the park, the Sale
Pavilion (Sale Koskii) was
among those erected by Abdiil
Hamit II. Although its facade
appears as a whole, it was in
fact built in three stages.

The first, left-hand section
of the buildling was designed
to resemble a Swiss chalet. Tt
probably dates from the 1870s.
Winston Churchill, Charles de
Gaulle and Nicolae Ceausescu
have all stayed in its rooms.

The second section was
added in 1889, to accommo-
date Kaiser Wilhelm II on the
first ever state visit of a foreign

monarch to the Ottoman
capital. The 14-room
suite includes a dining
room known as the
Mother-of-Pearl Salon
(Sedefli Salon) after
the delicate inlay
that covers almost all
of its surfaces.
The third section was also
built for a visit by Kaiser
Wilhelm I, this time in 1898.
Tts reception chamber is the
grandest room in the whole
pavilion. The vast silk Hereke
carpet (see p218) covering its
floor was painstakingly hand-
knotted by 60 weavers.

Malta and Cadir Pavilions
These two lovely pavilions
were built in the reign of
Abdiil Aziz (1861-76, see p30).
Both formerly served as pri-
sons but are now open as
cafés. Malta Pavilion, also a

VISITORS" CHECKLIST

Ciragan Cad, Besiktas. Map 9 D2.
5 25E, 40. [] daily. Yildiz Palace
Tel (0212) 258 33 77. [ 56.

[ 9:30am~4pm Tue-Sun. I3
Sale Pavilion Tel (0212) 259 45
70. [] 9:30am-5pm. [@] Mon,
Thur & first day of relig hols.

IZ] Malta & Cadir Pavilions
Tel (0212) 258 94 53. [ ] 9am-
9pm daily. (Malta Pavilion until
11pm). Imperial Porcelain
Factory Tel (0212) 260 23 70.
[) Mon- Fri 9am-midday,
1-4:30pm.

restaurant, has a superb view
and on Sunday is a haunt for
locals wanting to relax and
read the newspapers.

Midhat Pasa, reformist and
architect of the constitution,
was among those imprisoned
in Cadir Pavilion, for instigating
the murder of Abdul Aziz.
Meanwhile, Murat V and his
mother were locked away in
Malta Pavilion for 27 years
after a brief incarceration in
Ciragan Palace (see p123).

Fagade of Cadir Pavilion, which has
now been refurbished as a café

Imperial Porcelain Factory

In 1895 this factory opened to
feed the demand of the upper
classes for European-style
ceramics to decorate their
homes. The unusual building
was designed to look like a
stylized European medieval
castle, complete with turrets
and portcullis windows.

The original sugar bowls,
vases and plates produced here
depict idealized scenes of the
Bosphorus and other local
beauty spots; they can be seen
in museums and palaces all
over Istanbul. The factory is
normally not open to visitors
but the mass-produced china
of today is on sale in its shop.
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Naval Museum @
Deniz Miizesi

Hayrettin Pasa iskelesi Sok, Begiktas.
Map 8 B4. Tel (0212) 327 43 45.
25E, 28, 40, 56. [ ] 9am-12:30pm,
1:30-5:30pm Wed-Sun. 7 [

This museum, located next to
the ferry landing in Besiktas,
is undergoing major
renovations and will be
closed until 2008. One
building, the Caiques Gallery,
is devoted to huge imperial
rowing boats, or caiques
(some of them manned by
replica oarsmen), dating from
the 17th century. The largest
of these, at 40 m (130 ft), was
used by Mehmet IV and pow-
ered by 144 oars-
7 men. The
rowing boats
n used by
£ Atatiirk (see
130) look
tiny in
comparison:
it is remarkable
to think that he

Rowing boat entertained )
used by heads of state in
Atatiirk them. The

exhibits in the
neighbouring main museum
include oil paintings of
various military scenes, ship
figureheads, naval uniforms
and objects from Atatlirk’s
yacht, the Savarona.

Museum of
Fine Arts @

Resim ve Heykel Muizesi

Hayrettin Pasa iskelesi Sok, Begiktas.
Map 8 B4. Tel (0212) 261 42 98.
25E, 28, 40, 56. ] 10am-
4:30pm Wed-Sat.

Formerly the Crown Prince
Pavilion, this building, ad-
jacent to Dolmabahge Palace
(see pp128-9),houses a fine
collection of 19th- and 20th-
century paintings and sculp-
ture. In the 19th century, the
westernization of the Ottoman
Empire (see pp30-31) led
artists such as Osman Hamdi
Bey (1842-1910, see p62) to
experiment with Western-
style painting. While their
styles rely heavily on Euro-
pean art forms, the subject
matter of their work gives a

Woman with Mimosas by Osman
Hamdi Bey, Museum of Fine Arts

glimpse into the oriental
history of the city. Look out
for Woman with Mimosas,
Portrait of a Young Girl and
Man with a Yellow Robe, all
by Osman Hamdi Bey, Sultan
Abmet Mosque by Ahmet Ziya
Akbulut (1869-1938) and
Astk, a statue of a poet by
Isa Behzat (1867-1944).

Dolmabahce
Palace @

See pp128-9.

Dolmabahce
Mosque ©
Dolmabahge Camii

Meclis-i Mebusan Cad, Kabatas.
Map 8 A5.5F] Kabatas. [ 25E, 40.

[ daily

Completed at the same time
as Dolmabahce Palace, in
1853, the mosque standing
beside it was also built by the
wealthy Balyan family. Its

[ 41

slim minarets were constructed
in the form of Corinthian
columns, while great arching
windows lighten the interior.
Inside, the decoration includes
fake marbling and trompe
l'oeil, two fashionable effects
in the mid-19th century.

Military Museum @

Askeri Miizesi

Vali Konagi Cad, Harbiye. Map 7 F1.
Tel (0212) 233 27 20. [ 46H. &
Osmanbey. [} 9am-5pm Wed-Sun.
Mehter Band performances 3—
4pm Wed-Sun. 173 I3

One of Istanbul’s most
impressive museums, the
Military Museum traces the
history of the country’s con-
flicts from the conquest of
Constantinople in 1453 (see
p26) through to modern war-
fare. The building used to be
the military academy where
Atattirk studied from 1899—
1905. His classroom has been
preserved as it was then.

The museum is also the
main location for performances
by the Mehter Band, which
was first formed in the 14th-
century during the reign of
Osman T (see p25). From then
until the 19th century, the
band’s members were Janis-
saries, who would accompany
the sultan into battle and per-
form songs about Ottoman
hero-ancestors and battle
victories. The band had much
influence in Europe, and is
thought to have inspired both
Mozart and Beethoven.

Some of the most striking
weapons on display on the
ground floor are the curved

Dolmabahge Mosque, a landmark on the Bosphorus shoreline



BEYOND TAKSIiM

127

Cembiyes — Ottoman curved daggers - on display in the Military Museum

daggers (cembiyes) carried
at the waist by foot soldiers
in the 15th century. These
are ornamented with plant,
flower and geometric motifs
in relief and silver filigree.
Other exhibits include 17th-
century copper head armour
for horses and Ottoman shields
made from cane and willow
covered in silk thread.

A moving portrayal of trench
warfare, commissioned in
1995, is included in the section
concerned with the ANZAC
landings of 1915 at Chunuk
Bair on the Gallipoli penin-
sula (see p30).

Upstairs, the most spectacu-
lar of all the exhibits are the
tents used by sultans on their
campaigns. They are made of
silk and wool with embroi-
dered decoration.

Not far from the museum,
from the station on Taskisla
Caddesi, you can take the
cable car across Macka Park
to Abdi Ipekci Caddesi in
Tesvikiye. Also, some of the
city’s best designer clothes,
jewellery, furniture and art
shops are to be found in this
area (see pp212-13).

Aynali Kavak

Palace @
Aynali Kavak Kasri

Kasimpasa Cad, Haskoy. Map 6 A3.
Tel (0212) 250 40 94. [ 47, 54.
[ 9am-5pm Tue, Wed, Fri-Sun. I3

Aynali Kavak palace is the
last vestige of a large
Ottoman palace complex on
the once lovely Golden Horn
(see p89). Originally it stood
in extensive gardens covering
an area of 7,000 sq m (75,300
sq f). Inscriptions dated 1791
can be found all over the
palace, but it is thought to
have been built earlier by
Ahmet III during the Tulip
Period (see p27), because of
traces around the building of
an older style of architecture.
The palace is built on a
hill and as a result has two
storeys on the southwest
side and a single storey to
the northeast. Tt retains some
beautiful Ottoman features.
These include the upper win-
dows on the southwest facade,
which are decorated with
stained glass set in curvilinear
stucco tracery. Particularly

JANISSARIES

to serve as the sultan’s elite
fighting force. Its ranks were
filled by devsirme, the levy

The Janissary (New Army) corps
was formed in the 14th century

of Christian youths brought to
Istanbul to serve the sultan. A
highly professional and strong
army, it was instrumental in the
early expansion of the Ottoman
Empire and, as well as a fighting
force, it acted as the sultan’s per-
sonal guard. However, discipline
eventually began to weaken,
and by 1800 the Janissaries had
become a destabilizing element
in society. They mutinied and overthrew many sultans until
their final demise under Mahmut II in 1826 (see p30).

Janissaries depicted in a
16th-century miniature

striking is the composition
room, which Sultan Selim IIT
(1789-1807) is thought to
have used for writing music.
The audience chamber is
adorned with an inscription in
gold on blue which describes
the activities of Selim I1I while
he stayed at the palace.
Restoration of Aynali Kavak
in 1984 has enabled it to be
opened to the public. There
is also a superb exhibition of
archaic Turkish musical instru-
ments permanently on show,
in honour of Selim TIT, who
contributed a great deal to
Turkish classical music.

Audience chamber of Aynali Kavak
Palace on the Golden Horn

Rahmi Koc¢

Museum @
Rahmi Ko¢ Miizesi

Haskdy Cad, Haskoy. Tel (0212)
256 71 53. [ 47. [] 10am-5pm
Tue-Sun. I

Situated in Haskoy, this old
19th-century factory, which
once produced anchors and
chains, now houses an
eclectic collection named after
its industrialist founder, Rahmi
Kog¢. The building itself, with
its four small domes, vaulted
passageways and original
wooden fittings is one of the
museum’s highlights.

The theme of the industrial
age loosely connects exhibi-
tions on aviation, transport,
steam engines and scientific
instruments. Exhibits range
from mechanical toys and
scale models of machinery
to an entire recreated ship’s
bridge. Two fine restaurants
are located on the premises.
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Dolmabahce Palace @
Dolmabahce Saray1

Sultan Abdiit Mectt (see p33) built

*, Dolmabahce Palace in 1856. As its

'k designers he employed Karabet Balyan
and his son Nikogos, members of the
great family of Armenian architects who

lined the Bosphorus (see pp137-49) with

many of their creations in the 19th century.
The extravagant opulence of the Dolma-

— ~ bahge belies the fact that it was built when
sevresvaseat  the Ottoman Empire was in decline.
thefootof the  The sultan financed his great palace
Crystal Staircase  with loans from foreign banks. The

palace can only be visited on a guided

tour, of which two are on offer. The best tour takes % Crystal Staircase
you through the Selamlik (or Mabeyn-i Himayun), the  The apparent fragility of this
part of the palace that was reserved for men and which  glass staircase stunned observ-
contains the state rooms and the enormous Ceremo-  ers when it was built. In the
nial Hall. The other tour goes through the Harem, shape of a double horseshoe,
the living quarters of the sultan and his entourage. it is made from Baccarat
If you only want to go on one tour, visit the Selamlik.  crystal and brass, and has

a polished mahbogany rail.

The Siifera Salon, where ambassa-
dors waited for an audience with the
sultan, is one of the most luxurious
rooms in the palace.

Entrance

Imperial Gate
Once used only by the sultan and
bis ministers, this gate is now the
main entrance to the palace. The
Mebter, or Janissary, Band
(see pp126-7) performs

in front of the gate every

Tuesday afternoon through-
out the summer.

Swan Fountain e
This fountain stands in %
the Imperial Garden. The ™

Selamhk
origingl 16th-century garden bere
was created from recovered land, The Red Room wis
hence the palace's name, Dolma- used by the sultan to

babge, meaning “Filled-in Garden”. receive ambassadors.
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* Ceremonial Hall
This magnificent domed
ball was designed to
hold 2,500 people. Its
| chandelier, reputedly
the beaviest in the
world, was bought

in England.

The Ziilvecheyn,
or Panorama
Room

Atatiirk’s Bedroom

Main shore
gate

ultan Abdiil Aziz's bedroom
1 to accommodate a huge bed
bilt especially for the 150-kg ’

(23-stone) amateur wrestler, crystal staircase, are

stopped at this time.

% Main Bathroom

The walls of this bathroom
are revetted in finest
Egyptian alabaster, while
the taps are solid silver.

| The brass-framed bath-
room windows afford
Sstunning views across

the Bosphorus.

Blue Salon

On religious feast days the
sultan’s mother would
receive his wives and
[favourites in
the Harem’s

Reception
room of the
sultan’s mother

Alalirk (see pp30-31)
died in this room at
9:05am on 10 Novem-
ber 1938. All the clocks
in the palace, such as
this one near the

VISITORS" CHECKLIST

Dolmabahce Cad, Besiktas.
Map 8 B4. Tel (0212) 236 90 00.
25E, 40. ] 9am-4pm

(last adm) Tue, Wed & Fri-Sun
(Oct-Feb: last adm 3pm).

the first day of religious

festivals. 72 14 B 1

principal

The Rose-
coloured

STAR FEATURES
% Crystal Staircase

* Ceremonial Hall

* Main Bathroom

salon was the
assembly room
of the Harem.
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The Asian Side

The Asian side of Istanbul comprises the two
major suburbs of Uskiidar and Kadikdy, which
date from the 7th century BC (see p19). Uskiidar
(once known as Scutari after the 12th-century
Scutarion Palace which was located opposite
Leander’s Tower) was the starting point of Byzan-
tine trade routes through Asia. It retained its
importance in the Ottoman period and today is
renowned for its many classical mosques.

A number of residential districts radiate from
Uskiidar and Kadikdy. Moda is a pleasant leafy
suburb famous for its ice cream, while there is a

lighthouse and an attractive park at Fenerbahce.
From there it is a short walk up to Bagdat Caddesi, one
of Istanbul’s best-known shopping streets (see p204).

SIGHTS AT A GLANCE

Atik Valide Mrésque (5]

Big Pine Hill ®

Haydatpasa Station @
_iskele Mosque @

Karaca Ahmet Cemetery @

Leander’s Tower @
—Selimiye Barracks @

Semsi Pasa Mosque @

Tiled Mos(\_]ue 0

Yeni Valide\ Mosque @

0 kilometres | 1
E——

0 miles /,“ 1

Key

E Ferry boarding point

E Railway station

D] Dolmus terminus

= Motorway
== Main road
— Other road
Leander’s Tower @ hghthouse, a customs control
point and a maritime toll
Kiz Kulesi gate. It is now a restaurant

Uskidar. Map 10 A3. Tel (0216)
342 47 47. [ Uskdidar.
www._kizkulesi.com.tr

Located offshore from
Uskiidar, the tiny, white
Leander’s Tower is a well-
known Bosphorus landmark.
The islet on which this 18th-
century tower stands was the
site of a 12th-century Byzan-
tine fortress built by Manuel 1
Comnenus. The tower has
served as a quarantine centre
during a cholera outbreak, a

and nightclub (see p206).

The tower is known in Turk-
ish as the “Maiden’s Tower”
after a legendary princess, said
to have been confined here
after a prophet foretold that
she would die from a snake-
bite. The snake duly appeared
from a basket of figs and
struck the fatal blow. The
English name of the tower
derives from the Greek myth
of Leander, who swam the
Hellespont (the modern-day
Dardanelles, see p170) to see
his lover Hero.

Leander’s Tower, on its own small island

Semsi Pasa
Mosque ©

Semsi Pasa Camii

Sahil Yolu, Usktidar. Map 10 A2.
B3 Uskadar. [ daily.

This is one of the smallest
mosques to be commis-
sioned by a grand vizier (see
p29). Tts miniature dimensions
combined with its picturesque
waterfront location make it
one of the most attractive
mosques in the city.

Semsi Ahmet Pasa succeed-
ed Sokollu Mehmet Pasa (see
p82) as grand vizier, and may
have been involved in his
murder. Sinan (see p91) built
this mosque for him in 1580.

The garden, which over-
looks the Bosphorus, is
surrounded on two sides by
the medrese (see p38), with
the mosque on the third side
and the sea wall on the
fourth. The mosque itself is
unusual in that the tomb of
Semsi Ahmet is joined to the
main building, divided from
the interior by a grille.

Semsi Pasa Mosque, built by Sinan
for Grand Vizier Semsi Ahmet Pasa
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Iskele Mosque ©

iskele Camii

Hakimiyeti Milliye Cad, Uskudar,
Map 10 B2. [ Uskiidar. [ daily.

One of Uskudar’s most
prominent landmarks, the
Iskele Mosque (also known
as Mihrimah Sultan Mosque),
takes its name from the ferry
landing where it stands. A
massive structure on a raised
platform, it was built by Sinan
between 1547 and 1548 for
Mihrimah Sultan, favourite
daughter of Stleyman the
Magnificent and wife of Grand
Vizier Ristem Pasa (see pS88).

Without space to build a
courtyard, Sinan constructed a
large protruding roof which
extends to cover the sadirvan
(ablutions fountain) in front
of the mosque. The porch
and interior are rather gloomy
as a result. This raised portico
is an excellent place from
which to look down on the
main square below, in which
stands the Baroque Fountain
of Ahmet III, built in 1726.

Fountain set into the platform
below the iskele Mosque

Yeni Valide
Mosque O

Yeni Valide Camii

Hakimiyeti Milliye Cad, Uskidar.
Map 10 B2. £ Uskiidar. [] daily.

Across the main square

from Iskele Mosque, the

Yeni Valide Mosque, or New
Mosque of the Sultan’s Mother,
was built by Ahmet IIT be-
tween 1708 and 1710 to

The mektep (Koranic school) over the gate of Yeni Valide Mosque

honour his mother, Giilnus
Emetullah. The complex is
entered through a large gate-
way, with the mektep (Koranic
school) built above it. This
leads into a spacious court-
yard. The buildings in the
complex date from an impor-
tant turning point in Ottoman
architecture. The mosque is in
the classical style, yet there are
Baroque embellishments on
the tomb of the Valide Sultan,
the neighbouring sebil (kiosk
from which drinks were
served) and the sadwrvan.

Atik Valide

Mosque ©
Atik Valide Camii

Cinili Camii Sok, Uskiidar. Map 10
C3. B 12C (from Uskiidar). []
prayer times only.

The Atik Valide Mosque,
set on the hill above
Uskiidar, was one of
the most extensive
mosque complex-
es in Istanbul.

The name trans-
lates as the Old
Mosque of the
Sultan’s Mother,

as the mosque was
built for Nur Banu,
the Venetian-born
wife of Selim IT
(“the Sot”) and the
mother of Murat III. She was
the first of the sultans’ mothers
to rule the Ottoman Empire
from the harem (see p27).

Dome in the entrance

to Atik Valide Mosque and 19 open to the
public. Located just

to the east of the mosque, it
consists of 40 cells around a
courtyard and was in use
well into the 20th century.

Sinan completed the mosque,
which was his last major
work, in 1583. It has a wide
shallow dome which rests on
five semidomes, with a flat
arch over the entrance portal.
The interior is surrounded
on three sides by galleries, the
undersides of which retain
the rich black, red and gold
stencilling typical of the period.
The mibrab apse is almost
completely covered with
panels of fine iznik tiles (see
p161), while the mihrab itself
and the minbar are both made
of beautifully carved marble.
Side aisles were added to the
north and south in the 17th
century, while the grilles and
architectural trompe l'oeil
paintings on the royal loge
in the western gallery date
from the 18th century.
Outside, a door in the north
wall of the courtyard leads
down a flight of stairs to the
medrese, where the
dershane (classroom)
projects out over
the narrow street
below, support-
ed by an arch.
/ Of the other
)/ buildings in the
complex, the sifa-
hane (hospital) is
the only one which
has been restored
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Women attending an Islamic class
in the Tiled Mosque

Tiled Mosque @

Cinili Camii

Cinili Camii Sok, Uskidar. Map 10
C3. B Uskudar, then 20 mins walk.
[ prayer times only.

This pretty little mosque

is best known for the fine
tiles from which it takes its
name. It dates from 1640

and is noticeably smaller than
other royal foundations of the
17th century. This is partly
because by the middle of the
century much of Istanbul’s
prime land had already been
built on, and the size of the
plot did not allow for a larger
building. There was also a
trend away from endowing
yet more enormous mosque
complexes in the city.

The mosque was founded
by Mahpeyker Kosem Sultan.
As the wife of Sultan Ahmet I
(see p33), and mother of
sultans Murat IV and Ibrahim
the Mad, she wielded great
influence. Indeed, she was
one of the last of the powerful
harem women (see p27).

In the courtyard is a massive,
roofed ablutions fountain. The
adjacent medrese (see p38),
however, is tiny. The facade
and interior of the mosque are
covered with Iznik tiles (see
p161) in turquoise, white, grey
and a range of blues. There
are none of the red and green
pigments associated with the
heyday of Iznik tile produc-
tion, but the designs are still
exquisite. Even the conical
cap of the marble minbar is
tiled, and the carving on the
minbar itself is picked out in
green, red and gold paint.

The mosque’s Turkish bath is
on Cinili Hamam Sokag:. It has
been renovated and is used
by local residents.

Karaca Ahmet
Cemetery @

Karaca Ahmet Mezarlig

Nuh Kuyusu Cad, Selimiye. Map 10
C4. B 12. [] 9:30am-5:30pm.
Tomb [ ] 9:30am-4:30pm daily.

Sprawling over a large area,
this cemetery is a pleasant
place in which to stroll among
old cypress trees and look at
ancient tombstones. The ear-
liest dated stone is from 1521,
although the cemetery itself,
one of the largest in Turkey,
is thought to date
from 1338.

The carvings on
each tombstone
tell a story (see
p121). A man’s
tomb is indicated
by a fez or a tur-
ban. The style of
the turban de-
notes the status
of the deceased.
‘Women’s stones
are adorned with
carved flowers,
hats and shawls.

Standing on the corner of
Glindogumu Caddesi and Nuh
Kuyusu Caddesi is the tomb
of Karaca Ahmet himself.

This warrior died fighting in
the Turkish conquest of the
Byzantine towns of Chryso-
polis and Chalcedon (Uskiidar
and Kadikoy) in the mid-14th
century. The tomb and monu-
ment to his favourite horse
date from the 19th century.

Crimean War memorial in
the British War Cemetery

Selimiye Barracks @

Selimiye Kislast

Cesme-i Kebir Cad, Selimiye.

Map 10 B5. Tel (0216) 556 80 00.
E3 Harem. [ 12. [] 9am-5pm
Sat, Sun.

The Selimiye Barracks were
originally built by Selim TIT
in 1799 to house his New
Army, with which he hoped
to replace the Janissaries (see
p127). He failed in his attempt,
and was deposed and killed
in a Janissary insurrection in
1807-8 (see p30). The barracks
burnt down shortly afterwards.
The present building, which
dominates the skyline of the
Asian shore, was started by
Mahmut 1T in 1828, after he
had finally dis-
banded the
Janissary corps.
Abdiil Mecit I
added three more
wings between
1842 and 1853.
The barracks
were used as a
military hospital
during the
Crimean War
(1853-6). They
became famously
associated with
Florence Nightin-
gale, who lived and worked
in the northeast tower from
1854. The rooms she
occupied are now a museum,
and are the only part of the
barracks open to the public.
They contain their original
furniture and the lamp from
which she gained the epitaph
“Lady of the Lamp”. Visits
must be arranged in advance
by faxing 0216 310 79 29.

Visitor praying at the tomb of the warrior Karaca Ahmet
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Two other sites near the bar-
racks — the Selimiye Mosque
and the British War Cemetery —
are both worth seeing. Built
in 1804, the mosque is in a
peaceful, if somewhat neglec-
ted, garden courtyard. The
interior is filled with light from
tiers of windows set in high
arches. It is simply decorated
with a classically painted dome
and grey marble minbar. The
royal pavilion in the northwest
corner of the compound is
flanked by graceful arches.
The British War Cemetery is
a short walk south, on Burhan
Felek Caddesi. It contains the
graves of men who died in
the Crimean War, in World
War I at Gallipoli (see p170)
and in World War 1I in the
Middle East. There is no sign
outside and opening hours
vary, but the caretaker will
usually be there to let you in.

Haydarpasa
Station @
Haydarpasa Gari

the Ottoman Empire. Lacking
sufficient funds to continue
the project, he applied for
help to his German ally,
Kaiser Wilhelm II. The
Deutsche Bank agreed to
invest in the construction and
operation of the railway. In
1898 German engineers were
contracted to build the new
railway lines running across
Anatolia and beyond into the
far reaches of the Ottoman
Empire. At the same time a

number of stations were built.

Haydarpasa, the grandest of

these, was completed in 1908.

Trains run from Haydarpasa
into the rest of Asia.

Big Pine Hill ®
Buiytk Camlica

Camlica. B 11F, KC1, then 30 mins
walk. Park [ 9am-midnight daily.

On a clear day the view
from the top of this hill
takes in the Princes’ Islands,
the Sea of Marmara, the
Golden Horn and Beyoglu,
and the Bosphorus as far as
the Black Sea. Tt is even
possible to see snow-capped
Mount Uludag near Bursa
(see p169) to the south. Big
Pine Hill, 4 km (2.5 miles)
east of Uskiidar, is the highest
point in Istanbul, at 261 m
(856 ft) above sea level. Even
the forest of radio and TV
masts further down the slopes
of the hill does not obscure
the view.

The park at the summit,
which was created by the
Turkish Touring and
Automobile Club (see p181)
in 1980, is laid out with
gardens, marble kiosks and
two 18th-century-style cafés.

Neighbouring Kii¢iik Camlica
(Little Pine Hill), located to
the south, is rather less
cultivated and consequently
attracts fewer tourists to its
little tea garden. Tt is another
lovely place for a stroll, again
with beautiful views.

Haydarpasa istasyon Cad, Haydarpasa.
Tel (0216) 336 04 75 or 336 20 63.
E3) Haydarpasa or Kadikéy. [] daily.

The waterfront location

and grandeur of Haydar-
pasa Station, together with the
neighbouring tiled jetty, make
it an impressive point of
arrival or departure in Istanbul.
The first Anatolian railway line,
which was built in 1873, ran
from here to Iznik (see p160).
The extension of this railway
was a major part of Abdiil
Hamit II's drive to modernize

FLORENCE NIGHTINGALE

u

A 19th-century painting of Florence Nightingale in Selimiye Barracks

The British nurse Florence Nightingale (1820-1910) was a
tireless campaigner for hospital, military and social reform.
During the Crimean War, in which Britain and France fought
on the Ottoman side against the Russian Empire, she organ-
ized a party of 38 British nurses. They took charge of medical
services at the Selimiye Barracks in Scutari (Uskiidar) in
1854. By the time she returned to Britain in 1856, at the end
of the war, the mortality rate in the barracks had decreased
from 20 to 2 percent, and the fundamental principles of
modern nursing had been established. On her return home,
Florence Nightingale opened a training school for nurses.

Painted 19th-century yalis lining the Bosphorus at Yenikoy [>
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9), the straits separating

Europe and Asia, which

join the Black Sea and the
Sea of Marmara. The easiest
way to travel is by boat. An
alternative is to explore the
sights along the shores at
your own pace. For much of
their length the shores are
lined with handsome build-
ings: wooden waterside vil-
las known as yalis, graceful mosques
and opulent 19th-century palaces.
The grander residences along the

SIGHTS AT A GLANCE

THE BOSPHORUS

f the noise and bustle of the city Bosphorus have waterfront entrances.
get too much, nothing can beata These date from the days when
trip up the Bosphorus (see pp144- wooden caiques, boats powered by a

R - o —
R
W pig

Faik and Bekir Bey
Yali, Yenikoy

strong team of oarsmen,
were a popular form of
transport along the straits
among the city’s wealth-
ier inhabitants. Interspersed
between the monumental
architecture are former fish-
ing villages, where you will
find some of Istanbul’s fin-
est clubs and restaurants.
The Bosphorus is especially
popular in summer, when the cool
breezes off the water provide wel-
come relief from the heat of the city.

Museums and Palaces

Asiyan Museum @
Beylerbeyi Palace @
Khedive’s Palace @
Kiiciiksu Palace @

Maslak Pavilion @

Sadberk Hanim Museum @

THE BOSPHORUS TRIP
This vital navigational
channel is 33 km (20 miles
long and varies between
700 m (2,300 ft) and 3.6 km
(2 miles) wide. The trip has
been divided into three

Kilyos

Rumeli Feneri

Black Sea

Sakip Sabanct Museum @

Towns and Villages
Bebek ©@

Beykoz @

Kanlica @

Rumeli Kavag: @

%

Historic Buildings
Bosphorus Bridge @
Fortress of Europe @

boxes on this m

stages, indicated
ap.
|

the

3

gl See pp148-
\
\
|

Parks 4 ) "
Emirgan Park @ < S -
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<] Anadolu Hisarl, the Fortress of Asia, on the Asian shore of the Bosphorus
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The Bosphorus suspension bridge between O

Bosphorus Bridge @

Bogazici Koprisu

Ortakdy and Beylerbeyi. Map 9 F2.
= 40, 200, 202 (double deckers
from Taksim).

Spanning the Bosphorus
between the districts of
Ortakoy and Beylerbeyi, this
was the first bridge to be built
across the straits that divide
Istanbul. Known also as
Atattirk Bridge, it was finished
on 29 October 1973, the 50th
anniversary of the inaugura-
tion of the Turkish Republic
(see p31). It is the world’s
ninth longest suspension
bridge, at a length of 1,074 m
(3,524 ft), and it reaches 64 m
(210 fv) above water level.

Beylerbeyi
Palace @
Beylerbeyi Saray1

Cayirbasi Cad, Asian side.

Tel (0216) 321 93 20. 15 (from
Uskidar). [D] from Uskuidar.

[ 9:30am-5pm Tue, Wed &
Fri-Sun (Oct-Apr until 4pm). 173 3

Designed in the Baroque
style by Sarkis Balyan,
Beylerbeyi Palace seems fairly
restrained compared to the
excesses of the earlier Dolma-
bahce (see pp128-9) or
Kuciiksu (see p140) palaces.
1t was built for Sultan Abdiil
Aziz (see p30) in 1861 as

a summer residence and a
place to entertain visiting heads
of state. Empress Eugénie of
France visited Beylerbeyi on
her way to the opening of the
Suez Canal in 1869 and had

~ F 3
!' i

rtakdy and Beylerbeyi

her face slapped by the sultan’s
mother for daring to enter the
palace on the arm of Abdiil
Aziz. Other regal visitors to
the palace included the Duke
and Duchess of Windsor.

The palace looks its most
attractive from the
Bosphorus, from
where its two
bathing pavilions
— one for the
harem and the
other for the
selamlik (the
men’s quarters) —
can best be seen.

The most attrac-
tive room is the
reception hall, which has a
pool and fountain. Running
water was popular in Ottoman
houses for its pleasant sound
and cooling effect in the heat.

Egyptian straw matting is
used on the floor as a form of
insulation. The crystal chan-
deliers are mostly Bohemian
and the carpets (see pp218-19)

Ornate landing at the top of the stairs
in Beylerbeyi Palace

Detail of the gate of the
Egyptian Consulate, Bebek

are from Hereke. Despite her
initial reception, Empress
Eugénie of France was so de-
lighted by the elegance of the
palace that she had a copy of
the window in the guest
room made for her bedroom
in Tuileries Palace, in Paris.

Bebek ©

European side. [ 25E, 40.

Bebek is one of the most
fashionable villages along
the Bosphorus. It is famous
for its marzipan (badem
ezmesi, see p213), and for

the cafés which line its water-
front. It was once a favourite
location for summer residences
and palaces of Ottoman aristo-
crats, and at the end of the
19th century, caiques (see
p126) of merry-
makers would

set off on moonlit
cruises from the
bay, accompanied
by a boat of mus-
icians. The women
in the party would
trail pieces of vel-
vet or satin edged
with silver fishes
in the water be-
hind them while the musicians
played to the revellers.

One of the hosts of these
parties was the mother of
the last Khedive of Egypt
(see p29), Abbas Hilmi TI. Built
in the late 19th century, the
only remaining monumental
architecture in Bebek is the
Egyptian Consulate, which,
like the Khedive’s Palace
(see p142), was commis-
sioned by Abbas Hilmi II.
The steep, mansard roof
of this yali is reminiscent
of 19th-century northern
French architecture. There
are lighter Art Nouveau
touches including the rail-
ings draped in wrought-
iron vines and a rising sun
between the two turrets,
symbolizing the beginning
of the new century.

The khedive used the
yalt as a summer palace
until he was deposed by
the British in 1914. From
then on to the present
day it has been used as
the Egyptian Consulate.
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Yalis on the Bosphorus

At the end of the 17th
century, pasas, grand
viziers and other distin-
guished citizens of Otto-

yalis that have been built
have become larger and
more elaborate, adopting
Baroque, Art Nouveau and
man Istanbul began to modern styles of architec-
build themselves elegant : : ture. Most of them still
villas — yalis — along the  old yal at Kandilli, Asian side ~ conform to a traditional

shores of the Bosphorus. plan, making maximum
These served as summer residences, use of the waterfront and, inside, having
and the styles employed reflected a large sitting room surrounded by

their owners’ prestige. Since then, the  bedrooms.

Kopriilii Amcazade Hiiseyin Pasa Yali

(see p147), near Anadolu Hisari, was built

in 1699 and is the oldest building on the A cumba,
shores of the Bosphorus. Early yalis, like or bay window,
this one, were built at the water’s edge, iﬁ:':f;fe?ver
but in later years they were constructed '

a little way inland.

Traditional wooden yalis
were normally painted rust
red, a colour known as
“Ottoman rose”.

Later yahs, built from
the 18th century, were
painted in pastel shades.

A bracket supports the
projecting upstairs rooms.

Fethi Ahmet Pasa Yali (see pl4s), or Mocan Yali, at
Kuzguncuk, was built in the late 18th century. Among
visitors were the composer Franz Liszt and the archi-
tect Le Corbusier. Famous as the “Pink Yal”, after
its boldly decorated exterior, the house is
almost invisible from the land.

Baroque influence
is clearly visible in
the ornately carved
balcony.

Ethem Pertev Yali (see p147), at Kanlica, is a
prime example of the so-called “cosmopolitan
period” of yali building, between 1867 and
1908. It bas a boat house below and combines
intricate wood carving, a later development,
with the more traditional features of a yal.

Boat house
under the yali

The Egyptian

Consulate (see p146)

at Bebek clearly shows
the influence of Art Nou-
veau, with its wrought
iron railings worked
into a leaf design. It was
commissioned by the
Kbhedive of Egypt (see
p138) in around 1900.

i rbi,gj_

[ A narrow quay often
French-style Ornamental details were inspired separates 19th-century
mansard roof by Austrian Art Nouveau designs. yalis from the shore.
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Kictksu Palace ©

Kigtksu Kasri

Kuguksu Cad, Asian side. Tel (0216)
33202 37. B 15 (from Uskudar) or
101 (from Besiktas). [ ] 9:30am-5pm
Tue, Wed, Fri-Sun (Oct-Apr until 4pm).

Marble-fronted Kii¢tiksu
Palace has one of the
prettiest facades on the shores
of the Bosphorus. Particularly
attractive is the curving double
staircase which leads up to its
main waterside entrance.

Sultan Abdiil Mecit I (see
$30) employed court architect
Nikogos Balyan (see p128) to
build this palace to accommo-
date his entourage on their
visits to the Sweet Waters of
Asia. This was the romantic
name European visitors gave
to the Kictksu and Goksu
rivers. For centuries the Otto-
man nobility liked to indulge
in picnics in the meadows
between the streams.

On the completion of
Kiiciiksu Palace in 1856, the
sultan complained that it was
too plain and demanded more
ornamentation, including his
monogram engraved on the
facade. Later, in the reign
of Abdiil Aziz (see p30), the
facade was further embel-
lished, with the result that
it is hard to follow the lines
of the original architecture.

The room arrangement is
typically Ottoman, with a
large central salon opening
on to four corner rooms on
each floor. The interior decor
was carried out by Séchan,
the decorator of the Paris
Opera, soon after the palace
was finished. The carpets are
fine examples from Hereke
(see pp218-19) and the chan-
deliers Bohemian crystal.

On the shore near Kiiciiksu

The Fortress of Europ

Palace is the picturesque,
turreted Fountain of the Valide
Sultan Mihrisah. Dating from
1796, it is in the Baroque style.
Kibrish Yali, just south of
the palace, was built in 1760.
At over 60 m (200 ft), its
brilliant white facade is the
longest of any yali (see p139)
along the Bosphorus. A little
further south again is Kirmiz
Yali, the Red Yali, which is
so called for its distinctive
crimson colour. This yali
was constructed for one of
Sultan Mahmut II's gardens
in the 1830s.

Asiyan Museum ©

Asiyan Muzesi

Asiyan Yolu, Asian side.
Tel (0212) 263 69 82. 25E, 40.
[ 9am-4:30pm Tue-Sat.

Astyan, or bird’s nest, is the
former home of Tevfik

Fikret (1867-1915), a teacher,
utopian visionary and one of
Turkey’s leading poets. The
wooden mansion, built by
Fikret himself in 1906, is an
attractive example of Turkish
vernacular architecture. The
views from its upper-storey
balcony are stunning.

e, built by Mehmet the Conqueror to enable him to capture Constantinople

Kiigiiksu Palace, an ornate Bosphorus residence built in 1856

On show are the poet’s
possessions and Sis (Fog),

a painting by Caliph Abdiil
Mecit (1922-24), inspired by
Fikret's poem of that name.

Fortress of Europe @

Rumeli Hisar1

Yahya Kemal Cad, European side.
Tel (0212) 263 53 05. [ 25E, 40.
[ 9am-4:30pm Thu-Tue. 12}

This fortress was built by
Mehmet the Conqueror

in 1452 as his first step in the
conquest of Constantinople
(see p26). Situated at the
narrowest point of the Bos-
phorus, the fortress control-
led a major Byzantine supply
route. Across the straits is
Anadolu Hisari, or the Fortress
of Asia, which was built in the
14th century by Beyazit L.

The Fortress of Europe’s lay-
out was planned by Mehmet
himself. While his grand vizier
(see p29) and two other
viziers were each responsible
for the building of one of the
three great towers, the sultan
took charge of the walls. In
the spirit of competition which
evolved, the fortress was
completed in four months.
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The new fortress was soon
nicknamed Bogazkesen —
meaning “Throat-cutter” or
“Strait-cutter”. Tt was garrisoned
by a force of Janissaries (see
p127). These troops trained
their cannons on the straits to
prevent the passage of foreign
ships. After they had sunk a
Venetian vessel, this approach
to Constantinople was cut off.
Following the conquest of the
city, the fortress lost its import-
ance as a military base and
was used as a prison, partic-
ularly for out-of-favour foreign
envoys and prisoners-of-war.
The structure was restored
in 1953. Open-air theatre per-
formances are now staged
here during the Istanbul Music
and Dance Festival (see p45).

Café serving the yoghurt for
which Kanlica is famous

Kanlica @

Asian side. [ 15, 101.

A delicious, creamy type of
yoghurt is Kanlica’s best
known asset. The Iskender
Pasa Mosque, overlooking the
village square, is a minor
work by Sinan (see p91), built
for Sultan Siileyman’s vizier
fskender Pasa in 1559-60.
There have been changes
to the original building: the
wooden dome has been
replaced by a flat roof, and
the porch was added later.
There are a number of
yalis in and around Kanlica,
including the Kopriilii
Amcazade Huseyin Pasa Yali
(see p139), the oldest
surviving Bosphorus yali, just
south of the village. This was
built in 1698 by Mustafa 1I's
grand vizier Huiseyin Pasa, the
fourth grand vizier from the
Kopralt family. The Treaty of

Karlowitz, in which the
Ottomans acknowledged the
loss of territory to Austria,
Venice, Poland and Russia,
was signed here in 1699 (see
p27). All that remains of the
yali, which is not open to
visitors, is a T-shaped salon,
its dome only saved by
wooden props.

Emirgan Park @

Emirgan Park1

Emirgan Sahil Yolu, European side.
Tel (0212) 277 57 82. [ 25E, 40.[ ]
7am~10:30pm daily. 77 for vehicles.

Emirgan Park is the location
of some famous tulip gar-
dens, which are at their finest
for the annual Tulip Festival
in April (see p44). Tulips origi-
nally grew wild on the Asian
steppes and were first propa-
gated in large quantities in
Holland. They were later
reintroduced to Turkey by
Mehmet IV (1648-87). The
reign of his son Ahmet IIT is
known as the Tulip Period
(see p27) because of his
fascination with the flowers.
In the late 19th century
Sultan Abdiil Aziz gave the
park to the Egyptian Khedive
(see p29), Ismail Pasa, and its
three pavilions date from that
era. They are known by their
colours. The Sart Kosk (Yellow
Pavilion), built in the style of
a Swiss chalet, suffered fire
damage in 1954 and was re-
built in concrete with a facade
resembling the original. The
Beyaz Kosk (White Pavilion)
is a Neo-Classical style man-
sion, while the Pembe Kosk

Pembe Kosk in Emirgan Park

(Pink Pavilion) is in the style
of a traditional Ottoman house.
All three are now cafés.

Sakip Sabanci

Museum ©
Sakip Sabanci Miizesi

istinye Cad 22, Emirgab 34467. Tel
(0212) 277 22 00. [ 40, 41 from
Taksim Sq; any bus to Istinye or Sariyer.
[ 10am-6pm Tue, Thu, Fri, Sun;
10am~10pm Wed, Sat. [@)] 7 Jan, 1st
day of religious hols. 3 173 [ &2

1 www.muze.sabanciuniv.edu

With a superb view over

the Bosphorus, the Sakip
Sabanct Museum, founded in
2005, is also known as the
Horse Mansion (Alt1 Kosk).
Exhibitions comprise over 400
years of Ottoman calligraphy
and other Koranic and secular
art treasures. The collection
of paintings is exquisite, with
works by Ottoman court
painters and European artists
enthralled with Turkey.

are fewer in number.

BIRDS OF THE BOSPHORUS

In September and October, thou-
sands of white storks and birds of
prey fly over the Bosphorus on their way
from their breeding grounds in eastern
Europe to wintering regions in Africa. Large
birds usually prefer to cross narrow straits
like the Bosphorus rather than fly over
an expanse of open water such as the
Mediterranean. Among birds of prey
on this route you can see the lesser
spotted eagle and the honey buzzard.
The birds also cross the straits in
spring on their way to Europe but,
before the breeding season, they

The white stork, which
migrates over the straits
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Hot-house plants in the conservatory at Maslak Pavilions

Maslak Pavilions ®
Maslak Kasirlari

Buyutkdere Cad, Maslak. Tel (0212)
276 10 22. [ 405 (from Taksim).
[ 9am-6pm Tue, Wed & Fri-Sun
(Oct—Mar until 3pm).

This small group of buildings
was a royal hunting lodge and
country residence, much
prized for its glorious views.
The pavilions were built in
the early and mid-19th
century, when the focus of
Istanbul court life moved
away from Topkapt Palace
(see pp54-9), in the centre of
the city, to the sultans’ lavish
estates along the shore of the
Bosphorus. The buildings are

thought to date mainly from
the reign of Abdiil Aziz (1861
76). He gave Maslak to his
son Abdiil Hamit in the hope
that the crown prince would
then stop sailing at Tarabya
(see p148), which his father
regarded as unsafe.

The four main buildings are
less ornate than other 19th-
century pavilions in Istanbul.
This is possibly due to the
austere character of Abdil
Hamit. He personally crafted
the balustrades of the beau-
tiful central staircase in the
Kasr-1 Himayun (the Pavilion
of the Sultan) during his stay
here. His initials in Western
script — AH — can also be seen
in the headpieces over the
mirrors. The pavilion’s lounge

JASON AND THE SYMPLEGADES

The upper Bosphorus features in the Greek myth of Jason’s
search for the Golden Fleece. The Argonauts, Jason’s crew,
helped a local king, Phineus, by ridding him of the harpies
(female demons) sent
by Zeus to torment him.
In return, the king
advised them on how to
tackle the Symplegades,
two rocks at the mouth
of the Bosphorus which
were reputed to clash
together, making pas-
sage impossible. His
advice was to send a
dove in advance of the
ship; if it went through
safely, so would the
ship. This the Argonauts
duly did, and the rocks
clipped the dove’s tail
feathers. The Argo then
went through with only
some damage to its stern.

Jason and the Argonauts making
their way through the Symplegades

retains an Oriental feel, with
a low sofa and a central coal-
burning brazier.

Behind the small but ele-
gant Mabeyn-i Himayun
(the Private Apartments) is
a large conservatory full of
camellias, ferns and banana
plants. Nearby, at the edge
of the forest stands a tiny oct-
agonal folly with an ornate bal-
cony called the Cadir Koskii,
or Tent Pavilion, which now
serves as a bookshop. The
Pasalar Dairesi (the Apartments
of the Pasa) are located at the
other side of the complex.

Khedive’s Palace @
Hidiv Kasr1

Hidiv Kasri Yolu 32, Cubuklu. Tel (0216)
425 06 03. 15, 15A, 15P (from
Uskiidar) or 221 (from Taksim), then 5
mins’ walk from Kanlica. [} 9am-11pm
daily (May-Oct 9am~10:30pm). 2

Built in 1907 by the last
khedive (the hereditary
viceroy of Egypt, see p29),
Abbas Hilmi II, this summer
palace is one of the most
striking buildings of its era in
Istanbul. Its tower is an im-
posing landmark for those
travelling up the Bosphorus.
The Italian architect Delfo
Seminati based the design of
the palace on an Italianate
villa, throwing in Art Nouveau
and Ottoman elements. Most
impressive of all is the round
entrance hall. This is entered
through Art Nouveau glass
doors and features a stained-
glass skylight above a central
fountain surrounded by eight
pairs of elegant columns.
Renovated by the Turkish
Touring Club (TTOK, see
p245), the palace is now
open to visitors as a luxury
restaurant (see p200).

Beykoz @

Asian shore. 15 (from Uskdidar)
or 221 (from Taksim).

Beykoz is famous for its
walnuts (beykoz means
“prince’s walnut”) and for the
glass produced here in the
19th century. The distinctive,
mainly opaque, Beykoz glass
(see p213), with its rich colours
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museum to open in Turkey,
in 1981. The larger of these
yalis, the Azaryan Yali, is
the former summer
house of the wealthy
Koc family. A four-
storey mansion, it was
built in 1911 and, like
many buildings of the
time, was inspired by
European architecture.
The distinctive criss-
crossed wooden slats
on its facade disting-
uish it from the neigh-
bouring buildings. Tt
contains some fine

Fountain in the village square at Beykoz

and graceful designs, can be
seen in museums all over Tur-
key. Nowadays, the village’s
main attraction is its fish
restaurants, which serve
excellent turbot.

A fine 18th-century fountain
stands in the central square.
Built on the orders of Sultan
Mahmut I (see p33), it is
called the Tshak Aga
Cesmesi, after the
customs inspector who
commissioned it in
1780. It has a large
domed and colon-
naded loggia, and 10
conduits spouting a
constant stream of water.

Industrialization,

ethnographic artifacts
collected by Sadberk
Hanim, wife of the in-
dustrialist Vehbi Kog,
to whom the museum is
dedicated. She found many
of them in the Grand Bazaar
(see pp98-9) and in Istanbul’s
other markets. A number of
exhibits are laid out in tab-
leaux depicting 19th-century
Ottoman society. These in-
clude a henna party, at
which the groom’s
female relatives would
apply henna to the
hands of his bride; and
a circumcision bed,
with a young boy
dressed in traditional
costume. Also worth
seeking out in this
section is a display of

mainly bottling and Attic vase, infinitely delicate oya,
leather factories, has Sadberk Hanm  Turkish embroideries.
taken its toll and only Museum These remarkably life-

a few buildings hint at

the village’s former splendour.
The attractive 19th-century
waterside mansion, Halil
Ethem Yaly, is an interesting
mixture of Neo-Classical and
Neo-Baroque styles. It stands
on Ibrahim Kelle Caddesi,

Sadberk Hanim

Museum ®
Sadberk Hanim Miizesi

Piyasa Cad 27-29, Buyukdere,

Tel (0212) 242 38 13. ﬂ 25E.
[ 70:30am-6pm (Oct-Mar
9am-5pm). [@)] Wed. 17 o
www.sadberkhanimmuzesi.org.tr

Occupying two archetypal
wooden Bosphorus yalis

(see p139), the Sadberk Hanim
Museum was the first private

like pieces imitate
garlands of flowers, such as
carnations, roses, hyacinths
and lilies and were used to
fringe scarves and petticoats.
Some of the examples on
show were made in palace

harems in the 18th century.
The neighbouring building is
called the Sevgi Gonul Wing.
Also dating from the early
20th century, it was bought
to house the archaeological
collection of Hiiseyin Kocabas,
a friend of the Ko¢ family.
Displays are ordered chrono-
logically, ranging from the
late Neolithic period (5400
BO) to the Ottoman era. Ex-
hibits are changed from time
to time, but typically include
Assyrian cuneiform tablets
dating from the second millen-
nium BC, Phrygian metalwork
and Greek pottery from the
late Geometric Period (750—
680 BC). Among other items
are Byzantine reliquary and
pendent crosses, and a select-
ion of Roman gold jewellery.

Rumeli Kavagi @

European shore. [ 25A (from
Besiktas). = Rumeli Kavagi.

This pretty village has a
broad selection of res-
taurants specializing in fish
and fried mussels. They are
clustered around the harbour
from where there are views
of the wild, rocky shores on
the approach to the Black
Sea. On the hill above Rumeli
Kavag are the scant remains
of a castle, Imros Kalesi, built
by Manuel I Comnenus (see
p21) in the 12th century to
guard his customs point.
Further up the Bosphorus,
the shore road leads from
Rumeli Kavagi to Altin Kum
beach. This small strip of
sand backed by restaurants
is popular with local people.

The fishing village of Rumeli Kavagi, on the upper Bosphorus
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The Bosphorus Trip

One of the great pleasures of a visit to o
Istanbul is a cruise up the Bosphorus.
You can go on a pre-arranged guided tour
or take one of the small boats that tout BURER
for passengers at Eminonu. But there is
no better way to travel than on the official
: . trip run by Turkish Maritime Lines (TDI,
hl” 1 X see pp242-3), which is described on the
Ceremonial gate,  fpllowing pages. Laden with sightseers, /
Gragan Palace (he TD] ferry makes a round-trip to the | sravanite &
upper Bosphorus two or three times daily, stopping at =
six piers along the way, including a leisurely stop at LOCATOR MAP
Anadolu Kavag for lunch. You can return to Eminoni
on the same boat or make your
way back to the city by bus,
dolmus or taxi.

ASIA

Naval
Museum
{see p126)

Dolmabahge Palace

This opulent 19th-century palace
(see ppl28-9) has a series of ornate
gates along the waterfront. These
were used by the sultan to enter
the palace from bis imperial barge.

Stadium /'
’
’
7 Museum of
/ Fine Arts
,' {see p123)

! Dolmabahge

View of the City -

vk =2 Mosque was :
As the ferry departs, yo e completed in 1856
have a view of many ¥od at the same time
of the old monuments ot as the palace
. (see p126).

of Istanbul, including
Siileymaniye Mosqite,
seen in this piciure.

Eminéni Port | Leander’s Tower

The official One the landmarks of the
Bosphorus Jerry city, this white tower stands

deparis from
Istanbul’s busies!
Jerry terminal. 88

prominently in mid-channel, a\
a short way off the Asian
shore (see pl30).
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Emindni Pier 3 (Bogaz Hatti).
Map 3 D2. Tel (0212) 522 00
45. 5 Eminénu. £ daily: May—
Sep, 10:30am & 1:30pm; Oct—
Apr, 10:30am. Round trip takes 6
hours. I Bookings are accepted
online and 1 hour before
departure. [} www.ido.com.tr

1 Kuleli Military
| School has a
K;navutkay [ prelty wooden
/Imosque
beside it.

Mecidiye Mosque

Sullan Abdil
Mecit I ordered the;|
construclion of (his [
Baroqie mosqi
on a promonlo
near the fer

,\ Galatasaray
! Island is a
; private sports
” complex.

Cengelkdy

"' Sadullah Pasa Yal, built
g in the 1783, is painted

23 red-brown, as arc
many old yalis
(see p139)

{see p122)

Yildiz Park =

{see pp124-5) L Bosphorus
et} Bridge

see p138)

¥, Fethi Ahmet
> Paga Yal
{see p139)
N

Ciragan Palace dates
from 1874, but had to
be rebuilt after a dev
astating fire in 1910.
It is now a luxury

hotel (see p723).

iskele Mosque
{see p137)

Béylerbeyi Palace

The palace grounds conlain two
shore=side bathing pavilions: one
Jor men and the other for the women
of the harem (see p138).

0 metres 750
———

0 yards 750

KEY

Motorway

Bl Main road

Other road

[ Built-up area

emsi Pasa Mosque
The circular windows of this 161h-
tiry mmosque by Sinan (see pl130) ~ = Route of Bosphorus trip
are an allusion (o Semsi Pasa, whose BB Yal (see p139)
name derives from the word “shams”,
meaning ‘sun” in Arabic.

Ferry boarding point

Az Viewpoint
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The Middle Bosphorus

North of Arnavutkoy, the outskirts of
Istanbul give way to attractive towns
and villages, such as Bebek with its pop-
ular bars and cafés. The Bosphorus flows
fast and deep as the channel reaches its
Pasabahce narrowest point — 700 m (2,300 ft) across —
glassvase o the approach to the Fatih Sultan Mehmet
suspension bridge. It was at this point that:
the Persian emperor Darius and his army crossed the
Bosphorus on a pontoon bridge in 512 BC, on their
way to fight the Greeks. Two famous old fortresses face
each other across the water near here. Several elegant | ocaToR MAP
yalis are also found in this part = : e
of the strait, particularly in the . X
region known to Europeans as
the Sweet Waters of Asia.

Black Sea

EUROPE

ASIA

istinye Bay

This buge natural bay, the
largest inlet on the Bosphorus,
has been used as a dock for
centuries. There is a fish market §
along the quay every morning.

Emirgan Park
Situated above the
pretty village of
Envirgan, this park 4
famouss for 115 tiljf

The Bosphorus University, one
of the most prestigious in Turkey,
enjoys spectacular views. Almost
all teaching here is in English.

{sce p138)

. Egyptian ’
Consulate 4
{see p138)

Fortress of Furope

<V
Situated at the narrowest point on the e
Bosphaorus, Ihis foriress (see p140) was h & [‘\
built by Mehmet Il in 1452, as a prelude";? 4

Y I See pages

to his invasion of Conslantinople (see p26Y " o
: & i ¥ Arnavutkdy , 7445

s 1 {

y | 1
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See pages

Yenikoy

Handsome 19th-century villas
define the walerfronl of this village
dating from Byzantine times.

Sait Halim The Pasabahge =
Paga Yali Glass Works i
produce Turkey’s
finest glassware
! Kanlica is a pretly =l
! village (see p141)

/ with a mosque built

f by Sinan (see p91).
’j i It is also known for Cubukl
! its delicious yoghurt.

Khedive’s Palace
Above ¢uhukly stands the palace
built by the last viceroy of Egypt

e e 2 = (see p29), Abbas Hilmi Pasa, in
! AR e 2es It around 1900. It is now a hotel
and restaurant (see pl42).

T e

1
7 | Fortress of Asia
! Fatih Sultan Fifty years older
Mehmet than the Fortress

of Europe, this
Jortress was built
by Beyazit I just

I Bridge
1

| Kapriili o a7 : E , before the failed
| Amcazade” B30 : : U : Ottoman siege of
! Haseyin C tanti i R
! Pasa Yah Constantinople
| (see p141) h in 1396-7.
' ;
1 7 S 3 q
H ::;aa’:f gl 2L - : GOksu River
1) | This pretty little river and the
/ Kigiksu . . .
(R Kiigtiksu River south of it are
(see p140) together known as the Sweet

Waters of Asia (see p140).

Kirmizi KEY
Yal {see
Motorway
B Main road
Other road
" Built-up area

E Ferry boarding point

- = Route of Bosphorus trip
R Yal (see p139)

Az Viewpoint

0 Ometres 750
L ——
- Oyards 750
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The Upper Bosphorus

In the 19th century ambassadors to
Turkey built their summer retreats be-
tween Tarabya and Biyiikdere, on the
European side of the Bosphorus. As the
hills fall more steeply towards the shore
- along the upper reaches of the straits, the
Black Sea built-up area peters out. The public ferry
mussels pauses for lunch at Anadolu Kavagi on
the Asian side before heading back to
Istanbul. You can also catch a bus or dolmus back tw the
city. The Bosphorus itself continues for another 8 km
(5 miles) or so to meet the Black Sea, but the land on
both sides of this stretch is now under military contral. -

Sadberk __=

Hanoum Museum
This museum, housed
in two wooden yalis,
has variety of interes-
ting exhibits. These -
include antiquities |
from Greece and
Rome, and Ottoman
craftwork (see p14%)

!
Tarabya Bay 1
The small village set within ]
a lovely bay first attracted I
wealthy Greeks in the 18th 1
century. The bay still \
L thrives as an exclusive \
resort with up-market
[fish restaurants.

\
\
\
\
\
\
N\

FISHING ON THE = i\
BOSPHORUS R o
A multitude of fishing 1 é‘emurv ¢

vessels ply the waters

of the Bosphorus, ranging
from large trawlers return-
ing from the Black Sea to
tiny rowing boats from
which a line is cast into
the water. On a trip up
the Bosphorus you often
see seine nets spread out
in circles, suspended from
floats on the surface. The
main types of fish caught are mackerel, mullet, hamsi (similar
to anchovy, see p194) and sardine. Much of the fish caught
is sold at Istanbul’s principal fish market in Kumkapi.

- vali owned
by the govern-

Fishing boats at Sariyer, the main
fishing port on the Bosphorus




Rumeli Kavag:
This village is the
most northerly ferry
stop on the Enropean side

(see pl43). From here
the Bosphorus widens ot
to meel the Black Sea

= Al

! "

dolu Kavag:

51%9 1 elimb from this village — the last stop on
e JHp'S brings you 1o a ruined 14th-century

Byzantine fortress, the Genoese Castle, from

ere aie great views over the strails.

Beykoz

Beykoz is the largest
Jishing village along the
Asian shove. Close to its
village square, which
has this fountain
dating from 1746, are

- several fish restaurants
which are very popular
in summer (see pl42).

KEY
B Main road

Other road

Built-up area

EX Ferry boarding point

0 metres 750
—— - = Route of Bosphorus trip
gy 2 Halil T VYali (see p139)

Ethem Yah - -

(see p143) Al Viewpoint

See pages 146-7
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EXCURSIONS FROM ISTANBUL

landing at a natural crossroads, Istanbul makes a good base
Jor excursions into the neighbouring areas of Thrace and
Anatolia — European and Asian Turkey respectively. Whether
you want to see great Islamic architecture, immerse yourself in a busy
bazaar, relax on an island or catch a glimpse of Turkey’s rich birdlife,

you will find a choice of destinations within easy reach of the city.

On public holidays and week-
ends nearby resorts become
crowded with Istanbul resi-
dents taking a break from
the noisy city. For longer
breaks, they head for the
Mediterranean or Aegean, so
summer is a good time to
explore the Marmara and
western Black Sea regions
while they are quiet.

The country around Istanbul
varies immensely from lush
forests to open plains and,

Further away, through rolling
fields of bright yellow sun-
flowers, is Edirne, the former
Ottoman capital. The town
stands on a site first settled in
the 7th century BC. It is visited
today for its fine mosques,
especially the Selimiye.

South of the Sea of Marmara
is the pretty spa town of Bursa,
originally a Greek city which
was founded in 183 BC.
|| The first Ottoman capital, it
I has some fine architecture.

beyond them, impressive  Window, Selimiye Near the mouth of the straits
mountains. The Belgrade — Mesaue.Edime ¢ the Dardanelles (which
Forest is one of the closest link the Sea of Marmara to the

green areas to the city if you want a Aegean) lie the ruins of the legendary
short break. The Princes’ Islands, city of Troy, dating from as early as
where the pine forests and monaster- 3600 BC. North of the Dardanelles are
ies can be toured by a pleasant ride in  cemeteries commemorating the battles
a horse-and-carriage, are also just a which were fought over the Gallipoli
short boat trip away from the city. peninsula during World War I.

Boats in Burgaz Harbour on the Princes’ Islands, a short ferry ride from Istanbul

<] The Green Tomb of Mehmet | in Bursa, one of the city’s best-known landmarks
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Exploring Beyond Istanbul

Within a radius of 250 km (150 miles) of Istanbul
there are many destinations worth visiting. To

the northwest is Edirne, an attractive riverside town Ruraes

and the location of several fine mosques. South »

of Istanbul is Bursa, which lies at the foot S CBULGARI/

of Uludag, a mountain famed for its | Y & il A
skiing. Closer to Istanbul are the Black A Ben

Sea resorts of Sile and Kilyos, and the igneada

Lalapasa “ ( -
Princes’ Islands, popular in sumimner, AP | I Demirkdy 5
which are easily reached by ferry.  khaskov Sl Y kitkiareli > P e
The war cemeteries of the Dardan- X / ,/ A ¢

&
@/ ;

elles and the site of ancient EDE'E’
Troy require a longer trip.

Hayrabolu{_}
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Kesang

» Alexandrotpoli / 4
i /= ’/6Kara+n'sér

The 15th-century Beyazit Il
Mosque in Edirne
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For additional map symbols see back flap
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SIGHTS AT A GLANCE
Belgrade Forest @

Bird Paradisc National Park @
Bursa pp162-8 @

The Dardanclles @
Edirne ppl54-7 Q)

Iznik ©@

Kilyos @

Marmara Tslands @
Polonezkoy @

Princes’ Tslands @

N Igneada Burny

Sile @
\ Termal @
7\/gK|y|k<")y Troy @
N Uludag National Park @

A

B

\\safaalan
g I BLACK SEA
AV >, m KILYOS

O

\ - | \Bah Ko
—] o\ ce oy A~
Il M‘\MADE 8 m CSE VT,,,"\I/ a
O
q RES) 3} éﬂgonr Ay ¢ r
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" GETTING AROUND

The road network around
Tstanbul is steadily improving,
and modern, cheap and efficient
coaches Gsee p244) will get you to
most places. Ferries and sea buses
(see p244) cross the Sea of
Marmara to ports on its southern

shore and reach both the Princes’
and Marmara Islands. One of the main ski runs in Uludag National Park
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Edirne o

Standing on the river Tunca near the border
with Greece, Edirne is a provincial university
town which is home to one of Turkey’s star
attractions, the Selimiye Mosque (see pp156-7).
As this huge monument attests, Edirne was
historically of great importance. It dates back
to AD 125, when the Roman Emperor Hadrian

joined two small towns to form Hadrianopolis,

or Adrianople. For nearly a century, from when Murat I
(see p25) took the city in 1361 until Constantinople was
conquered in 1453 (see p26), Edirne was the Ottoman
capital. The town has one other claim to fame — the
annual grease wrestling championships in June.

Entrance to Beyazit Il Mosque
viewed from its inner courtyard

Beyazit I Mosque
Beyazit II Kulliyesi
Yeni Maharet Cad. [] daily.
Health Museum
Tel (0284) 212 09 22. [ ] 9:30am~
5:30pm daily. 23
Beyazit II Mosque stands in a
peaceful location on the north-
ern bank of the Tunca River,
1.5 km (1 mile) from the town
centre. It was built in 1484-8,
soon after Beyazit I (see p32)
succeeded Mehmet the
Conqueror (see p26) as sultan.
The mosque and its court-
yards are open to the public.
Of the surrounding buildings
in the complex, the old hos-
pital, which incorporated an
asylum, has been converted
into the Health Museum.
Disturbed patients were
treated in the asylum — a
model of its time — with water,
colour and flower therapies.
The Turkish writer Evliya
Celebi (1611-84) reported
that singers and instrumen-
talists would play soothing
music here three times a week.
Overuse of hashish was one

of the commonest afflictions.
The colonnaded inner mosque
courtyard, unlike most later
examples, covers three times
the area of the mosque itself.
Inside, the weight of the
impressive dome is supported
on sweeping pendentives.

Mosque of the

Three Balconies

Uc Serefeli Camii

Hiikimet Cad. [ daily. f2f

Until the fall of Constantinople,
this was the grandest building
in the early Ottoman state. It
was finished in 1447 and takes
its name from the three bal-
conies adorning its southeast
minaret, at the time the tallest
in existence. In an unusual
touch, the other three minarets
of the mosque are each of a
different design and height.
Unlike its predecessors in

Entrance arch, Mosque of the Three Balconies

Bursa (see pp162-8), the
mosque has an open court-
yard, setting a precedent for
the great imperial mosques of
Istanbul. The plan of its inter-
ior was also innovative. With
minimal obstructions, the
mihrab and minbar can both
be seen from almost every
corner of the prayer hall. Like
the minarets, the dome, too,
was the largest of its time.

0Old Mosque

Eski Cami

Talat Pasa Asfalti. [] daily. g2f
The oldest of Edirne’s major
mosques, this is a smaller
version of the Great Mosque
in Bursa (see p164). The
eldest son of Beyazit I (see
p32), Sileyman, began the
mosque in 1403, but it was
his youngest son, Mehmet I,
who completed it in 1414.

A perfect square, the mosque
is divided by four massive piers
into nine domed sections. On
either side of the prayer hall
entrance there are massive
Arabic inscriptions proclaiming
“Allah” and “Mohammed”.

GREASE WRESTLING

Grease wrestlers parading
before they fight

The Kirkpinar Grease Wrestling Championships take place

annually in July, on the island of Sarayici in the Tunca River.
The event is famed throughout Turkey and accompanied by
a week-long carnival. Before competing, the wrestlers dress

in knee-length leather shorts
(kispet) and grease them-
selves from head to foot in
diluted olive oil. The master
of ceremonies, the cazgir,
then invites the competitors to
take part in a high-stepping,
arm-flinging parade across
the field, accompanied by
music played on a deep-toned
drum (davul) and a single-
reed oboe (zurna). Wrestling
bouts can last up to two hours
and involve long periods of
frozen, silent concentration
interspersed by attempts to
throw down the opponent.
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T Riistem Pasa
Caravanserai
Riistem Pasa Kervansarayi
iki Kapill Han Cad 57.
Tel (0284) 215 24 89.
Sinan (see p91) designed this
caravanserai for Siileyman’s
most powerful grand vizier,
Ristem Pasa (see p88), in
1560-61. It was constructed
in two distinct parts. The larger
courtyard, or han (see p96),
which is now the Riustem Pasa
Kervansaray Hotel (see p191),
was built for the merchants of
Edirne, while the smaller court-
yard, now a student hostel,
was an inn for other travellers.
A short walk away, on the
other side of Saraclar Caddesi,
is the Semiz Ali Pasa Bazaar,
where Edirne’s merchants still
sell their wares. This is another
work of Sinan, dating from
1589. It consists of a long, nar-
row street of vaulted shops.

m Museum of Turkish
and Islamic Arts

Tiirk ve Islam Eserleri Miizesi
Kadir Pasa Mektep Sok. Tel (0284)
225 11 20. [] 9am-noon,
1:30-5:30pm Tue-Sun. 17}
Edirne’s small collection of
Turkish and Islamic works of

art is attractively located in
the medrese of the Selimiye
Mosque (see pp156-7).

The museum’s first room is
devoted to the local sport of
grease wrestling. It includes
enlarged reproductions of
miniatures depicting 600 years
of the sport. These show the
wrestling stars resplendent in
their leather shorts, their skin
glistening with olive oil.

Other objects on display in-
clude the original doors of the
Beyazit II Mosque. There are
also military exhibits. Among
them are some beautiful 18th-
century Ottoman shields, with
woven silk exteriors, and
paintings of military subjects.

The tranquil 15th-century Muradiye Mosque

VISITORS" CHECKLIST

210 km (130 miles) NW of Istan-
bul. i 750,000. [Z] Aysekadin,
(0284) 235 26 73. EJ Talat Pasa
Cad, (0284) 225 19 79.

[D] Riistem Pasa Kervan Saray
Hotel. [l Hurriyet Meydani 17,
(0284) 213 92 08. g Mon-Thu,
Sat. [ Grease Wrestling (late
Jun); Liberation Day (25 Nov).
www kirkpinar.org

Muradiye Mosque
Muradiye Camii

Kugikpazar Cad. [] prayer times
only. 4

This mosque was built as a
zaviye (dervish hospice) in
1421 by Murat 11 (see p32),
who dreamt that the
great dervish leader
Jelaleddin Rumi (see
p104) asked him to
build one in Edirne.
Only later was it
converted into a
mosque. Its interior
is notable for its
massive inscriptions,
similar to those in
the Old Mosque,
and for some fine
early 15th-century
[znik tiles (see p161).

[ TR T T T

EDIRNE CITY CENTRE
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Edirne: Selimiye Mosque

Selimiye Camii

The Selimiye is the greatest of all the Ottoman
mosque complexes, the apogee of an art form
and the culmination of a lifetime’s ambition for
its architect, Sinan (see p91). Built on a slight
hill, the mosque is a prominent landmark. Its
complex includes a medrese (see p38), now
housing the Museum of Turkish and Islamic
Arts (see p155), a school and the Kavaflar
Arasta, a covered bazaar.

Selim 11 (see p27) commissioned the mosque.
It was begun in 1569 and completed in 1575,
a year after his death. The dome was Sinan’s
proudest achievement. In his memoirs, he
wrote: “With the help of Allah and the favour
of Sultan Selim Khan, I have succeeded in
building a cupola six cubits wider and four
cubits deeper than that of Haghia Sophia”. In

% Minarets

The mosque’s four slender
minarets tower to a bheight
of 84 m (275 ft). Each
one has three balconies.
The two northern
minarets contain

three intertwining

fact, the dome is of a diameter comparable to
and slightly shallower than that of the building

staircases, each one
leading to a differ-
ent balcony.

(see pp72-5) Sinan had so longed to surpass.

Ablutions Fountain

Intricate, pierced carving

decorates the top of the 16-
sided open sadirvan (ablu-

| tions fountain), which stands

in the centre of the courtyard.

The absence of a canopy

| belps to retain the uncluttered

=1 aspect of the courtyard.

STAR FEATURES

The columns support-

% Minarets ing the arches of the
courtyard are made of

* Dome old marble, plundered
from Byzantine

% Minbar architecture.

Courtyard Porta]s

| Alternating red and
honey-coloured slabs
. of stone were used to
- build the striking arches
- above the courtyard portals. This
" echoes the decoration of the magni-
ficent arches running around
m—_r_m-.u-—-_‘J the mosque courtyard itself.
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* Dome VISITORS* CHECKLIST

s The dome masterfully

dominates the entire
interior of the mosque.
Not even the florid
paintwork — the original
16th-century decoration
underwent restoration

in the 19th century—

detracts from its effect.

Mimar Sinan Cad, Edirne.
Tel (0284) 213 97 35.
[ daily. [@ prayer times.

* Minbar

Many experts claim that
the Selimiye’s minbar,

with its conical tiled cap,

is the finest in Turkey. Its
lace-like side panels are

exquisitely carved.

Mihrab, cut from
Marmara marble

The Interior

The mosque is the supreme
achievement of Islamic archi-
tecture. Its octagonal plan
allows for a reduction in the
size of the buttresses support-
ing the dome. This permitted
extra windows to be incor-
porated, making the mosque
- exceptionally light inside.

The miiezzin mahfili
(see p38) still retains
original, intricate 16th-
century paintwork on
its underside. Beneath
it is a small fountain.

Entrance from
Kavaflar Arasta

Sultan’s Loge
The imperial loge is supported
on green marble columns. They
are connected by pointed arches,
whose surrounds are adorned with
Sloral Iznik tiles (see p161). Unusually,
Main its ornately decorated mibrab contains
entrance a shuttered window, which opened on to
countryside when the mosque was first built.
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Kilyos @

27 km (17 miles) N of Istanbul.
i 1,665. D] from Saniyer.

Kilyos, on the shore of the
Black Sea, is the closest
seaside resort to Istanbul and
very popular. It has a long,
sandy beach and temptingly
clear water, but visitors should
not swim here in the absence
of a lifeguard because there
are dangerous currents be-
neath the calm surface.

A l4th-century Genoese
castle perches on a cliff top
overlooking the town but
it is not open to visitors.

The three ruined towers on
the left of the main approach
road into the village were for-
merly water control towers.
They were part of the system
that once brought water here
from the Belgrade Forest.

Belgrade Forest ©
Belgrad Ormant

20 km (12 miles) N of Istanbul.

42, 40S from Taksim to
Cayirbasi, then 42 to Bahgekdy.
Park Tel (0212) 226 23 35. D
May-Sep 6am-9pm daily, Oct-Apr
7am-7:30pm. 17

One of the most popular
escapes from the city,
the Belgrade Forest is the only
sizeable piece of woodland
in the immediate vicinity of
Istanbul. The forest is made
up of pines, oaks, beeches,
chestnuts and poplars, be-
neath which a profusion of
wild flowers grow in spring.
Within it is a huge woodland
park, best visited during the
week, since it attracts hordes
of picnickers at weekends.
The main entrance
to the park is
near the village
of Bah¢ekoy and
the popular
Nesetsuyu picnic
area is a half-hour
stroll from this gate.
The park’s other
attractions are the
relics of the dams,
reservoirs and aque-
ducts used for over
1,000 years to trans-
port spring water in
to Istanbul. The

T

oldest structure, Biiytik Bent
(Great Reservoir), dates back
to the early Byzantine era. It
is a pleasant half-hour walk
from Nesetsuyu picnic area.
Meanwhile, the Sultan Mahmut
Dam, outside the park’s gate,
is a fine curve of marble which
dates from 1839.

Egri Kemer (Crooked Aque-
duct) and Uzun Kemer (Long
Aqueduct) are on the 016
road between Levent and Kisir-
mandira and are best reached
by taxi. Both have impressive
rows of arches. The former
probably dates from the 12th
century, while Sinan (see p91)
built the latter for Stileyman
the Magnificent (see p26).

Sile @

72 km (45 miles) NE of Istanbul.
fil 25,372. [ from Uskddar.

The quintessential Black
Sea holiday village of Sile
has a number of fine, sandy
beaches and a black-and-
white striped cliff-top light-

The village of Sile, a holiday resort and centre
for cotton production

Biiylik Bent, a Byzantine dam and reservoir in the Belgrade Forest

house. In antiquity, the village,
then known as Kalpe, was a
port used by ships sailing east
from the Bosphorus.

Sile’s lighthouse, the largest
in Turkey, was built by the
French for Sultan Abdil Aziz
(see p30) in 1858-9; it can be
visited after dusk. Apart from
tourism, the main industry
is now the production of a
coarse cotton which is made
into clothing and sold in
shops along Uskiidar Caddesi.

Polonezkoy ©

25 km (16 miles) NE of Istanbul.
Fi 500. 5 221 from Taksim to
Beykoz, then dolmus.

Polonezkdy was originally
called Adampol, after the
Polish Prince Adam Czartoryski
who bought prime arable
land here in 1842 for Polish
emigrants settling in Turkey.
Soon after, in 1853, the Poles
formed a band of Cossack sol-
diers to fight for Abduil Mecit I
(see p30) in the Crimea. After
this he granted them the land
as a tax-free haven.

Polonezkoy’s rustic charm
is now big business, and a
number of health spas and
villas have sprung up. A couple
of restaurants (see p207) still
serve the pork for which the
town was once famous.

The surrounding beech
forest, which offers pleasant
walks, has now been protected
from further development. As
part of this scheme, the locals
have even waived their rights
to collect firewood.
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Princes’ Islands @
Kiz1l Adalar

12 km (7 miles) SE of Istanbul. i}
16,171. EX 2pm from Sirkeci (sea
bus). [l (0216) 382 70 71.

The pine-forested Princes’
Islands provide a welcome
break from the bustle of the
city and are just a short ferry
ride southeast from Istanbul.
Most ferries call in turn at the

four largest of the nine islands:

Kinaliada, Burgazada, Hey-
beliada and finally Biyiikada.
Easily visited on a day trip,
the islands take their name
from a royal palace built
by Justin Il on Biiyik- £ 4
ada, then known as 'y
Prinkipo (Island of the
Prince) in 569. During
the Byzantine era the
islands became infa-
mous as a place of
exile. Members of the
royal family and public
figures were often
banished to the mon-

o

the omnipresence of horse-
drawn phaetons. These quaint
carriages are in fact the only
form of public transport on
Biiyiikada (and Heybeliada)
since motorized transport is
banned. At the top of Biiyiik-
ada’s wooded southern hill,
in a clearing, stands the
Monastery of St George. It is
a 20th-century structure, built
on Byzantine foundations.
To the left of the ferry pier
on Heybeliada, the second
largest island, is the imposing
former Naval High School
(Deniz Harp Okulu), built
in 1942. The island’s
., northern hill is the
. stunning location of
the Greek Orthodox
School of Theology
(built in 1841). The
school is now closed
but its library, famous
among Orthodox
scholars, is still open.
The island also has a
pleasant beach on its
south coast at Cam

asteries here. Door to the Liman1 Koyt
In the latter half of Monastery of The smaller islands
the 19th century, with StGeorge  of Kinaliada and

the inauguration of
a steamboat service from
Istanbul, several wealthy ex-
patriates settled on the islands.
Among the foreign exiles to
live here was Leon Trotsky.
From 1929-33 he lived at 55
Cankaya Caddesi, one of the
finest mansions on Biyiikada.
Biuytikada is the largest
island and attracts the most
visitors with its sandy beaches,
ice creams and fin-de-siecle
elegance. Its 19th-century
atmosphere is enhanced by

The harbour of Burgazada, one of the relaxed and picturesque Princes’ Islands near Istanbul

Burgazada are less
developed and are peaceful
places to stop off for a meal.

Termal @

38 km (24 miles) SE of Istanbul Ji&)
5,018. [ from Kabatas to Yalova. [l
Yal) Cad, Varol lshani, (0226) 813 85 07.

This small spa buried deep

in a wooded valley has been
patronized by ruling elites
since the Roman era. Termal is

S A
Ornamental fountain at Atatiirk’s
former house at Termal

12 km (7 miles) from the port
of Yalova. Its popularity was
revived by Sultan Abdiil Hamit
1I (see p33) in the early 20th
century, when he refurbished
the Yalova Termal Baths, now
part of the Turban Termal
complex of four baths and a
couple of hotels. Facilities
include Turkish baths (see p67),
a sauna and a swimming pool.
Atatiirk enjoyed taking the
waters here. The small chalet-
style house he built at the
bottom of the valley, now the
Atatiirk Museum, preserves
some of his possessions.

K Yalova Termal Baths
Termal. Tel (0226) 675 74 00.
[ 8am-10pm daily.

m Atatirk Museum

Atatlrk Koskd, Termal. Tel (0226) 675
70 28. [} May-Oct 9am-5pm Tue,
Wed, Fri-Sun; Nov-Apr 9:30am—4pm.
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87 km (54 miles) SE of Istanbul.
i 20,100. [E] Yeni Mahalle,
Yakup Sok, (0224) 757 25 83.
A Belediye Hizmet Binasi,
Kilicaslan Cad 97, (0224) 757 19
33. &) Wed. [ iznik Fair (5-10
Oct), Liberation Day (28 Nov).

A charming lakeside town,
Iznik gives little clue

now of its former glory as, at
one point, the capital of the
Byzantine Empire. Its most im-
portant legacy dates, however,
from the 16th century, when
its kilns produced the finest
ceramics ever to be made in
the Ottoman world.

The town first reached
prominence in AD 325, when
it was known as Nicaea. In
that year Constantine (see
p20) chose it as the location
of the first Ecumenical Council
of the Christian Church. At
this meeting, the Nicene Creed,
a statement of doctrine on the
nature of Christ in relation to
God, was formulated.

The Seljuks (see p21) took
Nicaea in 1081 and renamed
it Iznik. Tt was wrested back
from them in 1097 by the First
Crusade on behalf of Emperor
Alexius T Comnenus. After the
capture of
Constantinople in
1204 (see p26), the
city was capital of
the ‘Empire of
Nicaea’, a remain-
ing fragment of
the Byzantine
Empire, for half
a century. In
1331, Orhan
Gazi (see p32)
captured Iznik

Green Mosque, iznik, named after the green tiles adorning its minaret

and incorporated it into the
Ottoman Empire. 1znik still
retains its original layout.
Surrounded by the city walls,
its two main streets are in the
form of a cross, with minor
streets running out from them
on a grid plan. The walls still
more or less delineate the
town’s boundaries. They were
built by the Greek Lysimachus,
then ruler of the
town, in 300
BC, but they
were frequently
repaired by
both the
Byzantines
and later the
Ottomans. They
cover a total of
3 km (2 miles)
in circumference
and are punc-
tuated by huge gateways. The
main one of these, Istanbul
Gate (Istanbul Kapisy), is at
the city’s northern limit. It is
decorated with a carved relief
of fighting horsemen and is
flanked by Byzantine towers.
One of the town’s oldest
surviving monuments, the
ruined church of Haghia
Sophia, stands at the inter-

Istanbul Gate from within
the city walls

Grand domed portico fronting the Archaeological Museum

section of the main streets,
Atatiirk Caddesi and
Kilicaslan Caddesi. The
current building was erected
after an earthquake in 1065.
The remains of a fine mosaic
floor, and also of a Deésis, a
fresco that depicts Christ, the
Virgin and John the Baptist,
are protected from damage
behind glass screens. Just off
the eastern end
of Kilicaslan Cad-
i desi, the 14th-
century Green
Mosque (Yesil
Cami) is named
after the tiles
covering its
minaret. Unfor-
tunately, the
originals have
been replaced
by modern
copies of an inferior quality.
Opposite the mosque, the
Kitchen of Lady Niltfer
(Niliifer Hatun imareti), one
of iznik’s loveliest buildings,
now houses the town’s
Archaeological Museum.
This imaret was set up in 1388
by Niltfer Hatun, wife of
Orhan Gazi, and also served
as a hospice for wandering
dervishes. Entered through a
spacious five-domed portico,
the central domed area is
flanked by two further domed
rooms. The museum has dis-
plays of Roman antiquities and
glass as well as some re-cently
discovered examples of Seljuk

- and Ottoman tiles.

# Haghia Sophia

Atatiurk Cad. Tel (0224) 757 10 27.
[ by appointment. 17}

Green Mosque

Miize Sok. [] daily (after prayer).
T Archaeological Museum
Muze Sok. Tel (0224) 757 10 27.
[ by appointment.l77
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Towards the end of the 15th
century, the town of Iznik
began to produce large quantities
of ceramic bowls, jars and, later,
tiles for the many palaces and
mosques of Istanbul. Drawing
on local deposits of fine clay
and inspired by imported
Chinese ceramics, the work

of the craftsmen of iznik soon
excelled both technically and
aesthetically. znik pottery is made
from hard, white “fritware”, which is

Chinese porcelain, which was imported into
Turkey from the 14th century and of which there
is a large collection in Topkap: Palace (see
PP54-9), often inspired
the designs used for
Iznik pottery. Dur-
ing the 16th cen-
tury, Iznik potters
produced imita-
tions of pieces
of Chinese
porcelain such
as this copy of a
Ming dish.

Rock and wave
border pattern

Damascus ware was the name erroneously
given to ceramics produced at Iznik during the
Sfirst balf of the 16th century. They bad fantastic
Sfloral designs in the new
colours of turquoise,
sage green and
manganese. When
such tiles were
discovered at
Damascus, the
similar Iznik
pots were wrongly
assumed to have
been macde there.

Miniature depicting potters

16th-century iznik
mosque lamp

Iznik Ceramics

akin to porcelain. This style of
pottery was invented in Egypt
in around the 12th century. It is
covered by a bright, white slip
(a creamy mixture of clay and
water) and a transparent glaze.
Early iznik pottery is brilliant
blue and white. Later, other
colours, especially a vivid red,
were added. The potteries of
iznik reached their height in
the late 16th and early 17th centuries
but shortly after fell into decline.

Cobalt blue and

white was the striking
combination of colours
used in early Iznik
pottery (produced
between c.1470-1520).
The designs used were
a mixture of Chinese
and Arabesque, as seen
on this tiled panel on
the wall of the Circum-
cision Chamber in
Topkapt Palace. Floral
patterns and animal
motifs were both
popular at this time.

BN )
pyl £
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Armenian bole, an iron-rich
red colour, began to be used in
around 1550, as seen in this
16th-century tankard. New,
realistic tulip and other floral
designs were also introduced, and
Iznik ware enjoyed its heyday,
which lasted until around 1630.

Wall tiles were
not macde in any
quantity until the
reign of Stiley-

| man the Mag-
nificent (1520~
60). Stileyman
used Iznik tiles
to refurbish the

. Dome of the Rock
" in Jerusalem.
Some of the best examples are seen in Istanbul’s
mosques, notably in the Stileymaniye (see pp90—
91), Riistem Paga Mosque (pp88-9) and, bere,
in this example from the Blue Mosque (pp78-9).
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Bursa o

Bursa extends in a swathe
along the northern foothills

Basin, Museum
of Turkish and
Islamic Arts

of Mount Uludag (see p169). A
settlement known as Prusa was
reputedly established here in
the 3rd century BC by Prusias I
of Bithynia. However, it was
the Romans who first spotted
the potential of Bursa’s mineral
springs: today there are an estimated 3,000
baths in the city. In 1326 Bursa became the
first capital of the Ottoman Empire, follow-

ing its capture by Osman Gazi (see p25).

Today Bursa is a provincial capital whose status as
one of Turkey’s foremost centres of commerce and
industry is evident in its broad boulevards and busy
shops and bazaars. Apart from the central market area

(see pp164-5), the most freq|
Yesil, on the eastern side of

uented sightseeing area is
the Gok River, where the

Green Mosque and Green Tomb are the main attractions.

Yildirim Beyazit Mosque
Yildirim Beyazit Camii
Yildinm Cad. [] daily.
This mosque is named after
Beyazit T (see p32), whose
nickname was “Yildirim”,
meaning “thunderbolt”. This
referred to the speed with
which he reacted to his ene-
mies. Built in 1389, just after
Beyazit became sultan, the
mosque at first doubled as a
lodge for Sufi dervishes (see
p104). Tt has a lovely portico
with five domed bays.
Inside, the interior court (a
covered “courtyard” in Bursa
mosques, which prefigures
the open courtyards preferred
by later Ottoman architects)
and prayer hall are divided
by an impressive arch. This
rises from two mihrab-like
niches. The walls of the

=

The Green Tomb and Green Mosque, B

prayer hall itself are adorned
with several bold and attrac-
tive pieces of calligraphic
design (see p95).

E3 Green Tomb

Yesil Turbe

Yesil Cad. [] daily. %7 donation.
The tomb of Mehmet I (see
30), which stands elevated
above the mosque among tall
cypress trees, is one of the
city’s most prominent land-
marks. Tt was built between
1414 and 1421. The tomb is
much closer to the Seljuk (see
p21) style of architecture than
Classical Ottoman. Its exterior
is covered in green tiles, al-
though these are mainly 19th-
century replacements for the
original faience. However, a
few older tiles survive around
the entrance portal.

ursa’s most distinctive monuments

View over the rooftops of the city of Bursa

The interior, entered through
a pair of superbly carved
wooden doors, is simply
dazzling. The space is small
and the ornamentation, cover-
ing a relatively large surface
area, is breathtaking in its
depth of colour and detail.
The mihrab has especially
intricate tile panels, including
a representation of a mosque
lamp hanging from a gold
chain between two candles.
The sultan’s magnificent
sarcophagus is covered in
exquisite tiles and adorned
by a long Koranic inscription.
Nearby sarcophagi contain
the remains of his sons,
daughters and nursemaid.

Green Mosque

Yesil Cami

Yesil Cad. [] daily.

Bursa’s most famous monu-
ment was commissioned by
Mehmet T in 1412, but it
remained unfinished at his
death in 1421 and still lacks
a portico. Nevertheless, it is
the finest Ottoman mosque
built before the conquest of
Constantinople (see p26).

The main portal is tall and
elegant, with an intricately
carved canopy. It opens into
the entrance hall. Beyond this
is an interior court, with a
carved fountain at its centre.
A flight of three steps leads up
from here into the prayer hall.
On either side of the steps are
niches where worshippers
once left their shoes (see p39).
Above the entrance to the
court is the sultan’s loge, re-
splendent in richly patterned
tiles created using the cuerda
seca technique. They are in
beautiful greens, blues and
yellows, with threads of gold
which were added after firing.
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The tiling of the prayer hall
was carried out by Ali Ibn
flyas Ali, who learnt his art in
Samarkand. Tt was the first
time that tiles were used
extensively in an Ottoman
mosque and set a precedent
for the later widespread use
of Iznik tiles (see p161). The
tiles covering the walls of the
prayer hall, which is well lit
by floor-level windows, are
simple, green and hexagonal.
Against this plain backdrop,
the effect of the mihrab is
especially glorious. Predomi-
nantly turquoise, deep blue

and white, with touches of
gold, the mihrab’s tiles depict
flowers, leaves, arabesques
and geometric patterns. The
mosque’s exterior was also
once clad in tiles, but they
have since disappeared.

M Museum of Turkish and
Islamic Arts

Tirk ve Islam Eserleri Miizesi Yesil
Cad. Tel (0224) 327 76 79.[ ]
9am-noon, 1-4:30pm Mon-fri. 2}
This museum is housed in a
fine Ottoman building, the
former medrese (see p38) of
the Green Mosque. A colon-

VISITORS" CHECKLIST

90 km (60 miles) S of Istanbul.
B 7,995,000. B¥ 20 km (12
miles) NW. =5 Kibris Sehitler Cad,
(0224) 261 54 00. |§] Atatlirk
Cad; Osman Gazi Cad.

ﬂ Ulucami Parki, Orhangazi
Altgecidi, No. 1 (0224) 220 18
48. [ Textiles Fair (mid-Apr);
Bursa Festival (12 Jun—12 Jul).

nade surrounds its courtyard
on three sides and the cells
leading off from it, formerly
used by the students, are now
exhibition galleries. At the far
end of the courtyard is the
large, domed hall which was
originally the main classroom.
Exhibits dating from the
12th-20th centuries include
Seljuk and Ottoman ceramics,
elaborately decorated Korans
and costumes ranging from
linen dervish robes to ornate
wedding gowns. A display on
Turkish baths (see p67) fea-
tures embroidered towels and
exotic high-heeled silver bath
clogs. There is also a recreated
setting of a traditional circum-
cision room, complete with
a four-poster bed.

(1
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Bursa: The Market Area

Bursa’s central market area is a warren of streets
and ancient Ottoman courtyards (hans). The area
is still central to Bursa’s commercial activity and is a
good place to experience the life of the city. Here too
you can buy the local fabrics for which the town is
famous, particularly handmade lace, towelling and silk.
The silkworm was introduced to the Byzantine Empire
in the 6th century and there
| is still a brisk trade in silk
cocoons carried out in Koza
Han all year round. Among
the many other items on sale
today are the lovely hand-
painted, camel-skin Karagoz
puppets (see p168).

* Covered Bazaar

The great bazaar, built by
Mebmet I in the 15th century,
consists of a long ball with
domed bays, adjoining
by a bigh, vaulted hall.
* The Great Mosque The Bedesten is home
A three-tiered ablutions fountain 1o jewellers’ shops.
stands beneath the central dome

| of this monumental mosque,
which was erected %2
in 1396-9. }

Sengiil

Hamami
Turkish
baths

Bey Han (also called Emir T
Han) was built as part of the Orhan
Gazi Mosque complex, to provide
revenue for the mosque’s upkeep. Cafés
The Bey Hamami =
(1339) is the oldest 4,
Turkish baths building
in the world. Tt now
houses workshops.

| Koza Park
The gardens in front of Koza Han, with
. i their fountains, benches and shaded café
wd tables, are a popular meeting place for
locals and visitors throughout the day.
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* Koza Han

This is the most
attractive and
Jfascinating building
in the market area.
Since it was built in
1491 by Beyazit II,
it has been central
to the silk trade.

Geyve Han is
also known as
fvaz Pasa Han.

Fidan Han dates from
around 1470, when it was
built by a grand vizier of
Mehmet the Conqueror.

Flower Market
The numerous bunches
of flowers for sale in
igkoza the streets around the
Han town ball make a
Dpicturesque sight in

the midst of Bursa’s
bustling market area.

0 metres 40

—————

0 yards 40
STAR SIGHTS

% Great Mosque

The Belediye, Bursa’s town
hall, is a Swiss chalet-style,
half-timbered building that
forms a surprising landmark
in the centre of the town.

Built in 1339, just 13
information | years after the Ottoman
KEY conquest of Bursa, this
mosque is the oldest of the

city’s imperial mosques.

= == == Suggested route
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Bursa: Tophane and Muradiye

Tophane, the most ancient part of
Bursa, is distinguished by its clock-
tower which stands on top of a hill. This
area was formerly the site of the citadel
and is bounded by what remains of the
original Byzantine walls. It is also known

The clocktower
in Tophane

Exploring Tophane
Tophane’s northern limit is
marked by the best preserved
section of the citadel walls,
built on to an outcrop of rock.
At the top is a pleasant park
filled with cafés, which also
contains the imposing clock-
tower and the tombs of the
founders of the Ottoman
dynasty. From here you can
look down on the lower part
of Tophane, where archetypal
Ottoman houses still line
many of the twisting streets.
Pinarbast Kapisi, at Tophane’s
southern point, is the gate
through which Orhan Gazi en-
tered Bursa in 1326 (see p25).

f# Tophane Citadel

Hisar

Osman Gazi Cad. [] daily.
The citadel walls can be
viewed from a set of steps
which lead uphill from the
intersection of Cemal Nadir
Caddesi and Atatiirk Caddesi.
These steps end at the tea
gardens above. The citadel
fell into Turkish hands when

as Hisar, which means “fortress” in
Turkish. If you continue westwards for
| 2 km (1mile), crossing the Cilimboz
River, you come to the historic district
of Muradiye. The 15th-century Muradiye _a, church and he himself was
Mosque, from which this suburb takes
its name, is one of the most impres-
sive royal mosque and tomb
complexes in the city.

Orhan Gazi’s
troops broke
through its
walls. Later, he
built a wooden
palace inside
ey

EJ Tombs of Osman and
Orhan Gazi

Osman & Orhan Gazi Tirbeleri
Ulu Cami Cad. [] daily. I donation.
Osman Gazi began the process
of Ottoman expansion in the
13th century (see p25) and
attempted to capture Bursa.
But it was his son, Orhan, who
took the city just before his
father died. Orhan brought
his father’s body to be buried
in the baptistry of a converted

later buried in the nave. The
tombs that can be seen to-
day date from 1868. They
were rebuilt after the
W, destruction of the
church and the
original tombs
in an earth-
quake in 1855.
Fragments of
the church’s
mosaic floor
survive inside

the citadel

and had the
old Byzantine
ramparts refor-
tified. The walls had until this
era delimited the entire cir-
cumference of the ancient city.
However, Orhan began to
encourage Bursa’s expansion
and developed the present-
day commercial heart of the
city further to the east.

South of Hastalaryurdu
Caddesi is an area notable
for its old Ottoman houses
(see p61). Most of these have
overhanging upper storeys.
They consist of a timber frame
filled in with adobe and plas-
tered over, then painted in
bright colours. Kaleici Sokag,
which can be reached down
Karadut Sokagi from Hasta-
laryurdu Caddesi, is one of

Tomb of Osman Gazi, the first
great Ottoman leader

the best streets of such houses.

the tomb of
Orhan Gazi.

Alaeddin Mosque

Alaeddin Camii

Alaeddin Mahallesi. [ ] prayer
times only. yof

Further exploration in the
Tophane area reveals the
Alaeddin Mosque, the oldest
in Bursa, built within 10 years
of the city’s conquest. It is in
the form of a simple domed
square, fronted by a portico
of four Byzantine columns
with capitals. The mosque
was commissioned by Alaeddin
Bey, brother of and vizier
(see p39) to Orhan Gazi.

Exploring Muradiye
Muradiye is a leafy, largely
residential district. Close to
the Muradiye Mosque are the
Husnti Ziiber House and the
Ottoman House, two fine
examples of traditional Turk-
ish homes. To the north is a
park, among the attractions of
which are a boating lake and
the Archaeological Museum.

Muradiye Mosque
Muradiye Kiilliyesi

Murat Il Cad. [] daily. [ donation.
This mosque complex was
built by Murat 11, father of
Mehmet the Conqueror (see
p26), in the early 15th century.
The mosque itself is preceded
by a graceful domed portico.
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Octagonal tomb of f
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of Muradiye Mosque
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Its wooden door is finely
carved and the interior
decorated with early Iznik
tiles (see p161). The medrese,
beside the mosque, now
serves as a dispensary. Tt is a
perfectly square building, with
cells surrounding a central
garden courtyard. Its dershane,
or main classroom, is richly
tiled and adorned with an
ornate brickwork facade.

The mosque garden, with
its cypresses, well-tended
flower beds and fountains, is
one of Bursa’s most tranquil
retreats. Murat II was the last
Ottoman sultan to be buried
in Bursa and his mausoleum,
standing in the garden beside
the mosque and medrese, was
completed in 1437. His earth-
filled sarcophagus lies beneath
an opening in the roof. The
eaves above the tomb’s 16th-
century porch still retain their
original painted decoration.

There are 11 other tombs in
the garden, several of which
were built for murdered
princes. One such is the tomb
of Mustafa, a son of Silleyman
the Magnificent, who was
disposed of to clear the way
for his younger brother, Selim
11, “the Sot” (see p76). Accor-
ding to an inscription, Selim
had the octagonal mausoleum
built for his brother. The in-
terior is decorated with some
particularly beautiful iznik tile
panels depicting carnations,
tulips and hyacinths. The tiles
date from the best Iznik
period, the late 16th century.

% Hiisnii Ziiber House

Hiisnti Ziiber Evi, Yasayan Miize
Uzunyol Sok 3, Muradiye. Tel (0224)
221 3542. [ ) 10am-midday, 1-5pm
Tue-Sun. 17} 4 Ottoman House
temporarily closed.

Among the numerous well-
preserved houses in the
Muradiye district is

Muradiye Mosque, constructed by Murat II

the Hiisni Ziiber
House. This 150-
year-old mansion
has been opened
as a museum by its
present owner, the
artist Hiisnt Ziber.
It was originally a
guest house for
visiting dignitaries,
later becoming the
Russian Consulate
and, most recently,
a private residence.
The house is an
interesting example
of vernacular archi-
tecture. The upper
storey projects over
the street in the
traditional manner
of Ottoman houses
(see p63). Over-

looking the interior

courtyard, which has rooms
arranged around it on three
sides, there is a loggia. Origi-
nally this would have been
open, but it is now glazed.
Meanwhile, inside the house,
the decorative wooden ceilings
(some with hand-painted bor-
ders) are particularly attractive.

Hiusnii Ziber’s private col-
lection of carved wooden
objects is now displayed here.
These include spoons, musi-
cal instruments and even
farming utensils. They are
all decorated with Anatolian
motifs by a unique technique
of engraving by burning
known as pyrogravure.

The 18th-century Ottoman
House (Osmanli Evi) stands
on the square in front of the
Muradiye Mosque. It is another
fine house, but is closed to
the public at present. The
upper storey is adorned with
elaborately patterned brick-
work. Shutters and grilles
hide the windows.

Hiisnii Ziiber House, dating from
the mid-19th century

m Archaeological Museum
Arkeoloji Muizesi

Kultir Parki. Tel (0224) 234 49 18.
[ 8am-midday, 1-5pm Tue-Sun. 17}
Finds dating from the third
millennium BC up to the
Ottoman conquest of Bursa
are collected in this museum.
In the first hall there are clasps,
vessels and an inscription
from the Phrygian period.
Other exhibits include Roman
and Hellenistic jewellery and
ceramics, a number of Roman
statues of Cybele, goddess of
nature, and a Roman bronze
of the god Apollo with
strange, lifelike eyes. There
are also displays of Byzantine
religious objects and coins.
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Bursa: Cekirge

With a name which translates literally as “Realm

of the Crickets”, Cekirge still earns Bursa the tag

of yesil, or “green”, by which it is known in Turkey.
This leafy western spa suburb of the city has attracted
visitors to its mineral springs since Roman times. In the
6th century the Emperor Justinian (see p20) built a bath-

house here and his wife Theodora later arrived with

a retinue of 4,000. Cekirge
of the

is also the location of most
city’s finest hotels and the

area’s hillside setting affords

N

some spectacular views.

SN

Cekirge’s Old Spa, dating back to the 14th-century reign of Murat |

Y New Spa
Yeni Kaplica
Mudanya Yolu 6. Tel (0224) 236 69 68.
[ daily 5am-midnight.
Despite their name, the New
Spa baths have a substantial
pedigree. They were rebuilt
in 1522 by Riistem Pasa, grand
vizier (see p29) to Siilleyman
the Magnificent (see p26). The
sultan is said to have ordered
their rebuilding in gratitude
after his recovery from gout
when bathing in the Byzantine
baths that stood on this site.
The central pool is sur-
rounded with bays adorned
with beautiful but damaged
Iznik tiles (see p161). They
are not open to women.
Within the same complex,
however, there are two other
baths: the modern Kaynarca
baths which is for women
and the Karamustafa baths
for couples.

1 Celik Palas Hotel

Celik Palas Otel

Cekirge Cad 79.

Tel (0224) 233 38 00.

This five-star hotel (see p191)
stands on one of Bursa’s
main thoroughfares. Built in
1933, it is the city’s oldest,
most prestigious spa hotel.
Atattirk (see pp30-31) fre-
quented its baths. Open to
both sexes, their centrepiece
is an attractive circular pool
in a domed marble room.

K} Old Spa

Eski Kaplica

Hotel Kervansaray, Cekirge Meydani,
Kervansaray. Tel (0224) 233 93 00.
[ 8am~10:30pm daily.

The Old Spa baths were estab-
lished by Murat I in the late
14th century and renovated
in 1512, during the reign of
Beyazit II. Remnants of an
earlier building, said to date
from the reign of Emperor
Justinian (see p20), are also
visible. These include some
Byzantine columns and capi-

room) of the men’s section
(see p67). You enter the baths
through the new Kervansaray
Termal Hotel. Spring water,
said to cure skin diseases and
rheumatism, bubbles into the
central pool of both the men’s
and women’s sections at 45 °C
(113 °F). The women’s baths
are not as old or grand, but
are still the most attractive
women-only ones in Bursa.

Murat | Hiidavendigar
Mosque

Murat I Hidavendigar Camii

I. Murat Cad, Cekirge. [ ] daily.
Bursa’s most unusual mosque
was built for Murat I, self-
styled Hiidavendigar, meaning
“Creator of the Universe”, in
1385. It is unlike any other
mosque in the Ottoman world:
its prayer hall is on the ground
floor, with the medrese built
around a second storey.

The facade looks more like
that of a palace than a mosque,
with a five-arched portico
surmounted by a colonnade.
This colonnade in turn has
five sets of double-arched
windows divided by Byzantine
columns. Inside, the domed
court and prayer hall rise
through both storeys. The
upper storey colonnade leads
to the cells of the medrese.
On this level, passageways
lead around both sides of the
mosque to a mysterious room,
located over the mihrab, whose

tals in the hararet (steam original purpose is unknown.

KARAGOZ SHADOW PUPPETS

Suspended above Cekirge Caddesi is an imposing monument
to the town’s two famous scapegoats, Karagdz and Hacivat.
According to legend, these local clowns were executed in
the 14th century for distracting their fellow workers while
building the Orhan Gazi Mosque (see p165). It is said that
Sultan Orhan (see p32) created a shadow
play about them in remorse.

In fact, shadow puppet theatre
arrived in Turkey later and is
thought to have originated in

Southeast Asia. Selim I is report-

ed to have brought it back to
Istanbul after his Egyptian
campaign in 1517. The camel-
skin puppets are 35-40 cm
(14-16 in) high, brightly dyed
and oiled to aid translucency.
They are still made today and can
be purchased in an antique shop in
the Bedesten run by Sinasi Celikkol,
who also occasionally puts on shows.

Cadi, a witch in the
Karag6z puppet shows
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Uludag National Park, a popular ski resort in winter

Uludag National
Park @
Uludag Milli Parki

100 km (60 miles) S of Istanbul.
Tel (0224) 283 21 97. E Teleferik
to Sarialan, then dolmus. [] daily.
IZ4 only for vehicles.

One of a number of Turkish
mountains to claim the

title of Mount Olympus,
Uludag was believed by the
Bithynians (of northwest Asia
Minor) to be the home of the
gods. In the Byzantine era, it
was home to several monastic
orders. After the Ottoman
conquest of Bursa, Muslim
dervishes (see p104) moved
into their abandoned monas-
teries. Nowadays, however,
no traces of Uludag’s former
religious communities remain.

A visit to Uludag National
Park is especially enjoyable
in spring or summer, when its
alpine heights are relatively
cool and it becomes a popular
picnic area. The park includes
27,000 acres (67,000 hectares)
of woodland. As you ascend,
the deciduous beech, oak and
hazel gradually give way to
juniper and aspen, and finally
to dwarf junipers. In spring,
hyacinths and crocuses blan-
ket the wooded slopes.

In winter, Uludag is trans-
formed into Turkey’s most
fashionable ski resort. The
industry centres on the
Oteller region, which has
good alpine-style hotels.

Osman Gazi (see p25) is
supposed to have founded
seven villages for his seven
sons and their brides in the

Bursa region. Cumalikizik,

on the lower slopes of Uludag,
is the most perfectly preserved
of the five surviving villages
and is now registered as a
national monument. Among
its houses are many 750-year-
old semi-timbered buildings.
The village can be reached
by minibus from Bursa.

Bird Paradise
National Park ®

Kuscenneti Milli Parki

115 km (70 miles) SW of Istanbul.
Tel (0266) 735 54 22. D] from
Bandirma. [} 8am-8pm daily.

An estimated 255 species
of birds visit Bird Paradise
National Park at the edge of
Kus Goli, the lake formerly
known as Manyas Golui.
Located on the great
migratory paths between
Europe and Asia, the park is
a happy combination of plant
cover, reed beds and a lake
that supports at least 20
species of fish.

At the entrance to the park,
there is a small museum with
displays about various birds.

Bird Paradise National Park

Binoculars are provided at the
desk and visitors make their
way to an observation tower.
Two main groups of birds
visit the lake: those that come
here to breed (March—July),
and those which pass by dur-
ing migration, either heading
south (November) or north
(April-May). Among the nu-
merous different birds that
breed around the lake are the
endangered Dalmatian peli-
can, the great crested grebe,
cormorants, herons, bitterns
and spoonbills. The migratory
birds, which can be seen in
spring and autumn, include
storks, cranes, pelicans and
birds of prey such as sparrow-
hawks and spotted eagles.

Sandy beach on Avsa, the most
popular of the Marmara Islands

Marmara Islands @
Marmara Adalari

120 km (75 miles) SW of Istanbul.
E= from Yenikapi. [l Neyire Sitki
Cad 31/3, Erdek, (0266) 835 11 69.

This beautiful archipelago
in the Sea of Marmara is a
popular destination with Turk-
ish holiday-makers, particularly
with residents of Istanbul.
The loveliest of the islands
is Avsa, whose sandy beaches
and regular summer ferry
service make it popular with
Turks and, increasingly,
foreign tourists. The ferry
arrives at Turkeli on the west
coast. Transport to the most
popular beach, at Mavikoy,
is by a tractor-pulled train.
Marmara, the largest island,
has one beach, north of Mar-
mara village at Cinarlr. It is
famous for producing the
prized Proconnesian marble.
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The Dardanelles ®
Canakkale Bogazi

200 km (125 miles) SW of Istanbul
E Canakkale-Eceabat car ferry.
Canakkale. [l Canakkale iskele
Meydani 27, (0286) 217 11 87.

Named after Dardanus, an
ancient king of Canak-

kale, the Dardanelles are the
straits that link the Aegean Sea
to the Sea of Marmara, and
which separate European Tur-
key from Asia. Some 40 km
(25 miles) long and narrowing
to little more than a kilometre
(half a mile) wide, they are
steeped in legend and have
been of strategic importance
for thousands of years. In mod-
ern times they are probably
best known as the setting for
a disastrous Allied campaign
during World War I.

The classical name for this
channel of water was the
Hellespont. According to leg-
end, the Greek goddess Helle
fell into the straits from the
back of a golden winged ram.
In another tale, the lovelorn
Leander swam nightly across
the Hellespont to meet his
lover, Hero, until one night
he drowned. The English
Romantic poet Byron swam
across the straits in 1810, in
emulation of Leander, and
remarked on the hazardous
nature of the currents.

Ganakkale, the old town at
the mouth of the Dardanelles,
has two museums. The Mili-
tary and Naval Museum is
a short walk from the ferry
docks. Its collection includes
a pocket watch that saved the

The Canakkale Sehitleri Memorial,
honouring the Turkish dead

GALLIPOLI
PENNINSULA
¢

LOCATOR MAP

Anzac Cove @

Canakkale ®

Cape Helles @

Chunuk Bair @

Kabatepe Visitors’
Centre @

National Park Information
Centre ®

Suvla Bay ®

KEY

["] Area of war memorials

= Road

--- Ferry route

life of Atatuirk (see pp30-31)

when he was hit by shrapnel.
The Archaeological Museum,
south of the town centre, has
exhibits from ancient Troy.

To the west is the beautiful
Gallipoli (Gelibolu) Penin-
sula. Part of this land is a
national park, with an
information centre
near Eceabat. The
peninsula, which
is now quite
tranquil,
was the
scene of
horrific battles
that took place in 1915.
The objectives of the
Allied forces” invasion
of Gallipoli were to
capture Istanbul,
force Turkey into
submission and
open a strategic
supply route to
Russia. The
campaign began on 25 April
1915 with the landings of
British and French troops at
Cape Helles, and the Anzacs
(Australian and New Zealand
forces) at what they thought
was the beach at Kabatepe.
But currents had swept the
Anzac force about 1.5 km
(Imile) to the north, to a
place now known as Anzac
Cove, near Art Burnu. Here
they were faced with
unknown and tough terrain,
including a cliff.

The Turks managed to
retain the high ground of
Chunuk Bair. The battle here
lasted three days, during
which 28,000 men were

Mehmetcik Memorial
near Anzac Cove

killed. When the Allied forces
failed to make headway, more
British troops landed at Suvla
Bay on 6 August. This new
offensive might have been
successful, but Allied
intelligence continually
underestimated the
Turks and
the difficult
ground.
The terrible
slaughter of
deadlocked
trench warfare
continued until
the Allies were
finally evacuated
on 19 December.
More than 500,000
Allied and Turkish
troops lost their
lives and the
whole peninsula
is scattered
with battlefield
sites and
war memorials.

The best place to begin a
tour of the war memorials
and cemeteries is at the
Kabatepe Visitors’ Centre,
which houses a small collec-
tion of memorabilia including
weapons, uniforms and sol-
diers’ poignant letters home.
North of here, near Anzac
Cove, are several cemeteries
and monuments. Chunuk Bair,
now a peaceful pine grove
above the beaches, has a
memorial to the New
Zealanders who died and
some reconstructed Turkish
trenches. The British
Memorial is at Cape Helles,
on the peninsula’s tip. Further
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east along the coast stand
both the French Memorial and
the vast Canakkale Sehitleri
Memorial to the Turks who
died defending Gallipoli.

I Military Museum

Cimenlik Kalesi, Canakkale. Tel (0286)
217 24 60. [ ] 9am-noon, 1:30-
5:30pm Tue, Wed & Fri-Sun.lZ3

I Archaeological Museum
Atattrk Cad, Canakkale. Tel (0286)
217 67 40. [] call for opening
times. 17

H National Park
Information Centre

Near Eceabat. Tel (0286) 814 11
28. [] 9am-6pm Mon~Fri.

Park [ ] daily. I3

H Kabatepe Visitors’ Centre
Near Kabatepe. Tel (0286) 814 12
97. [} 9am-6pm daily. I

Troy ©®

Truva

350 km (220 miles) SW of Istanbul
5 from Canakkale. [l Canakkale
Iskele Meydani 27, (0286) 217 11
87. [] 8am-7pm daily (Nov-Apr:
until 5pm). 12

In Homer’s epic poem, the
Iliad, the city of Troy is
besieged by the Greeks for
ten years. For centuries Troy
was assumed by many to
be as mythical as Achilles,
Hector and the other heroes
in the tale. But a handful of
19th-century archaeologists
were convinced that Homer

had based his story on the
events that happened to a
real city and that traces of it
could be found by searching
near the Dardanelles. In 1865
British Consul Frank Calvert
began investigating some
ruins in Hisarlik. This inter-
ested the German archae-
ologist Heinrich Schliemann
who soon found evidence
of an ancient city resembling
the layout of Homer’s Troy.
Over the last hundred years
most historians have come

Schliemann’s wife wearing
some of the excavated treasure

SCHLIEMANN’S SEARCH FOR ANCIENT TROY
Heinrich Schliemann used a fortune amassed in business to
realize his life-long dream of discovering ancient Troy. He
began excavating some likely sites in the 1860s and started

on the ruins at Hisarlik in
1870. An amateur, Schliemann
drove a great trench through
the mound, destroying some
walls in his haste. He soon
claimed to have found Troy,
though he knew not all his
findings pointed to this. His
greatest find — a hoard of
gold and silver jewellery that
he smuggled to Germany,
calling it “Priam’s Treasure”
(see p64) — pre-dates Homer’s
Troy by 1,000 years. Some

of the treasure disappeared
after World War IT only to
reappear spectacularly in
Moscow in August 1994.

Model of the legendary wooden horse at Troy

to accept that this city must
at least have inspired Homer,
and was possibly even called
Troy and besieged at the time
specified in the story.

The settlement mound in
fact has nine distinct levels
(labelled Troy I-IX) represent-
ing 3,000 years of habitation.
Sadly, the remains are sparse,
and it takes some imagination
to evoke an image of a city.
Many structures were made
of mud bricks and obviously
levelled before new settle-
ments were built on top.

The city Homer refers to is
probably Troy VI (1800-1250
BO), while the Greek and
Roman levels, when the city
was known as Ilion, are Troy
VIII (700-300 BC) and Troy IX
(300 BC-AD 1) respectively.

What has survived includes
a defence wall, palaces and
houses from various periods,
two sanctuaries (probably 8th
century BC) and a Roman
theatre. The grandest dwel-
ling is the Pillar House, near
the southern gate. Some be-
lieve this is the Palace of King
Priam mentioned in the Iiad.

More conspicuous is a re-
creation of the wooden horse,
inside which a small group of
the Greeks supposedly hid.
There is also a visitors’ centre
with a video and a scale
model of the site.
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THREE GUIDED WALKS

ith its frenetic atmd-

sphere, traditional cafés

at almost every corner
and historic sights from centuries
of different rulers, Istanbul is a
wonderful city for walkers.

On the following five pages
are routes for three walks that
take you through three differ-
ent areas of Istanbul. They will
take you past many of the most
interesting sights. The areas
covered range from the old
Greek and Jewish neighbour- refreshment stops along each
hoods of Balat and Fener, . \useum sign Toute. In addition to these
where historic synagogues can walks, each of the four areas
still be seen amid traditional tripe of Istanbul described in the Area-by-
shops, to the wonderful aromas of cof-  Area section of this book has a walk
fee, spices and fresh fish permeating on its Street-by-Street map.

the air in the Galata region of the
city. For a little more elegance, a
stroll along Istiklal Caddesi will
confirm why this area of Istanbul
has the reputation for celebrating
its European side, rather than
Asian, while the Istanbul
Modern Art Museum (see p107)
is the finest venue in the city for
contemporary art. All the walks
are intended to be done at a
leisurely pace, and there are
plenty of suggestions for

Istanbul Modern

CHOOSING A WALK

The Three Walks

This map shows
the location of the
three guided walks
in relation to the
main sighiseeing
areas of Istarnbul.

Spices from the Grand Bazaar in Galata

{see pp98-9)

%h/e/Beyotjlu district seen
from the Golden Horn

(see p100-107)

*+ Beyoglu

Taksim to the

Istanbul
Balat and N e
Fencs (pp176-7)
p173
Sultanahmet 0 kilometres 1
————,
/ﬂ’ N—r— 0 miles 1
- N
Beyazit to Galata KEY
(bp174-5)

~~~~~~ Walk route
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A 45-Minute Walk in Balat and Fener

The Balat and Fener neighbourhoods epitomize the
cultural diversity and tolerance that was the hallmark of
the Ottomans. Fener was predominantly a Greek area,
while Balat was Jewish, and this walk guides you around
the ancient churches, synagogues, Turkish baths and
mosques in the atmospheric back streets. They may
have seen better days, but a rejuvenation scheme is
putting life back into this picturesque locality.
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This walk
starts in the heart

of Balat at the Ahrida
Synagogue @ (see

p110), founded before
the Ottoman conquest

in 1453. It has been
restored many times,

most recently in 1992.

The 19th-century Yanbol
synagogue @, however,

is now boarded up but its
position indicates its former
significance. The Church of
Holy Angels ® dates from
Byzantine times. Below it flows
a sacred spring and every 14
September supplicants of all
religions gather here to pray
for cures from their ailments.

Walk to Leblebiciler Sokak

and on the right at No. 51 is
Merkez sekerci ®, a sweet
shop since the 1870s. Further
along is Agora ®, Istanbul’s
oldest tavern (meyhane). Turn
left on Hizir Cavus Koprii
Sokak and continue down
this road until you reach
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Kofteci Arnavut ®. This
traditional meatball restaurant
has been serving its loyal
customers since 1947.

Turn right and then left on
to Vodina Caddesi and on
your right is Tahtali Minare
Hamam @), one of the oldest
Turkish baths in the city,
dating from the 1500s. Note
the boiler room chimney on
the roof. A short distance
further on your right is Tahtal:
Minare Mosque ®, built by
Fatih Sultan Mehmet IT in

1458. Next door is the Tomb

TIPS FOR WALKERS

Starting point: Ahrida
Synagogue.

Length: 1.5 km (1 mile)
Getting there: Ffrom Emindni
bus terminus, take No 99 or
any bus displaying Eyip or
Ayvansaray. Ask the driver to let
you off at Balat. There are also
ferry points at Fener and Balat.
Stopping-off points: Hotel
Daphnis @) is a good spot to
stop for a meal.

of Hazreti Hiiseyin Sadik ®,
who was buried as a gazi
(warrior of the faith) in the
1450s. Continue down the
road and you will be able to
see the cross of Aya Yorgi
Metokhi Church @ (no public
access) above its high wall.

At the end of the road turn
left and on the right is the
Greek Orthodox Patriarchate
@ (see p111), seat of the
Greek church since 1601.
Look at the red-brick building
on the ramparts above. This is
the Fener Greek Boys High
School @, established in
Byzantine times. On the left is
the Hotel Daphnis @. Turn

left onto Abdulezel Pasa

Caddesi and the stone

. building on your right is

. the Women’s Library @,
the city’s sole female-
only information
centre. Further up is the
Church of St Stephen
of the Bulgars ® (see
p110). From here the
Fener ferry point will take you
back to the city centre.

Back streets of the Balat district
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A 90-Minute Walk from Taksim Square to the

Istanbul Modern Art Museum

It was in the Pera district that Constantinople’s
cosmopolitan population lived and worked in the 19th
century, where the embassies and palatial residences
mirrored the lifestyle of Topkapt Palace, on the opposite
side of the Golden Horn. Once known as the “Paris of
the East”, life centred on the main street of Pera, today’s
Istiklal Caddesi. Even today the Avrupa Pasajt and Balik
Pazar markets seem wistfully unchanged, especially
when contrasted with the remarkable Pera Museum and

the sophisticated Istanbul Modern Art Museum.

Avrupa Pasaji bazaar ®

Along istiklal Caddesi

Begin the walk in Taksim
Square @ at the Independence
Monument, completed by
Pietro Canonica in 1928, that
depicts Atattirk with his
political contemporaries.
Before following the vintage
tram line down Istiklal
Caddesi, have a look at the
octagonal stone tower,
known as the Maksem @, on
the corner of Taksim Caddesi.
Dating from 1832, it was once
used as a reservoir — you can
still see carved bird houses
and remains of a fountain.
On your right is the French
Cultural Centre, while on the
left, further down at No. 127
is a traditional sweet shop,
Haci Bekir, dating from 1777.
Saray Muhallebicisi ® is
perfect for a coffee break and
a chance to sample one of
the renowned pastries.

Market shopping

Pass Yesilcam Sokak, the
home of Turkish cinema, and
at Sarabi Wine House, turn
into the former flower

you reach the exquisite
Pera Museum ® (once the
Bristol Hotel), where the
philanthropic Koc family
exhibits their art collection
and Turkish tiles.

market, Cicek Pasaji ®, built
by Italian architect Michel
Capello in 1856, and now
filled with restaurants. At Stop
Restaurant, veer left then right
on Sahne Sokak, which forms ADDES'\
the backbone of the Fish . ¢ s
Market, or Balik Pazar ®. LABRS 5
0% v

Return along Sahne NCU S
Sokak and stroll down 5 TOPGEKENLER (O
the arcaded Hall of
Mirrors, or Avrupa S
Pasajt ® on the right.
The Neo-Renaissance
interior, with marble
floors and classical
statues, was once lit
by gas lamps and
mirrors amplified
the light.

Turn right and
then left onto
Mesrutiyet
Caddesi and
follow the road
around to the left
with the British
Consulate General @ on
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TAKSIM
< MEgAN' which takes you past
2 . the Greek Orthodox
« %Y @ school, Zografyon @ on
2 .- @ Taksim the left. In front of you
IS . a2 > is Galatasaray Hamamu
P a @, Turkish baths built in
%o, @St % Q : <
%ot Py ot R g 1481 and in use ever since.
oot ¥ Y = Take the steep cobbled
- K T ;:'7 street thgt descends hesidev
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N SN Sokak, which becomes a
% RS staircase at the bottom. Turn
s % o right onto Harblyg
s 5 Sokak and you will
3 K reach French Street,
. or Fransiz Sokagi @
$ Tsor on the left, where
8 an elegant French
5 ambience meets
K classy Beyoglu. Enjoy
S lunch or a glass of
PALAsKA:DK wine at one of the
French-style cafés.
Refreshed,
2 continue along
KASATURA 5o 2 French Street and at
., 2 Interior of the Tophane the end turn right
Bi 5 foundry @ onto Bogazkesen
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Historic buildings
Walk through the Odakule
Arkade and turn left on to
Istiklal Caddesi. Opposite the
Galatasary High School is the
Old Beyoglu Post Office ®. A
campaign to keep it open was
unsuccessful and the Baroque
marble building was closed in
1998. Originally a wealthy
merchant’s residence, it still
has an ornamental fountain
in the penthouse.

Take the second right onto
Tornacibast

«+»+ Walk route

@ Metro

Caddesi and
continue left down the hill
until you reach Tomtom
Kaptan Mosque ®. The 17th-
century fountain here, which
was once a grand landmark,

TIPS FOR WALKERS

Starting point: Taksim Square
Length: 2.5 km (1.5 miles)
Getting there: Ffrom
Sultanahmet, a city bus goes
reqularly from outside Haghia
Sophia direct to Taksim Square.
Or take the Tinel funicular train
up the hill from Karakdy, then
travel up Istiklal Caddesi by
nostalgic tram to Taksim Square.
Stopping-off points: The fish
market on Sahne Sokak has lots
of cheerful eateries. French Street
is ideal for an elegant drink.

Shopping and museums
Cukurcuma Caddesi and
Tomtom Kaptan Sokak
intersect here and both have
curio shops such as Tiiterler
at No. 186. At the bottom
of this street on the corner
of Defterdar Yokusu is the
Tophane @, once an
Ottoman cannon foundry.

Cross Necatibey Caddesi
over the tramline to the 16th-
century Kilic Ali Pala Mosque
(see p106), one of the last
masterpieces of architect
Mimar Sinan. Opposite is the
Tophane fountain @ (see
p106) built in 1732, which
now bestows locally bottled
drinking water. From here
you can also see the Baroque
Clock Tower @®.

Continue left along Salt
Pazari @ with its shops,
restaurants and narghile
(pipe) smokers. A sign directs
you to the Istanbul Modern
Art Museum @ (see p107),
with its collection of
contemporary Turkish art.

To get back to the city
centre, catch the west-bound
tram which takes you directly
back to Sultanahmet over the

is now sadly neglected.

Galata Bridge.

Pera Museum
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A 90-Minute Walk from Beyazit to Galata

Istanbul is a seductive mix of ancient and modern,
religious and secular, and this walk will give you a
flavour of both. Starting at Beyazit Tower in the city’s
historic quarter, the route takes you through narrow
shopping streets brimming with energy, over the Galata
Bridge with its stunning views of the Bosphorus, to

the Beyoglu district and trendy Tiinel area, where the
shops, bars and cafés lend Istanbul its chic reputation.

Striking facade of Siilemaniye Mosque

Mimar Sinan architecture
Start at Sami Onar Cadessi,
from where you can see the
striking Beyazit Tower @,
also visible from much of the
surrounding area. It was built
in 1828 as a fire watch and
stands in the grounds of
Istanbul University @, which
once served as the Ministry of
War and whose huge, orna-
mental gates are a worthy
photographic subject in

TIPS FOR WALKERS

Starting point: Beyazit Tower,
Length: 7 km (0.5 miles)
Getting there: Get off at Beyazit
on the tramway that runs from
Zeytinburnu near the airport to
Emindndi, or take either the T4 or
618 bus, both of which run from
Taksim to Sultanahmet.
Stopping off points: You are
never far from a café or bar in
Istanbul, but the obvious halfway
stopping off point is at one of
the numerous cafés or bars on
Galata Bridge. The Tunel district
also has plenty of elegant taverns
(meyhanes) and restaurants if you
want to end your walk with a
leisurely lunch or dinner or
ponder over a glass of wine.

Coffee and spices

Turn left onto Ismetiye
Caddesi and then left again
on to Uzungarsi Caddesi.
Walk to the end of the street
until you reach bustling
Tahtakale Caddesi, where you
can jostle with the locals who
come here to shop for
bargains on everything from
electronic goods to clothing.
On the right is the Tahtakale
Hamami Carsisi ®, a 500-
year-old Turkish bathhouse
that has been renovated and
turned into a shopping centre.
There is also a lovely café
under the domed roof where
you can stop to refuel.

Turn down any of the side
streets to the left and you will
come to Hasircilar Caddesi @,
famed for its spice shops,
coffee stalls and delis. Walk
towards the end of the street,
turn left on to Tahmis Caddesi
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street and, if you are <
feeling peckish or g
thirsty, you can %

make a pit stop at
historic Dartizziyafe
restaurant ®, with
its 16th-century
detailing, housed in
the former soup
kitchens of the Stilemaniye
Mosque (see p201).

Turn right on to Mimar
Sinan Caddesi and at the
bottom of the street, on the
corner in front of you, is the
tomb of the architect Mimar
Sinan ® - a poignant tribute
to the great man even if its
design is a little humble com-
pared to his own creations.

BEYAZIT
MEYDANI

and you will
reach Kurukahreci
Mehmet Efendi ®, a
traditional coffee shop,
opened in 1871, famous for
its range of blends.

Galata Bridge

Walk to Galata Bridge ®

for fantastic views of the
city. You can either stroll
across the top and watch the
many amateur fishermen
suspending their rods into
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the water below in hope of a
catch, or go down the steps
and walk along the lower
deck, where there are a
number of cafés, bars and
restaurants. After a leisurely
moment spent taking in the
breathtaking views of the
Bosphorus below, continue to
the bustling and aromatic
Karakoy fish market @,
where you can buy some of
the freshest, cheapest fish
Istanbul has to offer.

Judaism to Islam
Walk up Harragci Ali
Sokak until you
reach the Jewish
Museum @ on
Karakoy Meydani. This
17th-century museum, once

a synagogue, NOw contains a
fascinating collection of old
photographs, documents and
religious objects relating to
the city’s Jewish population.

From here, walk up
Camekan Sokak to the
Gothic-looking Beyoglu
Hospital @, built in 1904 as a
British naval hospital.
Continue until you come to
the Galata Tower @ (see
p105) in Galata Square, the
focal point of the district. The
360° viewing deck at the top
of the tower gives the perfect
vantage point from which to
see almost the entire city laid
out before you.

Now turn right and left on
to Yuisek Kaldirim Caddesi
@, a steep cobblestone street
lined with music shops
selling just about every
conceivable musical
instrument you can think of,

G Ot O &

7

Fresh fish at the Karakdy fish market

5"% Fishermen hoping for a catch on Galata Bridge

both traditional and hi-

tech. Tucked away off to the
right on Galip Dede Caddesi
is the Mevlevi Monastery @
(see p104), once home to
the Whirling Dervishes.

Chic Tiinel
At the top of the street, at
Tunel Square, you have the
option to catch the under-
ground funicular @® back
down to Karakody. The one-
stop subway was opened in
1876 and is the third-oldest
underground system in the
world after London and New
York. However do not miss
the opportunity to experi-
ence this fashionable
neighbourhood. Just
opposite the funicular is
Tunel Gecedi, an open-air
passage lined with Ottoman
buildings, most of which
have now been turned into
apartments with shops and
cafés at ground level. For a
refreshing iced coffee in
sumptuous Viennese-style
surroundings, pop into the
KV restaurant @, before
making your way to ARtrium
to pick up a
high-class antique.
To get back to
the city centre,
from Tiinel square
you can catch
buses 46H and 47
across the Golden
Horn to the Sultan-
ahmet district.
Alternatively you
can head to the
ferry port of
Kasimpasa and
take a ferry to the
Hali¢ Hatti stop
across the water.
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WHERE TO STAY

hether you feel like staying

in an Ottoman palace, tak-

ing a room in a restored
mansion or traditional wooden
house, or even spending a night
in a converted prison, you will
find the hotel of your choice in
Istanbul. Following a recent boom
in tourism, the city’s hotels and
guesthouses now cater for every
taste, as well as all budgets. Hotels
tend to be clustered around
Istanbul’s main sightseeing areas.
Sultanahmet contains many of the

Doorman at
Hilton (p790)

new boutique hotels. Beyoglu, across
the Golden Horn, is a good place to
look for three- and four-star
hotels, including the grand old
hotels of the 19th century. The
hotels listed on pages 184-91
have been chosen from the best
the city can offer across all price
ranges. Each hotel is given a brief
description and details are pro-
. vided about the facilities available.
= Also check the website www.
istanbulhotels.com on the inter-
net. Information on other types

city’s historic hotels, guesthouses and  of accommodation is on page 183.

CHOOSING A HOTEL

Many hotels in Istanbul are
rated by the Ministry of
Culture and Tourism
according to a star systen.
They range from comfortable
but basic one-star hotels to
five-star luxury hotels. Other
types of accommodation
licensed by the Ministry are
the converted buildings
known as Special Licence
hotels. A further category is
the accommodation licensed
by the Greater Istanbul
Municipality. These hotels
provide perfectly reasonable
facilities, but with less
stringent standards.
Accommodation is available
in most central areas of the
city. The Sultanahmet district
is conveniently situated within
walking distance of most of
the city’s major sights. Many
of the Special Licence hotels in
this area are tucked away on
residential side streets. There
are guesthouses along Divan-

The luxurious Four Seasons Hotel,
formerly a prison (see p187)

= T

Lounge of the Ceylan Intercontinental Hotel in Taksim (see p189)

yolu Caddesi, the main through
road, and on the slopes leading
down to the Sea of Marmara.
There are also middle-range
hotels in central Sultanahmet.

A short tram ride west from
Sultanahmet are the Beyazit,
TLaleli and Aksaray districts,
which are packed with one-,
two- and three-star hotels.
The cheaper hotels here are
used mostly by Central Asian
and Russian traders, while
many of the three-star hotels
cater for package tour groups.

Beyoglu and Taksim, the old
European centre of Istanbul,
are within easy reach of the
best sights in the city. Both
have innumerable cheap
hotels that are comfortable
and dependable, as well as
international chain hotels.

The Asian side of Istanbul
is a mainly residential area but
also contains some hotels.
There are also hotels in
Kadikoy, which are used
more by Turks than foreigners
and tourists.

LUXURY HOTELS

There has been a rapid
growth in the number of
luxury hotels in the city, and
most international chains are
now represented in Istanbul.
Almost all five-star hotels
boast spectacular Marmara or
Bosphorus views, and between
them they have some of the
best international restaurants
in the city. All the major hotels
have swimming pools and
health clubs. Many of them
also have Turkish baths.
Conference facilities are
provided, and many hotels
have extensive entertainment
facilities. Most can also
arrange tours of Istanbul and
nearby places through local
companies. Most of the hotels
now have floors where
smoking is forbidden. They
also provide facilities for the
disabled, arrange special
activities for children (see
p182) and have wireless
internet in all rooms.

<] Freshly fried fish sandwiches being prepared on a boat in Eminonii (see p208)
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SPECIAL LICENCE HOTELS

In recent years, a number
of old buildings have been
renovated and transformed
into hotels. However, due to
the nature of the buildings
in which they are housed,
some of these hotels cannot
provide facilities such as lifts.
They belong to a separate
category, the Special Licence
hotel, and are under

private management.

The Special Licence hotels
constitute some of Istanbul’s
most interesting and attractive
hotels. They are often located
in the residential
streets of historic
areas, and range
from small, modestly
priced traditional
wooden houses to
luxury Ottoman
mansions. Special
Licence hotels,
whether large or
small, are generally
of a high standard. =
The authentic
period decor of
many of them gives
even the larger ones a cosy
atmosphere. A number of
Special Licence hotels exist
only as a result of the
strenuous efforts of the
Turkish Touring and
Automobile Club (the TTOK,
see p245). Led by its former
crusading director, Celik
Giilersoy, it has successfully

Latticed window of a
Special Licence hotel

Yesil Ev (see p186), a Special Licence hotel

preserved the
Ottoman atmos-
phere of parts of
the city by saving
old buildings from
demolition and
restoring them.
Its work can be
seen particularly
in the Special
Licence hotels
of Sogukcesme
Sokag (see p61).
Increasingly,
many of the city’s newly
opened boutique-style hotels
are choosing not to apply
for official ratings or stars.
This does not,
however, imply any
lack of standards or
amenities. In fact,
these establishments
are contributing to
the continually
rising standards of
accommodation. All
have their own
websites where you
can take a virtual
tour and compare
prices and facilities.

CHEAPER HOTELS

Istanbul has plenty of cheap,
comfortable accommodation
which meets the standards of
the Turkish Ministry of
Culture and Tourism. When
choosing a cheaper hotel,
however, do not base your
decision on the facade or
lobby, which may
look brand new.
One-star hotels
provide the most
basic facilities, but
often have rooms
with a private
shower and toilet.
Two- and three-star
hotels have more
comfortable rooms
and usually a café
or bar. Many three-
star hotels offer
rooms with a TV
and mini-bar.
Guesthouses vary
in terms of facilities.
Most provide bed-
linen and towels,
and the better ones
will have rooms with
ensuite bathrooms.
All should have
communal cooking

+ = "

Hotel roof terrace overlooking Sultanahmet

facilities. While cheaper hotels
usually have central heating
they are unlikely to have air
conditioning, but an electric
fan may be provided. Some
small hotels may not provide
hot water 24 hours a day.

WHAT TO EXPECT

All hotels listed in this book
are comfortable and welcom-
ing. Front desk staff usually
speak English, and will be
able to give information on
sights and travel.

Hotel rooms in Istanbul
generally have two single
beds, and enough space to
add a third one if need be. If
you want a double bed you
should make this clear when
book-ing or checking in.

Most hotels with three or
more storeys will have a lift.
There may not be a lift in a
Special Licence hotel, however,
because of the problems of
installing one in an older
building. Facilities for wheel-
chair users are increasingly
found in hotels.

Noise can be a problem
even in some smart hotels, so
in busy areas choose a room
that doesn’t face on to a main
street. If you are not satisfied
with your room, you can
always ask for another.

Breakfast (see p194) is
included in the price of the
room and typically consists
of a generous open buffet,
including cold meats, fruits,
cereals and yoghurt. Many
larger hotels have restaurants
that serve a la carte meals.
Upmarket hotels have at least
one dining room serving
evening meals, but some of
the smaller, cheaper hotels do
not. It is a good idea to check
when booking and confirm
by email or fax.
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Reception desk at the Istanbul Hilton (see p790)

PRICES AND DISCOUNTS

Hotel prices are quoted in
euros or New Turkish Lira
(YTL) and sometimes in US
dollars. Prices are per room
not per person. All prices
usually include breakfast, and
tax. Apart from top-class
hotels, which have
standard prices
that do not change |
throughout the
year, tariffs differ
according to the
season. The busy
season, when
hotel prices tend
to be at their
highest, is from
April to the end

of October. During
the brief Christmas
and New Year
period, the higher
summer tariffs are
applied. There are no single
rooms, but all hotels offer a
single room rate of slightly
more than half the price of

a double room.

It is always worth
attempting to bargain with
hotels, but do not expect to
get a discount. For longer
stays of a week or more you
may be able to get a
reduction. Some hotels also
offer discounts for internet
bookings, cash payments, or
out-of-season stays. However,
do not expect a room with
any kind of a view if you
have got it at a discount.

BOOKING A ROOM

Lounge area of the
Empress Zoe (see p185)

While you will always be
able to find a room of a
reasonable standard, it is
advisable to book in advance
for the best hotels or those of

your choice during the busy
season. You can book any
hotel listed in this guide
directly, by telephone, fax
and e-mail. Many hotels also
have their own website
registration forms. You may
be asked to give your credit
card details, which will
guarantee your
reservation. If you
cannot find a
place in any of the
hotels that fall in
your preferred
price range, try
one of the
established travel
companies based
in Istanbul, such
as Meptur, Plan
Tours (see p228)
or Vip Tourism.

If you arrive
without having
reserved a room,
the tourist information offices
(see p229) in the airport,
Sirkeci Station, Sultanahmet
Square or Karakoy
International Maritime
Terminal will help you find a
hotel, but they will not make
a reservation for you.

CHECKING OUT AND
PAYING

Guests are expected to

check out by midday, but
hotels will usually keep lug-
gage for collection later. All
hotels accept the major credit
cards, as well as Turkish lira
and other currencies. VAT is
always included in the room
price although, leave a few
dollars, or its equivalent, in the
room for the cleaner, and give
a tip to the receptionist to be
divided among the staff.
Phone calls and mini-bar drinks
can add to the size of your bill.

CHILDREN

Children up to six years old
are often not charged for
rooms, and pay 50% until 12
years old. It is possible to
negotiate a discount for older
children who share a room
with their parents. Most hotels
also have cots for babies.

Some hotels arrange special
entertainment for children. The
Swissotel (see p190) offers a
weekend package.

HOSTELS

For those on a tight budget,
Istanbul has a number of
inexpensive hostels, mostly in
the Sultanahmet area. The
best known, which has been
a firm favourite for several
decades, is the Yiicelt
Interyouth Hostel. This hostel
is right in the heart of the
Sultanahmet district, on a
peaceful, tree-lined street
beside Haghia Sophia and
literally next door to the
Haghia Sophia Museum.

Double room in the Special Licence Kariye Hotel (see p789)



Guests in the Yiicelt Interyouth Hostel

Yiicelt was established in
1965 with the specific aim of
providing accommodation
for the younger and more
independent travellers on a
restricted budget. It was often
the first choice of travellers
on the hippy trail in the
1970s. Tt is still a popular and
friendly hostel, offering 320
beds in dormitories, or in
more expensive, but less-
crowded, rooms (single,
double and triple rooms are
available). All rooms have
heating. Yiicelt is a member
of the International Youth
Hostel Federation (IYHF) and
offers a discount for
members. The hostel has a
wealth of facilities, including
hot-water showers, a laundry,
a safe, a luggage room, an
internet room, a cafeteria and
even a bar and disco. Nearby,
on Akbiyik Caddesi, the
Orient Guesthouse is a
modern youth hostel with
excellent facilities, including a
rooftop café, a bar and a safe.
The tour operator Gengtur
(see p229) is also affiliated to
the IYHF and can provide
detailed information on
additional hostels in the city.

CAMPING

Camping and caravanning in
Turkey have steadily gained
popularity in recent years.
There is an ever-increasing
variety of excellent camping
places with self-catering
facilities open in the summer
season, which lasts from

May until October. Londra
Kamping is open throughout
the year. It has washing and
cooking facilities, a fast-food
restaurant, bar, pool table and
football pitch. As well as
providing camping facilities, it
also has two-room bungalows
for rent. On the Black Sea
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coast but situated to DIRECTORY
the east of the
Bosphorus is another | TRAVEL AGENTS
equally attractive and
popular camp site, Meptur
the Kumbaba Moteli, Tel (0212) 275 02 50.
which is situated 1.2 Fax (0212) 275 40 09.
miles (2 km) outside Vip Tourism

the resort of Sile

(see p158). This site
is open between May
and September, and
the amenities it has to
offer include hot showers and
cooking facilities.

For further details, contact
the Turkish Camping and
Caravanning Association,
which is helpful and
informative. The association
also has a website with
comprehensive listings of sites
throughout the country.

View over Dolmabahg¢e Mosque
from the Swissotel (see p790)

SELF-CATERING

Istanbul has a number of
apartment hotels located
near various central business
and residential districts,
providing fully furnished
apartments for those who
prefer more homely
surroundings. The Akmerkez
Residence Apart Hotel, which
is mostly used by business-
men, is in the upmarket
Akmerkez shopping mall
in Etiler (see p211). Tts
luxuriously decorated flats
have air-conditioning and all
domestic appliances. The
Entes Apart Hotel has
compact modern apartments.
Global real estate franchises
like Century 21 and Remax
can assist in finding long-
or short-term rental
accommodation.

Tel (0212) 241 65 14. Fax (0212)
230 66 76. www.viptourism.
com.tr

YOUTH HOSTELS

Orient Guesthouse

Akbliyik Cad 13, Sultanahmet.
Map 3 E5 (5 E5).

Tel (0212) 517 94 93. Fax (0212)
518 38 94 www.hostels.com/
orienthostel

Yiicelt Interyouth

Hostel

Caferiye Sok 6/1, Sultanahmet.
Map 3 E4 (5 E3).

Tel (0212) 513 61 50. Fax (0212)
512 76 28. www.yucelthostel.
com

CAMPING

Kumbaba Moteli
Sile. Tel (0216) 711 50 38.

Londra Kamping

Londra Asfalti, Bakirkdy.

Tel (0212) 560 42 00. Fax (0212)
559 34 38.

Turkish Camping and
Caravanning Association
Feliz Sok, 52 Kartaltepe Mah,
Bakirkoy.

Tel (0212) 662 46 15. Fax (0212)
662 46 14. www.kampkaravan.
org

SELF-CATERING

Akmerkez Residence
Akmerkez Shopping & Business
Centre, Etiler.

Tel (0212) 282 01 20. Fax (0212)
282 06 12. www.akmerkez.com.
g

Century 21
www.century21.com.tr

Entes Apart Hotel

ipek Sok 19, Taksim.

Map 7 E4.

Tel (0212) 293 22 08. Fax (0212)
293 1598.

Remax
WWW.remax.com.tr
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ChOOSing a HOtCl PRICE CATEGORIES

For a standard double room per night,
inclusive of breakfast, service charges

The hotels in this guide have been selected across a and any additional taxes,
wide range for their good value, facilities and location. ® under Us$70

These listings highlight some of the factors that may ®(® Uss70-$100

. . . ®®® Us$100-5150
influence your choice. Hotels are listed by area, ®O®® Uss150-5200
beginning with Seraglio Point. All the entries are ®®O®®® Over Us$200

alphabetical within each price category.

SERAGLIO POINT

Apricot ] % |=| ®
Akbiyik Caddesi 75, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 638 16 58 Fax (0212) 638 16 58 Rooms 18 Map 3 E5 (5 E5)
This is such a pretty little hotel and it has been restored to a far better state than the original Ottoman building. It
boasts comfortable beds, well-furnished rooms and polished hard-wood floors. Internet access and many other
amenities are also available. Meals (except breakfast) are served by arrangement. www.hotelapricot.com

Ararat 7 | S| ®®
Torun Sokak 3, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 516 04 11 Fax (0212) 518 52 41 Rooms 14 Map 3 E5 (5 E5)

An unusual and highly individualistic family-run hotel. Each room has its own theme with one-of-a-kind decor. The
owner is always available to offer advice and to attend to details. The hotel is close to the Blue Mosque and has
splendid views across the Sea of Marmara from the top floor terrace. www.ararathotel.com

Spectra Hotel BE ®®
Sehit Mehmetpasa Yok 2, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 516 35 46 Rooms 19 Map 3 D5 (5 D5)

One of the assets of this hotel is the owner, a retired archaeologist, who is a source of wisdom on many aspects of
local life. The rooms are comfortable and well-appointed. Breakfast is served on the terrace with grand views of the
Blue Mosque. Guests have free internet access. The Spectra is handy to all central sights. www.hotel spectra.com

Ayasofya Evleri HmRE (6l66)
Sogukgesme Sokak, Sultanahmet, 34122 Tel (0212) 513 36 60 Fax (0212) 513 36 69 Rooms 63 Map 3 E4 (5 F3)

Nine restored wooden houses comprise this charming accommodation on the cobbled street behind Haghia Sophia.
They have beautiful names such as Jasmine, Honeysuckle and Rose and are painted in pastel colours. The rooms are
elegant and decorated with antiques. Booking is essential. www.ayasofyapensions.com

Kybele Hotel BE (Bl66]
Yeribatan Caddesi 33-35, 34410 Tel (0212) 511 77 66 Fax (0212) 513 43 93 Rooms 16 Map 3 E4 (5 E3)

This tiny, multi-storied hotel is located in the heart of the tourist area. The antiques and craft items of every
description create a homely and friendly atmosphere. A wonderful breakfast is served in the garden in summer and
in one of the ornate rooms in winter. The Kybele is a firm favourite with many visitors. www.kybelehotel.com

Mavi Ev mRE ®0®
Dalbasti Sokak 14, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 638 90 10 Fax (0212) 638 90 17 Rooms 27 Map 3 E5 (5 E5)

Under the same polished management as the Pudding Shop , this is a distinctive Wedgwood blue konak (wooden
mansion) restored in period style in the heart of Sultanahmet. It is peaceful and has a leafy garden and acclaimed
rooftop restaurant. The views over the Sea of Marmara are magnificent. www.bluehouse.com.tr

Seven Hills MOBEFAER 00O
Tevkifhane Sokak 8/A, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 516 94 97/98/99 Rooms 14 Map 3 E5 (5 D5)

This is a hotel that goes out of its way to ensure your stay exceeds expectations. Rooms are beautifully decorated
and suites are spacious with private Jacuzzis and fitness facilities in each room. Incredible views along with a first-
class restaurant (see p798) are found on the terrace. www.hotelsevenhills.com

SULTANAHMET
Antea mBaE ®
Piyerloti Caddesi 21, Cemberlitas, 34400 Tel (0212) 638 11 21-25 Rooms 45 Map 3 D4 (4 C4)

The Antea is a peaceful hotel on a side street off the main tourist area of Sultanahmet. Like its neighbours, this is a
restored building. Rooms are modern and attractively furnished. The restaurant serves Turkish and international
dishes. A perfect place to relax after a day of sightseeing and shopping. www.anteahotel.com

Key to Symbols see back cover flap
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Hotel Mina BE ®
Piyerloti Caddesi, Dostluk Urdu Sokak 6, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 458 28 00 Rooms 44 Map 3 D4 (4 C4)
Hotel Mina is tucked away in the backstreets protected from the hustle of the main tourist area. The owners are very
welcoming and friendly. Rooms are comfortable and well furnished, although they are not too ornate or fussy. This is
a comfortable base within walking distance of all the main attractions of Sultanahmet. www.minahotel.com.tr
Hotel Sultanahmet AMEABRE ®
Divanyolu Caddesi 20, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 527 02 39 Rooms 20 Map 3 D4 (5 D5)
A well-located budget hotel close to all the sights. It has few frills but is clean and neat, and adequately furnished.
There is a pretty terrace with a decent view and evening meals and snacks are served here. The hotel is well run and
staff are always hospitable. www.hotelsultanahmet.com

Orient Guesthouse 2R ®
Akbiyik Caddesi 13, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 517 94 93 Fax (0212) 518 38 94 Rooms 15 Map 3 E5 (5 E5)
This is the cheapest and most cheerful place to stay in Sultanahmet making it the proverbial backpackers’ paradise.
Rooms are sparse and many resemble a dormitory with three or four beds. Forget about chandeliers and en suite
bathrooms, but there is always hot water and other weary, friendly wanderers. www.orienthostel.com

Sebnem B ®
Adliye Sokak 1, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 517 66 23 Fax (0212) 638 10 56 Rooms 23 Map 3 E4 (5 F4)
This small but welcoming guesthouse, is more like a doll’s house. It has pretty, colourful rooms and serviceable
wooden furniture. There is a panoramic roof terrace where you can look out at the main buildings of Sultanahmet
and across the Bosphorus and Sea of Marmara. www.sebnemhotel.com

Dersaadet AMRER ®®
Kicuk Ayasofya Caddesi, Kapiagasi Sokak 5, 34400 Tel (0212) 458 07 60/61 Rooms 17 Map 3 E5 (5 D5)
This impeccable hotel is a local pioneer in renovation. It has been authentically designed and furnished by traditional
artisans. Small details abound and the owner is always around to ensure your stay is memorable. The Sultan’s
Penthouse suite has recently been added. www.hoteldersaadet.com

Empress Zoe mae ®®
Akbiyik Caddesi, Adliye Sokak 10, 34400 Tel (0212) 518 25 04 Fax (0212) 518 56 99 Rooms 22Map 3 E4 (5 F4)4

It is claimed that Empress Zoe actually lived here. The two buildings have been restored to an exceptionally high
standard of taste and design with an abundance of spacious suites. The garden is idyllic and contains the remains of
a bath house built in 1483. There are some no-smoking rooms available. www.emzoe.com

Historia BE ®®
Amiral Tafdil Sokak 23, 34400 Tel (0212) 517 74 72 Fax (0212) 516 81 69 Rooms 25 Map 3 E5 (5 F5)

This attractive wooden hotel has wonderful sea views from the rooftop terrace. Most rooms tend to be quite basic,
but they are well decorated and comfortable. Several also have balconies that overlook the back garden. The
breakfast patio is secluded and shaded. www.historiahotel.com

Hotel Alp Guest House mER ®®
Akbiyik Caddesi, Adliye Sokak 4, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 517 70 67 Rooms 14 Map 3 E4 (5 F4)

There are wonderful views from the roof terrace of this hotel hidden away behind the Blue Mosque. It is known as a
friendly place to stay with excellent service. The hotel has recently been extensively renovated to a high standard,
with new traditional furnishings in the bedrooms. www.alpguesthouse.com

Hotel Nena MmEE ®®
Binbirdirek Mahallesi, Klodfarer Caddesi 8-10, 34400 Tel (0212) 516 52 64 Rooms 29 Map 3 D4 (5 D4)

Hotel Nena has a Byzantine atmosphere and is richly decorated and very comfortable. Some rooms have balconies
with classic sea and mosque vistas. The beautiful conservatory basks in sun and has wrought-iron and glass furniture
as well as flourishing tropical greenery. www.nenahotel.com

Nomade MmBEE ®®
Ticarethane Sokak 15, Cagaloglu, 34400 Tel (0212) 511 12 96 Fax (0212) 513 24 04 Rooms 16 Map 3 E4 (5 D3)

One of the oldest houses in this area, the Nomade has recently undergone a wonderful and extensive renovation.
The owners have added appealing designer touches to the individually designed bedrooms and bathrooms. Meals
and afternoon drinks are served on the rooftop terrace. www.hotelnomade.com

Sari Konak BE ®®
Mimar Mehmet Aga Caddesi 42-46, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 638 62 58 Rooms 17 Map 3 E5 (5 E5)

Sari means “yellow” in Turkish and this delightful wooden house is easily identifiable by its distinctive hue. It has a
charming patio, marble fountain and latticed balconies. Rooms are tastefully decorated and the suites have high-
speed internet access. www.istanbulhotelsarikonak.com

Sarnig BHER ®®
Klgtk Ayasofya Caddesi 26, 34400 Tel (0212) 518 23 23 Fax (0212) 518 24 14 Rooms 16 Map 3 D5 (5 D5)

Sarnig is a clean and tidy place with a homely feel. It is painted a soft pink colour and the building is surrounded by
others of the same history and heritage. It has well decorated rooms and a rooftop restaurant and bar area. Useful
extras include a laundry service, baby-sitting and valet parking. www.sarnichotel.com
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Side Hotel and Pension HmBRE ®®
Utangacg Sokak 20, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 517 66 23 Fax (0212) 638 10 56 Rooms 36 Map 3 £4

This family run establishment combines a pension for budget-conscious guests and also a ritzier hotel. Pension prices
are cheaper and facilities are fewer, with no air conditioning in rooms. The hotel is comfortable and some rooms
have private Jacuzzis available as an extra. www.sidehotel.com

Alzer HmRE ®®6®
At Meydani 72, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 516 62 62/63 Fax (0212) 516 00 00 Rooms 21 Map 3 D4 (5 D4)
This renovated town house with beautifully appointed and furnished rooms has plenty of definitive touches. In the
summer tables are available at street level, but the greatest attraction is the roof restaurant. A cheerful bijou hotel
with attentive service. www.alzerhotel.com

Avicenna MmRE ®0®
Amiral Tafdil Sokak 31-33, 34400 Tel (0212) 517 05 50-54 Fax (0212) 516 65 55 Rooms 50 Map 3 E5 (5 E5)
Occupying two handsomely renovated Ottoman buildings, this conveniently located mid-range hotel has luxurious
interior furnishings, including rich textiles, carpets and traditional wooden floors. Try to reserve rooms on the attic
floors for panoramic sea views. www.avicenna.com.tr

Aziyade mERE ®®®
Piyerloti Caddesi 62, Cemberlitas, 34490 Tel (0212) 638 22 00 Fax (0212) 518 50 65 Rooms 105Map 3 D4 (4 B4)
Aziyade has some lovely features that one might expect to find at a more luxurious level. The small swimming pool
on the roof is unique in the area. Rooms are elegant and tastefully decorated. The café is remniscent of the Fruit
Room in the Harem at Topkapi Palace (see p58). www.festivalhotels.com

Citadel HmBRE (6l66)
Kennedy Caddesi, Sahil Yolu 32, Ahirkapi, 34400 Tel (0212) 516 23 13 Rooms 31 Map 3 E5 (5 F5)
Now under the umbrella of the Best Western Group, the dusty pink Citadel Hotel occupies a large stone building
under the city walls. Rooms are small but pleasantly furnished with all the essentials. No-smoking rooms are available
and some rooms look directly onto the sea. office@citadelhotel.com

ibrahim Pasa AMEORE ®©®®
Terzihane Sokak 5, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 518 03 94 Fax (0212) 518 44 57 Rooms 16 Map 3 D4 (5 D4)

This charming stone-built hotel is located opposite the Museum of Turkish and Islamic Arts (see p77). Rooms are
individually furnished and, along with the rooftop terrace, are stylish and unique. The decor successfully blends Art
Deco with traditional Turkish influences. www.ibrahimpasha.com

Pierre Loti mBaE ®0®
Piyerloti Caddesi 5, Cemberlitas, 34400 Tel (0212) 518 57 00 Fax (0212) 516 18 86 Rooms 38 Map 3 D4 (4 C4)

Named after a Romantic novelist who lived in Istanbul, this was one of the first hotels in the area to be renovated to
a high standard. It is in the thick of things on the main road but the summer garden and glassed-in café give you a
fine view of the world going by. Rooms are small but wonderfully comfortable. www.pierreloti.com

Valide Sultan Konagi MmBRE ®0®
Kutlugtin Sokak 1, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 638 06 00 Fax (0212) 638 07 05 Rooms 17 Map 3 E4 (5 F4)

A long-term favourite with visitors to Istanbul, the Valide Sultan’s proximity to the Topkap! Palace is an advantage. It
has kept up appearances, like its palatial neighbour. The rooms have been individually decorated and, although small,
are comfortable. There is a glorious summer terrace with good views. www.hotelvalidesultan.com

Armada DERRER 060060
Ahir Kapi Sokak 24, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 638 13 70 Fax (0212) 518 50 60 Rooms 110 Map 3 E5 (5 F5)

Possibly one of Istanbul’s best kept secrets, this hotel is dignified and yet immensely friendly. The rooms are elegantly
decorated in soothing colours and the restaurant is highly recommended. There is great live music and regular tango
evenings are held here. www.armadahotel.com.tr

Sultanahmet Palace DEE 6666
Torun Sokak 19, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 458 04 60 Fax (0212) 518 62 24 Rooms 36 Map 3 E5 (5 E5)

This is the ideal place to spoil yourself. Less authentically refurbished than some other establishments, it is,
nevertheless, a refined hotel that deserves its palace title. The domes of the Blue Mosque rise right beside you. The
garden is perfect and the service is subtle and polished. www.sultanahmetpalace.com

Yesil Ev DEE 66606
Kabasakal Sokak 5, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 517 67 85 Rooms 19 Map 3 £4 (5 E4)

Yesil Ev (Green House) is a local landmark that typifies the spirit of Ottoman luxury. Rooms are furnished with
antiques, one even has its own Turkish bath, and the service is impeccable. There is a secluded garden and an
outstanding restaurant. www.istanbulyesilev.com

Eresin Crown DEQFAER ©®000®
Kuguk Ayasofya Caddesi 40, Sultanahmet, 34400 Tel (0212) 639 44 28 Rooms 60 Map 3 D5 (5 D5)

This highly rated, luxury hotel stands on the site of what was once the Great Palace (see p82). Some of the
extraordinary Byzantine treasures and heritage mosaics unearthed here are on display in the hotel's own museum.
There are several bars and dining options. The Eresin Crown is in a class of its own. www.eresincrown.com.tr

Key to Price Guide see p184 Key to Symbols see back cover flap
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Four Seasons DEOFAE 00000
Tevkithane Sokak 1, Sultanahmet, 34110 Tel (0212) 638 82 00 Fax (0212) 638 85 30 Rooms 65 Map 3 E4 (5 F4)

Built as a prison for dissident writers in 1917, the Four Seasons has been restored to a Neo-Classical haven of luxury.
Every room has a theme that blends Turkish traditions with contemporary comfort. It is ideally situated a short
distance from the main Sultanahmet sights. www.fshr.com

Kalyon MOEEER ©000®
Sahil Yolu, Cankurtaran, 34122 Tel (0212) 517 44 00 Fax (0212)638 11 11 Rooms 112 Map 3 E5 (5 F5)

The Kalyon is not just a tourist hotel; locals use it and it is a first-rate business hotel. Its position away from the centre
of Sultanahmet means that it is quiet and it faces directly onto the Sea of Marmara. Rooms are beautifully furnished
to a superb standard. The restaurant is one of the most underrated in the city. www.kalyon.com

THE BAZAAR QUARTER

Aspen MEE ®
Aksaray Caddesi 27, Laleli, 34480 Tel (0212) 518 53 61 Fax (0212) 518 53 91 Rooms 80 Map 2 A4

Although there are no glorious views or extra luxuries, Aspen is still an excellent hotel for those on a budget who do
not want to sacrifice a central location. The hotel is near all the main sights and adjacent to public transport in the
busy Aksaray area. The service is cheerful. www.aspenotel.com.tr

Sidera BHE ®
Dénis Sokak 14, Kumkapi Tel (0212) 638 34 60 Fax (0212) 518 72 62 Rooms 18 Map 3 D5 (4 B5)

A converted 19th-century wooden house, the Sidera is painted a distinctive green and is more like a family home.
Although small, it offers adequate facilities. Rooms can be a bit dark but the location, on a narrow street lined with
other Ottoman-style wooden houses, is part of its nostalgic charm. www.hotelsiderapalace.com

Bulvar Palas MOBEERAE ®®
Ataturk Bul 152, Sarachane, 34470 Tel (0212) 528 58 81 Fax (0212) 528 60 81 Rooms 70 Map 2 A3

A makeover has given thi